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. OUTLOOK
>wo:q “”bmm zm mzocv C company in 2007, The Group is continuing to invest in its
ars Group has greotly physical and digital elevation strategy

contributed to British econarmy, 1 and our gmni-channel offering fs growing

* in strength. Our stores in the UK have

Founded as a single store in 1982, Frasers Grou reopened above expectations and aur
9 : : P
plc {Frasers Group, the Group, the business or the online M:g:m_ nmi_ﬂcﬂ to u,_mm_*_va:,z
H 1 . Approx. £250m paid outperform pre-Covid-19 pericds. None
Ooz‘wvn—-i is today the UK's largest sporting goods in staff share bonuses the less, management remains of the view
retailer by revenue, that there is a high risk of future Covid-19
pandemic restrictions, likely to be over this
Group operates o diversified portf of sports, fitness, premium Nmnooo Winter and maybe beyond.
fascias in over 20 countries. W e more than
| Premiumn Have o workforce of The bacrd of Frasers Group has continued
ensing. approx. 25,000 people to consider the probable return of
worldwide, approx. 19,000 restrictions during FY22, including within
to servie consumers with the world's best brands. This requires of which are in the UK its accounting judgements and estimates
us to have the right product, in the right place, at the right time and ct the for FY21, As the effacts of the Covid-19-
e pandemic continue to cause future
pillars — the brands we sell, our digital offering and hN docz uncertainty, including the Delta voriont
ores. These are supported by a set of enablers, forused Contributed approx. surge we are cuzrently séeing, the board of
people, systems, automation and data. £2100m in VAT and Duty Frasers Group considers it cannot currently

confirm with enough material accuracy
what the outcome for FY22 will look like.

hﬂ Qoz Based on this we will not be giving

Approx, £190m poid a projection to the market for FY22
R L in scles commission to perfarmance. Any projections produced
MISSION . STATEMENT by third parties such as research analysts
T . \ . are not produced on hehalf of Frasers
o : ‘ Group plc and Frasers Group ple takes
no responsibility for such projections.

TO SERVE OUR CONSUMERS SISOl oo e ond
WITH THE WORLD'S BEST SPORTS, conomon s [ Sl
PREMIUM AND LUXURY BRANDS.

produced by thivd parties os indicative

hﬂmoz of the market expectations of Frasers

Group ple’s future financial performance.

Contributed approx. We specifically note that we are uhder

n Ml employer no obligation to carrect estimates made

. g HE f by financial analysts or to inform the
i market should we come to believe that our

WE DO NOT RUN THE BUSINESS FOR THE SHORT-TERM actual performance will differ from those
BUT WORK TO ENSURE WE DELIVER SHAREHOLDER “It was the Agencics we were after’ estimates.
VALUE OVER THE MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM, WHILST " , - We will review the current situation
ADOPTING ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES THAT ARE We hadto get youinordertoget o [t omin i S

CONSERVATIVE, CONSISTENT AND SIMPL| ) the agencies” whether there is more certainty on further
restrictions or not we may be abla to give

TUESDAY 4 QCTOBER 2016 MR STEVE TURNER guidance at that point,

{ASSISTANT GENERAL SECRETARY UNITE UNIONY

1ew Firtish woodiand across the UK
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GROUP AT
A GLANCE

UK SPORTS
RETAIL

54.3%

Total Group Revenue

£1,968.5M

10.7%

UK Sports Retail includes core
sports retail store gperations

in the UK, pius all the Group’s
sports retail online business
{excluding Bob's Stores, Eastarn
Mountain Sports and Sports
Direct Malaysia), the gyms, the
Group's Shirebrook campus
operatians, retail store cperations
in Northern Ireland, Evans Cycles
and GAME UK,

QOur store footprint is significant,
with 806 stores across the UK,
totalling approximately 6.5m
sq.ft. of retail space. The majority
of stores gre operated under the
SPORTS DIRECT, USC, Evans
Cycles and GAME fascias,

4

EUROPEAN
RETAIL

17.0%

~  Tetal Group Revenue

the Group's sports retail stores,
ment and opergtions

in Belgium and Austria as well
as GAME Spain. The total
European s count js 486

and

g FY21, management
cantinued to elevate the Group's
European stores and work
to further tailor the Group's
consumer value propositions to
our locol markets.

FRASERS GROUP

20.3%

Toto Group Revanug

PREMIUM

The Group's Premium Lifestyle division offers a broad range of clothing, footwear and accessories
from leading globai contemporary and luxury retafl brands through our fascias in the UK: Flannels,
Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Sofa.com and Jack Wills along with their related websites.
The majority of these fascias operate as multi-brand premium retail destinations and are focused
on providing fashion conscious consumers with high-end and on trend products. The segment is
supported by our Group-wide centrolised commercial and support fuinctions, giving the benefits
of scule and operating efficiencies to each fascia, The segment is a significant part of the Group's
new generation retail concept and as such, in certain locations, Premium and Lifestyle stores

are co-located alongside our Sports retail stores to benefit from increased customer footfall and
cperating synergies. - ,

The total Premium Lifestyle store count is 179 stores and approximately 4.2m sq.ft. of retail space.

. 4.2%

Total Group Revenug:

REST OF
.__M_MM><R.O_~_.U m“my_z‘_\\‘ 12.3%

Rest of Wao

Mountain $

Tatal Group Revenug

WHOLESALE & "
LICENSING 4.3%

The Wholesale & Licensing segment operates our glabally renowned heritage Group brands

{such as Everiast, Lonsdale, Karimor and Stazenger} and our wholesale, licensing and distribution
relationships across the world, as well as our partnerships with third party brands that we .
license-in to sell certain products, The Graup's own brands are managed both individually and
centrally within this segment. This uniaue, integrated approach to-brand management leverages

the expertise of our people, encouroges innovotion, and ensures consistency,

acrass the UK |
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

8.4%

Group revenue decreased

by 8.4%

Excluding acquisitions and
an a currency neutral basis,
revenue decreosed by 114%™

42.2%

Group gross
margin increased to 42.2%
from 42.0%

Group underlying EBITDA!*
increased by 29.4% to
£390.8m

compared to £302.1m in the
prior periad

Exctuding acquisitions and on o

currency neutral basis, underlying
EBITDA increased 16.9% ~

FRASERS GROUP

18.5p

Reported basic carnings per
share fell by 189.2% to a loss
of 16.5p, from a profit
of 18.5p

Underlying bosic earnings - per

share decreased by 2045% o a
loss of 17.0p from a profit of 16.2p

Reported profit after
P tax was a loss of

/—\

@m.._O\o
o

T7.2% Mﬂm.ro“.u.w“m.: 112% hNoo \O hm o“z

£101.0m Undevlying profit before tax?
decreased by 951% to £5.8m
from £117.4m

(16.5p)

1 Steinbais 10070
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

Reported profit before tax was
£8.5m, down 94.1%
from a profit of £143.5m

£427.8M

- £248.9M

A S S

Net debt decreased to £248.9m
{£366.0m at 26 April 2020)

Group reported EBITDA
decreased by 2.6% to
£536.5m compared to
£551.0m in the prior
period.

UNDERLYING FREE CASH
FLOW (PRE-CAPEX)
INCREASED TO £427.8M
COMPARED TO £263.1M IN
THE PRIOR PERIOD ®

FRASERS GROUP

11.8%
[T+ |

EUROPEAN RETAIL REVENUE DECREASED BY 11.8%, LARGELY DUE THE
TEMPORARY STORE CLOSURES CAUSED BY THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Excluding ocquisitions and on a currency neutral bosis, revenue decreased by 20.5%",
lurgely coused by temporary store closures due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

European Retail like-for-like gross contribution was down 15.0%™

Premium Lifestyle revenue
increased by 1.9% lorgely
d ° qo\ due to growth in our online

® ° business, and new store
openings

Excluding acquisitions,
revenue increased by 1.4% "

Premium Lifestyle like-for-hike gross
contribution was down 2.8%

UK Sports Retail revenue decreased by 10.7%, largely due the
temporary store closures coused by the Covid-19 pandemic,
offset by growth in our online business and pent up demand on
reopening stores

Excluding acquisitions, revenue decreased by 14.6%: ™, largely caused by temporary
store closures caused by the Covid-19 pandemic

UK Sports Retail like-for-like gross contribution was down 13.4% *

e sl mnt capale e et Bl barther e gl e e
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STRATEGIC AND
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Mo of
Performers

Wilk recieve
shares worth:

_um>_~_.mmm 066 10
SRz LAUNCHED B0

The schemae exists to reword cur top 1000 performers @@
when our share price reaches 19, for 30 consecutive

trading days, These top performers will be nominated by M@@
their colleagues for the embodiment of aur 3 core values:

700
Think Without Limits, Don't Hesitate, and Own It. P\ @ 0

202 ELEVATION
PROGRAMME S1/ATS

£1,000,000
£500,000
£250,000
£125,000
£50,000

2178 TOTAL APPLICATIONS

44%
MALE

55%
FEMALE

Prnted on Steinbers 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust, helping to croate

Zc_roz@\

SHARES WERE AT
B6.8% OWNERSHIP
AT YEAR END

BOSS

HUGO BOS S

SHARES WERE AT
18.5% SUWNERSHIR
AT YEAR END

2w Brilsh woodiand across the UK

FRASERS GROUP

WIGAN]

RETAIL
PARK

27,064 saFv

£41,750,000
PURCHASE PRICE
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OUR RESPONSE TO COVID-19

Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, our highest
priority has been to protect the heaith, safsty
and welibeing of our colleagues. This reflects
both our duty to keep our people sate and

the business imperative: if we are not safe, we
cannaot trade.

OQur response has been based on a number of
key principles, in particular: .

+  following Government guidelines and
exceeding them in certain aspects;

+  compieting thorough risk assessments and
regularly updating themn; and

+  communicating effectively, so our peaple
understand what we are doing and their
part in keeping themselves and their
colleagues safe,

The standards we have developed have been
shared and followed acrass the Group, except
where local legislation mandates o different
approach.

The Group's senior managerent have been
closely involved in our response, ensuring

the safety of our people is put first and that
sufficient resources and equipment are
available. We have also been supported by an
independent health and safety consultant, who
is helping us to drive continuous improvement,
including in relation to ous respanse to Cavid-1%.

Qur Initial Response To Covid-19

In lost year's report, we detailed the steps we
had taken across cur warehouse, office and
stares in the first few months of the Covid-19
pandemic. These steps are summarised below.

Virtually all furtoughed colleagues received
100% of pay during the first lockdown, in excess
of the 80% guarantead by the Government,
and we sent home on full pay all colleagues
over 60, as well as those categorised as
vulnerable or at risk, Other measures we have
introduced included random temperature -
checks for colleagues, strict protocols for
self-isolation after contact with o positive case,
encouraging regular testing and providing full

pay for people who test positive, while they afe
unable to work.

In summary, in the early stoges of the Covid-19
pandemic we:

Warehouse

v Invited the local environmental health
officer and our independent consultant to
review our controls and social distancing
measures

+  Reduced the amount of traffic in and out of
the building and in key areas, for example
by staggering stort, finish and break times,
moving agency stoff to four-day weeks and
apening a new entrance ta reduce traffic
through reception

. introduced seven-doy health and sofety
coverage, to support the warehouse teoms

+  Provided first aiders with advice and PPE
{personal protective equipment], to protect
them when first aid was needed

.+ implemented hygiene stations and created
a new role of “Social Distancing Marshal”

«  [ntroduced 'no contact’ sécurity checks
Office

- Reguired callsagues to work at home
wherever possible and where they needed
to shield

+  Communicated restart guidance through
Slack [on internal messaging service
availabie to afl head office colleagues}

+ Increased cleaning, provided hygiene
stations throughout and limited capacity in
key areas such as kitchens ond lifts

+ |mplemented protocols to ensure there was
no mixing between warehouse and office
staff in commen areas such as canteens

+  Allowed only authorised visitors and
encouraged meetings through digital
platforms .

1

Y 10,

Stores +  Nevember 2020. We reviewed and updated
our warehouse risk assessment and shared
it with the teamns. Face coverings became
mandatory in the warehouse, and were
encouraged in offices texcept for medical
and operational exemptions), going beyond
Government guidance. We issued guidance
to cil agencies and departments about
reporting Covid-i9 cases, including foliow-
up actions required.

+  Created a retail restart pack for stores
reapening, including signage, PPE, increased

 cleaning schedules, lower store eccupancy
levels, one-way systems in-store and
training documents for all new procedures

. Reduced traffic in and out of the building
and in key areas by stoggering start, finish
and break times

+ Revised delivery and processing procedures . December 2020. We reviewed the head

to maintain social distancing office risk assessment and shared it with all
departments, To enhance social distancing,
we closed 50% of shared work areas and
the office workstations used by people who
could not work from home, and further
reduced meeting room capacities. We
reviewed dnd communicated our contacts
guidance and shielding requirements and
made face coverings mandatory in head
office. All head office colleagues received
a Covid-19 controls review document,
requiring an electronic signature of
acceptance,

. Added sanitisation stations throughout
stores and encouraged colleagues and
customers to use them

. Used unonnouncéd visits by the Health &
Safety team to ensure the retail restart pack
had been correctly implemented

Qur approach was well regarded by local
authorities, with positive feedback following
unannounced visits ta our stores and
warehouse.

Adopting And Developing Our Proced

«  Jonuary 2021. We reviewed the warehouse
risk assessment and issued a warehouse
working refresh. We produced risk
assessments for security, transport and
training and shared them with the refevant
teams. Troining started for all warehouse
management and supervisors, with
the “Covid Captain’ role introduced to
monitor work areas. We increased anti-
viral fogging in all areas, over and above
the manufacturers’ guidelines, and issued
guidance on pre-shift cleaning.

+  Pebruary 2021. We further enhanced the
fogying procedures and produced a risk
assessment for the Personglisation team.

Througheut this financial year we have built

on our initial actions, as we have updated our
risk assessments and odapted ta changing
guidance. This hos enabled us to introduce
new and stronget measures, in particular as
the Covid-19 variant first identified in Kent
began to spread Exampies of our key activities
undertaken in the year are set out below.

- August 2020. We reviewed our warehouse
risk assessment and shared it with the
warehouse and agency teams. We started
weekly anti-viral foaging' of offices, sorters
and other areas to supplement the regular
cleaning schedule, enhanced workstation
plexi-screens in the office to support social
distancing and introduced maximum
capuacities for meeting rooms.

We believe our efforts have been highly
effective. For exomple, infection rates at our
Shirebrook campus have been consistently
below those in the local community. We

will cantinue to adapt our cpproach as
circumstances change.

»  September 2020. We reviewed our
warehouse risk assessment and our first
aid guidance and intreduced a screening
questionnaire for all visitars.

. October 2020. We introduced face shields
an all sorting machines, as an additional
layer of protection.

Cutside of the UK we have comptied with

all local Covid-19 laws and guidance which,

at @ minimum, includes the same stare and
warehouse measures as implemented in the UK.

(MW

actoss e b
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FRASERS GROWP

CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Introduction

The Covid-19 pandemic continues to be a
significant challenge for the country, the retail
industry and for Frasers Group. Qur storas were
closed again in Novermber 2020, followed by a
significant closure in the week before Christmas
which then led to the third lockdown in January
2021. These lockdowns resulted in virtua ly all of
our UK stores being closed for approximately
six months in FY21. Qur European stores

were also impacted by closures although the
impact was not as punitive as it was for the UK
business.

| am proud of how our colleagues have

battled through these very difficult times to
help us achieve & solid set of financial results
on an underlying EBITDA basis. We are o
resilient business but the Covid-19 pandemic
has resulted in some significant non-cask
accounting impairments to our asset basz, Our
RNS announcements in February and April 2021
gave warning of the situation and consecuently
wa have to report an overall profit before tax of
£8.5m down from £143.5m in FY20,

We appreciate the Government support with
the fuough scheme and business rates relief.
We are predominantly ¢ bricks and mortcr
business and this support hos enabled us o
keep stores open that otherwise might hase
been closed, particularly loss making House

of Fraser stores, saving many jobs. We must
caution however that the return to pre Covid-19
business rates will present @ threat to a number
of these stores. There must be a change tc the
outdated business rates system for us to justify
the survivol of seme of these House of Frazer
stores.

We are looking to toke on a number of
ex-Debenhams stores across the country but
the excessive business rates make the viab lity
of these investments, and the jobs that could
be created, less likely. Again, we ask for ciaity
from the Government and for @ new and
appropriate policy on business rdtes.

|
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Elevation Without Limits

We continue to invest in all areas of the
business to support our elevation strategy.

Our flogship Sports Direct store on Oxford
Street re-opened in June 2021 ot o cost of
approximately £10m to the Group and we have
received overwhelming endorsements from our
customers and our brand partners such as Nike
and Adidas.

Our Flannels business continues to go

from strength to strength since we took full
ownership during 2017 and has revenue CAGR
from the end of FY18 to FY21 of approximately
40%. We have an ambition to reach
approximately £2 billion in gross turnover by the
end of FY26, with a forecast split of 60% from,
physical stores and 40% from online channels,

We will continue to invest across the portfolio
of our retail fascios, always pushing the
boundaries and thinking without limits. Our
investment in our digital capability, including
on platforms and people, continue as will
investment in automation in our warehouse
to support our bricks and clicks fulfilment
capabilities.

The Elevation No Limits strategy is working
and we are {ully supported by our third-party
brands as elevotion is complimenting their own
strategies.

Results

We do not hesitate te remind our stekeholders
of our key accounting principles, namely being
conservative, consistent, and simple, It is with
this in mind that we present our financial results
for FY21in a period of uncertainty, with in our
opinion, the effects of the pandemic far from
over, and a probable risk of further restrictions.

Qur results highlights are:

+ Underlying EBITDA increased to £390.8m
{FY20: £302,1m)

+ Revenue decreased to £3,625.3m (FY20:
£3,957.4m)

+  Profit before tox £8.5m (FY20: £143.5m)
+  Net debt of £248.9m (FY20: mwmob:._,n.

More underlying detail is given throughout this
Annual Report and Accounts. The highlights
and explanations of these by segment is set out
in note 4.

Our People

Our people are our finest resource and we are
committed to treating all of our colleagues with
dignity and respect. Throughout the pandemic
we hove kept colleagues engaged with regular
update videos and a provision for help and
wellbeing support where people needed it.
Frasers Group colleagues cre talented, loyal
and resilient, | have been very impressed how
they have found creative ways of working
through the challenges of the pandemic with
undiminished enthusiasm. The Board are very
appreciative of the efforts of our colleagues

during these challenging times. |

The Board is really pleased that The Fearless
1000 share scheme was unanimously voted
through ot the AGM in October 2020 and is
now up and running, The Board is receiving
reqular updates and progress reports and we
are comfortable it is running as intended. The
aim of the scheme is to pay out significant’
bonuses in the form of shares if the share price
stays above £10 for 30 consecutive trading
days. This could see 10 colleagues receiving
shares worth £1m each if the share price is at
£10 at the vesting dates, One thousahd of our
Fearless colleagues, who live and breathe our
values of thinking without limits, not hesitating
and owning it, will be eligible to receive share
bonuses ranging from £50k right up to E1m if
the share price is at £10 at the vesting dates.
There is also o cash bonus scheme which runs
concurrently with the share schema which will
pay out bonuses for those eligible colleagues
who do not qualify for the Fearless 1000.

The Frasers Group Elevatien Programme was
introduced in September 2020 to attract highly
talented people to Frasers Group. The quality
of the recruits from the initial intake has been
strong and they have impressed people across
all leveis of the organisation including the
Board. We are looking to run this programme

ew Britssh woodlond across the UK

again in September 2G21 with a new intake of
talent and our assessment centres are now up
and running. Our cbjective is to populate the
organisation with high calibre, high potential,
well trained people who we intend to be the
future leaders of the Company.

Acquisitions Awd Strategic Investments

During the year we increased our investments in
Hugo Boss and Mulberry and we alse acquired
the DW Sports and Fitness business. These
investments are consistent with our strategic
objectives.and align with our elevation strategy.

As at period end, we held approximately
16.4% directly and indirectly in Hugo Boss, We
consider this strategic investment in Hugo Boss
to be very successful. We have strengthened
our relationship with the company and have
regular and constructive dialogue with the
senior executive teamn. We have noted press
speculation about o petential acquisition of
Hugeo Boss and stated we had ne intention to
bid in our RNS of 26 May 2021.

We held approximately 36.8% of Mulberry
Group plc at the year end. We believe this is
an icenic British brand and hope that together
we can build a mutually beneficial partnership
gaing forward.

We acquired certain assets of DW Sports
Limited from administration for a cash
consideration of £37m. The transaction
complements the existing gym and fitness club
portfolio within the Group and is consistent with
the Group's elevation strategy. Frasers Group
looks forward to elevating the gym and fitness
assets and is also pleased to have saved a
number of jobs. Further detail on the trade and
assets acquired can be found in note 31.

We consider o combination of both organic
and acquisitive growth will assist in the ongoing
delivery and success of our Elevation Strategy
and we wili continue to look at potenticl
opportunities across a range of categories to
complement and enhance our Group offering,
in the UK, Europe and beyond if eppropriate.
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Envir tal, Social & G e

We are proud of the successes we have had
with our sustainability agenda to date. For
tnstance the majority of our waste from our
Shirebrook delivery centre is recycled and

we are targeting zero waste to landfill from
Shirebrook in the next few years. Excluding
acquisitions during the year, our stores and
gyms are operating on 100% renewable power
and we are targeting a reduction of 109 power
usage i our stores over the next few years.
Sustainability will continue to play a key role in
our future processes and procedures led by our
Sustainability Steering Group which is executive
sponsored by our Chief Financial Officer.

We are proud to invest in local communities
and to support a key facet of British life, the
high street. We provide jobs for aver 20,000
people in the UK alone and duting the
pondemic we have done our utmost to retain
and support as many colleagues as possible
with very few redundancies.

During the year we have given approximately
£25m in discounts Yo NHS stoff as we reopened
in June 2020 in gratitude to the unbelievable
job they hove done during the Covid-13
poendernic.

Qur warkers representative Cally Price

is a shining example of good corporate
governance and we thoroughly recommend
the appointment of such a position across the
boeardroems of corporate Britain. Cally brings
calleague queries and concerns directly to
the boardroom for action by the Board, Cally
takes a very active part in every Board meeting,
which she attends in full, ond her vote counts
for as much in a Board vote as mine or the
executive team. Alongside Cally, the rest of
aur Non-executive Directors bring their own
knowledge and experience to their roles in
helping to ensure we do the right thing by our
stakeholders.

The Board

We recently went through an independent
review of the Board which is a mandatory
abligation once every three years. We ore very
happy with the findings and will act on the
recommendations.

10
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We will continue to look at the construction of
the Board ensuring we have the appropriate
biend of skills ond experience. We consider
diversity, and energetic and passionate
individuals to be priorities as we laok to
strengthen the Board in the future.

Due to the success of the Worker's
Representative Board role we have decided
to extend the tenure of Cally Price foro
further few years and she will be propased for
re-election ot the 2021 AGM.

Dividend And Share Buyback

Qur share buy back programme has continued
which is a demonstration of our confidence
in the Company and the strategy for future

growth. Further details can be found in Nate 36.

No fingal dividend will be payable in relation to
FY¥21 05 we intend to make further investments
in the business to support the elevation
strateqy. ' .

Outlock

The Covid-19 pandemic continues to create
uncertainty and we must be prepared for
more tockdowns in the future. There must be
concerns about the stability of some retailers
as Government support schemes come to
an end, yet there still seems to be very little
tangible long-term action being taken by
the Government to save the high street.
Notwithstanding the probable risk of further
lackdowns, which ore considered and do
impact our property accounting estimates,
Frasers Group is confident in our lang-term
strategy which we believe wilt help us to get
through this difficult period.

We will centinue on the path of elevation and
to invest in our talented and loyal colleagues.
Qur business is built on rock salid foundations
and we believe we are well sef for some
promising times in the future.

David Daly
Non-executive Chair

5 August 2021

OUR BUSINESS

Business Model

Founded by Mike Ashley as a single Store in
Mgidenhead in 1982, Frasers Group plc today
operates a diversified portfolio of sports, fitness,
premium lifestyle and luxury store fascias. The
Group's colleagues work together with our
suppliers and our third-perty brand partners

to serve customers in over 20 countries. The
Group aspires to be an international leader in
sports, lifestyle, and luxury retail. The Board

is committed to treating all people with

dignity and respect. We value our people,

owr customers and our shareholders and we
strive to adopt good practices in our corporate
deolings. We aim to deliver shareholder value
over the medium to long-term, whilst adopting
accounting principles that are conservative,
consistent and simple. Our strotegy is set out in
the "Qur Strategy - Elevation No Limits” section
of this report,

Our husiness model remains consistent in
providing customers with the world’s best
brands. This requires us ro have the right
product, in the right place, ot the right time
and at the right price. Our vision is to become |
the elevated, multi-channel plotform for our
Sports Retail and Premium Lifestyle fascias. To
this end, we are elevating across all chanrels to
enhance the customer jeurney every step of the
way. .

The Group's business madel is explained in
greater deteil below. This includes an outline of
our fascias and retail channels, management
of our property portfolio, our people, our
third-party brand partners, our Group brands
and our centralised support functions.

Business Structure

The Group is structured across five business
segments: UK Sports Retail, Premium Lifestyle,
European Retail, Rest of World Retail and
Wholesale & Licensing.

In UK Sports Retail, we offer o complete range
of sporting apparel, footwear and equipment
through our predominant fascia,

SPORTS DIRECT.

FRASERS GROUP

This segment includes our lifestyle fascia

WSC. Our current forward-looking view is

that the majority of our offering to customers
must include leading third-party brands, The
elevation of aur sports retail proposition is

key to ensure we are fully cligned with the
future direction and ambitions of these brand
partners. UK Sports Retoi! includes core sports
retoil store opergtions in the UK, plus all the
Group's sports retail online business {excluding
Bob's Stores, Eastern Mauntain Sporfs ond
Sports Direct Malaysia), the gyms, the Group's
Shirebrook campus operations, retail store
operations in Northern lreland, £vans Cycles
and the GAME UK stores and online business.

in Premium Lifestyle, we ore developing the
Group's premiurn and luxury offering, which
consists of the Flannels, Frasers, House of
Frasar, Jack Wills and Sofa.com fascias, along
with Cruise and var mildert. We aim to offer
fashion-conscious consumers a luxurious,
multi-brand retail destination with high-end
and on-trend products

In Ewropecn Retail, we are evelving our
customer proposition in line with the elevation
strategy, while also seeking to increasingly
tailor our proposition to the jocal markets in
which we operate. These include the Republic
of Ireland and continental Europe.

{n Rest of World Retail, we operote 43 stores
trading as Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain
Sports and we also have 33 stores trading as
SPORTS DIRECT in Malaysia.

I Wholesale & Licensing, the Group retains
a portfolio of world-famaous heritage

brands, which we offer via our fascias, and
also wholesale and license to partners
internationaily. Gur own brands include
Everlast, Lonsdadle, Kammot and Slazenger.
The Group is alse proud to have o number of
sporting and entertainment personalities as
ambassadors, as well as supporting sporting
events ond venues,
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Multi-Channel Elevation Strategy

Cur elevation strategy continues to work
towards improving our offering to customers
across all our channels, including marketing,
social media, product, digital and in-stcre. This
aims to enable the Company, along witn our
third-party brand partners, to connect with
customers via a consistent voice across multiple
platforms, including online, mobile, and an the
high street. This strategy enalzles our stores and
our online operctions to complement

each other.

The websites for each of our core fascias in
the UK, including SPORTSDIRECT.com, USC.
co.uk, Flannels.com, Houseoffraser.co.uk and
GAME co.uk, have undergone significans
enhancements to focilitate optimum apseal to
consumers, Our product offering across these
core fascias, both in-store and online, aims to
create a compelling shopping experience in
key categories that include, amongst athers,
football, women's, kids, running, cycling,
lifestyle, fashion, luxury and gaming.

We offer product across a range of price points,
including goad, better and best. This enables
us to offer more premium product, which is
net-new to the business. This gives consumers a
greater ronge of choices for those who wish to
shop for premium products, whilst stéll retaining
our original entry-level and continuity product
offerings.

: v,..muB-umo-_ Of The Elevated Store Model

The elevation of the Group's stores continues

" to progress and evolve across fascias and
territaries. As reported last yeor, for.Sports

. Direct the enhanced concept introducing

en area not just for.USC, but also for Game
with a Belong. Gaming arena and Evans
Cycles was delivered at the _._nE,_un.‘:.nm.._._ﬂ:z._
store. These combined elements develop the
destination status of our stores catering o -
a wider customer base. The Group has also
pushed boundaries with the opening of the
game changing Sports Direct flagship store.on
Lendon's Oxford Street shortly after financial
year end. The stere features world class
design incorporating new activation spaces,

1

f

technology and features including a first in kind
bra fitting studio. .

Following the success of the Flannels regioncl
concept, the Group has developed a new
regional flagship concept. This concept
encompasses a much larger footprint and
incorporates new categories for the fascia
including beauty and food & baverage. The
first store to launch in this new concept is at
Meadowhall Shopping Centre with further sites
due to open in the coming financial year such
as Fosse Park in Leicester and Liverpool

city centre.

A significant milestone for the Group was
delivering the new Frasers concept with the
opening of Frasers Walverhampton. The store
extends to ¢.34,000 sqgft housing beauty,
fashion, lifestyle, kids, home and food &
beverage. This new store is a live example of
the Group's vision for the fascia focusing on
experience, brands and service.

The Group is highly acquisitive across fascias
for new stores and with co-operctive Yandlords
can offer a portfolio of new store deals
providing a variety of retail offerings. The Group
is prepared to sign long term leases for those
landlerds willing to co-invest in the elevated
store concepts.

Investment in Freehold properties remains an
option to assist the store elevation strategy as
has been the case in previous financicl years.

Further details of the property strategies and
current property portfolio are included within
the Chief Executive's Report and Business
Review section of this annugl report,

Our People

The Group's policy is to treat all our people with
dignity and respect. Frasers Group colleagues
work together across all areas of the business
and we are proud that Frasers Group plc is one
of the first public companies in the UK te make
an elected Workers' Representative a Board
member. We welcomne all new colleagues into
the Group fotlowing the acquisitions in the year
and those who joined us through the Frasers
Group Elevation Programme.

Remuneration and Rewards

Our policy is to foster a reward-based culture
that enables our colleagues to share in the
success of the Group. It is Company policy to
pay above the statutory National Minimum
Wage, including rates that are above the
statutory National Living Wage for thase
owver 25 years of age in the UK. in addition to
this, in current period the Group paid awards
and incentives of approximately £7.0m, from
which both permanent and casual colleagues
benefited,

We are pleased that the Fearless 1000 share
scheme is now up and running along with

the Fearless Focus performance reviews. One
thousand of cur Fearless colleagues, who live
and breathe our values, thinking without limits,
not hesitating and owning it, will be eligible to
receive share bonuses ranging from £50k right
up to £1m if the share price is ot £10 at the
vesting dates.

Workers' Reprasentative

The Frasers Group Workers' Representative

is Cally Price, a Manager at our Cardiff Bay
store. The Workers' Representative has a unique
insight in to the Group and will speak on behalf
of the Group's workforce at all scheduled
meetings of the Board in order to facilitate a
heaithy and constructive dialogue. Due to the
success of the Worker's Representative Board
role we hove decided to extend the tenure of
Cully Price for a further few years and thus she
wili be proposed for re-election at the

2021 AGM.
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Colleague Engagement

In addition to the Workers Representative,

the Company dlso has an ongoing dialogue
with colleagues via an initiative called "Your
Company, Your Voice.” This is a system whereby
colleagues are able to raise any issues of their
choosing via o number of different routes, both
physical and digital. This feedbeck is passed

to senior management and the Workers'
Representative for review and appropriate
action,

Our Global Third-Party Brand Partiers

We work with our leoding third-party globat
brand partners and previde significant
prominence for them with our customers across
ali our platforms.

Our third-party and Group brands are
managed by central brand and marketing
teams. This centralised structure significantly
benefits the Group by enabling the individual
brands to participate in Group buying and
sourcing; aggregated supplier relationships
and enhanced supply chain disciplines; Group
inventory monitering ond replenishment;

and more inspired and harmonious visual
merchan g in-store.
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Our Strategy - Elevation No Limits

Our purpose is Yo serve consumers with the world's best brands. This reguires us to have the right
product, in the right place, at the right time and at the right price. Cur strategy is aligned to this
purpose and is based on three interconnected focus pillars - the brands we sell, our digital offering
and our physical stores. These are supported by a set of enablers, focused on our people, systems,
automation ond dato. By contirwing to elevate our performance across all areas of our strategy, we

witl achieve our vision: ta become the elevated multi-channel platform for sports, premium and luxury.

Key Performance Indicators

The Board manages the Group's performance by reviewing a number of key performance indicators
{KPls). The KPls are discussed in this Chief Executive’s Report and Business Review, the Financial
Review, the Environment section and the *Cur People” section, The table below summarises the
Group's KPls. '

42 wenkr anded 52 wikaks snded 32 wasl

Strategy Kay wchisvemments in PY21 Prieiles for FY22
Brandy During FY2), ur schievemants inciudex. Dunng FY22, our pr
Qur ustomars want (o huve the choica af e . lurthier growing out relationshies with kep . continue ko buid our suceessiul third-party.

warld's best brands, whether s 3parting goods o
the pramium and luxury segmeits Beng ghle i

brand cwinars, such as Nike for bports Ditect,
Burberry for Flannels, and Hugo Boss for

offer these brands ls assen aur succass We House o Fraser, giving us IMproved noussto =
therefore Fatus on bullding excellent relotanshps the products our customers demand,

and truly integrated tearns with key third-panty «  incregsing our strobeqic investment in Hugo
brand owners Boss AG, rsllecting our growmg relationship,
This powarful brand offering 15 suppatted by our aur confidenca in s future and the pateatial

. comprementary ranga of own brands, whese we for synergues batween our Businesses, anct
and . Inrreasitg Ouf Strategic ihvastmant m luxudy
uancar portnershps qid hendbog retate; Mulliercy

We will Lontinue 1g cansider

¢ thot bring dftriaCtive orands

strateqic acguisi
into the Group

brand partnerships and Further wnprove our
acesss tothen best products, and

ivest in avolving our own br
they ramain relevont ta Consurm.
respanding te chonging styles ang 1
and continue to complement the key third-
porty bronds we offer
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see page 31
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\g Qur Core vuluas, welcoming 27

new people 1 our commerzial departrment -
through the Frosers Group Elevetion
Progumme, mtrodusing the Feorless

W00 bonus scheme ond Faarlsss Focus
perlormance rewews, and developing a new  +

tva next intake fof the Elevation Prageamne,
[ we Lo Incranse autamation, to support
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restacking our physical stores as quickly and
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+anfinue onbaording products snto BRI, and

copabifities, s We can make datc-diven decrsions learming management system (LMS}, +  copture custsmer data and insights through
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through electronie data aiterchange (DI, Reference ro Principal Risks,
improving management of steek and see poge 31
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The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA,
underlying basic EPS and underlying free cash
flow provide further useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance

of the business in addition to the reported
numbers and are consistent with how business
performance has been measured internally.
They are not recognised profit measures under
IFRS ond may nct be directly comparable with
“adjusted” performance measures used by other
componies. See Glossary for further information
on the Group's Alternative Performarce
Measures. .

Management will, from FY22, change our
main reporting. KPI from underlying EBITDA to
adjusted profit before tax (PBT). From FY22,
the Group wili therefore no longer report
underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT is reported
profit before tax less the effects of exceptional
items, unhedged foreign exchange (FX), gains
and losses on strategic investments and share
scheme charges.

oss the UK

Management has taken this decision for the
following reasons:

- With the continued significont investment
in ond rell out of our elevation strategy
on both the physical and digital fronts,
the importance of depreciation and
amartisotion to both the Boord and
our stakeholders in terms of assessing
performance has grown.

- Our understanding from a number of
financial sectors, including the barking
sector, is thot IFR$16 is becaming an
increasingly important consideration.

- With this new measure, we are trying
to align with the Financial Reporting
Council's thematic standpoint with regard
to ‘alternative performance measures’ as
far as possible, whilst retaining a degree
of interpretation given that factors
outside of our control, such as FX and
strotegic investments movements which
are exceptionally difficult to forecast,
particularly months in advance.

Adjusted PBT for the 52 weeks ended 25 Apr

2021 was a loss of £53.7m. See Glossary for
recanciliation to reported PBT.
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Group revenue

The Board considers thot this measurement is a
key indicator of the Group's growth.

Underlying EBITDA

Underlying EBITDA shows how well the Group is
managing its trading and operational efficiency
and therefore the overall trading performance
of the Group.

Group gross margin

The Board considers that this measuremrent is a
key indicator of the Group's trading prof tability.

Underlying basic earnings per share {EPS)

Underlying basic EPS is a measure of ad usted
total shareholder returm and ultimately on
indicator to our sharehalders of the succass of
our elevation strategy.

Underlying free cash flow

Underlying free cash flow is considered cn
important indicator for the Business of the
cash available for investment in the elevation
strategy.

Net debt

Met debt is an indicator of both the Group's
investment in the elevation strategy and ts
covenant headroom which is o key component
of the Group's going concern considerations.

Number of retuil stores

The Board considers that this meosure is an
indicator of the Group's growth. The Group's
elevation strategy is replacing older stores and
often this can result in the closure of two ar
three stores to be replaced by one larger new
generation store.

Workforce turnover

The Board considers that this measure is a key
indicator of the contentment of our people. For
more details refer to the retention section of the
"Our People” section of this report.
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Packaging recycling

The Board considers that this measurement is
a key indicator of our impact and commitment
to the best environmental practices. For more
details refer to the environment section of

this report.

1. helping fo create new Br

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT AND

BUSINESS REVIEW

Performonce Overview

Group revenue decreased by 8.4% to £3,625.3m
in the year. UK Sports Retail decreased by
10.7% to £1,968.5m, Premium Lifestyle revenue
increased by 1.9% and European Retail
decreased by 11.8% to £615.2m. Rest of World
Retail revenue was £152.7m, down 12.3% and
revenue in the Wholesale & Licensing division
decrecsed by 4.3%.

Group gross margin in the year was consistent
with the prior year with a small increase of

20 basis points from 42.0% to 42.2%. UK
Sports Retait margin increased M0 basis points
to 42.1% {FY20: 41.0%; largely due to the
continually improving product mix. Premium
Lifestyle's gross margin decreased by 340 basis
points from 48.3% to 44.9% lorgely due to a
reduction in cancession sales within House of
Fraser as o percentage of total sates which
have a higher gross margin. European Retail
gross margin increased 60 basis points from
38.4% to 39.0% largely due to the continually
improving product mix. Rest of Werld Retail
muargin decreased 250 basis points from 44,4%
to 41.9%, largely due to the lower margin rate
in the US business which makes up a larger
proportion of the segment in FY21. Wholesale
& Licensing gross margin increased 310 basis
points to 44.0% {FY20: 40.9%), largely due to
UK wholesale.

Group operating costs decreased by 15.7% to
£1140.0m (FY20: £1,353.0m}, largely driven by
savings in store costs during the lockdowns as
a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, Government
support schemes such as CJRS (Coronavirus
Job Retention Scheme) ond business rates relief
particulorly in House of Fraser. The amount
received by the Group in the period in regard
to the CJRS (or equivclent where received

in non-UK territories) was approx. £80m.

The amourt of business rates relief received

by the Group in the period jor equivalent
where received in non-UK territories) was
approx. £97.5m. See the Financial Review

h woadland across the UK

for @ reconciliation of Group cperating costs
to selling, distribution and administrative
expensas.

As o result, Group underlying EBITDA for the
year was up 29.4% to £390.8m (FY20: £302.1m).
Excluding acquisitions and on a currency
neutral basis, underlying EBITDA increased
16.9%. UK Sports Retail undeilying EBITDA
was £279.2m up from £227.4m in FY20, while
Premium Lifestyle underlying EBITDA was
£53.9m, up from £4.5m in FY20. European
Retait underlying EBITDA was £4.1m, down from
E51.8m in FY20. Rest of Wortld Retail underlying
EBITDA was £25.6m, up frorn a loss of £6.6m

in FY20 and Whalescle & Licensing underlying
EBITDA increased to £28.0m from £25.2m.

There were property related [mpairments in
the period totalling £317.0m {FY20: £122.6m),
including £168.2m in relation to right of use
assets (FY20: £97.8m), £84.4m in relation to
freehold land and buildings (FY20: Enil), £63.8m
of other property, plont ond equipment (FY20:
£24.8m) and £0.6m of investment properties
[FY20: £nil). Property related impairments have
been recognised following @ re-assessment of
future expected cash flows largely driven by
anticipated future lockdowns as o result of the
Covid-19 pandemic, the chenge in consumer
behaviour in moving from physical to online
shopping, the impact of Direct-To-Consumer
and increasing casts as @ result of Brexit.
Further details including sensitivity analysis is
included within Note 2. :

Depreciation and amortisation charges have
increased by 11.3% to £307.5m (FY20: £276.3m)
largely due to an increase in freehold land and
buildings depreciation, following the change in
useful economic life estimate in the period. See
accounting policies for further detaqils.
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Group underlying profit befere tox " decreased . ) .
to £5.8m (FY20: £117.4m), largely due to the

effects of the Covid-19 pandemic including

the closure of retail stores, the associated

provisioning and impairment and depreciation

and amertisation charges. Underlying basic EPS

for the year decreased by 204.9% ta a loss of

17.0p (FY20: profit of 16.2p).

Within other comprehensive income, the Group’s
hedging contracts decreased by £16.5m (FY20:
decreased by £18.7m) as o result of the fair volue
movements in the period. With regord to the
Group's long-term financial assets, fair volue
movements have resulted in ¢ gain of £77.3m
{FY20: less of E19.7m) in the period.

The Group generated free cash flow during

the year of £427.8m, up from £263.1m in the
prior perjod. Net debt decreased by £1171m to
£248.9m at period end. Spend on vcquisitions
and capex, including Wigan Robin Retail Park
and warehouse automation, was offset by
continued strong cash generation in the core
business. Net debt currently stands at 0.5 times
reported EBITDA {FY20: 0.7 times).

1] Underying prohi before toxation excludes the affects of IFRS 16,
rwaised forsign exchangd gains ¢ losses In sellng ond
administration costs, axceptional iterns, anck the profit £ loss en
disposal of subsiditres, strategic ivastments and propertias

=

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

UK Spotts Retail

The UK Sports Retail segment includes all of the Group's sports retail and USC store operations in the
UK {including Northern Ireland), all of the Group's spaorts online businesses [excluding Bob's Stores,
Eastern Mountain Sports, Baltics and Malaysia), the Group's gyms, Evans Cycles, GAME UK stores and
online operations and the Group's Shirebrook compus oparations. UK Sports Retail is the main driver
of the Group and aecounts for 54.3% {FY20: 55.7%) of Group revenue.

52 weaks anded 32 weahs onind
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UK Sports Reteil Revenue 15685 22033
Cost o Salys 1113921 13001
Gross Profit [IEE] 5012
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Revenue decreased 10.7% to £1,968.5m. Excluding acquisitions, revenue fell 14.6%. This wos _Dﬁ.m_<
due to the temporary store closures (n the UK caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, partially offset by
growth in aur online business ond pent up demand on store reopening.

UK Spotts Retail gross margin increased to 42.1% (FY20. 41.0%), largely due to the continually
improving product mix. Excluding acquisitions gross margin increased to 45.0% (FY20: 43.5%).

Operating expenses decreased by 16.8% to £548.7m largely driven by savings in store costs during
the store closure periods as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Excluding acquisitions, operating
expenses decreased by 20.2% largely driven by savings in store costs and Government support
schemes during fockdowns as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Underlying EBITDA for UK Sports Retail was £279.2m (FY20: £237.4m), an increase of 22.8% for the
year, largely due to the strong reopening of stores after lockdowns, growth in our oniine business and
improved operating efficiencies.

UK Sports Retail Store Portiolio™
2% Apeil 2021 26 April 2030
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b Tuble excludet the Gioup' standolone Gyrms .
The SAME UK stere number, = 71 conrassians (FY20 3} opeeating within Sports Direct s, wores ond does e AELONG arenus
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FRASERS GROUP

Premium Lifestyle

Premium Lifestyle consists of Flannels, Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Jack Wills and Sofa.com
fascia stores and corresponding web sales.

52 wanhs nndnd 52 wanks spded

25 Apeil 2021 36 ApHI 3020

mp 1Em)

Gross Transochon Yolue (GIY] 7801 2031
Prermum Lifestyle Ravanue 1356 7334
Cost of sales {405 3} 1373 4]
Gross Profit 3303 RLEL
Grass Murgin % 449 483

Uh GIV baing gross saies net of VAT, discounts and retLms ond gross sales whete the Group 6ers as agent

Premium Lifestyle sales increased by 1.9% to £735.6m (FY20: £722.0m), mostly due to new Flannels
stores and increased web sales. Excluding acquisitions, sales increased 1.4%. The Premium Lifestyle
gross margin for the year decreased by 40 basis peints to 44.9% (FY20: 48.3%] largely due a
reduction in concession sales within House of Fraser as a percentage of total sales which hove a
higher gross margin.

Premium Lifestyle operoting costs decreased by 20.1% to £275.Im (FY20: £344.1m) largely driven

by savings in store costs during the store closure periods as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
Government support schemes such as business rates relief particularly in House of Fraser. As a result,
underlying EBITDA improved from £4.5m in FY20 to £53.9m in the year, largely due ta Flannels store
openings, growth in our online business, continued operating efficiencies and business rates relief
particularly in House of Fraser.

Premium Lifestyle Store Portfolio

3 April 2011 26 Ageil 2016
Flannels a1 ar
Cruse 5 5
von mildest i . 1 1
Jock Wills 50 67
House of Fraser / Frosers o a
Sof com” 24 Fil
18Montrose 3 -
Garmant Quarter 1
Psyche 1
) 1re
Opaned 2 10
Acquired - 5 117
Closed - o 143
Araa isg fr) approk 4.2m approx 4 5m

4] Sofacom stare numbers include 17 concessions (FY20 12 concessions) operafjug within House of Fraser fosei stores

15

European Retail

The European Retail division includes the Group's sports retail store management and operctions
in Europe, including the Groug's European distribution centres in Belgium ond Austria, stores and
corresponding web business in the Baltic regions and GAME Spain stores and corresponding web
business.

51 wenks sndad S1weskn snded

25 Apeit 2021 26 April 2020

(Em} (em}

Ewopeon Retal Revenue 5152 &917
Cost of Sales 13755 14298
Gross Proft 2397 2679
Gross Profit % 390 3.4

Revenue decreased 11.8% to £615.2m. On a currency neutral bosis and excluding acquisitions,
European Retail revenue decreased by 20.5% largely due to the temporary store closures caused by
the Covid-19 pandemic.

Eurcpean Retail gross margin increased to 39.0% (FY20: 38.4%) largely due to the continually
improving product mix. Excluding acquisitions and on a currency neutral basis, margin is up 100 basis
points to 46.3%. .

Cperating expenses increased by 10.2% to £238.7m (FY20: £216.1m). Excluding acquisitions and on a
currency neutral basis oparating costs increased by 9.3% largely due to property related provisions
including prior year releases as a result of disposals. As a result, underlying EBITDA decreased 92.1%
to £4.1m.

All of the following stores are operated by companies wholly owned by the Group, except Estonig,
Latvia and Lithuania where the Group owns 60.0%.

ey to create now Brtish woodland aeross thae UK
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FRASERS GROUP

European Retail Store Portfolio

3 Apeil 2021

26 April 2020

GAME Spain

261

Republec of helgnd”

Belgiuim

Estamg"

Austriey

Portugal

Latua

Lithuarws!

Poland

Sloverna

Caech Repubiic

Hungary

Cyprus

Haltand

Slavaleg

France

Garmony

Luxervbourg

spon

Icaiany

TOTAL -

Dpen=d

Closed

(38

1441

Acquired

765

Area g lt]

approx_36m

4ppior 4 0m

i inchides only stgres with SFORTSDIRECT com and SPORTLAND foscios

Excluding Heatons foscia stores

s thraggh (he Wondiagnd foes o

Rest Of World Retail

Rest of World Retail includes sports stores in Malaysia trading under the SPORTS DIRECT fascia,
retail stores’in the US trading under Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain Sports ond their online
businesses. In Malaysia the Group has 33 stores which are 51.0% owned by the Group.

51 weyky anded

28 Apdl 2020

mi

Rest of World Revanuz 1742
Cost of sales 196 4)
Gross Pralt 13
Gross urgpn % 444

Rest of World Retail sales were £152.7m for the yeor. Gross margin was 41.9%, down from 44.4%

in the prior year, largely due to the lower margin rate in the US business which makes up a larger
proportion of the segment in FY21. Underlying EBITDA was £25.6m, from a Joss of £6.8m in FY20. This
was largely due to operating efficiencies in the US business.

Rest of World Retail Store Portiolic

15 Apeil 10321 26 apill 2030
Malayse E Bl
Bih's Siores 7 2
Lustern Maunton Spadc ' 0

s kil
Area lsqft] apprex 13m upprox 1 dm

Wholesale & Licensing

The portfolio of Group brands includes a wide variety of world-fomous sport and lifestyle brands.
The Group's Sports Retail division sells products under these brands in its stores, and the Whalesale
& Licensing division sells the brands through its wholesale and licensing activities. The Wholesale

& Licensing division continues to sponser a variety of prestigious evants and retains o variety of
globally recognised celebrities and sporting professionals as brond embassadaors.

52 wasks endud 32 wenks ended

3 Apsil 2011 76 April 2020

itm) iEmm)

Wholusaie ms 1344
Licensing 8 258
Yotn) Whelesale & Licancing Revenus 533 160.2
Lust of Soles (85 8l 1947)
Gross Prafit - 675 655
Gross Morgin % 4d1 09

Wholesale & Licensing total revenue decreased by 4.3% to £153.3m (FY20: £160.2m).

Wholesale revenues were down 2.2% to £131.5m {FY20: £134.4m), due to reductions in UK wholesale
activity offset by an increase in the US. Total gross morgin increased by 320 hasis points to 44.1%
{FY20: 40.5%). Wholesale gross margins increased 430 basis points ta 33.6% [FY20: 29.5%), largely

due to UK wholesale.

Licensing revenues in the year were down 15.5% to £21.8m (FY20: £25.8m).

Operating costs decreased by 2.2% to £39.4m (FY20: £40.3m). As a result, underlying EBITDA
increosed by 11.1% to £28.0m [FY20: £25.2m).

ehorass i
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FRASERS GROUP

PROPERTY REVIEW

The store elevation program remains a key
focus point for the Group across oll faszias and
territories. For Sports Direct, the new stores
continue to push boundcries as demonstrated
by the opening of the new Partsmouth Sports
Direct store incorporating a USC, Evans and
Game, as well as a Belong gaming arena.
Further to this, shortly after financial year end
the newly refurbished London, Oxford Street
flagship opened featuring world class cesign
incorporating new activation spaces, technoloay
and features including a first in kind bra fitting
studio. In Eurape, the portfolio of six Toys R Us
properties acquired during FY20 in Spain have
now been developed launching as elevated
Sports Direct stores in the same format as the
UK.

A significant milestone for the Group was
delivering the new Frasers concept with the
opening of Frasers Welverhampton, another
exarmple of the continued store elevaticn
programme. The opening of such stores
demonstrates the Group's commitment to

physical retail and ability to create genuine retail

destinations.

Flannels remains an important foscia for the
Group. The key fecus has been the development
of the Regional Flagship concept introducing
new categories for the fascia such as beauty,
foed & beverage and active. Terms have

been agread to launch this new concep: at
Meadowhall Shopping Centre which is set to
open in the coming financial year. Further sites
for this concept are olso due to open at Fosse
Park in Leicester and Liverpool city centre.

Another notable event in FY21 was the
acquisition of 42 DW Stores. The acquisition
enhanced the Group's gym and UK Sports Retail
estote. A refurbishment and rebranding exercise
commenced shortly after acquisition and will
continue into the coming financial year,

The primary objective for the estate continues
to be the transition to turnover based rents.
The Group is highly acquisitive across fascias
and with co-operative landlords can offer a
portfolio of new store deals providing a variety

17
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of retail offerings. The OSEU is prepared to sign
lang term leases for those landlords willing to
co-invest in the elevated store concepts.

With ieasehold activity across the Group
expected to increase over the coming year, the
same is likely to apply with freehald acquisitions
as we capitalise on favourable market conditions
coupled with the Group's growing requirement
for retail space.

UK RETAIL STORE PORTFOLIO

Sports Stores in the UK (including
Northern Ireland):

»  The Group is currently operating from 394
stores in England, 3% in Scetland, 31in Wales
and 21in Northern lreland. There were 14
openings and 20 closures for Sports Direct
fascia stores over the period. 42 stores were
acquired as part of the acquisition of DW
Sports comprising a number of ‘combined’
sites with retail and leisure. Six of the store
closures were sites acquired as part of this
acquisition where agreements could not
be reached with landlords resuiting in 33
‘combined’ and 3 stand-alone Sports Direct
stores as edditions in the period. 13 of the
remaining 14 closures occurred due to
relocations into elevated multi-fascia stores.

*  Noteworthy openings include Portsmouth,
Birmingham Fort, Scunthorpe and Wrexham
where existing Sports Direct stores were
closed to relocate into an elevated multi-
format stare.

+  All new store openings include a USC lifestyle
offering os part of the elevated store mode!
across ali farmats. As mentioned previously,
both a GAME and Evans Cycles concept has
been developed to form part of the elevated
Spoits Direct format in selected locations.
Over the coming financial period there will
be a push towards more multi-fascia store
openings incorporating each of these fascias,

Cheisng o creat

Evans Cycles

+ There are currently 4B Evans Cycle stores
operating, a reduction of two stores over
the period. During FY21the Evans Cycles
concept was first introduced as a store-in-
store area in our latest Portsmouth muilti-
fascia store alengside Sports Direct, USC,
Game & Belong. This concept will continue
to be developed to roll out into selected
future store openings.

GAME UK

*  Over the period, the relocation programme
moving GGame into selected Sports Direct
stores was accelerated. Coupled with the
new Sports Direct store openings featuring
an areqa for Game, the overal! number of
stores for the UK estate increased to 247
having closed &7 and cpening 72 (net
increase of 5 stores).

« The Belong gaming arenas are building
their presence across the UK featuring in o
number of the new Sports Direct openings
such as Portsmouth.

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE STORE
PORTFOLIO

Flannels, Cruise and Van Mildert

+ Across Flannels, Cruise and van mildert
duning FY2 there were 6 apenings and 2
closures, resulting in @ net increase of 4
stores. Combining these fascias, the total
estate amounts to 47 stores.

= Key openings for Flannels inctude Rushden
Lakes, Kingston Upon Thames and
Wolverhampton. The Glasgow Cruise
store was also extensively refurbished and
expanded.

= A major areq of development has bean
the Flannels Regional Flagship concept,
incorporating new categories such as
bequty, feod & beverage and active, The
first regional flagship to open will be
Flannels Meadowhall which will extend

to approximately 55,000 sqft with further
locations to follow aver the coming financial
year including Fosse Park in Leicester and
Liverpool city centre.

House of Fraser

+ At the end of FY21 there were 43 House of
Fraser stores trading, a net decrease of 5
stores after 6 closures and 1 opening.

« A key highlight was the delivery of the new
‘Frasers' store concept at Wolverhampton.
This new store showcases the elevated
format and what can be provided upen
agreeing appropriate new long term lease
deals.

+  Much of the estate continues to remain
on short term fiexible leases. Whilst
negotiations are ongoing to transition stores
to long term leases it is anticipated that
there will be further ciosures, particularly
as business rates come back into effect in
FY22.

* However following the demise of major
high street retai! chains we envisage new
location opportunities to come to fruition
over the coming financial peried, albeit
again punitive business rates at mony of
these locotions put the viability of doing
these lease deals in doubt.

Jack Wills

+  Over FY21 there were 7 store closures and no
openings reducing the estate to 60 stores,
We continue to negotiate with iendlerds to
move to long term leases,

+ A new store concept is under development
with the ambition to open in new key
markets across the UK. The new concept is
intended to be finclised cver FY22.

Forecast Openings UK FY22

»  Over FY21, despite the challenges faced
relating to the Covid-19 pandemic the
Group continued the elevated store roll
out programme. For the coming financial
year the Group's ambition is to increase
the new store activity across fascias, with
a particular focus on Sports Direct and
Flannels. Key new stores include the new
Flannels Regional Flagships along with new
Sports Direct flagships such as Birmingham
city centre. However, it should be noted that
program risk remains relating to factors
linked to the Covid-19 pandemic.
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EURQPEAN RETAIL
STORE PORTFOLIO

Republic of Ireland {ROI)

Cver FY23 the remaining Heatons store
copversions to include Sports Direct were
completed.

There was one opening in the year, with 33
stores at the period end. Shortly after the
year end a new store in Galway opened, o
first for the Group in that market.

The intention for the coming financial year
is to increase the store estate across ROJ,
this has been bolstered by the increasing
number of new location opportunities now
being presented. In certain locations other
Group fascias not currently trading in the
ROI are being considered.

Continental Europe

nntad on Stembes 1007, Recyeled and Sarben Caplurad throual

The Group continues to operate sports
stores in 18 countries in continental Europe.

211 Sports retail stores in Europe, excluding
Republic of Irelend {plus 26 non-core,
speciality and outlets).

Total sq.ft. of approximately 2.7m of
all sports fascias in Europe f{including
Sportland, Liltywhites, Sportsworld etc).

Closed 25 GAME stores in Spain during the
period as part of rationalising the estate
and removing duplication finishing the
period on 236 stores,

Twelve openings in four diffesent countries,
three of which were relocations.

10 closures in seven different countries with
a mixture of closing non-performing stores
and closures linked to relocations. The 1
Austrian store closure was due to a sate of
our freehold property in Salzburg.

During the period 8 Sports Direct stores
incorporating a USC were opened during
the peried totalling 117,165 sq ft of retail
space. 5 of these were freeholds purchased
in FY20 that have been refurbished and
opened os elevoted Sports Oirect stares.

A further freehold store opened in Malaga
shortly after FY21, b

+  Asis the case in the UK, the Group is firmly
committed to the rollout of elevated stores
across Eurape. Due to the cccelerated shift
to enline experienced across Europe due to
the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic and o
number of retailers reducing their portfolio
size. The Group believes it can capitalise
on these market conditions to efficiently
expand our physical estate, focusing on
capital city and flagship opportunities,

REST OF WORLD RETAIL
STORE PORTFOLIO

+ 33 stores in Malaysia with three ocpenings
and one closure in FY21, The closure was a
Tesco based store leaving us with three os
we continue to relocate our stores to higher
performance locations,

+  The Malaysian elevation and expansion
drive continues, with 2 new elevated stores
opened in the period. We now have a total
of seven elevated stores in the region in line
with UK standards and four stores with o
USC retail area.

= As a major milestone cur flagship ASEAN
HQ opened in FY¥21in the Sunway Pyramid
shopping centre with the adjoining retail
store opening shortly.

« 43 stores in the USA, following two ¢losures
and one opening in FY21.

FRASERS GROUP

Freehold / Long L hold Property Purch

Over FY21 a total of 14 propertias were
acquired across the UK totalling £84.3m.
The most significont purchase was Robin
Retal Park in Wigan for £41.8m. No
properties wefe acquired in Europe or RoW.

Disposal of property assets continues to be
standard practice for the Group. During the
period 4 disposals completed in the UK and
3 disposals completed in the EU.

For the upcoming financial period it is
anticipated thot there will be an increase
in acqf
favourable matket conditions coupled with
the groups growing requirement for retail
space. Disposals will continue as has been
the case in previous financial years.

Mike Ashley

-Chief Executive

5 August 2021
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FRASERS GROUP

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Financial Statements for the Group for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 are presented in
accordance with International Financicl Reporting Standards {IFRS).

Summary Of Results
32 waaks saded 31 wasks anded
15 Aprl 203 26 April 1020
Iy {Em) (Em}
Revenue 36253 39574
Reported EBITDA 4365 551 0
Underlying ERITDA 08 na
Reported profit befoe tox a5 IR
Underlying prolit belore tax 58 ne

Eurings per shurs (EPS) - Pance per share
Reported bosic EPS {16 5] 185
Underiying hasic £PS o 152

EBITDA is earnings before investment income and investment nmmnu. finance income and finance
costs, kax, depreciation, amortisation and impairment. It includes the Group's share of losses from
associated undertakings and joint ventures. Underlying EBITDA is calcufated as EBITDA before the
effects of IFRS 16, realised foreign exchange guains / losses in selling and administration costs, profit /
loss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategiz investments and properties.

Group Operating Costs

51 wauks endaed

52 waeky anded

Fol

ign Exchange And Treasury

The Group reports its results in GBP but trades
internctionally and is therefore exposed to
currency fluctuations on currency cash flows
in various ways. These include purchasing
inventory from overseas suppliers, making
sales in currencies other than GBP and holding
overseas assets in other currencies. The Board
mitigate the cash flow risks associated with
these fluctuations with the careful use of
currency hedging using forward contracts and
other derivative financial instruments.

The Group uses forward contracts that qualify
for hedge cccounting in twe main ways - to
hedge highly probable EUR sales income and

USD inventory purchases. This introduces a
level of certainty into the Group's planning and
forecasting process. Management has reviewed
detailed forecasts and the growth assumptions
within them and is satisfied that the forecasts
meet the criteria as being highly probable
forecast transactions.

As at 25 April 2021 and as detailed in note 29¢
the Group had the following forward contracts
that qualified for hedge accounting under

IFRS 9 Financial instruments, meaning that
fluctuctions in the value of the contracts before
maturity are recognised in the Hedging Reserve
through Other Comprehensive Income. After
maturity, the sales and purchases are then
valued at the hedge rate.

Currency Hedging against Curreney value Timing Rates
USD/ GBP USD nvantory purchases USD 720m FY27 - FY23 136 - 141
USD/ EUR USD mwantory purchuses LS4 120m FY¥22,FY2d 121-171
EUR / GBI Furo sules EUR 240um FY23 * 099

The Group also uses currency options, swaps and spots for more flexi

ity against cash flows

that are less than highly probable and therefore do not qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS9
Financicl Instruments. The fair value movements before maturity are recognised in the Income

Statement.

The Group has the following mc:m3n< options and unhedged forwards:

13 April 2021 26 April 2010
tEm) lim) )

Giaup operating casts 11400 13530 Currshey Expasted v1e Gurrency volus Timing Rotes
Depreciation ond nmaortisatian 2254 1453 EUR / GBP Evrg snles EUR 380m FY2i 0wy
,_”ﬁ,,am_.”m__u”””ﬁ.””: o a”” The ﬂqo:n is proactive in managing its currency Given the potential impact of cormmodity prices
{£125 16 dapasal and moddeat N e o requirements. The Treasury team works closely on raw material costs, the Group may hedge
IERS 16 reversal of rent sxpansa e e with senior management to understand the certain input costs, including cotton, crude oil
|¥RS 16 revarsal of onerous lease provision o popn Group's plans and forecasts, and discusses and and electricity
Realised FX loss/lg 261 ] understands appropriate financial products
Operating incqine 3 s with various finoncial institutions, inctuding
SELLING, DISTRIBUTION AND ABM N COSTS 13100 e those within the Group Revolving Credit

Group operating costs for the purposes of monagement reporting:

i. Excludes depreciation, amortisation and impairments of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and reclised FX gains and losses; and

ii. lncludes ether operating income.

19
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Facility (RCF). This information is then used to
implement suitable currency products to align
with the Group's strategy.

Regular reviews of the hedging performance
are perfarmed by the Treasury team alongside
senior management to ensure the continued
approprioteness of the currency hedging in
place, and where suitable, either implementing
additional strategies and / or restructure
existing approaches in conjunction with our
financial institution partners.

o across the 1R
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Taxation

The effactive tox rate on profit before tax in FY21 was 1017.6% [FY20: 29.6%). This reflects the impact
of the increase in property impairments and disallowable depreciation,

Earnings
32 waaks onded 52 waaks anded
28 April 2021 26 April 2030 Chongs %]
Reported EPS [Basic] (16 5 85 189 7|
Uriderlyma EPS (Bl 7ol ] 163 12049,
‘Weightea auerage nurmbee of shares {octunl) 501955281 £05,B26.6850

Basic earnings per shore (EPS) is calculated by
dividing the earnings attributabile te ardinary
shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial period. Shares held.in Treasury and
the Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from
this figure.

*“The underlying hasic EPS raflects the underlying perlarmance

of the busmass comparad with the pnor penad and 15 coleulated
using the waighted gueroge numuer of shares It ss nol @ recogrused

ettt performance measures used by other companias, Further
details can b found 1n the Glossury.

Dividends

The Boord has decided not to pey a final
dividend in relation to FY21 [FY2¢ £nil).

The Board remains of the opinion that it is

in the best interests of the Group ond its
shareholders to preserve financial flexibility and
tate future investments and other growth
opportunities. The payment of dividends
remoins under review.

Capital Expenditure

During the period, gross capital expenditure
{excluding IFRS 16} omounted to £21%.4m (FY20:
£323.5m), which included £84.3m on freeheld
properties (FY20: £177.2m) and £48.5m on
warehouse automation (FY20; £31.9m).

20
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Strategic Investments

The Group cantinues to hold various steategic
investments as detailed in Note 20. In addition
the Group also holds indirect strategic
investments within contracts for difference and
options,

The Fair values of the contracts for difference
and options are recognised in Derivative
Financial Assets or Liabilities on the Group
Balance Sheet, with the movement in fair value
recorded in the Income Statement.

Acquisitions

On 22 August 2020, the Group acquired

the trade and assets of DW Sports for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deemed to

be the fair value of the consideration. The
qeguisitton complements the Group's existing
gym and fitness club portfolio and is consistent
with the Group's elevation strategy. Goodwill
reprasents the premium associated with
advantageous site locations, potential growth
opportunities offered by economies of scale,
and the assembled workforce. The fair value
adjustment to property, plant and equipment
relates to the management's assessment of the
price that would be paid for the acquired assets
in an orderly transaction between market
paorticipants ot the acquisition date, The [eases
were ocquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease liability
has been recognised on acquisition.

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Holdings Limited,

the entire share capital of GRMNT Limited,
and the trade and assets of 18 Mantrose for
censideration of £2.7m. These acquisitions
will provide increased product offerings in

the Premium Lifestyie di n. The fair value
adjustment to property, plant and equipment
relates to the recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liab

Ralated Parties

MM Prop Consultancy Limited, a company
owned and controiled by Michael Murray, who
is a member of key management personnel
as per |AS 24, continues to provide property
consultancy services to the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is primarify tasked with
finding and negetiating the acquisition of new
sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the World
for both our larger format stores and our
combined retail and gym units. It also provides
advice to the Company's in-house property
team in relation te existing sites in the UK,
Europe and Rest of the World.

In the year all properties are assessed. Those
that are considered by the Group's independent
Non-executive Directors to have completed
development and be eligible for review at the
year-end are assessed and if required vatued by
an independent valuer whe confirms the velue
created by MM Prap Consultancy Limited. The
Group's independent Non-executive Directors
then review and agree the vatue created and
have full discretion to approve a payment to
MM Prop Consultancy Limited of up to 25% of
the value created. There is a current pipeline of

properties that may be eligible to be assessed
bath positively and negatively by the Group's
Non-executive Directors in future years,

In the current year £2.5m has been accrued
based on 25% of the value created on two
properties where the gain has crystallised
through contract exchange or completion

of sale {FY20 - Enil provided and £nil paid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited was last paid
in relation to FY19). This is payable to MM
Prop Consultancy Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the period the Group entered intec an
agreement-with M.P.M Elevation Limited, o
company owned and controlled by Michael
Murray in relation to elevation strategy services.
M.PM Elevotion Limited will be paid an annual
fee of £0.1m in relation to the provision of the
elevation strategy services.

Other related parties are disclosed in note 34.
Cash Flow And Net Debt

Net debt decreased by £117.1m from £366.0m
at 26 April 2020 to £248.9m at 25 April

2021. Interest on bank ioons end cverdrofts
decreased to £11.2m {FY20: £17.8m) largely due
to reduced usage of the RCF in the period.

The analysis of net debt ot 25 April 2021 and at 26 April 2020 was as follows:

FRASERS GROUP

15 April 2021 2% April 2020

lem) igm}

Cush o rash squolents 570 5340
Borrawings Cas 900 0
NET DERY (48] 1266.0)

The Group's Working Capital Facility is £913.5m (FY20: E913.5m}, It is available untit November
2021 and is not secured against any of the Group’s assets. £847.5m of the focility is due to expire in

November 2022,

The Group continues to operate well within its banking covenants and the Board remains
comfortable with the Group's available headroom Note: due to the timing of payrolt and supplier
payments, net debt ot calendar period end 30 April 2021 was approximately £350.0m {FY20

nuu_.n_x_zwonm? £408.0m|.
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FRASERS GROUP

CASHFLOW

Total movement is as follows:

Receivables includes a £118.3m reimbursement asset in relation to the Group's ongoing non-UK
tax enquiries (FY20: £118.3m) and £131.0m relating to deposits in respect of derivative financial
instruments {FY20: £71.3m) with the increcse maindy refating to Hugo Boss.

52 weahs snded 52 wasks snded
5 Apeil 2021 . leAprizoz Provisions have increased mainly due to an increase in property provisions as  result of the Covid-19
fEmi? sm pandemic.
Underlying EBITDA 3908 021
Reahsed FX locsl/ gun 1763} 48 Payables have increased largely due to rent payments under negotiation as a result of the Covid-19
Taxas pured 1593 148 5) pandemic, .
Move 1 in wentary 991 {120 B)
Working capal and other 231 955
UNDERLYING FREE CASH FLOW AFTER WORKING CAPITAL ana 2631 COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
INVEIED IN: Significant balance sheet items are shown below:
Purchase of own shares {43) 14349
Dhwidend poid to non-contiolling nterest (11 8 April 10H 26 April 1030
Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash aeguired 1394) 73] Ikm) . fEm)
Purchasa of listed wivastmaits 33 {24 81 dnwestrmants 1,454 9 12358
Purchosu of mtungibles 10} Tubtors WEH [:Y:]
Purchose of asseriates - 15 6] Creditors amaounts falling due within ona year (609 O} {901 5)
Proceeds on dispesal of investimants and dasivalivis 851 49 . e . . R .
e e o lmpul of inbangibles e Investments relates to investments in subsidiaries and long-terrd financial assets. The majority of the
Nt captol expenditure : Team o increase relates to additions due to a reorganisation of our US businesses and purchases of physical
Exchange mosamant on cast balances 5t 5o shares in Mulberry Group plc and Hugo Boss AG.
[ 3 vere 05 as P . . . f
M..:E.s o ;R_: - - : : The majority of the movement in debtors relates to on increase in collateral te cover margin
i 4 L i 10 8] B3] . . . . . .
L orTe M A e e e e ! requirements for derivative transactions held with counterparties.
DECREAIE IN NEY DEBT ma 123
1 This wble excludes the impact of IFRS16 Creditors relates to amounts owed to Group undertakings, the decrease relotes to subsidiary
dividends declared during the period.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Significant balance sheet items are shown below: Chris Wootton
25 apell 2031 26 Apl 2020 Chief Financiol Officer
) bl 5 August 2021
Property, plant and equipment 915 7 10415
Kight of use ossets 457 ] 3052
Long term finaacral assets 2631 838
Inventary 10966 1198 3
Trade and other racevabes 546 5 a3
Provisons (3612} {31401
Trode and other poyobles [646 3) 1607 5)
1ease lakn wan (B241]

The majority of the decrease in property, plant and equipment relates to the impairments of freehold
land and building and plant and equipment due to the Covid-19 pandemic and factors such as
changes in consumer behaviour.

IFRS 16 right of use assets have decreaszd largely due to impairments. Lease liabilities have
increased targely due to remeasurements during the period.

Long-term financial assets have increaszd during the period due to the additions of Hugo Boss AG
and Mulberry Group plc.

Inventary has decreased largely due to a reduction in inventeries held within the Rest of World
segment. .
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The toble below sets out where the information required by sections 414CA and 414CB of the
Companies Act 2006 can be found in this Annual Report,

Hequiremant Lecution Rulevant Pol

Environmeniol Matters ENVIRONMENT - poges 26 to 27 Environmental goliry

HUMAN RESOURCES - poge 23 Staff Hondbook Enploy2e Data

Employess Privacy Statemant
STAFF INVOLVEMENT - poge 62 Acoepmabie Use Paey

Social Matters* COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT = page 25
| SUPPLY CHAIN - paga 25 Anb-Slavery and Hurnan Troffrking
Human Rights MODERN STAVERY ACT 2015 - puge 25 Bglicy
Staft Handbook Ante Bribery &

ANT)-BRIBERY & CORRUPTION - page 25
WHISTLEBLOWING - poge 23

on pohity
wbiowing Policy
Code ol Condutt / Supply Palicy

An- Bibery & Corraption policy

Busingss Madel BUSINESS MODEL ~ page 10

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE 15k Register and P
GROUFS BUSINESS — pages 30 ta 36 2 Custoner Data
VIABILITY STATEMENT - puge 35 Do Reter

WEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - poge 12

1pal Risks.
wacy Palicy
o Policy

Prncipol Risks and Busihess Acti

Non-Financal Key Performance indicators

* We continunlly work (o ensure that we improve

30

Is sector Qur policy 15 not farmalised althaugh evidence of whot wa do con be lorated on Loges 23t

Further .:.ﬂo:.snzo: is provided within the Group's ESG Report on page 23,

22

e W ndban

WORKERS' REPRESENTATIVE REPORT

| have now been the Workers' Representative- and places its people ot the forefront of any *
and Nen-executive Director for over two SuCCesses.

years. The role has been challenging given the
pressures of the Covid-19 pondemic. However,
it is immensely rewarding and | remain proud
to be representing my colleagues at Frasers
Group.

This year, despite the shift to working virtually,

I remain fully involved in all Board and strategy
meetings, giving fresh insights and perspectives
on decision making, and my relationship with
the other Board members has gone from

With the continuous lockdowns and the strength to strength. | continue to be involved
uncertainty the Covid-19 pandemic has brought in afl decisions and correspondence regarding
during the past year to the Group, protecting safe systems of work to maintain good Covid-19
oyr colleague’s wellbeing and maintaining practices at our warehouse, offices and stores.
consistent, transparent communication have
been vital. | continue to have full contral and
ownership of a confidential whistleblowing
hotline for retail colleagues, oz well os the stoff
welfare portal, where every colleague has the
opportunity to anonymously raise any concerns
or queries that they may have. | operate with
complete transparency and any findings from
these plotforms are shared with the rest of
Beard.

Whilst we navigate the year chead and the
chailenges it will undoubtedly bring, | hope |
can continue to make a positive difference ot
Board level to ensure that our people continue
to be at the heart of ¢ll business decisions, and
to help drive our Elevation No Limits strategy
forward.

As part of my role as the Workers
Representative, | have collaborated with our
Training team and the Retail Trust to safeguard
the wellbeing of our colleagues. Using the
mast frequently asked questions from the
staff portal, the Retail Trust's psychologists
and counsellors have used their expertise to
answer our collecgue queries. We have run
regular webinars and discussed financial
support, emotional support and coping
mechanisms for all Frasers colleagues during
the Covid-19 pondemic. Each webinar was
recorded and made aveiluble across all of our
communication platforms.

Furthermore, | am pleased to confirm that
despite the evident challenges that the
Covid-19 pandemic has brought, we are
currently implementing pay reviews for our
retail teams, demaonstrating the value and

faith we place in our people. In addition to this,
we hove launched our Feorless 1000' bonus
scheme where some of our colleagues have

the potential to be rewarded with life-changing
bonuses. | am proud to represent my collecgues
and a business that rewards its people so highly
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ESG REPORT

Our People

We employ more than 25,000 people across
the Group. Despite the challenges raised by the
Covid-1% pandemic, during FY21 we continued
to enhance many aspects of how we manage
our people, to ensure that those who work

hard and want to be challenged can excel and
quickly progress within Frasers Group.

Culture And Values

Having the right culture is critical to sus-ainable
business success. We want our colleaguss to
feel valued and engaged, and to have c culture

- that helps us to attract, retain and deve op

talent to create our future leaders.

This year, we worked with a specialist
consultancy to develop an employer valie
proposition for the Group. As part of this we
looked to understand how our people perceive
our culture, including our unique strengt 13

and where we can improve. Interviews with
people at all levels of the business showzd

that we have a culture of acting fast and
without hesitation, and where people rise to the
challenge and are valued for their contribution.
We see strength in difference, offer the
potential to progress and develop strong loyalty
among our pecple.

Areas for improvement included the need for
better comrmunication, more focus on work-life
bualance and clear abjectives. We have clready
begun to address these matters, includirg
establishing on internal communications team.
Qur "Your Company, Your Yoice' portal also
supparts engagement and communication,
allowing our people to raise guestions and.
concerns with the Workers Representative, with
the responses then published. Other initiatives
this year include cur new performance
management process (see below] which
includes objective setting. Following a reurn to
the office under Covid-19 guidelines, we have
alse introduced 'Frasers Fridays', so heac office
colleagues can request to work from home on
Fridays.
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Brawing on our people’s responses, we have
defined the core values that underpin how we
work. These are:

=  Ownit and back yourself
+  Don't hesitate and oct with purpose

»  Think without limits cnd take the team
with you

We have communicated these values aeross
the Group ond use them in cur recruitment,
performance management and reward
schemes {see below). We will continue to
embed them geing forwards.

The project alse enabled us to define our
employer value proposition. For our existing
talent, this is about being trusted to perform.
For future talent, Frosers Group is ‘for the
fearless’.

Retention

We aim to hire the most talented and capabte
individuals across our sector, and to retain their
valuable knowledge and experience within the
Group. During F¥21, 29% of our UK salaried
colleagues teft the Group which is consistent
with FY20.

Store Manager stability within Sports Direct

is currently sitting ot 84%, this is a decrease

of 1% compared to FY20. Assistant Manager
stability currently sits at 87%, an increase of

2% compared to FY20. Footweor Manager
stability currently sits at 94%, an increase of 6%
compared to FY20.

A significant propartion of our peopie have
been furloughed at various times in FY21, in
particular when stere closures have been
mandated. Use of the furlough scheme has
enabied us to retain people within the business,
while accessing Government support when our
stores have not been able to trade,

Diversity And inclusion

We believe diversity plays an important role
in a successful business. We strive to ensure
thot our people reflect the diverse cultures and

values of our customer base. We endeavour to
provide equal opportunities, recruit those with
the best skills and capabilities for the role and
to ensure that training, career development and
promotion oppeortu
We will not tolerote discrimination on grounds
of gender identity, sexuol orientation, race,
nationality, religion, age, discbility or any other
grounds.

We endeavour to meet our respeonsibilities to
train and employ disabled people. Applications

for employment by people with any disability
are given full and fair consideration for alt
vacancies and are assessed in accordance with
their skills and abilities. People who have q first
language other than English are important to
our business. We provide free English language
lessons, to help them participate and be
successful in our workplace and more broadly
as citizens. Since their introduction in January
2017, 248 colleagues have attended these
classes.

The table below shows the gender diversity of our workforce at the year end. Approximately 53% of
our workforce is female, including 35% of our senior monagement (FY20: 32% UK workforce). We aim
to ensure that both male and female candidates are provided with equal opportunitias to gpply for

and work in all positions across the Group.

Famale . Mals

5% 5%

Cither senioe manugers 35% 65%
53% 47%

Othar employass L

Gender Pay Gap

Qur gender pay gap report for 2020 was
published in August 2021, We are pleased to
report that we have maintained a 0% average
gender pay gup across the Group over the
past three years compared to 6.3% in 2017
We attribute this change to a continued focus
on reviewing and applying our pay structures
consistently across the business. We recognise
there is a difference in total earnings between
female and male colleagues, We are therefore
continuing ko explore and implement methods
that will establish enhanced processes and
training tools for our employees and engaged
warkers to achieve moximum earnéing potential
through our various bonus and commissien
schemas. :

Talent And Capability Development

We invest without {imit in people who show the
potential to be future managers and leaders,
and who can drive the elevation strategy.
Heme-grown talent is key to us and many of
our management and senior positions are filled
through internal promotions.

To inspire our home-grown talent, we offer
existing colleagues the chance to take
apprenticeships, including obtaining relevant

ted on Slembes 100%% Recycled and Carbon Captured throunh the Woodland Trust. helpirgg 1o create new Bntish woodiand across the UK

external qualifications. Over 100 colleagues
have started apprenticeships since May 2020,
learning about topics such as customer service,
HR, finance, IT, warehouse management and
various levels of retail management. We-have
alse recruited new people into apprentice
positions within 1T and are leoking at extending
this to other areas of the business.

We ran our first early careers programme for
graduates this yecr, with 27 people joining

our commercial function through the Frasers
Group Elevation Programme. This two-year
programme will crecte the future leaders for
that part of the organisation and encble the
highest perferming porticipants to earn up to
E80,000 in their secand year or to enter other
areas across the cormmercial team. The trainee
commercial managers {TCMs) started with an
intensive three<week arientation, cavering the
Group's purpose, strategy and culture as well
as all aspects of the commercial division ond
the essential skills required. The TCMs also took
part in a three-day business simulation, to learn
how their decisions affect other areas of the
business.

The 2020 intake also has a dedicated Early
Careers Manager who is responsible for their
learning and developmient, running frequent
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professional coaching and mentoring sessions
to ensure they are getting the most out of the
programme and supporting them in all areas
of the rale. The Early Careers Manager also
supports the entite commercial team to ensure
the programme runs effectively. The Frasers
Team has been on hand to shift the structure
and scope of the programme to fit in with the
business's strategy throughout the Covid-19
pandemic and make sure all the refevant
learning needs are accounted for. A second
cohort of people will join us in September 2021
look to recruit for other parts of
the Group in future. We also continue to run
placement years for undergraduates, primarily
within IT.

Managing performance is essential for
identifying key tolent and helping our
colleagues to achieve their growth potential.
We have therefore introduced our Fearless
Focus performance reviews which went live

for head office colleagues in March 2021 and
will be ralled out ocrass the business. We have
identified competencies against which to judge
performance and will also assess behaviours
ogainst the values described above. Each
Function's objectives will filter down to the
objectives for individuals and provide clear
expectations about performance. We will also
generate development plans, so colleagues
can improve in their current roles or fulfil their
aspirations to progress, in conjunction with our
succession planring.

Learning And Devel

pi

Ensuring our teams have the knowledge

they need to perform at the highest level is
paramount to the continued success of the
business. While we have had to adopt our
approach to learning and develepment during
the Covid-19 pandemic, we are looking forward
to resuming regular in-person training when
possible, as part of a blended approach. Cur
Shirebrook training centre is state of the art and
is supported by our brand partners.Nike, Puma
and Adidos who have their own environments
in the tarmpus. The facilities offer an unrivalled
training environment, which alongside the
Shirebrook store, give colleagues the perfect
mix of classroom and on-the-job training.
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We offer a varied portfolio of training options
for our teams. The training and development
portfolio continues to grow and includes brand
and product knowledge, customer service,
management training and induction, as well
as our apprenticeship courses and free English
lessons.

In FY21, we started to develop a new learning
rmanagement system {LMS) on Netex's Learning
Cloud platform. This went live to selective
groups in early 2021 with the cim to roll cut to
all UK employees by the end of the calendar
year, | earning Cloud is industry leading in size
ond scope, showing the importance we place
on the continued learnings of our colleagues.
It contains ¢ blend of interactive e-learning
modules, videos and documents on specific
skills and capabilities, as well as allowing us
to create bespoke content and digital events.
The system will give managers the option te
recammend further training to their teamns
and to report on engagement, which will
allow us to understand the uptake of training
and to monitor completion of any mandatory
courses. Learning Cloud is easily accessible
and is compatible with PC's, laptops, tablets
and mobile phones, giving every employee the
option of how they wish to absarb their troining.

While the Covid-19 pandemic has reduced

the opportunity for face-to-face training, we
have stepped up the use of online platforms.
This has included our Fearless Fortnights,
where we record o webinar every two weeks
on a specific topic. Examples include webinars
on performance reviews and on improving
communication ski

Remuneration And Reward

We foster a reward-based culture that enables
our colleagues to share in the Group's success.
In the UK, our policy is to pay above the
Natienal Minimum Wage, including rates that
are above the National g Wage for people
aged over 25. We offer bonus schemes and
incentives depending an the role and the foscia,
and colleagues receive discounts across all
fascias.

The Fearless 1000 incentive scheme aligns the
interests of our people and our shareholders.
Colleagues can be awarded points for

their performance by leaders across the
organisation, including for living our volues. The
scheme runs for four years and if a £10 share
price target is reached for 30 consecutive days,
it will result in an award of shares or o cash
equivalent for the top 1,000 people, with the tep
ten receiving an award equivalent to Eim at a
share price of £10 on vesting. The scheme also
includes a cash reward for al other colleagues
outside of the top 1,000 people based on their
length of service with the Group.

We have also intreduced the Frasers
Champicns recognition scheme, which allows
people to nominate colleagues far an award
for demonstrating our values. The strongest
nominations each month are chompioned
across the business and receive an additional
month's pay. As at Aprit 2021, 72 people had
received an award

In addition, the introduction of the Fearless
Focus performance reviews described above
will suppart the move to a more structured and
robust performance-related pay review process,

Casual Workers

We strive to ensure our arrangements for casual
staff are fair and equitable. All casual workers
are paid the same rates as fuli-time employees
In the same role. We promote stakility in
waorking hours, while our casua! workers also
benefit from the flexibility to decline shifts at
any time. This flexibility also benefits the Group,
enabling us to adjust staffing levels to cope with
peak times and quieter periods.

Casual workers are also included in the Fearless
1,000 bonus scheme.

Health And Safety

As the Group grows, we have continued to
increase our focus on consistently implementing
health and safety measures and evaluating our
safety performance. We implement our polices,
in conjunction with legal standards, to protect
our colleagues and customers.

e t0ss e LUK

During the year, the Group introduced a
new improvement team, respansible for
enhancing the efficiency and effectiveness
of our operations at Shirebrook. This team
is reviewing all processes across the site and
pulling together contributions from different
teams, in¢luding health and safety, This has
the potential to further improve our safety
petformance at Shirebrook.

In FY20 we implemented o new accident

and incident reporting system, replacing
paper-based reporting with an online system
accessible from all our stores and businesses.
We are now reviewing the potential to
implement a more integrated system, which
nk to claims and capture the information
required by our insurers.

Appropriate health and safety training is vitol
and we have focused this year on training the
store management teams. This training covers
all aspects of in-store safety, from testing

fire alarms to carrying out evacuations and
reporting incidents. The Covid-19 pandemic has
{imited the number of people who have been
able to take this training in FY21 and we are
looking ta introduce a digital format to speed
up-the roll-out and make the training more
engaging.

The majority of in-store health and safety
idents relate to customer trips and falls. The
elevation pragramme is helping to reduce this,
by providing more space in store aisles and an
elevated shopping experience.

Health And Sofety Parformance

All RIDDOR incidents are recorded and are
reportable to the local authority. The health
and safety team meet the Derbyshire locel
authority with responsibility for Shirebrook on
a quarterly basis and work closely with other
authorities when required. Al accidents and
incidents are investigated in a timely manner
and warehouse RIDDOR incidents are reviewed
during these meetings. .

During FY21 there were n fire, local authority
or environmental enforcement actions or
prosecutions and no work related fatalities.
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Wellbeing

Colleague wellbeing is always a focus for

us and has become even mere important
during the Covid-19 pandemic. We continue
to partner with Retail Trust, which provides

all Frasers Group colleagues with access

to free and confidential weltbeing support.
Retail Trust offers advice, financiol assistance,
face-to-face and telephone counselling,
cognitive behavioural therapy, non-repayable
grants, career development support, legal
guidance and on-site critical incident support.
The helpline is availoble 24 hours a day, seven
days a week.

To ensure our people know what support is
available through Retail Trust, we have elevated
our communications during the Covid-19
pandemic. This has included webinars and
education sessions for managers, so they are
aware of what is available, as well as social
media messaging and other communications
for colleagues. This has resulted in a noticeable
uplift in use of the Retail Trust service.

Human Rights And Modern Slavery

We are committed to respect and egual
treatment for all people.

We recognise that modern slavery is an
ongeing challenge for organisaticns, especicily
thase dealing in consumer goods, and we
remain committed to addressing this risk.
Ultimately, we strive to ensure that no slavery
or human trafficking takes place within our
business or supply chain. We have policies in
place gimed at prodactively identifying and
mitigating these risks. These policies aim to
send a clear message that we do not tolerate
these practices.

We have a range of tools in place including
videos and literature to educate colleag.ues
about their rights and a number of
communication channels, including an internal
telephone hotline and comments boxes an site,
for reporting any feedback or concerns. Anyone
making a report can remain anonymous if they
choose. We also continue to review and develop
our colleague training, menitoring processes
and evaluation of cutcomes, and work with

our employment agencies and other relevant
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bodies, including the Gangmasters and Labour
Abuse Authority and the police, to support our
training and knowledge.

[E we find, or suspect, that any organisations or
individuals are participating in modern slavery
we take immediate action. Accordingly,

we have a policy of reporting any suspicious
activity to the police, which has historicaliy
assisted in successful convictions. Qur 554
Modern Slavery Act statement can be found on
our website www.frasers.group.

Developing Our HR Function And People
Policies

We are investing in the structure and capability
of our HR function, to enable it to effectively
support the Group as it continues to grow.

As part of this, we are reviewing our people
policies and the way that they govern our
people’s behaviours, as well as the appropriate
mechanisms we need to have in place to
ensure compliance, This will allow us to toke

a move preventative approoch te instances of
non-compliance.

Our main focus for policies under review
includes attendance management, maternity/
paternity/parental leave, performance
capability and redundancy. A significant ond
positive change will be the maternity policy
for our casual workers where they will remain
engaged with us throughout their maternity
leave period.

Community And Charity

We are committed to engaging with the local
and wider communities around our stores and
our offices in | ondon and Shirebrook, and we
aim to minimise any detrimental impact on
them.

Our Sports Directory subsidiary has been a
specialist supplier of sports equipment to the
education sector for aver 25 years, and part of
the Frasers Group since 2016, Sports Directory
plays a key role in giving back to schoois in
the UK and helping to keep our young people
fit and healthy, often giving children their

first experience of team sports. Through its
'My School' scheme, schools purchase sports
equipment from the business and Sports

Directory gives them the apportunity to claim
a voucher worth 25% of every purchase. To
date, Sports Directory has issued over 42,00¢
vouchers to UK schoals, which equates to
more than £3.2 n worth of free sports
equipment. Sports Directory has also, via the
Professional Footballer's Asscciation, donated
free equipment to 72 football league clubs.

In addition to Sports Directory, we support the
development of gross roots talent in tennis via
Slozenger. We have donated over £35C,000 of
tennis equipment to schools and tennis clubs
via the Slezenger Academy. The Academy is
supported by Tim Henman, as well as the All
England Tennis Club.

Closer te the Shirebrook campus, we donated
winter clothing to Nottinghamshire YMCA,
which was distributed to homeless peopla in
the local community. Store monagers atso
cantribute to their local communities. An
example of this is in Aberdeen, where the store
has in previous years worked ciongside a local
hospital to donate presents to the staff. Due to
the Covid-19 pandemic, this was not possible
this year, so instead the store donated to a local
food bank.

Frasers has also worked on a number of
initiatives to empower women in sport. The
highlights of this include warking with Women
in Sport to supply kit for their *Daughters and
Dads” programme, which encourages girls to
play more spert. The Group also sponscred
the "Driving Force” series on Sky Sports that
highlights the challenges faced by elite
sportswomen,

As discussed in the Chair's stotement, on 15
Juna 2020, in England, we offered a 50%
discount to all NHS staff in our Sports Direct
stores as a gesture of goodwill to these
fantastic individuals as our stores re-opened; it
was on overwhelming success with gross sales
of approximately £50m before discount and
approximately £25m after discount.

Anti-Bribery And Corruption

The Group has an Anti-Bribery and Corruption
Policy in place, which was originally created
following the introduction of the UK Bribery
Act. As a result of the Act, ail policies and
procedures were reviewed to ensure compliance
measures were put in place to mitigate staff
being offered and / or accepting brikes. We
have a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and
corruption at Frasers Group, and we encourage
our pecple to speak-up if they have concerns
that bribery or fraud is taking place. No
instances of bribery, corruption or fraud have
been reported during FY21.

Bue to tha number of acquisitions into the
Group since 2018, the Group is reviewing policy
to ensure that the policy remains effective.

The revised policy will be subject to Audit
Committee oversight.

Whistleblowing

The Group has an epproved whistleblowing
policy and a number of processes operate
which support our policy including Your
Company Your Voice, our Retail Suppart Unit
Asset Protection hottine as well as'a dedicated
whistleblowing e-moil address.

A policy review and revision process is ongoing,
The updated whistleblowing policy and related
processes will be subject to Audit Committee
reporting, approval and oversight on an
ongoing basis.
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ENVIRONMENT

‘We recognise that supporting and protecting
the environment is important to our
stakeholders and to the future success of our
business. We therefore lock to be proactive
in making a positive contribution to the
environment, including through reducing
our energy use and greenhouse gas (GHG)

*  emissions, minimising waste, maximising
recycling and considering how we con moke our
products more sustainable.

Frasers Group welcomes the introduction of
the Taskforce for Climate-related Financial
Disclosures {TCFD). We understand this is

an important step in tackkng giobal climate
change and we look forward to shating our first
full disclosure in next year's Annual Repart. As
part of this process we have engaged external
advisers to carry out a gap analysis to ensure
we are in a streng position to meet these
requirements. There is more to do and we have
already begun identifying opportunities and
risks around climate change and are using
these findings to inform future strategy.

ity

furing FYZ1, we formalised our gpproach

to sustainability in @ number of ways. This
included creating a dedicated sustainability
function, which has been seeking out and
Aimplementing projects that are beneficial to the
Group and the environment.

Embedding Sustainy

Towards the end of the 2020 calendar year, we
farmed a network of Sustainobility Champions
under the sponsorship of the CFQ. This
reflected our belief that the best way to embed
sustcinability across the Group is to take
everyone on the journey with us. All colleagues
were given the opportunity to take part and we
received a significant number of applications
from around the business, demonstrating our
colleagues’ interest in environmental issues.

The Sustainability Champions wark within their
own departments, using their unique knowledge
of their day-to-day roles to help make dll

areas of the business more sustainable. They
feed back to the newly formed Steering

Group, which has representatives from senior
management and key departments, including
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experts in retail, procurement, design, legal,

HR and finonce. The Steering Group set the
Group's sustoincbility strategy and monitar our
progress, as part of our wider ESG approach.
This will enable us to take g more strotegic
approach te environmental matters in the years
ahead.

Training for our Sustainability Champions has
been delayed due to the Covid-12 pandemic
but will toke place as s0on as practicable.
We intend to run workshops, bring in external
speakers and provide arl opportunity for our
Champions ta share good practice and leamn
from each other.

Enhancing Energy Efficiency

The sustainability team’s primary focus in the
year was on reducing energy use and GHG
emissions, primarily through behavioural
changes and best practice. The vast majority of
our sites have smart meters, giving us live and
accurate data which is fed into a menitering
and alerts system. This ailows us to take action
when usage issues are identified.

We continue to comply with the UK
Government's Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting (SECR)} and hove identified key areas
where we can make further energy reductions,
in particular energy usage in our steres and
efficient transport and logistics.

fmproving the envirenmental performance

of our store portfolio is a significant focus for
us and presents the greatest opportunity for
associated costs savings. For example, LED
light replacements resulted in 0 52% energy
reduction and repid payback on their upfront
cost. All new light fittings are now LED and we
are rolling out a programme of LED lighting
upgrades ot q rate of two stores a week. We
have also upgraded the external lighting ot
Shirebrook to LED.

We have trialled replacing overhead door
heaters in stores with infrared heoters, which
are much more energy efficient. In our
Mansfield store trial, for example, we replaced
three 12kw blow heaters with a single 3kw
infrared heater. However, store closures due to
the Covid-19 pandemic hagited these trials and
we are awaiting more data and feedback from

A
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store colleagues on the hegters’ effectiveness,
before plenning o full roll out.

In addition, we carried out desktop studies of
the feasibility of replacing air conditioning units
in cur stores with more efficient units. While
these studies showed that retrofitting stores

is not cost effective, particularly for leasehold
premises, we are using more efficient units

in new stores. We will continue to review the
practicality of replacing existing units, at least
annuclly.

In support of the transition to a low-carbon
economy, we have installed 18 electric vehicle
chorgers at several points around our head
office which are provided at cost to colleagues.

Excluding acquisitions during the year the
electricity supplied to all of our stores and
gyms is from 100% renewable sources. Qur
Shirebrook distribution centre electricity is from
a local independent power supplier, which
supports the grid during the transition to a
green networlc and o zerc-carbon economy.

Transport

The Group's truck fleet all meet the Euro

6 stondard end we use an engine fuel

additive te further reduce emissions. By using
container optimisatiors, which maximises the
amount we can get into @ container, we save
approximately 0.6315 tonnes of carbon per
forty foct container. Therefore, since 2013, we
have cut our transport impact by approximately
26,473 tonnes of carbon, That is equivalent to
31,478,002 kilometres of lory travel or 787 times
around the world.

We work with our factaries and third-party
brands to optimise our container space and
reduce the number of containers shipped, to
avoid fuel waste caused by ‘shipping air'. Our
freight forwarders continue to work hard to
condense shipping and to compare the impact
of different transport modes, such os rail or
read.

All parcels we send to customers via DPD are
carbon neutral and we receive a certificate
each quarter settin--g out the GHG emission
savings as a result. During the year we sent
56,572 parcels via DPD, saving 24,275kg of CO2,
the equivalent to planting 93 trees.

audiand across twe UK

Waste And Recycling

Reducing waste and moximising recyeling is
anather important area of focus for us ond we
hove a target to send zero waste to landfill from
our UK operations by 2025. We are planning to
look at targets for the rest of the world once our
UK waste streams are managed as efficiently as
possible,

Qur approach to managing each of our waste
streams s set out below,

Cardboard

Sarting our recycling into different streams ot
our Shirebrook warehouse allows us to facilitate
the recycling of approximately 95% of our
cardboord.

We are a AAA producer of cardboard waste,
which means that we produce clean, high
density bales of a consistent quality. This
attracts a high buy-back price and ensures we
are a preferred supplier when demand is low,
0% of our cardboard is reprocessed in mills in
the UK by our recycling partner who we work
closely with to constantly improve recycling
rates. On average, we recycle around 900
tonnes of cardboard each month.

All office paper is rade from Steinbeis recycled
paper in partnership with the Woodland

Trust and recycled after use. From Jonuory to
December 2021, the partnership has created
3,363.36m? of new native weadland in the UK to
remove 130,494kg of carbon dioxide. '

Plastic

We have a separate baling operation

for plastic, which eliminates end-of-bale
contamination. The plastic we produce on
site is high grade, making it very suitable for
recycling. Office plastics are also separated at
source and recycled,

We aim to reduce single-use plastic within

the business as far as possible, such as tags,
pallet straps and packaging bags. We are
working hord to identify the ‘hotspots’ we need
to address first and actively procure more.
sustainable alternatives.



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 201

FRASERS GROUP

Electrical Waste

IT waste is disposed of by a specialist
contractor who alse cleans any hard drives of
sensitive information where required,

The majority of electrical waste we generate
is light bufbs and tubes which are loaded into
waste containers provided by Electriccl Maste
Ltd and exchanged as required.

Fridges and freezers are collected by the
supplier, as required.

Occasional appliance waste is put in the scrap
metal bins for recycling.

Metal

We recycle scrap metal from Shirebrock and
our stores through a partnership with twe local
companies. We are now sorting different grades
where possible, to facilitate o faster and nore
efficient process.

General Waste

Every month, around 105 tonnes of dry

mixed recycling (non-sorted recyclables /
general waste} are baled from cur Shireb ook
distribution centre. Once baled, the waste is
sent to a third party for recycling at cost <o us.
This has reduced by approximately 45 tonnes
per month from last year, partly due to the
Covid-19 pandemic and partly due to better
separation of waste which ensures we can sell
mere of our own recycling,

Recycling Initiatives In FY21

We continue to work on reducing waste and
increasing recycling. During the year, we have
communicated to all colleagues that our
expectation is for waste to be recycled. We
have supported this by replacing individual
bins at desks with recycling bins in offices to
sort waste ot source. Food waste is also now
recycled. We are trialling waste segregaticn in
store, to further increase our recycling rates.
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Recycling Performance

In F¥21, we recycled B6% of the waste we
generated at our Shirebrook distribution centre
[FY20: 88%). This included:

* 6,418 tonnes of cardboard (FY20: 12,358
tonnes}

= 30 tonnes of woste paper (FY20: 27 tonnes)

* 285 tonnes of plastic {FY20: 623 tonnes)

« 771 tonnes of metal {FY20: 778 tonnes)

* 3,227 units of electrical equipment {FY20:
5,051 units)

In FY21, we separated and directly recycled
7.558 tonnes {86%) of materials. A further 1,241
tonnes (14%) of mixed waste was collected by
specialised recyclers.

This compares to FY20 where we separated
and directly recycled 10,200 tonnes {88%) of
materials and sent away o further 1,517 tonnes
{12%) of mixed waste to specialised recyclers.

The recycling rate has stayed broadly
consistent year on year but the absolute
quantity of waste produced and recycled this
year is down significantly due to store closures
because of the Covid-19 pandemic. There was
therefore much less stock coming into the
warehouse and no waste coming back from
stores during the country-wide lockdowns.

Product Design And Sourcing

We continue to explore ways to enhance the
sustainability of our products. Carrying out a
‘sustainability check’ is now pert of the design
and procurement process for all new products’
to ensure we use the most sustainable materials
and processes for each line. We review
continuity products annually and refresh them
with a more sustuinable material or process, if a
viable option exists.

For FY22, our biggest sustainability project will
be to improve the sustainability of the products
we offer, looking at water use, chemicals,
carbon emissions and raw materiol production.

As part of this, we are a founding signatory
of WRAP's (Waste and Resources Action
Programme) Textiles 2030 initiative, which

is designed to accelerate the fashion and
textiles industry’s shift towards circularity and
system change, Signateries will collaborate on
carbon, water and circular textile targets, and
contribute to national policy discussions. Te
help move our product improvements forward
WRAP provides a scenario planning tool which
caloulates environmental impacts such as water
and energy saving benefits from swapping
materials or processes. We continue to look

for more recycled content in our products and
request a recycled content or reduced impact
option with every proposal from suppliers.
Improving Our Packagi

We continue to work to reduce the volume of
packaging for our products and to increase
the recycled content of the packaging that
remains. For example, we use an auto-boxing
machine that cuts boxes to the exact size
required, substantiaily reducing the quantity
of card used. We continue to use 100%
recycled card for ali our own-brand shoeboxes
and all our card for packaging or labelling

is non-laminated, for easier recycling and
plastic reduction. This required substantial
research and development to get the desired
quality and appearance, while minimising the
environmental impact,

The Group has joined the On-Pack Recycling
Label {OPRL) scheme, which ensures UK-wide
adoptien of a simple recycling symbol system,
to help increase recycling rates. All the
packaging we have produced since April 2020
has an GPRL symbo! assigned and printed on it,
to help consumers dispose of it at home within
the correct woste stream.

Our new Sports Direct bag for life which is
coming in Summer 2021 will have 85% recycled
content, up frem 76% recycled content in FY20.
We are also intreducing standard Sports Direct
carrier bags made from 100% recycled material
{80% post-consumer waste and 20% factory
waste) later in the year and all fascias with a
plastic carrier will have at least 30% recycled
content. Our plans to roll out these recycled
in-store bags have been delayed, as we use up
old stock due to stere closures because of the
Covid-19 pandemic.

Brtishy woodiand across the UK

Frosers stores will have an FSC certified
recycled grass paper bag.

Our in-store hangers are now made from more
than 80% recycled polypropylene, replacing the
virgin plastic hangers we previously used.

Reducing Water Use

Reducing woter usage in our estate is a focus
for us. We have begun installing water-saving
Hippo blacks in toilets in our stores and at

the Shirebrook distribution centre. These save
around three litres of water per flush. The
installation in stores is taking place in line with
the annual maintenance rota, meaning oll
stores will be covered within 12 months.

Other Environmental Initiatives

The Group is involved in a number of other
environmental initiatives,

Group subsidiary Gul Watersports has teamed
up with the Big Blue Ocean Cleanup (BBOC)
to be its official partner for the next 3 years,
The BBOC mission is ta drive positive change
towerds clean oceans that support all marine
wildlife and ‘sustainable living.

The Eco boat operated by BBOC will be
conducting one of the biggest microplastic
surveys in the world by collecting vital
microplastic data using manta nets. The
open-source data collected will be available ta
Governments and groups across the world to
use for policy change, The team will also rescue
marine animals that hove become trapped in
poliution.

Another huge part of BBOC's work is beach and
river clean ups. It provides equipment to help
volunteers clear beaches and rivers around the
world.

For Earth Day 2021, we partnered with Trees for
Cities to support its work planting trees in urban
communities and promote the health benefits
of spending time outdoors,

Frasers' donation allowed it to plant 3,500 trees
on our behalf and supported work to improve
air quality in school playgrounds, as well as
teaching children to grow vegetables whilst
learning about where their food comes from,
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GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND
ENERGY CONSUMPTION :

HEPORTING PERIOD 1 Moy 2020 to 3 Apnt 2021

MaSELINE YEA Y0
COMIBUBATION ot

10l cantral, were included. Enesions from oif o wng and
n. These ara expacted ta be @ neghgible percentags of scope 1

All e 1 and facibites globolly, aither awned or undar fir:
BGUNDARY SUMMARY reftigargtion units are excluded due 1a the cast of data col
emissians

o e gedi to ofign 1o fwancil years, o ad nnd of with
hnanegl performance SECR reporting has been prepared g on annual basis to 30 Aprl 2021 which is chaned with inoncial
yeor of Frasers Group Tha difference m ermissions of thess date ranges s expected to be neghgible

COMSISTENE Y WITH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHISSIOR FAGTOR PATA (3£ GHG ermission lactors cavenng the peried Ady 2019 - July 2076 ke bean used for ol erpiss ons sources
ASSESSMENT The faatprnt 1s din with the Gas (GHG) Protocol ang £nvranmental Reporling Guidelines,
METHODOLOGY ng SECR gudance Scope 1 reportng uses the mosket-hased caleulotion approoch
2 8% of the energy data {KWhi and 2 3% of the ammuons data used 1o prepare these results 1s bosed bn astimotions or
0% Ly 6 thirg-party prewider
INTENSITY RATIO Ermissiang per £m of rovenve
1 Duetothe mpact of Covid-19, the base year chosen or all futuce SECK camparisens 1s FY20 {1st May 2019 to 30t Apr 2020 For the end of Mareh
und all of Aprit 2020, 1hare s naow onalysis o 18 BIMESIIGNS driven by the adh to G RestiiCtions quidange
and pred y the closure of * renoVing Previous Bstwnates

of commercial fuels, using published emission
factors for the Well to Tank (WTT) impoct

and additionafly from metered electricity
consumption and published emissien factors for
the Tronsmission & Distribution {T&D) aspect of
the delivered ut

The Group has engaged « third-party provider
to assess emissions and energy consumption for
the periods reported in these results.

Scope 1 GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with the combustion of fuels and
operation of any facility by the Group. Scope

2 GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with electricity consumption by

the Group, as well as emissions from any
generated electricity. The non-UK emission
factors are those published by \EA and specific
o each country. Scope 3 GHG emissions are
calculated based on the purchased quantities

CO2 equivolent Factors ore used, which ensures
we have reported on all of the emission sources
required under the Companies Act 2006
Regulations. Con~~sumption considers all
Group companies and no adjustments have
been made to comparatives for prior periods
for subsidiaries newly acquired in the period.

The Group's CO2 emissions and supporting metrics are detailed in the following table:

Year FYat FY1o
Stope 1 CO2 emissians (tonnes! REAL F0.987
Stope 2 007 emlsgons [market based] [tonnes) 21420 (AL
Seope 3 GO ermssions ftennes] 5359 1550
Jotal Seope ), 2 ond 3 emwwons itonnas) 45,798 SRbYS
€02 armssians [tennes) ¢ Em turnguer 131 744
COR ermissions vs Turnaver Index (2020 = 100] 56.1 100

65.4% of Scope 1and 2 emissions relate to the UK and UK offshore areas.

The table below shows the Group's energy consumption. Scope 1 consumption relates to the
consumption of fuel and consumption from facilities operated by the Group.
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This excludes consumption fram refrigerants
due to the cost of data coliection, although
this is expected to be negligible in comparison
to the Group's total consumption, Scope 2

consumption is based on the amounts of
electricity purchased through the period, as welf
as heat and steam the Group generates for its
own use.

Year Fr21 Lak. ]
5cape | consumphion (kwhi 55.419.574 101537657
Stope 7 consumpnon (KWt 205,650,446 276,618.584
Total Seope 1 amd 2 cansumptions WMk 301,130,070 177,956,861

The Covid-19 pandemic has brought about significant emission reductions,

The table below shows energy consumption for the UK and UK offshore areas only:

Year LAzl Frao
Scope | consumphion twhl 79,343,651 BOAETTT
Scope 7 consumation (kWh 144,502 624 195,475,523
Texal Scape 1 and 2 consumptions {kWhi 20845275 276143350

Frasers Group is committed to responsible
energy management and sustainability, which &
practises throughout the organisation where it
15 cost effective to do so.

During the reporting year the Group has
implemented the following energy and carbon
efficiencies across the organisation to ensure
that energy consumption and associated
emissions are reduced:

Each Retail site in the UK has been set a
weekly target for consumption. The actual
consumption versus the Target has been
reported on a weekly bosis using the half
hourly data from the previous weelk, in

a lsague table format, Any Retail sites
consuming mere than target have been
contacted and given guidance on actions to
take to bring consumption down. This has
been part of ¢ wider project to influence
behaviour, by communicating the process
of controlling Retail consumption, on a

daily basis. When Frasers Group returns te
"business os wsuol’, there is an indication
and expectation that consumption will have
reduced by 10% due to the actions taken
during the previous 12 months versus the
FY20 baseling;

We continue to upgrade fiucrescent lighting
to LED. Far the Retail sites dlt opportunities
to reptace lighting duting o refit were taken
and the resulting consumption has reduced
by c. 52% for thase sites that have had o full

alTesn

refit of lighting to the latest LED technclogy.

- The number of foce-to-face meetings with
celleagues ond suppliers has reduced
through the increased availability of video
conferencing thereby reducing the amount
of travel and further reducing Frasers Group
carbon footprint.

- We are Implementing mini Buiiding
Management Systems that are highly
flexible based on common industry
standards and provide excellent energy
savings:

- We are using odditional submetering within
sites and properties to imprave real time
energy consumption and promote granular
in-depth review of facility energy doto;

- Heating and Ventilations systems are
undergoing trials that include retrofits to
improve energy sfficiency; and

- We are implementing voltage optimisation
projects that provide cost effective solutions |
and deliver optimised supply voltage.

A number of other energy efficiency medsures
are under consideration for impiementation
during the next reporting yeor
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Environmental Policy

Curing FY21, we defined an environmental
policy for the Group. This sets out our
commitments to;

» have robust and transparent reporting and
governance of environmental issues
*  minimise our carbon dioxide emissicns

*  reduce waste, so we meet our target of zero
waste to landfill by 2025

+  consider the environmental impuact of our
supply chain, and

+  work with partners to enhance
environmental performance.

The policy will be shared with suppliers along
with our regular terms and provided to new
colleagues upon induction.

Our newly formed Steering Group will ensure
the policy is implemented as part of business
as usudl. This will be supported through reguiar
tracking and reporting of targets and with

the engagement of o third party energy and
carben reduction specialist.

The policy is further supparted by our
comritment to initiatives such as WRAF's
"Textiles 2030 which obliges us to measure and
report cur progress annually.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Directors confirm that, during FY21 they

consider they have acted in goed foith, and in

the way that would be most likely to promote

the success of the Group for the benefit of

its members as o whole having regard to the d
stakeholders and matters set out in s172{1)a)-(f) )
of the Companies Act 2006.

This statement sets cut the matters considered
under each subsection of $172(1) (a)-{F) and !
provides cross references to where further
information can be found in the Annual Report.
Details of some key decisions taken have also
been provided.

The Likely € q
The Long Term

Of Any Decision In

The Directors are mindful that any decisions
they make now can, have possible long-
term consequences. The Directars take into
consideration the strategy, purpose, values
and culture when making decisions. During
the year the Directors have made decisions
based on Board papers, presentations from
senior executives, information documents,
and discussions with external advisors.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
the Beard commissioned a report on the
culture of the Greup. The outcome from
this was three key principles, set out below,
which will enhance the Group's journey

in enabling colleagues to implernent the
elevation strategy long term.

- Ownitand back yourself;

« Don't hesitate and act with purpose.

= Think without limits and toke the team
with you;

€. The Interests Of The Company's Employees
Details of initigtives and engagement with

our colleagues is set out in the Our people
report and the Directors’ Report.

Principal Decizion/Steps: During the year
the Group introduced the Fearless 1000

Prnlad on Stenbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Caplured through the Woodland Trust. helpng (0 create aow Botish woodland across the UK

Bonus scheme which was approved by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM and the
Frasers Group Elevation Programme to
attract the best talent to the Group.

The Need To Foster The Company's Business
Relationships With Suppliers, Customers
And Others

Details of the Company's business
relationships with suppliers, customers,
regulators ond lenders are set out in the
Cerporate Governance Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: The Directors have
worked closely with suppliers and banks
during the Covid-19 pandemic to ensure
that the Group remains in the best possible
financial situation. The Elevation No Limits
strategy targets stronger relationships with
key brand partners, and this continues to
be a priority. Enhancements were made

to the retail websites to enhance customer
experience, due to the higher demand

for enline puschases during the Covid-19
pandemic.

The Impact Of The Company's Operations
On The Community And The Environment

The ESG report details of the initiatives we
have undertaken in sustainability ond the
community.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
discounts worth approximatety £25 million
were offered to NHS staff working in our
local communities to recagnise their
contribution in the Covid-19 pandemic. A
network of sustainability champions has
been set up across the business together
with a steering group which sets the ESG
strutegy and monitors progress. The Board
has also adopted an Environmental Policy

" during the year.
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" Weitsining A Reputadion For Hgh O he Compamy e Hember PRINCIPAL RISKS AND :znmw,._.b_z._._mm

Standards Of Business Conduct .

All members of the Company hold ordinary Our Risk Management Framework
Mﬂmﬂ Mﬁww-ﬂwmm%uﬂwﬂwﬂ_ﬂnwﬂMMHMHMM wﬂﬂ-mﬂ"”_w_ﬂ”qmﬂw_wﬂm Mw% “Wm_m_‘ _mn_JMM“n_ The Board has overall responsibility far n.:m effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk management
An external Board evaluation was carried any queries through the Investors Relations and SKSQ_ control. .:.Jmnaw systems gre _Sgaﬂmq_ to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk o.m failing
out during the year covering all aspects email address. Al investor presentotions ore q,o achieve U_q_m_:m.wu objectives, o_._n nrmx provide reasenable but not absolute assurance against the
of Board and committee performance. made available on the Group website for risk of material misstaternent or financial loss.
Recommendations will be reviewed and shareholders to access. The AGM allows an The Audit Committee supports the Board with discharging its responsibilities, under a delegated
appropriate action plans put in place. The opportunity for all sharehelders to attend outhority. The Chief Executive Officer has overall accountability for managing risks in the business,
Non-executive Workforce Director is another and ask questions of the Board. Following and his direct reports are accountable to him for effectively managing those risks within their remits,
method by which we are implementing the lifting of Covid-19 festrictions we intand
good corporate governance. Cally Price to revert to an in-person AGM this year. This The Group's risk management framework comprises a top-down and bottom-up appreach to risk
brings colfeague queries and concerns will allow sharehoiders to meet foce-to-face identification, evaluation and mitigotion. Principal risks are discussed and agreed by executive
directly to the beardroom for action by the with Directors. management through the Compliance & Risk Group and by the Audit Committee on behalf of the
Board. Further details can be found within Beard. The Board and/or its sub-committees discuss each principal risk at leost annually and receive
the Workers Representative Report. Principal Decision/Steps: The re- presentations and detailed risk reporting from risk owners on a cyclical basis. Risk owners re-evaluate
commencement of the share buyback principal risks in advonce of eoch Compliance & Risk Group discussion. Any changes are reported to
Principal Decision/Steps: Aithough an programme has benefited all sharehelders the Audit Committee, as part of our Group Risks Profile reparting.
external review is only required once every by increasing the percentage ownership . . . .
three years, the Board has decided to held by each investor by wmw:e,:m the total nce & .m_mw Group provides nn,v::mnn y between executive Eo:emmBmzn y .
undertake yearly external reviews. External number of outstanckng shares, ies for risk management and internal controls and the oversight roles of the Audit

Committee and the Board. It facilitates cross-functional discussion and collabaration across principal
risk areas and matters of internal contrel, It also facilitetes horizen seanning and emerging risk
discussions, challenges the appropriateness of internal controls and progresses their effectiveness.
The Complicnce & Risk Group's activities are reported formally to the Audit Committee. Our Steering
Groups will also report formaliy to the Compliance & Risk Group, completing our gavernarice
structure.

advisors have been appainted to review the
Group's policies and ensure they reflect best
practice. Further details con be found within .
the External Board Review.
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Our approach to risk management:

RIEK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Bourd | Audit Committen | Sub-cammittaus
Camplioncu & Risk Group
Stanig Groups

THREE LINES MODEL

First line

Second line

Third lina.

Manogamant

RISK
GOVERNANCE

"IN udnd atmuctory,
appetite K rvalustion

MONITORING &
ASSURANCE

COMMUNICATION
& TRAINING

Principal risks are cascaded to operatioral
teams and centrai functions for discussicn and
action on risk mitigations, as part of operational
risk management activity. Operational risk
management facilitates the elevation of -isks
to the Compliance & Risk Group, for cnwiard
reporting to the Audit Committee. We continue
to elevate our operational risk activity as past
of our risk management roadmap for FY22 and
we have put plans in place to focus on this in
the next period.
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Internal Audit

ASSURANCE

During the period, the Audit Committee, on
behalf of the Board, has:

» undertaken a full review of the Group risk
register,

= received reports on the continued
development of the risk management
framework, including risk appetite
parameters and internal controls definitions;
and

= received risk owner presentations, detailed
risk reporting and summary update
reporting on the Group's principal risks
profile, for further discussion and challenge.

The key elements of the Group's internal control
framework are menitored throughout the year
in this way.

Board Review

The work of the Audit Committee and the
internal Audit & Risk team hos been presented
to the Board for discussion. The Board is

- satisfied that the Group's systems of risk

management and internal control {including
financial, operational and compliance contrais)
have operated effectively during the finoncial
period, up to and including the date of this
report, and no significant failings of internal
control were identified during the period.

The Group is committed te continuously
improving its risk management framework and
methodology, in line with regulatory standards
and the Group's elevation strategy.

NeY 1O Cress

Assessment Of Principal Risks

We have carried out a robust assessment of
our principal and emerging risks in the period
and our principal risks profite remained largely
unchanged through the period.

We have continued to respond well to

the challenges presented by the Covid-1%
pandemic. The effects of the pandemic on
econemies and society at lerge have been mare
prominent than expected. Whilst mandated
restrictions are currently easing, travel is
opening up and the vaccination programme

in the UK continues ot pace, new variants
continue to emerge. Uncertainty therefore
remains over the period of time needed to bring
the Covid-19 pundemic under control. As a
result, this risk remains a key focus for us.

During the period, we have continued to
respond to the pandemic by:

= prioritising the safety of our people and
customers;

+ re-aligning our strategic response, to ensure
we are able to serve our customers;

+ evaluating the strength of our business on
all levels; and

+ optimising opportunities for growth and
investment, to ensure we are well placed for
the period of economic recovery.

As a result, our aperating performance has
remained robust. This risk has therefore been
evaluated through the normal course of
reporting and in our viability statement, rather
than through separate risk disclosure in this
period.

Brexit has presented some challenges to the
Group in respect of administratien, planning
and Jogistics, but we do not currently consider
these to be material. Accordingly, our
evaluction of Brexit risk hos reduced since

the prior period, though this remains part of
our ongoing monitoring of brocder global
macreeconomic conditions, events or po
factors. We will continue to monitor the fu
effect of implementing the UK-EU Trade and
Co-operation Agreement and the development
of the trading relationship with the EU.

al
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Environmental, social and governance

{ESG) issues feature more prominently in

our disclosures, Climate and sustainability
risks have remained an integral part of

our commitment to ESG and our business
operations, but have previously been
incorporated inte our broader disclosures

on corporate and social respensibility. With
increasing regulation and in recognition of the
potential significance of this emerging risk to
the Group in the future, we have enhanced cur
reporting and have included this as a separate
principal risk for greater transparency.

The following risks and mitigations are an
extract from our principal risks profile and are
not presented in any order of priority. Principat
risks are those which we consider pose a threat
to our business model, future performance,
prospects or reputation.

Reference To Strategy

Building excellent
relationships with the world's
best brands

Elevation in cur digital

offering

Elevation of our physical
stores

Enablers : Peoplé, Training,
Brand, Communication,
Systems, Automation, Data

Risk Trends

Increasing

Decreasing

t
=3 Unchanged
v
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

The Group continues to deliver its elevation strategy, which focuses on the brands we sell, our digital
offering and our physicat stores. Qur 7 is to become the elevated multi-channel platform for
sports, premiurn and luxury brands.

We continue to deliver well against all aspects of our strategy, duting a challenging operating period.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- Tha Board and seniar ianage ment set and ogree thy Group strutegy ond whidertaks both repukr
tnnual reviews

detailed

- Gur Grovp is diverse
cpportunities ond ch

terms of geography ond preduct and executive monogement 15 able ta respond o stroiegs.

enges with agiity, to maxmise schigvement of aur {rategic ambtions

- W cont avaluste strategic Lrand anqu
nnd attractive locotions ka the store estote

5. to provide product and chocsin With our brusd strotegy
<cftertively and on o timely
baus, or we adopt the
wrong strategy, wiich
wnpacts our long-term
growth, performonceand - O strong Francial cantrals, reporbing uad anolysts ek to optimise resource allscations, maemse profta nd cash
ambrtinn flaw and support efficient ond effectwe strotegic delivary

- Effectve mopagement of cur praperty portiohe suppen s aur elgvaled dirsct on
-~ W¥s monter our perfarmance, murkets and comp:

s on Gn angoing busis

- We perform ongoing ressorch fer maights into consurmer trends

- Ongamng ntemal and external camenanic

vof our stratege direeton Suppatts understanding, engagement and
ellzctive delivery.
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FRASERS GROUP

Thivd-party Brand Relationships, Key Suppliers And Supply Chein Znsen.asn.._

. ,,1|
Key brands, brand suppliers and major manufacturers are central to our business and elevation

strategy. Our strategic acquisitions and business medel aim ta bring attractive brands into the
Group, to support customer demand and choice.

Our supply chain is international and 1s subject to stringent management of supply chain logistics
and working capital, to ensure the flow of product in line with our strategic ambition.

We have continued to strengthen our brand and supplier relationships during the pandemic,
demonstrating the strength of our business model and strategic performance. This alse supports new
product availability, in line with our elevation ambitions.

AISK CONTHOLS AND MI'

- The Group has @ policy of farging rlase long-term commert ul relut ansinps wiich ure undurpnned by oue
commitment to praduct, levahion and custls T R L]

We fal 1o manage and - Tie elevation strotagy kargets Aaeging steanger selationshrss il key brand partners and this 13 on ongang prionty
levsroge our supplhier - Dedicoted relationthip po
ond brand partner engageinent

" " full
elotigasips i = Y Group ubfises twe leading supply chuin camponies to Brocure much al its own-brand products A Graup-owned

prcducts far st b supply Chaim antiky Purther diversibes 1isk
at the nght prce and - Our stock levels supported ow ublity ta trade thiaugh the €owd-19 pa
uned to muec or ongowng supplies, dug to the dept

arel procurement and culimerciol teums suppor bruly ntegruted Supphier

e Ond wa howe conbnued to secure
d breachth af gur commeraal relauanships

aur custainers’ - Suppliers sign-up to the Group's Supphar Monuol which enables us 1o menitor did benchirmark supplier perlomonce
axpectations Falure 10
milgots these <t supply cham network

rteur glev = Our own-hrond mvestment Largars consuinal trends and © s thind ¥ hrands, supp g FansuInar
rgats, performance and choice

lang-term growth -

- Strong sérvice leval agresments ore m pluce, which

IR to support an

cer partnorships ond brgnd collabortions provide spportumties lar own-bri growth

cyle ond
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FRASERS GROUP

Brexit or Glohal Macro-economic Cond tions, Events {Pandemic) Or Political Factors

The global pandemic and Brexit are coe aspects of this risk in the peried under review. We olso
monitor global and national political change on an ongoing basis, for impacts on our strategy and
supplier networks. These are external events and we respond well to these factors we can control.
The strength of our business and our performance enables us to absorb the broader indirect
economic impacts associated with this risk, as we have o proven track record of responding with
agility to prioritise trade and performance and maximise opportunity.

We are committed to escalating our elevation progromme and building on opportunities that
support product and brand availahility through our digital offering and physical stores,

CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

Pandemle:

~ W have wnplernented g leclive response pracedures,

Bonrd oversight and pacrbisation .
- Our munduted safe worbing und oparnting standards priontise collsngus and custamer wellbeing
- We deployed new sufaty requirements quickly, with external validation and engoing evaluahen, rewiew ond
monitoiing,
= We made dn agde swich o lacus on e-cominerce delivery, 0% a result of mandated penods of lockdown
Failure to anticipate, -~ investments n our on-in: copobility and custormer service delivery support our occelerated growth in e-commerca

avoluate or cpprapriotely  _ pirachive supplier and supply chain managemant aptimises warking cupitul and leverages and strangthens our

respond o external events
such as Brexit, or broader
glebal/maocrorcancmic

commercial relatianships

- Eflective managamant o cash flows and committed facilties supports our hgquidity, lang-term viabiity and troding

Treasury, Liquidity And Credit Risks

Short, medium and long-term funding arrangements support our business operations and our ability
to meet our financial obligations and deliver our strategic ambitions.

Funding availability remains a principal risk but the ‘overdil risk level trended downwards towards the
end of the period, based on our trading performonce and strategic delivery through the height of
the pandemic, Whilst revenue has been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and prolonged periods
of mandated store closures, we have increased our e-commerce trade, supporting our liquidity
position. We are alse prioritising renewal of our working capital facility which matures in November
2022, through strong funder dialogue and engagement, supported by the Group's robust business
performance.

Interest rote risks arise on net borrowings. Foreign exchange risk arises from international trading,
future sales and purchases in fereign currency, loans to non-UK subsidiaries and unhedged options
to buy or sell foreign currency. Credit risk arises primarily through our Whoiesale and Licensing
customers and there is some level of counter-party risk exposure, although we de not consider this to
be material.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITHIATIONS

- Our Board reporbing on dsbt, covenants, funding and cash How positons includss stress tasting and extansive
business nisk scenano analysis, including Brext, Covid-19, mandated stara clasures and ralated costs

-canditions, gvents parties support N

[pandemich or politice! - Wa conduct ongaing sceano analysis, wi

factors, may risk the - - Weleveroge appart

achievernent of our

perfarmance targats, Brexin: )

Npact our strtagie .- We carry gut an ongong evalugtion of Brexi nsk impocts with reperting ta the Beard

icection orlonger-term
ar result in lost:

cpporiunities for growth,

imely raporting to management.

et la

wastment, through strang management aversight

- We monttor UK-EU trade relationstuo developments and
Agrement

implementation of the Trade and Comaperation

- Durfocus on transport logistics, new documentaiion requirements and the flow of goods supperts product

ie and pelifical chang

- We ensure ongaing Finarce and Comimeraal evaluation of economic and political change, with semor management
aversight und Board teperting

~  The exscutwe-led Complionce & Hisk Group halds amerging rsks discussins, with oversight reparting ta the Audit
Cormmttaa

Feilure ta appropriately
manag eur lunding and |
Iiquidity positions and
secure gecess o Junding
ket might mpoet

our plans for growth,
ability to manoge our
.trating reguirements,
maet lenger-tarm’

s and tha angoing
v of our business .

he

The Group Traosury lunction manages hquidity, intarast rata and Foreign axchange rieks

Tha Group trassury policy, with Boord oversight, outhnes delegated outhontias lor oparabion, momtonng end
ieporting

We huve g warking copils! lecity avarloble until Novemiser 2032, with ongaing early duttogue ond engagerment with
funders for renewal,

©ngaing menitonng and regorting of going cencern and viability are part of cur stardard sute of mternol and
external reporing

Qur hedging strategy 15 reviewed and approvad annuslly as port of aur treasury gavernance, with hedging aclwity
teported to Board

Investiments of surplus cash, borrowings ond denvative investrnents ure made undar pre-appraved invastment coterla

W uie forward fareign cur

'y contracts to hedga ag Iy proLivtile foradgn currency trading trahsuctions

We have a credit policy In ploce, with requicr monitoring of custorner and counter-party credit risks
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ted on Stembers Mcc“& Recyclerd and Carbor Captwed throuah the Woodland Trust, belping o ciealn

See Note 3 to the Financial Statements for further detail on financial risk management.

e Brtish woodiand across tiie UK
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Customer engagement and retention is vital to cur Group, whether through our physical stores or
online. Harnessing customer value and loyalty across the Group is muiti-faceted but underpinred by
our product offerings, price and service.

We have enhanced our e-commerce offering and significantly improved our customer experience
through our elevation strategy, as well as our customer servica and the underlying piatform for our
digital business.

We continue to strengthen our elevation through our new concept stores and flagship muiti-fascio
offerings.

RisK COMTROLYS AND MITIGATIONS

- Ongong momtoring of customer nughts and feedbuck, ond campetier and market trends, enabies us to respona
Foilure i gntiripate ond and dnve our customes-led strategy
respand to customer
neads or changes In
consumar krends un!
spanding, ar to dnva
et delver customer -
service excellence, may
impack oyr growth, value, -
reputation and strategic
ombiton

- Continued mvastment In oud cLstomar service olfenng, systems and encliles us ta ana
Imprave our custemar axpsrience, bath onling and thiough the gavelapment of cur stare oparating moce, supported
by new ih-stare techaslogy

Wia conbinug ko develop and invast in sur onling oHenng, capacity ond capobility, including our outarmatio
copehibhies and poyment piatferms, for mproved custamer gxperence

Targuted socal media and digital merketing programmes suppart Gur customer groups and bronding

- We use milusncer engngement ta raise brand and product owareness

B ©ngaing enhancemant of aur £56G agendas supports our strategy, with our customer hacus

Legal And Regulatory Complionce

b

The legal and regulatory landscape in which we aperate is constantly changing. Our commitment to

delivering robustly an our obligations is central to our culture and values.

We have increased our assessment of this risk in the period, based on factors which continue
to impact the legal and regulatory landscape in which we operate, We are conservative in our
assessments and are confident in our ability to manage these risks effectively. The trend we
are reporting recognises anticipated changes through our horizon scanning and emerging risks
evaluations, until we have implemented our response plans.

RISK CONTROLY AND MITIGATIONS

- Qur axpanenced ond qualified in-house legal taam prowides Lore services und udvice us well as oversight of new ang
emergny legistotve and regulatory reauiremants,

- Externdl advisers provide Gdditianol services wod waimng in speciohst reos, s required by the husiness ond legal
tearn

may eccur which rasults .
in o legol or regulatory
breach and which
(Mpacts aur busness
financially, commercially

Key fegistobve and requlotory compliance risk areas ore prionbsed and include il Government-munduted

raquiraments in respansa to the Cowd-19 pandem g, the Group’s intellectun| proparty nghis, the Listing Rules, mota

protection and health ond safety -

- QurCode of Conduct supparts our ethrcs, behaviours ond culture, ond sut ragutotory pohews melude. for exarmple,
Apt-Buhery & Corrupticn. Corporate Gifts & Hospitdlity and Cor ts of Intarast

- Wereview the opproach and content of mondatary induction,

all colleagues.

es ond oNgoinyg tranNing OCross relevadnt areas. for

- Areview of our framework kor angoing mondoring of compliance 1s 1n progress

- The Legelteamis a key Lantnbutor and odvisar ko the Camplunca 5 Risk Gravp
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FRASERS GROULP

Technology Capability And Infrastructure Renewal

. -
We operate in a competitive and challenging customer-focused market. Cur systems need to be
at the forefront of customer service excellence and support our end-to-end supply chain logistics.

Available technology is constantly evelving and managing changes and transformation in this
environment is o key focus.

Wa have invested heavily in this period in our automation, plotforms and delivery capabilities, which
support on enhanced onjine and in-store custemer experience, and our business re

Our roadmap includes improved technolegy and information security copabilities, aligned to our
business continuity and IT disaster recovery review, which continues to strengthen our controls.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATION}

- We hove 0 Gronp 1erhnology strategy in place oligred to the Lusiness strategy

- Our foiwand programme of
obility to compate

RTIUCkra Tenew 0Dl

1o Dperita our businesses af

Iy and supponts our
Talure to mumimise
tihe use of our emsting - ow
lagy or o renew
astructure m a

o effective woy
1 our ability to -
keep up with the pace of
chunge and detwer our _
stratege ambrdion

and ds prog SUppOrts Geg and aetwity .

- Investrmants in our orline troding capabibtias, warehouse Mmaagament systanis and in-stare technalogy enhanca the
o-and customer expenance and waprove product aval

Growth of nur expenenced In-hause Technology feam, includway auterrat ires, supported by angoing skils oinng,
helps us 16 keep abreast of einerging technologus and custamer-leadig inwghts
We have an angoing cycte of training programmes o support effactive use of existing technofogres and new

Jies BCrass our b 4 they ore di Q

- Strengthening our iInformetion securty capabiity hos enhanced aur ransfermalicn programene, our stooleg
rechnology delrvery nnd the (obustness of our tecond-hne owersight
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FRASERS GROUP

Cybaer Risks, Data Loss And Data Privacy

I

Attempts to attack or gain unauthorised occess to systems and data are becoming increasingly
sophisticated. Our systems are critical to our operations and trading. We have legal and commercial
obligations to protect the security and privacy of the dota we hold and process.

We combine the continued investment in our digital offering, dutomation and technological change
with the strengthening of our people and in-house capabilities, to deliver on our risk mitigations.

CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

& cyber-ottack may rasult
in data loss andfer dendel
of service, impacl
. aur businass financiolly
through fines and
penalt/es or lost trade, as

We have strategies and policia

i plara o support out |T secunty

g yervice portness, who provide core sarwices beyand our in-house
ity Gelivery, secunty and savings are core dnivers, Our partnars include Micrasolt, as well as other
s for contant delivary network suppert for cut website ond cyber mitigulians

Pratection {ools, including encrypbion, ond datection toois ure in puce to support sttective monitonng and reporting,
antl gre reviewed regulary
We huve &

reed our mformation secunty capabilities and steangthened Bur socand-lina momtarng.
We conduct an anmuu| externul raview of cur cybar postusa and penetrati

testing gctess Groug.
g our data rotection mondate, enhy

well as our ion and
our ahility to opernte.
Failure b adeqguately
protect the data we hold
and process may resylt in
legal er ragulatary breach,
s of trust and finencial

19 aut pokems and piacedyres and ongoing inter
support delivery of our change ond tronsformat

rainng
N programme

help to mitigate data pretectlon und privacy nisks o

We have an onQoing prograrmma of secunty ahd PIVACY MAMIESHAY ACI0ss aur Graup and extended enterprse
Our in-house Legal tearm supports secand-ine mon tonng end rapsrting of legistalive comphance

We maks sngang Ivestinants in dota protechion traming and communications land local legrslative gauivatents in
our avarsens operations|

We routinely oction and retumn Bata Frotection Impact Assessmants

Our policy framewark 15 subject to ongoing review and revsion, with external support and
ugencla

e with our governancy

Benchmark standards torn part of our control impravement actty

Business Continuity M

t And Incident R

t P

Qur Head Office and Distribution Centre at Shirebrook and our e-commerce activity are critical to

our business operations. There is an ongsing ond increasing reliance on the avaiiability of technology-
across our Group. We need the a

ty to respond to incidents effectively and on a timely basis, to

ensure continuity of operations and trade.

RISK

CONTROLS AND MITIGATICHS

Failure ta respond

basis to aperaticnal or
IT incidents or events

lost revenue or have

a reputational Impoct
hosed on our copablity
und communicutians.

15 Canhrmty and IT Disaster Recovery plans ore undergoing review, rewision and testing with extarnol

Our governance strtture supparts agile mordent response, with clear roles, respons

es and raporting ines
Annual extamal tavew end challenge of our processes supporls cur commitment to conhinuous IMprovement
Ongaing traiming supponts good practice and knowladge shanng for cantmuity

Internal and external communications, marketing and PR capabibires are integral ta aur

dant response plons.
Recivery prioftisation of IT systems und precesses torms poert of our busingss simpact analysis review

We have recovery ime targats for both critical and normal servce hunctions

Critical recovery capabibitias align to our nsurance cover, appetite and controls
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tet on Stenbets 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured thiough the Woodl:

Group Entities And Extended Enterprise

Cur Group is complex and extensive and includes oversight of our third-party and extended
enterprise portners and suppliers. We are committed te ensuring we have the right levels of
transparency, consistency and menitoring across cur Group, to enable effective oversight in line with
our values and culture. ’

.

We have an appetite for acquisitions as part of our strategic growth agenda. Our integration
strategy is being formalised and captures lessons learned to support ongoing efficient and effective
acquisition engagement and management.

RISK AND MIT

1 - Fransparency across our Group and extended antarpnse and its changes 1§ an engging prianty, |t 15 subject to regukar
Falura ta ffactraly review and discussion and Forms part of cur sk managument ramewark and reparting

monitar aciivities ucrass - Oversight roles ond responsibiities acrass our Group structure suppart risi-bosed fynctipnol monitorning and

aur Group entities, - assurance

purtners ond suppliers,
wha form part of our
ntended enterprise,

- We mointain strangth in our supply chain managament antt supplier ond portnes relotionships

- Riskand conteals reparting across
procasses kar confirmation of cormp

Group 14 subgct o conhnuous mcluding seif
hce with key pohicws, contrals and other Group requirements

reputetianal or legal - Governance and monutoring are in piaca lor new wwestmunts, acquisitians and opporunites

compflance issues. ~  The Groug Intecnal Audst leom 15 developing third

across the Group.

tonng to support the broadar internal cantrols frurmework

ma

t And Successi

People, Talent M.

Qur business benefits from strength and depth of knowledge, talent and experience, which has

long been pivetal to its success. Retaining and protecting this talent, providing for succession and

an ongeing programme of attracting and developing new talent is core to our people pians and
objectives. .

We have made significant progress in the period in this areg and when new initiatives have time to
embed, we expect to see this risk trend decrease,

RIS CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- Continued developiment of strong traines g and ups prag
pipeting
- We recruit sxternally ta fill copubilty gaps necessary lar our growth and transfarmation

supports our future talent

- We prioctee imtemnal development and promotion wherever possibly and actwvely encourage cross-functional
Failure to attract. retein or pS—

develap talent across our
business and implement
effectiva succassion

- Anew oppraisal systam has been introduced wi
and broudar succussion planming

clear axpectations for petfoinance, spporturmtias lar development

- Asxpillar People Framework supperting performunca and talent recogmiion s now in placs across the Group

- An mternal racrull

mandate operales,

th improvements in onboarding and applicunt tracking
business and strategic
abjectives and the
efficiency of our growth
iranstormat .

- We have crested cone wples and o colleague value props
our pecple, with an alevated ond re-ee

n that share the Group's values and ambitions for
rgised website to uttract talent

- A new recogmibon ond bonus structure has been lounched, recog
adopt our core prnciples

g and rewarding people who are fearless and

~ The Workers' Representative 15 o Board
at the hghest level in aur husiness

Glod who Supparts communication chanhels ond gives bur people o vaice

- We hove o strong strategy | iversity and in: on and people support

ndd Trust, hielping to ereate new Brtish woodland across the UK
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FRASERS GROUP

Viability has been ossessed by performing
sensitivity analysis and stress testing of the
Group's FY22 budget and forecast for the
viahility period prepared by management.
This comprised a recent review by the Board
of a number of scenarios in which the Group's
income statemerit, balance sheet and cash
flow forecasts were stress tested to determine
how much the Group's trade would need to
be affected in order to breach the Group's
covenants (being interest cover and net debt to
EBITDA ratios). These scenarios included:

+ a further decrease in sales of 10%, margin
remaining consistent with original budget
and direct costs falling in line with sales;

« a further decrease in sales and margin of
10%, with no change in direct overheads;

*  moximum breckpeint, being breach of
covenants per the Group’s RCF (Sales
would need to reduce by a further 20%
than ferecast, with no change in direct
overheads) '

The Group's working capital facility is at
£913.5m [FY20: £913.5m) available until
November 2021 and is not secured against any
of the Group's assets. The Group enacted an
extension option for a further year to November
2022 for £847.5m.

The Group has consistently created a strong
free cash flow from underlying trading and
has an appropriate hedging strategy to meet
currency risks. There have been no post
batance sheet changes to liquidity.

The impact on the projected cash flow as a
result of the conservative model has been
reviewed, if required management have a
number of mitigating actions which could be
taken such as putting on held discretionary
spend, liquidating certain assets on the balance
sheet, reduction in labour and marketing costs.

37

Punted on Steinbeis 100°% Rocycled and Carbon Coplured through the Woadland Trust. he

Based on its assessment, the Board has o
reasonable expectation that the Group will

be able to continue operating and be able to
meet its liabilities as they fall due for a period
of approximately three and a half years, to the
end of the expected minimum maturity of new
Group finance arrangements and facilities {the
pericd of the assessment).

The Viability Statement was approved by the
Board on 5 August 2021, and signed en its
behalf by:

Chris Wootton
Chief Financiat Officer
§ August 2021
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THE BOARD

DAVID DALY

Non-Executive Chair, Chair of the Nomination
Committee

Appointed: 2 October 2017

Comimittees: Nomination and Remuneration
Committees

Previous roles:

David held a number of pesitions during

a 3C-year internctional coreer with Nike,
where his primary focus was the business of
football. He started in a sales role in 1986, later
becoming sales director for Nike UK / Ireland.
He retired in 2015 as a Senior Director for
Nike's Club and Federation business, where he
was responsible for the globai merchandising
business for all of Ntke’s leading football clubs.

Present roles:
David is a Non-executive Director

_of Fulham Football Club,

Key skills, experiance and contribution:
David's career at Nike gave him significant
first-hand knowledge of the sporting goods
industry. He has worked in senior roles in
sales, marketing, product development and
general management, giving him a thorough
understanding of consumer trends and
behaviour. He spent 18 years wdrking outside
the UK and this international experience has
proven crucial to the Board. David jeined the
Board in October-2017, allowing him to gain a
sound understanding of the business before
being appointed as Chair in October 2018. His
focus has been on improving best proctices,
corporate governance, promoting diversity
and driving the elevation strategy. He ensures
the Board functions effectively by facilitating
an epen and productive debate and providing
constructive challenge.

vwouadlant auross the UK

MIKE ASHLEY
Chief Executive
Appointed: 1982 (founder)

Pravious roles:

Mike established the business of the Group
on leaving school in 1982 and was the sole
owner until the Group's listing in March 2007
He was Executive Deputy Chair prior to being

appointed Chief Executive in September 2016,

Key skills, axparience ond contribution:

Mike was the founder of the Group and has -
the necessary skills for formulating the vision
and commercial strategy of the Group. With
over 40 years in the sports retail business with
Sports Direct he is invaluable to the Group.
Mike's knowledge and experience in all creas
of retailing, buying, warehcusing and logistics
ensures that he is crucial to the effective and
efficient running of operations. During the
continuing Covid-19 pandemic his decisive

leadership has meant the Group has managed

to come out of this crisis in good health and
will be able to take advantage of future
opportunities.
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CHRIS WOOTTON
Chief Financial Officer
Appointed: 12 September 2019

Previous roles:
Chris worked in the assurance practice at PwC
for much of his accounting career, including
working on large corporates and listed en

Key skills, experience and contribution:

Chris is a Chartered Accountant. After joining
the Group, he quickly understood the business
and progressed rapidly within the Finance
team. He has helped the Group on its elevation
path and significantly improved the Finance
team’s skills, experience and capal
Chris is a key driver of the Group's aecounting
principles, namely being conservative,
consistent and simple.

Chris has had to play a key role as part of the
Lecdership team in the Group’s response to
the Covid-19 pandemic, including stakeholder
management, and cashflow management and
forecasting. :
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CALLY PRICE

Non-Executive Workforce Director and Workers’
Representative

Appointed: 1 January 2019

Previous rofes:

Cally began her career with Frasers Group as
a casual sales assistant in our Sports Direct
Aberdare store in 2007,

Present roles:

the Company’s Workers' Representative and
Manager of the Cardiff St David's Sports Direct
store.

Key skills, experience and contribution:

With over 12 years' experience with Frasers
Group, starting on the shop flocr working under
a zero hours contract, Cally is ideally placed
to ensure that the voice of the workforce is at
the forefront of the Board's discussions and
decision-making. She has current knowledge
of every aspect of the day-te-day running

of aretail outiet and applies this to her
directorship. Cally is committed to ensuring
full transparency across the Group and has
control of the workforce company app and
confidential hotling, taking on the responsibility
of answering every colleague personaliy.

Cally reports to the Board with worker issues
raised ond consistently challenges them

frorm her unigue perspective. Alongside our
colleague development team, Cally has been
comitted to ensuring that the wellbeing of
all Frasers Group colleagues is paramount
during these unprecedented times. Through
our relatibnship with the Retail Trust, Cally has
presented company-wide webinars with trained
mentai health advisors, to offer support and
guidance to our colleagues. When restrictions
have permitted her to da so, Cally also sits
with Senior Management at cur Shirebrook
Head Office twice weekly, ensunng that she is
continuously involved in the ranning of Frasers
Group. Cally has become both the voice and
face of cur people, representing all of gur
colleagues and providing o collective voice
for all.

RICHARD BOTTOMLEY OBE

Senior Independent Non-executive Director,
Chair of the Audit Committes

Appointed: 1 October 2018

Committees: Audit and Nomination
Committees

Previous roles:

Richard has over 25 years' experience working
with listed companies during his time as a
senior partner at KPMG, and he remains a
member of the Audit Committee Institute.

Prior to joining the Board, Richard wos a
Non-executive Director of Newcastée Building
Society, where he chaired the Audit Committee.

Present roles:

Richard is Chair of Trustees of the Greggs plc
1978 Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme.
He is also a Non-executive Director of MSL
Property Care Services Ltd, Marsden Packaging
Limited and Jessgrove Limited.

Key skills, experience and contribution:
Richard has strong experience in corporate -
governance, corporate finance and strategy.
His experience in the audit sector has proven
beneficial. Richard has been influantial in
the recruitment of a Head of Internal Audit,
ensuring that risks are properly assessed and
mitigated.

DAYID BRAYSHAW

Independent N rtive Director, Chair of
the R ioh C itt

Appointed: 8 December 2016

Committees: Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Previous roles:

David is o very experienced senior investment
and commenrcial banker. He has over 30 years'
experience with organisations such as Barclays
Capital, HSBC, Citigroup and Pitkington plc.

Key skills, experisnce ond contribution:

Dovid graduated from Oxford in 1975 with o
Masters of Arts in Chemistry. He has spent

a long career in corporate financing for a
number of major financial institutions, ond
was the Group Treasurer of Pilkington plc.
David spent 15 years at Barclays Capital,
advising FTSE 350 companies on all ‘aspects
of corporate, syndicated, and capital markets
funding, together with interest rote, foreign
exchange and balonce sheet hedging. He has
funded countless public company acquisitions
and remains involved in an advisory role with
several corporates and banks in a private
capacity. He has a proven track record in the
finance and acquisitions sector, providing
sound advice i e with the Group's ¢levation
strategy.
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NICOLA FRAMPTON
Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed: 1 October 2018

Committess: Audit and Remuneration
Committees

Pravious roles:

Prior to joining Doming's Pizza Group, Nicola
was at William Hill from April 2010. She was
Managing Director of its UK Retail division,
working closely with the Board, Exco and
operational management. During her time at
William Hill, Nicola led @ number of successful
major innovation and transformation prajects.
Before switching to an executive management
career, Nicola spent the previous ten years
working in the professional services industry,
most recently as a Director at Deloitte.

Presant roles;

Nicola has spent most of her recent career in
senior exacutive monagement roles and has
recently been appointed to a new position
with Domino's Pizza Group, where she is Chief
Operations Officer,

Koy skills, experience and contribution:

Nicola has extensive experience in risk
management, cssurance and corporate
governance ucross a wide range of industries,
having specialised in these arecs of corporate
activity at both William Hill and prior to hat
whilst at Deloitte. The Board benefits from
Nicela's current retail experience as the serving
Managing Director of a large nen-competing
retail business. Nicola serves as a Trustee . -
Board member on a number of charities and
brings an informed perspective on corparate
responsibility to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Chair's Introduction

As Chair, | am responsible for leading the Board
to make decisions that will benefit the Group
and ultimately its stakeholders. My role is to
ensure that we adhere to high standords of
corporgte governance ond allow the Group

to thrive during these particularly challenging
times. From the downturn of the high street

to the current Covid-19 pandemic, we have
remained resilient and robust in our approach
to corporate governance.

Our Non-executive Directors have a great depth
of experience, remain independent throughout
all discussions and are rigorous in challenging
the Executives in the best interests of the Group.
Our Executive Directors understand the Group's
volues and behaviours, They work tirelessly to
retain and grow sharehaolder value, engage our
workforce and promote the Group's strategy.

The Board and the Audit Committee held
mare meetings than usual during the year, to
ensure that matters crising from the Covid-19
pandemic were dealt with effectively and
promptly. | would like to thank Board members
for their additional time and commitment
throughout this period.

With increasing stakeholder focus and incoming
regulation, we have increased our wark on
improving our envirenmental impact and
sustainability. During the yeor, the Sustainability
Steering Group was formed under the CFO's
leadership. Further details are included in our
ESG report.

Further information regarding our compliance
with the Code can be found in our Corporate
Governance Statement.

David Daly

Non-executive Chair

5 August 2021
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customers and colleagues. The Board also
approved a 50% discount for custemers
employed by the NHS in recognition of their
wark during the pandemic.

Through our digital elevation strategy we

are investing more than £100m to elevate

our proposition across our retail channels.
This investment wil! build on our core digital
feundations and includes initiatives to improve
the online customer experience by careully
targeted investment in platforms that support
customer service, engagement and data. We
are also investing in digital marketing te drive
sales growth.

Suppliers

We aim to forge strong ond transparent
relationships with all of our suppliers, to enable
us to provide customers with excellent products
and to meet the standards that our brand
partners set for their products. The Elevation No
Limits strateqy targets stronger relationships
with key brand partners {including our Strategic
Investments} and this continues to be a priority.
Having worked with Nike for over 30 years, the
Chair is instrumentat in engaging and helping
to maintain our relationship with one of our key
brand partners, Nike.

Dedicated relationship and procuremert and
commercial teams support truly integrated
suppfier engagement. Electronic Data Interface
{EDI) capability also improves cur process
efficiency through the commercial cycle and
enhances supplier engagement, through a
dedicated supplier portal. -

We hove long-standing relotionships wich two
key gateway suppliers, which we use to source
Group own-branded products.

n relation to environmer tal and
ethical considerations can be found witain the
Environment Report.
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Regulotors

The Group maokes every endeavour to comply
with its legal and regulatory obligations, We
regularly licise with HMRC, the FRC and the
FCA in an open and transparent manner. The
Finance team and the Board have established
regular communications with tax authorities
internationally.

DOuring the Covid-19 pandemic, Board members
livised with the Government on a number of
occasions, to clarify the Group's position, for
exarmple, regarding store closures.

Lenders :

Alongside attending all Board meetings, the
CFO is always available to inform the Board
of any updates in relation & financial lenders.
With the assistance of the Finance teom, the
CFO ensures that the Group complies with

the kerms and conditions in its credit facility
agreements. The CFO regularly liaises with the
Chair of the Remuneration Committee and the
Chair of the Audit Committes, to discuss the
Group's financial performance.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, the Board
discussed cash flow forecasts and the
availability of headroom in the RCF. This
uncertain time also led to Board discussions
regarding other financing methods, including
the Covid Commercial Finance Facility,

Our Finance team has engaged with our
lenders during the year. There was a particular
focus during the early pericd of the Covid-19
pandemic in the UK, as management held
regular conference calls with lenders to say
engaged and informed

Community

Details of our engagement with the community
can be found in our ESG report.

Worklorce Concerns

Workforce concerns regarding the business
and its operations are token seriously and we
provide @ number of ways that colleagues con
voice their issues, When issues orise, colleagues
are encouraged to speak to their line managers,
or they can seek advice from the Retail Trust.

If colleagues want to express their concerns
canfidentially or anonymously, they can use the
whistleblowing hatline or "Your Company, Your
Voice'. Cally Price works with colleagues across
the business to resalve issues and she reports
issues to the Board during scheduled meetings.
The Company Secretary is made aware of

all whistie blowing reports and has access to
independent advice as appropriate.

Director Concerns

During the year, no concerns were raised by the
Board regarding the operation of the Board or
the management of the Group,

Conflicts of Interest

Details of procedures regarding Directors”
conflicts of interest, including the Relationship
Agreement with Mike Ashley as the controlling
shoreholder, can be found in the Directors'
Report.

Corporate Governance Policy Review

During the year, external advisors were
appointed to review the Group's governance
policies and ensure they ore documented and
reflect best practice, A review of these tindings
will take place in FY22 once the external review
is completed.

naw Brtsly woodlang across the LK
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Chair

The Chair leads the Board, ensuring
constructive communicatiens between Board
members and that all Directors are able to play
a full part in the Board’s activities. The Chair
sets Board agendas and ensures that Board
meetings are effective and that all Directors
receive accurate, timely and clear informaticen.

The Chair communicates with shareholders
effactively end ensures that the Board
understands the views of major investors. The
Chair also provides advice and support to

both the Executive and Non-executive Board
members. Upon his appeintment, the Chair met
the independence criteria set out in provision 10
of the Corporate Governonce Code.

The Chief Executive

The Chief Executive has a pivotal role in
fermulating and implementing the Group's
strategy. He is responsible for the day-to-day
running of the business, equipping himself with
a team of executives to ensure that the Board's
decisions are implemented. The Chief Executive
is the main paint of communication between
the senior executives and the Non-executive
Directors, and regularly updates the Board on
the Group's trading position.

The Senior Independent Director

Richard Bottomley, OBE, is the Senior
Independent Non-executive Director. He
supports the Chaoir and Non-executive Directors
and is available to ossist shareholders if they
have concerns.
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Role Of The Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors have broad
experience from o wide range of sectors.

Their role is to understand the Group in

its entirety, to constructively challenge

strategy and management performamce,

set executive remuneration ond ensure
appropriate succession planning is in place.
The Mon-executive Directors must also ensure
they are satisfied with the accuracy of financicl
information and that effective risk management
and internal control processes are in piace.

Independence

There are currently three independent
Non-exacutive Directors, as well as o
Non-executive Chair, a"Non-executive
Workforce Director and Workers'
Representative, and two Executive Directors.

All Non-executive Directors, other than the
Non-executive Workforce Director and Workers'
Representative, were considered independent
upon appointment. The Non-executive
Workforce Director and Workers' Representative
is not considered to be independent as she is
employed by the Group.

Delegation of Responsi

The Board has three sub-committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee, The Committees
are governed by Terms of Reference, which
provide details of matters delegated to

them. The Terms of Reference are available

on the Group's website at frasers.group/
financials/corporote-governance. The roles

of the Chairman, Chief Executive and Senior
independent Director are clearly defined

and set out in writing. The role profiles were
reviewed and updated during the year.

REMUNERATION
KEY BOARD AUDIT
. COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES COMMITTEE
Approving budgets External
audit

R tio
Sibrtad Setting the Group's values and standards

policy Finencial .
Approving strategic aims and objectives reporting
Remuneration Approving acquisitions and disposals Internal-.
) . ' audit
schemes Approving the appeintment or removal of - ’
. Board members Risk
management
Service Approving foreign exchange and .
contracts for commaodities transactions above Compliance
a materiol level and fraud

senior executives

,zow.a_zbﬂ_oz COMMITTEE
Composition of the Board

. . . Succession planning

Matters Reserved For The Board

There is a formal schedule of motters that require Board aperoval, as they could have significant
strategic, financial or reputstional impact on the Group. These matters were reviewed and updated
by the Board during the year.

VIORD




Prnied on Steinbes 100% Recyded and Coubon Captured throuah the Woodiand Trast, helping (o create

FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REFORT - 2021

Board Performance

QOn an annual basis the Non-executive
Directors, led by Richard Bottomley, review the
performance of the Chair, taking inte azcount
the views of the Executive Directors. The
outcome of the review is relayed to the Chair,
with constructive comments to improve future
performance. During the period, the Chair.
reviewed the performance of all Nen-executive
Directors, to ensure their performance remains
effective and that they are committed t> and
capable of performing the role. The Chair has
discussed with each Non-executive Director
how they can improve their knowledge,
behaviour and skills, in order to be better
equipped for the role. The performance of the
Executive Directors was also reviewed by the
Chair and the Non-executive Directors and
performance objectives set.

An external review by Belinda Hudson L.mited
was also camried out during the year and this is
discussed within the Board Review repart,

A number of informal meetings also toox
ploce througheut the year between various
Non-executive Directors and the Chair without
the Executive Directors present.

Director Commitment

Prior to accepting Boord pasitions, prosgective
Directors are informed that following incuction,
they are required to dedicate between 15

and 20 days per annum te fulfil the role 2f a
Non-executive Director. Non-executive Directors
are aware that scheduled and unschedu ed
meetings may take place, as well as other
events including site visits, shareholder
meetings and strategy meetings. The tire
commitment specified in Non-executive
Directors’ letters of appointment is regularly
reviewed by the Nomination Committee and
was recently deemed to be appropriate.
Regular training is offered to all Directors

and this is further considered during Director
evaluations.

The Directors are expected to attend all
scheduled Board meetings and are asked to
use best endeavours to attend unscheduied
meetings. To assist with managing their
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commitments, the Non-executive Directors are
given prospective annuct Board colendars early
in the second haif of the preceding year. During
the year, there were five scheduled and seven
unscheduled Board meetings.

Appoint Doc tation

Details of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
and of the Chair's and the Non-executive
Directors” appointment letters, are contained
within the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Copies of service contracts and appointment
letters are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office during normal
business hours and at the Annual General
Meeting. Neither of the Executive Directors held
a directorship of another FTSE 350 company.

Meeting Documentation

A detailed agenda is established for each
scheduled meeting and appropriate
documentaticn is provided to Directors in
advance. Regular Board meeting agenda
items include reports from the Chief Financial
Officer, reports on the performance of the
business and current trading, and specific
proposals where the Board's approval is
sought. The Board monitors and questions
performance and reviews anticipated results.
The Board alsc receives reports from the
Naon-executive Workforce Director and
Workers' Representative, who attends all Beard
meetings.

During Board meetings, presentations are
made on business or strategic issues where
oppropriote, and the Board considers the
Group's strategy at least annually. Minutes of
Committee meetings are circulated to all Board
members for agreement. Copies of analysts’
reports and brokers' notes are also provided

to Directors. Guest attendees ore invited to
present at Board meetings.

FRASERS GRQUP

Board Meeting Attendance

The Board has a formal schedule of regular meetings, where it approves major decisions and uses its
expertise to advise and influence the business, The Board will meet on other occasions os and when
required. .

The Directors' attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the year, and the total number
of meetings that they could have attended, are set out in the table below. Attendance was high for
all Directors, who attended all meetings unless prevented from doing so by a prior commitment,
There was a high number of unscheduled meetings during the year, to discuss the Group's response
to the Covid-19 pandemic and its impact on our colleagues and stores. A number of additional Audit
Committee meetings also took place. A strategy day was held in October.

 Prtish woad

Beard Beard Audit  Ramuneration  Nominotlen
rt Maetings: ety Y
Schuchiled Unscheduled Mastings Mastings Mostings
Mike Aghley /% L1l
Richord Bottormley . 576 5T Be 33
David &/ M ua /3 343
(ond Daly 644 [/id 373 33
Micolo Frumptan- LI i L) 373 343
Chns Waotton L Wi
Cally Poce /6 i
4} Richord wis undble to ottent ane Board meeting which wos seheduled at shart notice, due to being on holdoy

Note A nurnber af Au
rmembers of the Cor
thwsa meetings for

“ommiles, Remunaration Committee and Nomination Con
tees The Boord members concernad ottended these meetings of
ormatian rather than inffuence, ard may nat have ottended far the Ll

etings were aitondsd by Board mirnbers who ware not
ratian of the Cormmttes Chuits Bourd members ottendsd
ration of the meetngs,

and acroess the UK
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Company Secretarial Support

All Directors have access to the advice ond
services of the Company Secretary, ond may
take independent profassional advice at the
Company's expense, subject to prior notification
to the other Non-executive Directors and the
Company Secretary. The compuany secretariaf
team has been strengthened during the year,

to support the Group's expansion and ensure
compliance with increased regulation.

The Company Secretary ensures that the
Company meintains appropriate insurance
cover in respect of its Directors and Officers.
He also advises the Board on corparate
governance matters. During FY21, external
training wos provided to the Board on the
Market Abuse Regulation.

The Group’s Position And Prospacts

preparation of the Annual Repart and
Accounts for FY21, and is in agreement thot
token as a whole, they are fair, balanced and
understandable. We gre confident thot the
Annual Report and Accounts provide sufficient
detail and that our shareholders have been
provided with the necessary infarmation on
the Group's position, performance, business
miodel and strategy, further details of which
can be found in the Strotegic Report, Detailed
information on the Group's financial position
and performance can oise be located in the
Group Financial Statements,

The Covid-19 pandemic and the resulting
clasure of non-essentiel retail stores for much
of the year, has had significant impact on
high-street retailers, including the Group. During
this period the Board has met on a number of
accasions to discuss the impaoct of the Covid-19
pondemic on trading and the Group's leng-term
future. The Covid-19 pandemic is deemed to

be a highly significant issue for the Group. The
Board is confident that the Group has adequate
resource o remain in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and has continued to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements. As a result
of its findings, the Board has adopted a going

a4

concern staterment for FY21, and full details of
this can be found in the Directors’ Report. The
Directors have also assessed the prospects

of the Group aver 3.5 years, the Viability
Staternent can be found at pages 36 to 37.

Risk Mahagement

The Beard's responsihilities and procedures

for managing risk and the supporting systems
of internal contrel are set out in the Principal
Risks and Uncertainties section of the Strategic
Report and further information is included in
the Audit Committee Report

Controls in respect of financiol reperting and
the production of the consolidated financial
statements are wel! established, Group
accounting policies are consistently applied
and review and reconciliation controls cperate
effectively. Standard reporting packages are
used by all Group entities to ensure consistent
and standard information is availabte for

the production of the consclidated financial
statements. The Group Accounting Manual is
under a cycle of ongoing review and forms part
of our internal centrols continuous improvement
activity during FY22.

The Board has carried out a robust assessment
of the Groups’ emerging and principol risks in
the peried and further detaif can be found in
the Strategic Report as noted above.

FRASERS GROUP

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shoreholder

| am pleased to present the report of the Audit
Committee (the Committee) for the 52-week
pericd ended 25 April 2021 The report sets out
the Committee's work and areas of focus during
this unprededented year, which has seen the
global spread of Covid-19 and Government-
mandated Jockdowns impocting all
geographies across our Group. The Committee
has therefore focused on and discussed the
Group's performance, and the mpacts of, and
response to these externaf factors,

We monitored the Group's ongoing viability
and going cancern positions, incorporoting
the impacts of the pandemic and including
the review of key accounting judgements and
estimates. We have kept the Group risk profile
and emerging risks under continued review
and had clear oversight of the activities of
the executive Compliance & Risk Group. We
have also monitored the Group's response to
appartunities and acquisitions, to ensure we
come through the period stronger and on track
to meet our strategic targets on the return to
broader economic recovery.

On behalf of the Beard, the Committee
rmonitors the Group's financial reporting
processes and the integrity of its financial
statements and ensures high standards of
quality and effectiveness in the external audit
process. The Committee also reviews and
monitors the effectiveness of the Group's
systems of risk management and interna!
control, governance and compliance.

We have built a strong and productive working
relotionship with R5M since their agppointment
in 2019 as our External Auditer and we value
the integrity, strength and depth of their audit
and approach.

The Committee hos supported management
with the Group's RCF renewal with potential
new and existing lenders and is comfortable
with the strength of engagement and fihancial
support for the business and its strategic intent.

We have mode strong progress against our
continuous improvement assurance agenda
across governance, risk and control and this
was noted in the Group's external Board
evaluation which s discussed in more detoil
within the External Boord Review report We
also continue to strengthen relationships with
our Big 4 and Top 10 co-source partners. We
have closely monitored the Gevernment's oudit
and governance reform agenda and considered
our approach to readiness as part of our FY21
and FY22 agendos.

The Committee values the ongoing work of the
Group's Retail Support Unit and Digital Risk
teams and continues to seek assurance that
their work remams a strength in our Group. Gur
perfermance as a business hos remained strong -
in these extremely challenging circumstances.

It has been impressive to see the continued
strength and depth of experience across

all our business teams and their ability to
withstand and manage the significant risks that
moteriolised.

Taking its responsibilities as a whole, the
Committee is satisfied that the going concern
basis of accounting is appropriate {see further
detail at pege 64) and that the Groug is viable.
over its assessment period (see page 36).

| would like to take the opporturity to thank all
our colleagues for their valuable commitment,
contributions and support towards our Group
performance.
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Membership

During the year, the Audit Committee
comprised three Non-exeeutive Directors, David
Brayshaw, Nicola Frampton and myself as
Chair. Biographies of each Committee member
are set out in the Directors' profiles on pages 37
to 39 of this Annual Report.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and Senior
Independent Non-executive Director, | am
sckisfied that the Committee’s memberchip
includes Directors with recent and relevant
financial experience and competence ir
accounting, risk management and gove-nance,
ond that the Committee os a whole has
competence relevant to the retail sector in
which the Group operates.

The Commdttee met eight times during the
yeor as we have extended our agenda to
accommodate our assurance requirements.
Non-Committee members of the Board and
the executive mancgement team attenced
Committee meetings at my invitation to
ensure the Committee is kept informed of
important developments in the businass and
the risk and control environment. Attenaance
by members of the executive management
team also helps to reinforce a strong culzure
of risk management within the business.
Nan-Committee members do not participate in
Audit Committee decision making.

QOur External Auditor attended il Comrrittee
meetings during the yaar. The Committes
meets privately with the External Auditor at
least annually. In my capacity as Chair, | have
reguiar meatings with the External Auditar
prior to each Committee meeting during

the audit planning process and as the audit
progresses, to address issues early and to avoid
any surprises. J am also in continuous contact
with the Board Chairman, Chief Executive,
Chief Financial Officer, External Audit Lead
Partner and our Head of Internal Audit &

Risk Management, who has an independent
reporting line to me.
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The Main Responsibilities Of The Audit
Committec

The Committee's main responsibilities, as
delegated by the Board, remained unchanged
during the year and are set out in the
Committea's Terms of Reference. These include
oversight, assessment and review of:

Financial Statements And Reporting:

+ The integrity of the Group's financial
reporting as a whole and any formal
onnouncements relating to the Group's
financial performance, including any
significant judgements contained in them;
and

+ The Group's assessment of its going concern
and longer-term prospects and viability.

Externcl Auditor

+ The effectiveness of the external qudit
process taking into consideration
relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements; and

« Developing and implementing pclicy on the
supply of non-audit services by the External
Auditor and appraving any such work.

k M ment And | 1 Contral

+ The effectiveness of the Group’s internal
financial controis, risk management and
internal control systems, including the
activities of the Internal Audit function,
and driving an agenda of continuous
improvement;

* ldentifying and assessing principal and
emerging risks and risk exposures; and

* The effectiveness of whistleblowing
arrangements,

helping fo Creats new Botsh waodlan

In addition, the Committee:

+ Supports the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for Corporate Governance
Code compiiance;

+ Advises the Board on the outcome of the
external oudit and whether it considers
the Annual Report and Accounts, when
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide information
necessary to shoreholders to assess the
Group's position and performance, business
medel and strategy;

* Makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment or removal
of the External Auditor;

+ Approves the External Auditor's fees and
terms of engagement;

* Maintains strong relationships with the
Board, executive management, the External
Auditor and Internal Audit, in the execution
of their respective respaonsi 5; and

+  Reports to the Board on how the Committee
has discharged its responsibilities during the

year.

Duwring The Period
The Committee focused on a number of
significant areas of internal control {including

financial, operational and compliance controls).
During the pericd, the Committes:

+ Monitored the business response, internat

controls and impact on the Grougp's financial

perfermance and reporting os the Covid-19
pandemic risk materiafised;

« Reviewed the Group's financial statements
and ussessed whether suitable accounting
policies have been adopted and whether
management has made appropriate
estimates and judgements;

« Reviewed the detailed scenarios and

assumnptions behind the going concern basis

of accounting and fonger-term viability;

* Assessed the effectiveness of the external
cudit process and considered the
reappointment of RSM as the External
Auditor for FY22;

s tha LK

Monitored the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control
systems and received detailed reports
ond presentations on principal risks
management;

Continued to support the Finance
leadership and evaluated the strength and
depth of the Finance team;

Reviewedits Terms of Reference; and

Together with the Board, considered the
Committee’s own effectiveness,
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Risk Management And Internal Controls

Infermation on our approach to nisk
management and internal control is set cut

in the risk section of the Strategic Report and
cancluding of our review of these systems is
set out on page 30. Our plans for continuous
improvement of our risk management and
internal control systems remained in place
during the year and establishing a Greup
Internal Audit & Risk Management function has
reinforced our progress. The work of our Retail
Suppoert Unit is central to the Group's systern
of internal control. The Unit provides internal
assurance on the efficacy of controls over our
retail operationat procedures and systems.

In the year, the Committee focused an a
number of significant areas of internal contral,
. including:

= Solvency and liquidity;

« Business continuity, iT disaster recovery and
incident response;

+  Key legislctive and regulatory obligations,
including data protection, pandemic-related
regulation and oversight of Government
pians for audit and governance reform
- strengthening controls over financial
reporting;

«  Cyber risk and data loss prevention,
inciuding strengthening of our information
security capa

- Progress against business and finance
systems transformation; -

= Updates on the governonce policies review
and reporting; '

* Reviewing significant accounting
judgements and estimates;

= The vajuation of assets and stock ond the
calculation of ossociated provisions;

+  The effectiveness of hedge accounting
and the managerment of foreign currency
exposures,;

+  Property and the systems in place te ensure
irmpairments are recognised on a timely
basis;
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+  Clirote risk ond our environmental, social
and governance ogendg, supperting
Taskforce for Climate-related Financial
Disclosures reporting; and

*  The Group’s banking arrangements.

See further at page 39 for the Board's
statement on Corporate Governance.

Audit Quality

The Committee received comprehensive
updates from RSM and the business in response
to outhned reform proposals in the current
Government consultation: restoring trust in
audit and corporate governance.

Building on the three significant reviews in

the last couple of years -the Competition and
Markets Authority {CMA} Market Study, the
Kingman Review and the Brydon Review - the
UK aqudit sector, the qudit profession, audit
regulation, and the quality of the gudit product,
have never been under greater scrutiny.

The Committee will continue to oversee the
development of plons for compliance readiness
in response to the current consultation.

External Auditor

The Committee was pleased to recommend the
reappointment of RSM as Exterrial Auditor for
FY21 following g robust external qudit review of
FY20 The length of tenure of RSM as externcal
auditors is 2 years.

RSM has reported to the Committee that, inits
professional judgment, it is independent within
the meaning of regulatory ofd professional
requirements and the aobjectivity of the qudit
engagement partner and audit staff is not
impaired. The Audit Committee has assessed
the independence if the auditor, ard concurs
with this statement.

The Commiittee evaluates the effectiveness of
the external audit process on an ongoing bosis
and makes recommendations anaually to the
Board on the External Auditor's reappointment.
The External Auditor is then proposed for
reappointment (as applicable} each year at the
AGM,

[y
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In making its recommendations to the Board,

the Committee considers o number of factors

relating to the level of service provided by the
External Auditor, the quaiity of jts work and its
independence. These include:

= The quality and scope of the planning of
the external oudit, including the Externcl
Auditor's assessment of risks and how it
intends to evolve the audit plan to respond
to changes in the business;

= The quality and timeliness of the External
Auditor's reports to the Committee ond the
Board during the year;

+  The level of understanding that the External
Auditor has demonstroted in relation to the
Group’s businesses and the retail sector;

+  The objectivity of the External Auditor's view
on any deficiencies in internal control which
came to its attention during the course of its
audit work, and the rabustness of challenge
and its findings on areas which require
management judgement;

= The contents of any external reports or
regulatory statements published in respect
of the External Auditor; and

+  The nature and scope of nen-audit services
provided by the External Auditor and the
level of fees charged for these services.

We have a stringent policy and approval
process in place in respect of nen-audit
services and our view is to keep this type of
engagement minimal unless in exceptional
but reasonable ¢ircumnstonces, and in ling with
Group policy.

Opinion On The Annual Report And Accounts

The Board has asked the Committee to advise
it on whether the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken os a whole, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's pasition, performance, business medet
and strategy.

The Commiittee has reviewed the process
for preparing this Annual Report in order to
assess whether other information contained
in it is consistent with the Group's financia}
statements for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021, This process has included the following
key elements:

+ Reviewing new reguiations and reporting
requirements with external advisers
to identify additional information ond
disclosures that may be appropriate,

= Preparing o detailed timetable and
allocation of drafting responstbility to
relevant internal teams with review by an
appropriate senior manager;

+  Providing an explanation of the requirement
for the Annual Report ohd Accounts,
taken os o whole, t¢ be fair, balanced and
understandat:le, to those with drafting
responsibility;

= Monitoring the integrity of the financial
statements and other information provided
to shareholders to ensure they represent
a clear and accurate assessment of the
Group's financial position and performancs;

+  Reviewing significant financial reporting
issues and judgements contained in the
financial statements;

+ Review of all sections of the Annual Report
by relevant external advisers;

* Review by the senior manager working
group responsible for the Annual Report
process; and

~  Qverall review of the contents of the Annua)
Report and Financial Statements for the
period under review.

The Committee has advised the Boord that

it considers the Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the year ended 25 April 2021,
when taken as a whele, to be fair, balanced
and understandable and that they provide the
necessary information to assess the Group's
position, performance, business model and
strategy. P
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Significant Financial Reporting lasues

The Committee has considered the following areas of significance during the pericd and held
discussions with management and the External Auditor in reviewing these matters. The Committee is
satisfied with how each of these matters has been discussed and cddressed.

Gowng cancern and vabiity The Audit Committes hets held extensive tulks with manogemant on gong <oncern and wability, and
ittee as a whols has reviewed und challenged manegement analysis and assumphons used
ss assessments. This includes reviewing cash flow forecasts, sensitivity onalysis, hnancs

85 and futute hunding plans W considered areas ol ongong uncedanty in respect of the
pandermic, Braxit and the Lrouder ecanarmic downtum

Whilst the Group's RCF eipnies In November 2022, management and the Comnultes are confident new
hinancirg be grranged with the Group's syndicate of lenders, replaeing the current focliity by the
time It expites. On this bass, the Committee s sabshed that the going concen basis of accounting s
oppropate and the Group 1s wable aver its assessment panod Furthar wlacction & ncluded withn
tha Viobility Stutament an the Directars Raport

Inventory The G has consi the wark on inventory valubion and provis
reviewe | renagerment's methodalogy, The Committae 1s satished the approach is cof
prior period and hos appropnately considered tha impact of the Cod-19 pandemic an the Group's
Inventoly position

IFRS 16 accaunting for leases The Comnutler has Lansidersd all aspects of IFRS1S. accaunting for leases including managsmant's
methadolegy, judgs 5 and plions and the pr n the Fingnonl Statements The
Camunilten s satisfied that monogement's approach is raosonabie

Impuiirment of nght-of-use ossets; propenty, plont  The Comimittes reviewnd (nd cholienged managerment’s impairmant testing inciuding the key

& 8quipment, fraahald gropenty and reloted ossumptions and mathodologies usad The projected cush flows, discaunt rates and thrd-pody

property provisions valuaticns used in the svaluction were cansidered oppropriate within the contaxt of the Cowd 19
pondarue, changes w consurmer bebaviour and econarmic uncertainties

Farward cutrenty contracts The C reviewnd with tha valuation used and
vreounking treatment applied to dervative contracts The Comrmittes ulso review delegated authorties
in place for the execulion of such transactions ond 1s satsfiad thase are opproprate

Accauntug for investments an . - the G considarad W's wark on presentation and clossification nisk, 10
respact of investiment sharehaidings in excess of 20%. This work involves mancgement judgetnent an
whether o not the Group has sigaieant mHueicy over Lhesa entities The Commitlee has discussed
with menagament aud reviewed thair representations in determining significant ifluanca

's work on 1 and nsk
in relation to ossorates, The Committee has similarly discussed with management and teviewed its
- reprasentations in deturmining whetier the Group has control avar ts associates

The Comnmittae 15 sotrslied that mondgement judgements are sppropuale, thot the mvestrment
Mulberry in the peniod has been treated and disclosed approprictely ond thara s otherwise no matenal
chenge from the prior yeor position impacting s concluson

Retaled porties The Cormittae has evolusted the oppropriatanass of reloted-party disclosures through discussions
ing the voluotion of the loan to Four Holdings Limited
and the FY21 payment and approuch Lo provisianng in fespect of MM Prop Consultancy Limited The
Cormrmtler 1t sgtished thol the thsclosures, poyment and approach [0 provisioning ora approphute.

Guvernment suppart {furlough) Tha Graup has raceived Govarnment suppart in the penad in the farm of the Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme based on mondated store closures and the need teo preserve abs. Tha complexits of the
schetna gid the head to snsure camphionce with its legislative ond regulatery fromework have made
this @ key urea of locus during the year and for axtamal audit review The Comfndtae s satsfied, wi
consideiing the work of the intermnal tecms and external adwisers that monagemant hot approprately
occounted for and recognised the Government support recewed and that there 15 no motenol emor in
the processes supporting thesa claims The Conrmitiee olsa noles tha transporancy ond engagement
wath HMRC thioughout this procass

Legal and other provisions and accruals The Corirmittee has iemewsd and discussed with manogemant its judgaments and daterminatians in
respect of lagol provisioning and acerual for tox-reloted matters at the penad and Given tha inherant
levels of uncertainty and estimation i thesa oreas. the Cormimittes has carel e
c s conclusians and raviawed independent thIrd-party repons where ovadoble
As aresult, the Comimittee is sotisfiad the clossification and presentalien of lagal and ether provisiens
are appropriate
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CMA Order 2014 Statement Of Complionce

Frasers Group confirms that it was in compliance with the provisions of The Statutory Audit Services
for Large Companies Market Investigation {Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and
Audit Cornmittee Responsibilities) Order 2014 during the financial period ended 25 Aprit 2021. The
Committee has discussed all the items above in detail with the External Auditor.

Review Of The C ittea’s Effecti

The annual review of the Committee’s effectiveness was included in the externclly facilitated Board
evaluation during the period. The Committee is pleased to see the positive cutcome of that report, as
well as its observations and recommendations.

The Committee has improved its governance ond annual planning cycle in the year and will continue
to build on this in FY22. | menitor and assess the effectiveness of the Committee regularly as Chair
and invite input from the External Auditor on this.

Key Objectives For FY22
The Committee's key objectives for FY22 are:

= Continue to monitor the impacts of the pandemic on our business, its performance, its response
and its financial position;

+  QOversee the development of plans in response to the Government's reform proposals: restoring
trust in audit and corporate governance;

*  Monitor continuous improvement of the Group's systems of risk management and internal contro;

*  Maintain a strong relationship with our External Auditor and engagement on the delivery of a
robust, efficient and effective external audit; and .

« Strengthen assurance activity across the Group based an the three lines model, iaccountability,
actions, assurance),

Richerd Bottomley

Chair of the Audit Committes and .
Senior ind tant Non: tive Direct,

Ll

5 August 2021
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

To meet the Group's needs, the Nomination
Committee must ensure that the Board
remains competent, diverse, well balanced and
equipped to deal with any present or future
issues which may arise. it is also important
that the Nomination Committee both supports
and challenges the decisions of the Executive
Directors, which includes reviewing the Group's
leadership and making recommendations
regarding the appointment of new Directors
and extending the term of office of existing
Diractors, :

Biographical details of each Committee
member dre shown in the Board of Directors’
profiles on pages 37 to 39.

. The Nomination Committee usuolly meets

formally twice a year, although additionat
meetings take place when appropriate. The
Committee formally met three times during
FY21, with all meetings being hetd virtually due
to the Covid-19 pandemic. The Committee
members also had a humber of informal
discussions during the year. All members of
the Nomination Committee are Non-executive
Directors and, with the exception of the Chair,
are considered to be independent.

The Responsibilities OF The Nomination
Committee Include:

+  Reviewing the leadership needs of the
Group, looking at both Directors and senior
management;

* Reviewing the composition, structure and
size of the Board, ond recemmending
adjustments to the Board, having regard to
diversity, skills, knowledge and experience;

* Reviewing the time the Non-executive
Directors are required to spend discharging
their duties;

+  ldentifying and nominating, for the approval
of the Board, candidates to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise;

+ Considering succession planning for
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Directors and senior management,

taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
skills and expertise therefore needed on the
Board;

« Formally documenting the appointment
and re-oppeintment of Directors;

+ Identifying potential candidates for senior
posts, and making recommenddations to the
Board; and

+  Considering the recommendations to
shareholders for re-electing the Directors,
under the annual re-election provisions of
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.

A full list of the Committee's responsibilities
are set out in its Terms of Reference which are
available on the Group Website: www.frasers,

group.

Whet Has The Committee Done During
The Year?

Board Nominations

*  The Committee considered and
recommended to the Board the
reappointment of Cally Price as Non-
executive Workforce Director. In making
this recormmendation, the Committee
recognised the enormous value and
contribution that Cally brings to the Board.
She provides great insight and perspective
on all important issues that affect the
performance of the workforce across the
organisatlon,

+ The Committee considered and
recammended the election or re-election
of all Directors at the AGM, following
consideration of their effectiveness and
commitment.

Compasition of the Bourd

+ The Committee has reviewed the Board's
composition and we cortinue to look to add
talented people to the Board, who will bring
the appropriate skills and experience. The
restrictions as o consequence of Covid-19
leckdowns have slowed the process but we
remain committed to strengthening our
Board. We have agoin spoken to Aud
recruitment which specialises in recruiting
diverse talent and we have alse had
discussions with a number of candidates
with strong experience and a backgreund in
HR. Audeliss has no other connection with
the Company or any of its Directors,

*  In considering new appeintments ta
the Board, the Committee will identify
sutoble candidates to fulfil the skill-sets
required, by taking into account succession
planning and diversity objectives. Members
of the Committee and the exgcutive
management tearn then meet with the
candidate before the Committee considers
recommending the appointment to the
Board.

Bourd Evoluation

«  Belinda Hudson Ltd was engaged
to conduct the FY20 externol Board
evaluation. Due to restrictions caused by
the Covid-19 pandemic this was delayed
until FY21, Neither the Company nor any of
its Directors has any other connection with
Belinda Hudson Ltd. The evaluation was
conducted via one-to-one interviews with
individual Directors and key members of
senior management. This is discussed within
the Board Review report.

1 Parf: A a
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All Board members, both Executive and
Non-Executive, went through an annual
perfarmance review during FY21 and each
Director engaged fully in the process. This
included setting objectives for each individuat. |
led these appraisals, as Chair of the Board and
the Nomination Committee. This process will be
repeated annually. Richard Bottomley, Cheir of
the Audit Committee and Senior Independent
Non-executive Director, led my performance
appraisal and goal setting.
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The Directors will take into account any
development needs identified in their appraisals
and will be chaflenged an how they have token
action against these goals during their next
annual appraisal.

Diversity and Inclusion

The Board reviewed various diversity and
inclusion policies from other companies, to
encble us to benchmark curselves against
industry standards. As a consequence we have
now updated our Board Diversity policy, which
can be found on our website at
https://frasers.group/

The Board has two female Directors,
representing 28% of the Board. There is
cutrently no representation from ethnic minority
backgrounds on the Board, However, we note
the contents of the Hampton Alexander Report
and the Parker Review for FTSE 250 companies
and we are continually seeking to increase
diversity at Board level, as reflected in our
objectives below.

The Group's objectives in relation to Board
diversity and inclusion are;

= To ensure that the Board has an appropricte
mix of skills, experience and knowledge,
to ensure a variety of perspectives are
represented on the Board and enable the
Board to effectively oversee and support the
Group's growth ond management;

»  To rmaintain Board representation from
the workforce, which brings the voice of
colleagues into the boardreom, supports
our strategy of investing in our people and
enables the Board to effectively oversee
and support the Group's growth and
mandgement.

+ Toincreasa female representation on the
Board to 33%, in liné with the Hempton
Alexander target; and

»  To strive to appoeint at lsast ene Director
of colour to the Boord by 2024, as
recommended by the Porker Review.

The Group achieved its Divérsity policy
objective in respect of gender and age, by
having a strong gender belance in senior
management and their direct reports (see
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gender diversity table of page 23, and a varied

_representation of ages in middle and senior

management, When reviewing candidates

wha may become potential Board members,
the Committee has regard to factors including
professicnal experience, skills, education,
gender, ethnicity and background to ensure

a variety of _m.m_.m_umnﬁ?mm are represented at
Board level. As discussad above, we hove been
working with a recruitment agent specialising in
diverse candidates. The Board is conscious that
to successfully deliver the strategic geals of

the business our people, including the Board of
Directors must reflect the diverse cultures and
values of our customer base. ’

The Committee recognises the advantages

of having a diverse team and has therefore
reviewed the composition of the senior
management team, including their direct
reports. A number of senior management
roles were held by women at period end,
including the Head of Internal Audit and Risk
Management and UK Financial Controller. Qur
senior leadership team is 27% female, whilst
the overall UK warkforce is approximately 52%
female,

We were pleased that our most recent Gender
Pay Gap Report showed a reduction in the
median gender pay gap within our largest
relevant subsidiary (SPORTSDIRECT.com Retail
Limited) to 0%. However, we will continuz to
explore ways to address other gender pcy gap
differences within our business.

Further detaiis on diversity and inclusion are set
out in the Our Pecple Report.

Erasers Group Elevation Programme

During FY21, we worked with We are Wiser to
launch the Group's new Elevation Progranme.
This has resulted in the recruitment of a diverse
mix of talent, with the potential to become the
future leaders of the Group.

David Daly

Chair of the Nomination Committee

5 August 21
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EXTERNAL BOARD REVIEW

We recognise that some of the main driving
forces behind the success of Frasers Group

are our Board, Committees and management
teams. To ensure we are getting the best from
our Board, we undertook an independent review
of our Baard and Committee effectiveness. We
hoped that this review would provide insight
and clarity into how our leadership team is
performing, especiaily when benchmarked
against other listed companies, os well as
highlight areas of improvement that would
add value to the Group and ensure we become
market leaders in governance and best
practice,

In January 2020, the Board agreed to engage
Belinda Hudson Limited to undertake a review
of our Board and Committee effectiveness.
Belinda is a recognised expert in enhancing
board effectiveness and has over 15 years'
experience working with Boards, Committees
and directors of FTSE 350 companies. Belinda
Hudson Limited has no other connection with
the Group or any of its Directors,

The Board review was originally due to be
completed prior to the April 2020 financial

year end, However, it was deferred when the
first lockdown was initiated as there was a
strong preference for conducting face to face
interviews, As it become clear that face to face
meetings would not be an option for some
time, it was decided to proceed with remote
meetings early in 2021 to ensure that evaluation
of the Board's performance could be conducted
by the end of the April 201 fincncial year.

Mathodology

Belinda undertook confidential one-to-one
discussions with members of the Board and

a selection of senior management who have
regular interaction with, and suppert the Board
and Committees. She attended the February
2021 Board meeting for observational purposes.
Belinda was given unfettered access to the
previous 12 months' Board and Committee
papers and minutes and governance
docurments to inform her review.
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She compiled a comprehensive report which
covered oll aspects of board and committee
performance. it was broken down into the
following categories:

- Board composition and dynamics
~  The Board's rote

- The Board at werk

- Committees

The report was presented to and discussed with
the Board at the April 2021 Board meeting.

Outcomes

The report highlighted the many strengths of
the Board and Committees and contained.
several recommendations for further
development. The Board accepts the
recommendations and where necessary, is
taking steps to implement them.

Belinda's findings in each section were as
follows:

Board Compasition and Dynamics

The report found that “the Board at Frasers
Group has enjoyed a good period of stability
since the CFC was appointed in September
2019. The Board has strengthened and is
becoming increasingly effective under the
leadership of the current Chair with strong
suppoart from the Senior Independent Director
and others.”

The Board composition benefits significantly
fram the inclusion of a full-time employee

as the Non-executive Workforce Director
and Workers' Representative. It provides the
Beard with *full transparency and visibility on
the perspective of the workforce without any
filters” and very strong insights into workforce
engagement.

Despite some previous investor opposition to
the Chair, the review presented a positive view
of the Chair. He brings mony relevant and
useful strengths and is growing into the rcle
well. Board members and Senior Management
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were unarimous in their agreement thaot he was
an excellent choice for the role. He passesses
“involuable knowledge and experience

relating to the sectof, @cosystem and brand
relationships” and his relationship with the
Chief Executive "is based on openness ond
HONSPOTENCY 0% wel as rutucl trust and
respect. The relationship appears robust 50
that they car chatlenge each other and pandie
disagreement”. The Chair is committed to
developing his skills and addressing the 4aps in
his knowledge.

The overall view of the Senior Independent
Director ond other Non-executive Directors of
the Board was positive. They are all diligent
and focused on acting in the best interests of
the Group. They bring with thern 0 breadth
of knowiedge and experience that they

are willing to share both inside and outside
the boardroom. The Senior Independent
Director plays d very useful role in developing
external relationships through networking and
promating the Group in a pesitive light.

The leadership provided by the Chief

Executive wos described as being inspirational,
honest, transparent and collaborative. The
Chief Executive plays a pivotal role inthe
success of the Group- He adepts a positive

and constructive attitude to the Board ond
welcomes input and chatlenge from the
Non-executive Directors. The review highlighted
the digparity between internally held views of
the Chief Executive and the Chief Executive's
axterncl reputotion. He is taking steps to
remedy the impoct Dis external reputation

has an the Group by stepping back from his
external facing roles - to enable the next
genetation of tatent within the Group to elevate
the external reputation of the Group-

The review has identified some greas of
suggasted development including the
recrutment of a Nom-edecutive Director

with strong isted cornpany experience and
achieving a greater degree of diversity in Board
composition. WWhile the Baard benefits from
good gender diversity, it lacks cge and ethnic
diversity. The Nomination Committes wilk seek
o ddress these issues duting the next financial
year. "
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Despite the chollenges identified, the overall
assessment of the Board's composition, senor
leadership and dynammics was overwhelmingby
positive. Members of the Bogrd and Executive
Committee enjoy positive relationships and
generally engage in positive Board behaviours.

The Board's Role

Board members have @ goad understanding of
the role of the Board, but further development
is needed to ensure that the Board futfils all
aspects of its role and strengthens certain
aspects af the Group's corporate governance.
These issugs are already Seing oddressed

by the Boord fcllowing o report produced by
external advisors.

Belinda nated that the Board offers @ good rmix
of support and ehalienge and odds yalue on
many fronts. The Non-executive Drirectors make
a geed cantribution to the Group in ways that
go beyond the usual rermit of Non-executive
Directors. The introduction of the strategy

day has been very “positive and useful" and
{eaves scope for fucther developmant. The
current oversight that the Board exBreises Gver
the financial and operctional performonee

is sound. Areas where improvements can be
made include stakeholder focus and oversight
of heclth and sofety. Henwener, it has been
highlighted that the Board ook great interest
in the haalth and sofety of the workforce duning
the pandemic.

|t is encouraging that the Board is increasingly
fotusing on people related motters, hos
employed experts to review and develop its
employer value proposition and is octively
pursuing @ strategy of developing o younger
cadre of management to support the
sustainability of the Group. The intention of
commuricating positive culture from the
top appears 10 be offective; as Non-executive
Directogs have made pasitive reports that
“there is a strong senseé of opportunity and
trust enjoyed by employees.” The Board is
also driving the oagenda of increasing diversity
and inclusion throughout the Group with the
CEO and Nen-Executive Warkfarce Director
and Workers' Representative teading the

inttiative. The Board is robust, has influence and

FRASERS GROUP
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communicates @ pasitive culture whilst leaving positive but also robust and challenging.
(aom for further growth and development as

the business Grows. The review has j._m_j__._mﬁnmn the “very positive

and extensive role’ the Remuneraticn
Committee has played in the development of
the Fearless 1000 share phan which secured
strong shareholder support at the October
2020 AGM. The Group is currently mﬂmcq_;.mua_sm
humerous initiatives te overhaul policies and
processes 1o ensure it offers competitive
packagas to employees with strong drive

and suppert from the Comrnittee and input
provided by external yemuneration consultants.

The Board at Werk

The current arrangements for the frequency of
facemal Board mestings have been assessed 0s
appropriote and beneficiol s they meet the
needs of the Non-exgcutive Directors without
placing unnecessary burden on the Executives.
The Tormat of the meetings ks alse been
commended as it gives the members ample
opportunity to interact outside the meetings

and develop their relationships. David Daly

The information provided to the Board is
generally of a good quatity ond is U_‘mumsnmn in
avery open and transparent ranner. However
{mprovernents can be made to the timeliness

in which it is provided. There was concem ghat
the Compary Sacretarial earn was sometimes
overwheimed but this tearn has recently been
strengthened with the recruitment aof two new
hires and is better placed now to provide strong
support to the Board and Committees.

Chair of the MHomination Committes

5 August 2021

Committees

The review of the Committees was equally

encouraging. Although areas of improvement

have been identified for each of the

Cammittees, the averarching conclusian was N
that they are pecoming increasingly effective in

carrying out their functions.

The Audit Committee has become more
ffective under the Jendership of the Chuois,
His beckground as @ partnerina Big Four
accouriting firm means he brings useful and
relevant experience. The Chair's management
of meetings has been commended and

the Caramittes enjoys good support from
monogement.

It has aiso been recognised that the
Committee's oversight of risk governance

fas seen significont mS_!QﬁmBm:nmi:r the
recruitment of the new Head of Internal

Aucit who has made good progress inthe
further development of the risk management
framework and is “bringing increosed rigour to
the work of Invernal Audit.”

The Audit Committee enjoys o relationship with
the External Auditors that is collaborative and .
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

Deaor Shareholder,

As the Chair of the Remuneration Committee
{the "Committee”) | am plecsed to present
our Directors’ Remuneration Report for tie
year ended 25 April 2021. This report is split
into three parts: this Annual Statement, the
Policy Report and the Annual Report on
Remuneration.

Actions Taken In FY21 And Impacts On Poy

A key contest for decisions taken by the
Committee in 2020 was the impact of Cevid-19
on our business. Following the anset of the
Covid-19 pandemic in fate Q12020, the
Committee supported the actions taken by our
Board in relation to pay and wider colleague
welfare. These actions were considered
appropriate to align to the experience and
perspective of our shareholders and other
stakeholders, including our collecgues.

The actions taken included the following:

¢« from May 2020 due to the impact of tie
Covid-19 pandemic, our CFO, tagethe:
with the Chief Commercial Officer and
the Non-executive Directors agreed, ir
order to assist the Company, to mcke the
personal sacrifice of reducing their salary, or
respective fees, to £40,000 per onnum. This
treatment applied until October 2020, at
which time withheld amounts were pa d;

+  colieague welfare was prioritised:

+  from March 2020, we sent home all
colleagues over the age of 60 or thase
with underlying health issues which was
over and above Government guidance
whilst continuing to pay them in ful ;

« in the UK we paid virtually all of cur
contracted colleagues (inciuding “casual
waorkers” | in full during March, April, May
and June 2020 even though our stores
were closed for the vast majority of that
time; and
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« although the business has accessed
Government business-support initiatives,
including furiough and business rotes
relief, we used these programmes in the
way in which we understood these to
be applied, and the consequence has
peen thot there have been no major
redundancy rounds within our business
despite extended lockdown periods.

«  the wider societal contribution of the
business was supported:

+  we offered our fieet of vehicles to the
NHS for transporting vital equipment to
where it was most needed; and

+  we also offered NHS staff discounts on
bikes and sporting goods equipment in
our Evans and Sports Direct stores. On
15 June 2026, in England, we cffered
a 50% discount to all NHS staff in our
Sports Direct stores as a gesture of
goodwill to these fantastic individuals
as our stores re-opened. It was an
overwhelming success with gross sales
of approximately £50m before discount
and approximately £25m after discount.

Against this bockground, we were very pleased
to be able ta launch the new incentive plan
for our colleagues which we are calling the
Fearless 1000 and which was approved by over
99.9% of our shareholders vating at the 2620
AGM. The Fearless 1000 could pay out £100m
in shares if our share price reaches £10 at any .
time during the performonce period. The share
price must stoy above £10 for 30 consecutive

. trading days to trigger the vesting of shares at
the end of the vesting period which could see
10 colleagues receiving shares worth £1m if the
share price is at £10 ot the vesting dates. One
thousand of our Fearless colleagues, who five
and breathe our values, thinking without limits,
not hesitating and owning it, will be eligible to
recejve share bonuses ranging from ESOk sight
up to £1m if the share price is at £10 ot the
vesting dates.

Following the successful launch of the Fearless
1000 plan in October 2020, the UK entered into
lockdown in December 2020 ond a significant
portion of our stores were temporarily closed.
This has the potential to limit our ability to

hit the share price targets that apply to the
plan. We have therefore decided to extend

the performance period for the Fearless 1000
pfan, which will now end in October 2025
{being o total performance period of five years).
As a result of this change, the performance
period for the Fearless 1000 and the proposed
Executive Share Scheme (explained further
below) will be aligned.

In terms of senior executive remuneration in
Yt

+  Mike Ashley has not received any
remuneration from the Company since
before the Public Offering in 2007 and
continues to decline any remuneration in his
role of Chief Executive;

+ s noted above, our CFO's salary was
reduced to the equivalent of £40,000 p.a.
from May 2020 until October 2620 urd

« o LTIP award operated for senior
executives in FY21, and the CFO and other
selected senior execytives were specifically
excluded from participation in the Feariess
1,000 plan.

Against the background of our overall modest
positioning on executive pay and considering
the CFO's exceptional efforts in leading the
company through a period of unprecedented
challenge te produce the resilient performonce
that is detailed elsewhere in this report, the .
Caommittee has decided that itis appropriote
ta award our CFO a bonus of £100,000 for FY
2020/2021 (67% of base salary). In awarding
this bonus, the Committee considered a range
of perfarmance foctors, including Group
financiol performance, progress on strategic
initiatives and personak performance. This
award was poid 05 @ cosh sum.

The Committee exercised what it regards as
normal commercial judgement in respect of
Directors' remuneration throughout the year
{and in all £oses inline with the Company's
Director's remuneration policy).

1ad throuah the Woodland Trust, helpng o create new Brtish woodland across the UK
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There were no other exercises of judgement or
discretion by the Committee save as detailed in
this report.

Revised Remunerction Policy And Operation Of
Pay In Ff21

At the 2021 Annual General Meeting (AGM'} we
are asking shareholders to renew our 3-year
Director's remuneration policy ['policy”) which
was last approved at our AGM in 2018 {98.8%
approvall.

Where any changes have been made to the
2018 policy, these are highlighted in the policy
report section. In particular, we are making
three changes in the operotion of Executive
Director pay.,

CFO's Salary

+  Chris Wootton's salary has been increased
to £250,000 p.a. from st May 2021 [FY21:
£150,000 p.a.).

+  Chris joined the Board of Directors in
September 2019, with this being his first
main Board CFO role ot a listed PLC. Since
that time Chris has grown and developed in
the rale of CFOQ and his strang performance,
Jeadership and contribution to developing
the strategic direction of the business is
considered to merit an appropriate review
of his salary level at this time, now that he
hes been in post for approximately
18 months.

+  As a Committee we are content that even
with this increase the salary level for our
CFO remains amongst the lowest in the
FTSE 250. .
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Boord Succession The extension of the performonce peried Fearless 1000 plan for consistency with the
i ) for the Fearless 1000 plan is seen to benefit Executive Share Scheme with regards to
As a Remuneration Committee we fully support the prospective changes within our Board and senior participants as it provides an additional period potantial acceleration of the vesting and
team mere fully described in the announcement dated 5th August 2021 Although some of these to achieve the £10 share price target given that release of shares if the £15 share price targst for
changes will not become effective until later in the three-year period in which our new policy will the difficulties associcted with the Covid-19 the award to Michae! Murray is achieved.
operate, we already know some of the detail around how we want pay arrangements fer cur new pandemic have impacted the business in the
senior executive team to be aligned to, and support, the growth and elevation strategy which our first year of the Fearless 1,000 plan. | hope that our shareholders remain supportive
Board succession changes will seek to accelerate and deliver. i ' of our approach to executive pay at Frasers
As a Committee, we consider it very important and vote in favour of the resolutions on
Accordingly, where we dre able to do s, in the new policy we have set cut detuils of proposed te align Executive Directors and senior remuneration matters to be tabled at the 2021
incentive arrangements for our Executive Cirectors (hoth current and prospective) and particularly executives to the aspiration of the Feorless AGM.
our new Executive Share Scheme, as described below. Any further details of pay arrangements for 1000, albeit at an enhanced performance .
MMMMwmn:E‘m Director appointments will be a..mn_ommm at the appropriate time when they join the target of £12 or £15 as appropriate. David Brayshaw
New LYIP To Align To Principles OF Fearless 1000 Cheir And Nom-executive Diractor Faes Chair of the Remunaration Committes
. ’ A Although not a matter for the Remuneration 5 August 2021
At our 2021 AGM, we will be seeking shareholders' approval for a new share plan (the "Executive Cammittee [being a matter reserved for the &
Share Scheme'} which seeks te apply many of the principles of the Fearless 1000 to an LTIP Three bl
awards, each subject to a £12 share price target, will be initially made to Chris Wootton (CFO), Sean WMN_M%_”MMMM M_M”J””M_Mﬂmwn%mqummmﬂocﬁ _W_ hﬂ\m DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
Nevitt {Chief Commercial Officer) and David Al-Mudallal [COO). An award, subject ta & £15 shaore Remuneration Committee which has carried POLICY
price target, is also proposed to be made to Michael Murray when, as anticipated, he joins the Board. out a review of the Chair's fees and of the

This report contains the material required

The key terms, and how these compare to the key terms of the Fearless 1000, are summarised below: _ : : .
Y P! Y Non-executive Directors' fees. As a result of thot to be set out as the Directors’ Remuneration

review the Bogrd hos decided to increase fee

EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME FEANLESS 1900 PLAN levels for the Chair and N Five Direct Report for the purposes of Part 4 of The
eve 1=] and on-executlve Uitectors A i .
AWARD LEVELS Thres mital awards ata expected 10 million $heres i total led ® L o Large and Medium-sized Companies and
ta be Mot tothe CFO, Chief 100,000 shures Mgz mu par parsan as detailed on page 58. This is the first increcse Groups [Accounts and Reports) (Amendment!
Commeraal Officer antf CO0 owar 1A for top 10 performers fworth Clmilhaa i mmm to H_Jm n—JQ_ D:Q Zojlﬁxmﬂr—ﬂ-(m DS\WHWOﬁm ﬁ n
1on shares in total {400.000 shores  each for those indnaducls ot £10 per n m: PO In 2 r Regulations 2013, which omended The Large
raxmum e parson) Sl urther abocers since the 1PG in 2007 and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
o 1ep 1 ! g
w;whw_woahmﬂ_u n.ww“ﬂ”_ﬂ_wm Format Of The Repart And Matters To Be {Accounts q:.u mw.o_u;t Regulations 2008 {the
opommimenta he Soerd.cre Approved At Our 2021 AGM DRR Regulations'} .
6,711,409 shares in totl, being o
i At the 2021 AGM, shareholders will be asked to This part of the qmu_o; sets out the Company’s
per shivenarmial solus o thase approve three resolutions related to Directors' proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy
ore: e WO 4 I’ . i .
The value Of emrarcds can b reduced remuneration matters. These resolutions are: s\?n—,,m:_&mnw to shareholder approval, shall
by the volue of salanes paidin tie take binding effect from the date of the 2021
period o vasting *  to apprave the Directors’' Remuneration AGM ond remain valid until the 2024 AGM.
TIMING OF AWARDS Awards to CFO, Chief Commertial  Award penet began tollowng 2020 . o ;
Officer and COO o be made 03 sasn AGM on 7 Octolsr 2020 Policy; M_._m proposed Policy is o.mﬁm_,:n“_:ma by the
ble after 2011 AGM . . .
vt possible ater . to approve the Directors' Remuneration ommittee, ond key proposed changes to
) . .
Award to Michael Murrsy to be made Repart; and elements of the current Directors’ Remuneration
. 6n joirung the Board Policy, which was approved by shareholders
TARGET SHARE PRICE FOR YIITING H@%wﬂwﬁﬂhﬁ mﬂnwnﬁn £10 per share < teintroduce Em new Executive Share ot the 2018 AGM and expires at the 2021 AGM
COO o L15 por shara fpropated Scheme described above. hove been highlighted for ease. As explained
Dword lo Michas| Mutroy The vote to approve the Directors' in the statement from the Chair of the
PERFORMANCE PIRIOD Upto 4 years from AGM 2021 Up to 5 years Irom AGM 2010 . . - .
lextended by 1 yaar due o wmpect ot Remuneration Report is the normal annual Remuneration Committee, the Remuneration
the Cov d-19 pondemich advisory vote on such matters. Committes has decided to introduce a new
POTERTHAL VESTING DATES ” n._om ”_,,“a whmm E.mau; ._Q,_i,.mn V_umqm Esm,“ an._,._wsmﬂ by Dna_aﬂ execyutive share scheme that n:uqunzowm_(_
ctober 2025 awards vest in two Gwarts vest in two euual ] \ . A : h
etnuat ramehas, S0% imtally o tranches, S0% wnitialy ond S0% If approved by cur sharehoiders, the Directors aligns Executive Directors’ interests with
50% 1 year [ater The Comenttee may 1 yeur loter The Committee may Remuneration Policy will apply for o maximum the interests of shoreholders by focusing on
allaw oll awards to vest ear altow ol awards 1o vest eoriy if tfe . N
£15 shore price Larget i as €1 share piice target s ohievad of three yeqrs from the 2021 AGM and will absolute shareholder value, ond intends to
Hawever, shares would normally he Hawever, shunes would narmally be H u H H .
e o o e e replacs the Directors’ Remuneration Policy seek shareholder approval for the Executive
previously approved at the 2018 AGM. Shate Scheme ot the 2021 AGM. Consequential

changes have been made as to reflect the

For completeness, a resoiution will also be changes to the Remuneration Palicy.

proposed at the 2021 AGM to amend the
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FUTURE POLICY TABLE

The table below describes each of the elements of the remuneration package for the

Executive Directors.

OPERATION

MAKIMUM

PERFORMANCE MEASURLS

CHANGES TO POLICY TO BE APPROVED AT
THE 1011 AGM

Base salanes are normally raviewsd aniudlly

Mika Ashlay dues net currently reteive u salury for hrs
rote

Afthough solones for Bxscutive Dinectors [other thun
Mika Ashley, wno doas nok currently recuve o solaryh are
set at levels below the omouats typically paid by simular
wzed compames, the Committea retoins discration to
set salones ot |evals conswaned appropnate for the
busriess, considerig its size and complexity

Mat applicable

Nochanga

The current Executive Duectors do not recaive ity
benahts gther than e coliaague discount, which s aot
available for Mike Ashley

Benehits may be provided in ine with market practice
ta racrult a new Executive Director taking inta account
indidual ciecumstancas Such

banefits muy rcluds relocatich expanses ot tully
detaled n Approach to Recruitment Remunaration’
below)

Although the Rumunerotron Committes hus nat set un
absalute maxmumm level of banshits Exacutive Dwrectars
oy ncaive, the Campony retains discretion to set
benshite at a level which the Rermuneration Committee
considars opproprits agamst the market and to
suppaort the on-going strategy of the Company

Nal opplicahle.

Mo changa

The Exacubtive Directors are entitled to porticpote in o
stokahalder pansion schetne on the some basis as athet
employas .

On roquest this benefit moy ba paid as a salury
supplarmeat i heu of pansion centnbution us necessary

The current moxinum employer contrbution to tha
stakehalder pension scheme s 3%

The Comimittes muy increase amplayer contnbutian
rotes to rellact changes in the aute enrolment employer
contriguhion rates

Mot upplicabla

No change

Exacutive Diractars, cther than Mike Ashley, may ear
o berus Any bonus earned in excess of 100% of salary
waulid be deferred into shares for a period of twe years,
uiless the omount 1o be defetred smount wauld be less
than £10,000 The Cormrmillee alse ratains a discrehan
not to uperate deferal i on exceptional case and
whtere salary pasl i the year was £250,000 of less

Any bonus paid would be subjact te clawback for a
penod of 3 yaars kallowmg its determinctian in the
event of gross misconduct, motanal misstatesment of the
Compony's financiol stotements or corporata faiure

The mourmum bonus that an Executive Grector moy
eurn shall be 200% of solory in respect of any financial
yeor

Any bonus oppartunity shall b assestad ogainst one ar
more melrics determined by the Committes and linked
o the Company's strotegy ond/or the performance

al the Executive Director in rols, with the waighting
hetween tha metrics dutarmined by the Cainmitree

if relevant Banuses will be determined between 0%
and 105% of the maximum opportumty basad on the
Committes's ossessmant of the applicabla metrics

The ennual bonus plen is o discretionory arrangement.
and tha Cofnmitter reteins o standard power ta opply
its judgement to adjust the autcome of tha annwnl bonus
wlan for any perfermance measwra (fram zero to oy
cap} should 1t consider that te be oppropriate,

No change

ELEMENT OF

HEMUNERATION PURPOSE / LINK TO STRATEGY

BARE SALARY Fixed elernent ot 1 e remuneration package, where the
balance of fixed and voriobls remuneration s uligred ta
the cammercial strateay of long prof qrawth
and rellects the Cempany remunaratian plulosopiy ot
geanng reward to serformance with o sharing of risk
betwean Executive Diructors and shureholders

BENEFITS Wilh the excuptior of o 20% tolleogua discount on
products purchase  from the Group's retanl stores, whoch
1s available to Exzuutive Orreclors other than Mike
Ashley, no additiorn| benefits are generolly ovaloble
to Execubive Directars The same level of discount 15

' . avaobla to all collzaguss

RETIREMENT Provide post-emplayment banehts to recrurt und retain

RENSFITS indnerduals of the colibre required for the businass

ANNUAL EOMUS Rewards the Exacut ve Diractor for parformance wiich
supports the Groug's strategy and perfermance in role

LONG TERM INCENTIVES Tonobivate and mncentwise delvery

of sustained perfasmance over the lang term, and
to promote alignmert with shareholders interests,
the Company intend . 1o operate an Executive $hore
Scheme

Executive Diractors, other than Mike Ashlay, may saceiva
awards under the Executive Shara Schame  Awards

may ba grunted as nominal cost options or conditionol
shure owards which vest ko the extent the perlarmance
conditions are sabsfied aver o penad af faur years

The Cormmitter shall have discretion ta redure the
number of Shares subject to an oward granted under
tha Executrve Share Schema Ly an amaunt equal to the
aggregale gross salary receivad by u purtrepant during
tha performance peroo.

Clowkack und malus pravisians apply to uwards granted
under the £xacutive Share Scheme. Any amounts
receved under the Exscubive Shore Scheme may b
subject to tlawback for u penod of 3 years following

the £nd of the performunca penow in the event of Gross
misconduct, material misstatemant of the Company's
financial stutements, corperate failure or teputahonal
darnage

As 15 normol, the Committed retains power 1o setths
awards i Lash in exceptional coses only

For awards with a £15 shore price target, the maxiomum
oppatunity for on Executive Director will be on award
owar up to 6,711,409 shuras

For awards with o £12 share prce target, the maximum

opportunity for an Executrve Director will be on award
ower up to SUDC0D shares,

Awards will vest sublect 16 an chsolute share price
rarget of ether £12 o7 €15 The shore price must he aver
the target lor any periad aof 30 consecutive dealing days
during the four-yeur perlormunce pedod.

The Committes may set additional perfarmanca
canditions an awards undar the Exacutive Shara
Scherne, 4§ it cansiders nppropriate.

Introduction of the Executive Shara Schaime, winch is our
naw long term incentiva plon thut will reward our seniar
executives lar achveving sustainad performance cver the
long term
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The toble below sets out an averview of the approach to remuneration for the Chair ang

. Non-executive Directors.

PURFOSE / LINK To STRATIGY

Chair ond Non-exacutive Director fees

Provide an oppropaate reword to attraet ard
retain Direckors of the calibre requited for the
busmess

practice

APPROACH OF THE COMPANY

The Cormmittes’s Remunerohian Pelicy in respact of the Non-executive Directors is ko poy unnual tees
wiich reflert the responsiy

5 and duties blaced upcn them, while also hoving regard to markat

Non-executve Directars receive o fued annual fee

Man-gzecutive Dirgctars moy ba eligible for benehts suth us the use of setretanal support, travel costs
ar cther benefits that may be appropriate

.The aggregate laes and any benehts of tha Non-exaculive Directors lincluding the Mon-axecyt v

shoreholders to increase this it to £1,500,000 p o 10 aggregate. This 1s 9 fommal cop und does not
ratlact any form of aspirotion

Explonation Of Performance Measures Chosen

Any bonus opportunity would be subject

to performance metrics determined by the
Cammittee and linked to the Company’s
strategy and/or the performance of the
Executive Director in rale. The metrics and
performance against them would be disclosed
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report in which
payment of the bonus was disclosed, or if
later when they were no longer considered
commercially sensitive. Any performance
measure may be varied or substituted by the
Committee if an event occurs which causes
the Committee to determine that it woulg be
appropriate to de so. The rationale for any such
variation or substitution would be given in the
next Directors’ Remunerotion Repert.

The proposed Executive Share Scheme will be
subject to a performance measure determined
by reference to the Company share price as
well as personal perfermance. This metric has
been chosen os it aligns the interest of the
Executive Director with those of shareholders,
The target share price required for vesting

is considered stretching {being either £2 or

£5 above the target for the Fearless 1000
plan} and will therefore reward sustained
performance over the long-term,
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In eddition to the share price perfermance
measure, it is intended that awards under the
Execuytive Share Scheme will be granted subject
to two underpins requiring:

i. satisfactory performance ratings for each
participant; and

ii. onticipated delivery of our elevation
strategy.

The purpose of the underpins is to ensure that
a minimum level of performance is achieved
before an award may vest {in addition to
achievement of the share price performaonce
target). Details of the performance measures
and underpins that apply to each award
granted under the Executive Share Scheme to
an Executive Director will be disclosed in the
appropricte Directors’ Remuneration Report
{subject to considerations of commercial
sensitivity). '

’

P Of Dift In R i
Policy For Other Colleagues.

The Company has @ large number of colleagues
with different responsibilities and differing levels
of senjority. Reward policies for colieagues
other than Executive Directors are determined
by reference to grade, rele, performance and
other relevant factors, The Committes engoges
with the wider workforce on the remuneration
policy through the Non-executive Workforce
Director, whose feedback and views are sought
by the Committee.

The Committee has reviewed the salcries, other
remuneration and other employment conditions
of senior and middle managers throughout

the Group, and has taken them into account in

.considering Executive Directors’ salaries and the

ceeation of new incentive schemes in order to
creqate a sense of common purpose and sharing
of success.

In response to those considerations, the Frasers
All-Emplayee Qmnibus Plan {knewn as “Fearless
1000" was launched following approval by
shareholders ok the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plan is intended to provide a significent
one-off raward for eligible and qualifying
colleogues if a stretching share price growth
target is achieved within a five year period

from the 2020 AGM.}). There ate two related but
distinct parts to the Fearless 1000 as follows:

+ cash bonuses to eligible and qualifying
colleagues in the Company’s group, to
reward them for their loyalty and hard work;
and

« share awards to those 1,000 eligible and
qualifying colleagues in the business who
most demonstrate outstanding service and
performance congistent with the Company's
values.

Further details regarding the Feariess 1000
are provided in the Qur People section of this
Annual Report.

FRASERS GRGUP

Illustrations Of Application Of
Remuneration Policy

The chart below sets out an illusteation of the
poticy far FY22 in line with the future policy
table above. The chart provides an illustration
of the total remunerotion epportunity that
could arise under four different levels of
performance. No chart is included for Mike
Ashley, who does not receive any remuneration
from the Campany. If Michael Murray joins
the Board as anticipated, an updated version
of this disclosure will be provided in the next
Directors’ Remuneration Report following his
appointment.
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Chris Wootton, Chief Financial Officer
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For the purposes of the chart, the following assumptions have been made.
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Maouwarnurn remunerancn

Moximum remunsratron with 50%
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Basa salary of £250,000
An emptoyer pension comtribution af
3% of satary, capped at first £50,000

of salaiy. *

Ko benehts (05 nechenedits ore -
“cutrently prapesed to be pravided 1o
Exacutive Directars i1 FY22 other
n the colleague discount, which,
in the opinion of the Conimittee,
cdnnot b raflected in these charts
as s value dupunds upen the value
of thu Executive Directars purchase)

Ng bonus eamed

Na vesting of shore awards

No bonus sared becguse i the
opinion of tha Committae, the
pertarmance mutrics will be ser

1 ooy bonus eorned would
require the nchievement of stratch
perlormance

No vesting of share awards bat ouse
inthe gpmien of the Committee,

result at stretch performanca

Abonus of 200% ot solory is earned

Caltulated bosed on the volue of
£00.000 shares {maxmum pote:
wasting for an award to the CFO
wrkier Lhe new Execytive Share

) at the end of FY21 [usmg a
avatagel

Abonus of 200% of salary 15 earnud

Colguiated based an the wolug of
$O0,000 shores at the end ot FY21
average) phis S0%
shara prics increase
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Approach To Recruitment Remuneration

When agreeing a remuneration package for the appointment of @ new Executive Director, the
Committee will apply the following principles:

= the package will be sufficient to attract the calibre of Director required to deliver the Company's

strategy,

» the Committee will seek to ensure that no more is paid then is necessary; and

¢+ inthe next Annual Report an remuneration, the Committee will explain to shareholders the
rationale for the arrangements implemented.

The Committee will ordinarily seek to implement the remuneration package in accordance with the
elements referred to in the policy table on pages 53 to 54. Consistent with the DRR Regulations, the
Committee retains discretion to moke appropriate remuneration decisions autside that policy to
meet the individual circumstances of the recruitment, subject to the limits and parameters of this
recruitment remuneration section of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

ELEMEHT APPROACH

Buse sultry and benefits

Typically abrgned with the policy set out In the policy table on page 53, Ir
there s no fornal cap on solan=s n relotion 1o d rec it ment

ne with the DRR Regulations,

Retirement benefits

Aligned with the polcy set aut in the palicy table on puge %3, pension benefits moy be prowdad at
rotes uligned to enplayus levels, although the Commities may provide for such amount to be paid to o
pansion Grrangemant or paid os ¢ supplement to base salory In e of o pension arrangement

Vanohble remuneralran

Any vanohla remuneration grantad Lo o newly oppointed Executive Drecter would be sut
samie M leveds that generally opply wader the Directors’ Ramuneration Policy

to the

The vulue of ony buy-out arrangemants (describad below] does nat count jowands these mogimum
levels The Cornmittea may vary the apphcation of deferral ta any onnunl bonus spwortunty ta rellect
the circurpstances of the recrutment

Compansation or farfeited arrangaments

The Convmittas muy moke awards an unng an external candidate to buy-out 1he remuneration
urrangerments forteited on leaving o pravious employar in daing 50, the Committes wil hove regard to
relevont factars ineluding any parformance conditions attuched ta such amangements fond whether
such conditions wera or wera bkely to ba achreved], the forin of those urrongaments te g cash or
shares) and the timeframe of surh orrangements

uch awards ore excluded Irom the maxsmuem leval of vonable remuneration relerred to above,
mittess intentian s that the value awarcled woutd ba no higher than the expected valus of tie
ted unanyements

It the deporturs veeurs within 12 and 24 months of jaiming, ot

Committee's discrabion.

Reloration rosts

#f rucassury, the Company will Boy apprapiiate relocation costs
hurther twa
15 pend tlran o

the year of appontment and for @
1ol yaurs, as & considess oppropnate. The Committee will seek Lo ansure that no more
recessary

Any share awards referred to in this section

be granted as far as possible under the Company’s

existing share schemas. If necessary and subject, where relevant, to the limits referred to above,
awards may be granted outside existing share plans as permitted under the Listing Rules, which
aliow for the grant of awards to facilitate, in unusual circumstances, the recruitment of an Executive

Director,

Where a position is filled internaily, any on-geing remuneration obligations or outstanding varioble
pay elements shell be allowed to continue according to their subsisting terms or be adjusted to
reflect the new appointment as appropriate.

The remuneration package for ¢ newly appointed Non-executive Director would normally be in

with the pelicy set out in the future policy table above for Non-executive Directors,

ney Br

vwaodland across he UK
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Service Contracts And Policy On Puyments For Loss Of Office

The Company's policy is for Executive Directors to be employed on the terms of service contracts
which may be terminated by either the Company or the Executive Director on the giving of not more
thon 12 months’ notice. All Directors are subject to annual re-election,

Executive Directors

Details of each current service contract are set out below:

UNEXPIRED TERM /
CONTRACT DATE NOTICE PERIOD GOVEIRNING LAW
Mike Ashisy WO2£2007 12 manthe England & Wales
Clhins Wonttan 06/03/2017 & rmanths England & Wows

“the Coinpany mny tetminate Me Ashiays service Cantract by giving € itenths' natice if i f wnable 10 perfofm s duties forf over 120 days in ony
cansecutve 12 maritns

The principles on which the determination of payments for loss of office will be approached are
surnmarised below:

Payment inlieu of natice The Company may tarminote an Executos Director's amplopment walh ihmediote ettect by mukiwg o
Buyment n hew of notice consating of bass satary (out exciuding any bonvs, commissian, benefits o

haliday entitlement) during the notice panad

The Company may eithar ] pay the payment w hew of ponee m o lump sim
the amount in aqual monthk
a reciveed in the event thi

B

Muke Ashley does not raceve Qny sulary O cantfactun ben
prowide for o payment in hew of notice

ks, ind M service COMCE dows not

Annual borus Whether to award o banus i full a1 in part in the event of a termination of amploymant would be

ut the discretion of e Committes oo on indredual boss and dependent on a number of factors,
Ehsding the ¢ircumstances of the Executive Ditctor's deparkurs and s contnttion Lo the business
duning the benus peniad in question Typically bonus amounts wauld only be paid to “gand leovers” und
e pro-rated for time 1n service Lo tarmination and depandent on performance ARy Honus 1 feshect ot
the year of Lemmnation or precering year which would otherwise be deferrad into sheires may be pg
whally in cash at the ¢lection of the Commitiee

Ainy dalermed honus would bypically continug m the evant of termination
causel and be relewsed to the Executve Director at the end of the or
flthough Lhe Committua hos discreton ta reluose the amount soene m opbrog

Executwe Snare Schene 1 un Ex2Culive Directer cetses SmployEnt or resdns duning I8 partarmance pariod
award wilk gunerolly tapse Howevar, if the Excutive Duectar dies or the Committes dat
‘gond leaver then awards are reloined and may vest in the normal caurse sul
randitions Awords wil nonnally be pro-rated by reference 1o the propon
pencd for which the par arlier, unki

he retained by o paticipant, @4Cept n Cses al Miscanduct.

Other payments The Remuneration Committes faserves the nght to mbke additonal exit poyments wher: sucn

ptymants are trade i good faith in dscharge of an xsting legat abligat on for by way of samages for
| or by way of sertlement o compromise af
with the terminanion of a Director's affice or gmployment in oppropriate cifcur
moy olse be made in respect of legal fees and cutplacemert servicas Wera

ddaubt, the policy doas nat include on axphtit cop 5N the cost of Lermnotion paymenty,
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FRASERS GROUP

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors enter into an agreement with the Group for a period of three years,
ather than the Choir whose agreement continues until terminated in accordance with its terms. The
appeintments of the Non-executive Directors may be terminated by either party on one month's
written notice and in accerdance with the Articles of Association of the Cempany. Termination would
be immediate in certain circumstances (including the bankruptcy of the Non-executive Director},

Non-executive Directors {other than the Non-executive Workfarce Director} do not and are not
entitled to participate in any bonus or share scheme. The Non-executive Workforce Director is
entitled to participate in employee bonus ond share schemes for employees, including all-employes
schemes.

The approach to determining Non-executive Directors pay is to benchmark curselves against
other companies/retailers within the FTSE 250. Each yeor the remuneration of oll Directors is put
for shareholder approval at the AGM. Last year, 99.81% of shareholders voted in faveur of the
remuneration report.

Non-executive Directors are subject to confidentiality undertakings without limitation in time,
Non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any compensation on the termingation of their
appointment.

Details of the Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment are set out below:

AND DATE OF

Pasition Datsallvttaral  APPOINTMENT liubinct

the AGM)

Dowid Daly Non-executive Chow 16 July 2030 Ist Ortaober 2023
Dovig Srayshaw Nyt ewarintivg QUrerios 23 Apnl 2020 Jth Dutgmber 2077

Nieol Frampion Nan-pxeculive Dirs tof 105 1cber 2018 40th September 2021

3tith Septernber 2024
St Qcealier 2022

Richard Rottomtey Non-exeeutive

rec lor 1 Getober 2418
6 Detober #020

Cally Prica Non-execubive Duector

Copies of the service contracts of Executive Directors and of the appointment letters of the Chair
and Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection at the Company's registered office during
normal business hours and at the AGM.,

Payments Outside The Policy In This Report

The Committee retains discretion to make any rernuneration payment or payment for loss of office
outside tha pelicy in this report:
+  where the terms of the payment were agreed before the policy came into effect;

= where the terms of the payment were agreed ot a time when the relevant individual was not
a Director of the Company and, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not in
consideration of the individual becoming a Director of the Company; or

+  to satisfy contractual commitments made under legacy remuneration arrangements,

For these purposes, “payments” inciudes the satisfoction of awards of variable remuneration and,
in relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are “agreed” at the time the award is
granted.
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Engagement With Shareholders

The Committee consults major shareholders
and representative groups where appropriate
concerning remuneration matters.

General representations have been received
from investoss regarding overall FTSE
remuneration. The Committee has due regard
to the Investment Association principles, and
is always happy to receive feedback from
shareholders. There have been ne changes

to the Remuneration Policy as a result of
shoreholder engagement.

Collengue Reward

It is worth reminding shareholders that cur UK
colleagues (excluding the £xecutive Directors}
who have participated in our share schemes
have received, subsequent to any IPO bonus
payments, a toto! value of £250m of awards
since their introduction.

In addition to share schemes, the Company
operates other bonus and incentive awards for
its workforce. By way of recent example, in FY21
colleagues in our UK retail operations received
a totai of £5.4m in bonus and incentive awards.
A significant proportion of these other bonus
and incentive awards were paid to our casual
retail workers.

During FY21, the Company launched the
Frasers All-Employee Omnibus Plan {known

as “Fearless 1000") following approval by
shareholders ot the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plan is availeble to all eligible and
qualifying Fraser Group employees {except for
the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Commercial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer and is intended to provide a significant
one-off reward for employees if a stretching
share price growth target is achieved within a
five year period.

There are twe related but distinet parts tc the
Fearless 1000 plan as follows:

* Share awards to these 1,000 eligible and
qualifying employees in the business who
most demonstrate outstanding service and
performance consistent with the Company's
values; and

57

= Cash bonuses to eligible and qualifying
employees in the Company's group, to
reward them for their loyalty and hard work.

A similar incentive plan is also available for our
non-employee Group workers.

As explained in the Committee Chair's letter,
we took the decision to extend the original four
year performance period for the Fearless 1000
plan to up to five years due to continuing UK
lockdowns in FY21. As a result, the performance
periods for the Fearless 1000 plan and the
proposed Executive Share Scheme will each
end in October 2025.

The Remuneration Committee remains
committed to transparent and simple
remuneration for Executive Directors based *
upon reward for significant financial and
personal performance only. The Committee
also remains committed to appropriately
rewarding our large and loyal workforce.

Qur Workforce nominated Director, Cally Price
engages with colleagues through regular and
muiti-channel communication mechanisms.
This enables colleagues to understand the
strategy of the Compaony, the vital role all
colleagues play in contributing to the overall
success of the Group and how this is rewarded
and {6 raise any questions directly with a Baard
member. Cally has been directly invelved in

the review of retai? colleague pay during FY21.
The Committee hos reviewed the sclaries, other
remuneroticn and other employment conditions
of senior and middle managers throughout

the Group, and has taken them intc account in
considering Directors' salaries, The Committee
has considered pay and employment conditions

- of colleagues {other than the Directors) and has

aligned pension contributions and colleague
discounts of the Directors with employees.

Whilst the Company has not directly consulted
with employees on Directors' remuneration, the
views of colleagues can be expressed by the
Workforce Director.

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

This part of the Directors' Remuneration
Report sets out the actual payments made by
the Company to its Directors with respect to
the period ended 25 April 2021 and how our
Directors’ Rermuneration Policy will be applied
in the year commencing 26 Aprit 2021,

implementation of our Remuneration policy
for FY22

The members of the Committee have no
personal financial interest, other than as
shareholders, in the matters to be decided, no
actual or potential conflicts of interest arising
from other Directorships and no day-to-day
operational responsibility within the Company.

‘Base Salary And Fees

Chris Wootton's salary has increased to
£250,000 per annurm, with effect from 1 May
2021 {from £150,000). Whilst the Committee is
aware of sensi ies towards salary increoses
for executive directors generclly, the propesed
salary increase for Chris is considered
appropriate due to his very strong performance
in his role since appointment in September
2019,

Despite this increase, Chris’ base selary wi
remain at a level well below the lower quartile
for @ CFQ in a business of the size and
complexity of the Group.

Mike Ashley does not receive a sclary for his
rola.

Fees for the Chair and Non-executive
Directors are normally reviewed annually.

In respect of fees for FY22, David Daly will
receive an increased annucl fee of £150,000
{from £100,000) for his role as Chair. Richard
Bottomley, David Breyshaw and Nicola
Frampton will each receive a fee of £65,000
{from £50,000} for their roles as Non-executive
Directors. Cally Price will receive a fee

of £20,000 {from £15,000) for her roje as
Non-executive Workforce Director.

Printed on Steinbels 100% Recycled and Carbon Saptured through the Woodland Trust, helping o croale new British woodland across the K

Pension [Audited)

The contribution rate for Chris Wootton will be
3% of salary, capped at first £50,000 of salary,
being the maximum employer contribution
rate available under the Company stakeholder
pensian scheme. No Director participated ina
defined benefit scheme.

Mike Ashley is not e le to receive employer
contributions under the Company stakeholder
pensiaon scheme.

Annual Bonus Scheme

Chris Wootton will be eligible to earn a bonus
in respect of FY22. Any amount earned shall

be determined by reference to one or more
performance metrics determined by the
Committee ond linked to the Company's
strategy and/or Chris Woatton's performance

in role. The Committee will provide appropriate
and relevant levels of retrospective disclosure of
the assessed criteria applied to the FY22 bonus.
Any such bonus shall be of up to 200% of
salary, and any bonus earned in excess of 100%
of salary may be subject to deferral.

Mike Ashley shall not be eligible to earn a
bonus in respect of FY22.

Long Term Incentives

Chris Wootton will be eligible to porticipate
in the new Executive Share Scheme (subject
to shareholder approval of at the 2021 AGM).
He will receive an oward of 600,000 shares,
The award may vest four years after grant,
subject to a stretching absolute share price
performaonce target.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to be granted awards
under the Executive Share Scheme.
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Chris Wootton received a bonus of £100.000 in respect of FY21,
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Single Figure Table (Audited)

The aggregate remuneration provided te individuals who have served as Directers in the period
ended 25 April 2021is set out below, along with the oggregate remuneration provided to individuals
who have served as Directors during the prior financial year.

. Lang-term .
" Sulorlns and Othar Total fixed Total variable
Diastar fom. bonsfits Ropus  ceative  Panslenid} Totel o muneration remunsrution
schamas
FY21 FY20__FY2) FY20 FY2r  FY20 FY FY20 FYp1 FY20 KYZ1 FY20 F¥2t FY20 FY21 Y20
£O00 FQOG $0DG EQDO (O0D €00 FOO0 EDOU £00Q (OO0 00O 000 £000 {000 Egoo  $000
Mika Achlay - - - - - - . - - -
CThns Woottor: 150 88 N - W - - - 1 1w By 18t 85 0o -
lon Kempster A 63 WA S NAA S N - N 1N 64 N/A A4 N
NON-EXECUTIVE OIRFCTORS
Dowid Daly 180 100 - - - - - - 1m0 w1 o - -
Dowid Brayshaw s 50 N - . . . . - 1% 50 51 . -
Micola Frampton 50 s . - - - - - 1 L | Bl
Richord Biotiomisy 50 5o - - - - - - 150 s s 51
Cofly Price 15 10 - - - . - - - - 15 10 15 W - -
TOTAL A8 am - ] - - - T 8 N7 AT 47 4D 0 -
m Chris Waokton's remunaration for F120 os set out in the toble s his rermunerution for the penor frem the date of fis appaintment an {2 Septesher
s
12 Jon Kernpeted's ramunaretion for FY20 gs sat out inthe abow tobly 15 his remunarabion for the pened frarm 29 April 2019 uil 12 Sapternber 2019

when he ceused to fie on Exacutive Duettor No payment was made to Jon followng his resigrotion

Further détails of the Deaus outtum for Chris Woatton far FY 2§ can be found &n poge 45

41 Pensions are provided vio a deflned to the Compary pension schéme see page 571

Further Information On The FY21 Annual Bonus

In awarding this borus, the Committee considered Chris’ strong leadership of the Group through a
very challenging petiod. While no formal criteria were set at the beginning of the year due to the
uncertainties of the Caovid-19 pandemic, the Committee considered the impact of Chris’ contribution
to the financial results detailed in the Financial Review and his persenal ieadership of the Group's
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Payments For Loss Of Office And Payments To Former Directors (Audited}

No payments for loss of office or payments to former Directers were made in FY21
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Statement Of Directors’ Shareholding And Share Interests {Audited)

The beneficial interests of the Directors who served during the year and of their connected persons
in both cases at the beginning of the financia! year, or at the date of appointment if lgter, and ot the
end of the financial year, or at the date of resignaticn if earlier, in the share capital of the Company
are shown below:

Ordinury Shares hald s 28 Ordinary Shorws hald at 23
April 2023 ol Faaddlertha  April 2020 of it norller the

duts o) i date of recignation
BIRECTORS AS AT 25 APRLL 2021
ik Ashley 230000960 230,000,000
Clins Wouttan
Dovid Daly 24203 21.007
Micala Frampton LY 7]
Howd Broyshow 1.1 B
Richard Bottormley 10,0040 0,000

cally Pree .

There has been no change to the interests reported above hetween 25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021
Other thon noted on page 62 the Company did not receive any notifications under DTR 5 between
25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021 )

As at 5 August 2021, neither Chris Wootton nor Mike Ashley participate in any Company share
schemne arrangement. Therefore, there are no outstanding share scheme interests held by any
Director of the Company.

b en s e LK



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2011 FRASERS GROUP

Performance Graph And Table Total Ceo Remuneration And Performance-Related Pay
The following graph shows the Company's performance measured by the Total Shareholder Return The table below shows details of the total remuneration and performance-related pay for the
compared with the performance of the FTSE 100 and FT5E 250 Index (excluding investment trusts). Cornpany's Chief Executive over the last ten financial years.
Executive Show Schame
Totul remmneration a0 % of moximum
——@- Frosers Group pic - -k —  FTSE100  ~——#—— FTSE 250 x investmant Trusts apportunity
FY21 - Mike Ashley N/A
450 FY20 - Mike Ashley N/A
FY19 - Mike Ashley N/
400 FY1B —"Mike Ashley * N/
£¥17 « Mike Ashley' N/
350 F¥17 - [igve Foryey- 62,560 N/A
Y16 - Dove forsey £150,000 N/A
300 FY¥15 - Dave Forsey £150,000 0% "
F¥14 - Dave Forsey [150,000 N/A
750 FY13 - Dave Forsey £150000 N/A
FY12 ~ Dove Farsey F150,000 N/A
200 T - M Mike Ashlay was uppeinted os Chief Executive with effact from 322 Saptembar 2016
12 Dave Forsey resighed with eflect from 22 Supternber 2016, His total remunération 18 RIS reinuneration earned in the period from 2% Apnl 2016 unicl
150 tha dota his resgration toch efect
13 The figuies for FY15 reflect Dava Forsey's dacision on 6 Juhe 2046 to larega r: awnord cver Y million shores wivch would otherwise have besn due to -
100 . vest on 6 Septernber 2017
50 . - : .
Chief Executive To Employee Pay Ratio
0

20M 2082 20m 2016 2018 2076 0% 2078 2015 2090 2021 In line with reporting requirements, the Company is required to disclose ratios which compare

the tokal remuneration of the Chief Executive, to the remuneration of the 25th, 50th and 75th
percentile of the Group's UK employees. The Company has not disclosed these ratios and associated
The Committee considered these os oparopriate indices against which to compare the Company's supperting information on the basis thet Mike Ashley is not remunerated by the Company.,
performance. They are widety acceptec as national measures and include the companies that

investors are likely to consider alternative investments.

Yaurs -
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Relative Importance Of Spend On Pay .-

The table below sets out the Group's distributions to shareholders by way of dividends and share
buybacks, investment (caiculated as set out below) and total Group-wide expenditure on pay for all
colleagues [os reported in the aydited financial statements for FY21 and FY20) and the Company's
share price (calculated as at the close of business on the last day of FY21 and FYZ0).

P2 P R
Tustributions to shorehotders by woy of dwvidend and shore Buybock - £43,800,000 11001%
Imvestrosnt” £231,300,000 £322 600,000 24 1%
Group- wide expendiure on poy lof oll gmployees 3700600 iAT2H00000 143 51%
Share price [peice)™ 515 % 266 12 5%

“Comprises of increuses in werking tapital, aquisitens whd capital expendite in the yaar ls2e Consolidated Cash Flow Statament and note 3 Cush
wiflow from aperating octivitiez) as the Baard balieves these ta be the mast relavant imeasures of the Grewp's INvestrment m butuve growth

*=For these purposes, the shore price far FY2 and the share price for Y20 15 ralculated of the close af business an 23 Apnl 2024 and 34 Aprl 7030
respectwely, bang the last working days prior to the year ends.

Remuneration Commitiee

During FY21, the Remunerotion Committes consisted of David Brayshaw and Nicolo Frampton who
are considered independent and the Chair of the Board, David Daly. The purpose of the Committee,
as previously outlined, is to assist the Boord to ensure that Executive Directors and senior executives
receive appropriate levels of pay and benefits.

Attendance at the meetings held during the year is detoiled on page 43.

The members of the Committee have no personal financial interest, other than as shareholders, in
the matters to be decided, no actual or potential conflicts of interest arising from other Directorships
and no day-to-day operational responsibility within the Company.

Advisers To The Committee

Mike Ashley, the Chief Executive, and Chris Wootton, the Chief Financial Officer, have advised or
materially assisted the Committee throughout FY21 when requested. Executive Directors are not
present during, nor do they take part in, discussions in respect of matters relating directly to their
own remuneration.

During the year, FIT Remuneration Cansultants LLP {"FIT") were appainted as adviser to the
Committee. FIT are a founder member of the Remuneration Censultants’ Group and adhere to its

« code of conduct. Fees totalling £127184 plus VAT have been paid for its services during the year for
the provision of advice to the Committee on various aspects of remuneration including advice on
the remuneration policy end the drafting of the rules of the Feariess 1,000 scheme. The Committee
has reviewed the quality of the advice provided and whether it properly addressed the issues
under consideration and is satisfied that the advice received during the yeor wos objective and
independent. FIT has ne personal connection to the Company or its Directors.

Total Remuneration

The Committee considers that the current remuneration arrangements promote the jong-term
success of the Company within on appropricte risk framework and are suitebly aligned to the

Remuneration Principles

A key priority is to ensure that our
Remuneration Policy is afigned with strategy

to achieve the long-term success of the Group.
The Committee ensures that it complies with
the requirements of regulatory and governance

- bodies including, but hot limited to, the UK

Carporate Governance Code (" the Code’),
whilst meeting stakeholder, shareholder and
warkforce expectations,

The Remuneration Committee and Board
remain committed to a fully transparent and
simple Remuneration Policy that is oligned
with the interests of all its shareholders. In the
operations of the Remuneration Committee we
reiterate our commitment to the following key
principles:

- G : We provide open and transparent

disclosures regarding our executive
remuneration.

»  Simplicity: Our Remuneration Pahcy for
our Executive Directors is straightforward
and understood by both Directors and
shareholders.

+  Predictability: Most components of Director
remuneration are either fixed ar subject to
individual caps set by reference to base
salary. Through the use of o share price
measure under the Executive Share Scheme,
performance sutcomes are predictable
and highly aligned te the experience of our
shareholders.

+  Proportionality: Our Executive Director
salaries are amongst the lowest in the FTSE
250. Variable pay awards are ‘at-risk’ and
linked to delivery of our strategy ond long-
term performance, to ensure that poor
performance is not rewarded.

+ Risks and behaviours: We ensure that
in our operations we identify and
mitigate reputational risks arising from
our remuneration arrangements and
behavioural risks related to incentive

Raspaonsibilities Of The Commiittee

Determining the Company's policy on
Executive Directar's remuneration, including
the design of bonus schemes and targets,
share schemes when appropriate, together
with payments under them;

Determining the level of remuneration of the
Chair and each of the Executive Directors;

Setting the remuneration for the first layer
of management below the Board levef,
including the Company Secretary,

Monitoring the remuneration of
senior managerneant and making
recommendations in that respect;

Agreeing any compensation for loss of
office of any Executive Director; and
Ensuring that the Company's Remuneration

Pglicy remains fit for purpose and takes
note of any new regulatory requirements,

‘What Has The Committee Done During The
Yeur?

Reviewed and approved amendments to the
Company's Remuneration Policy;

Reviewed and approved the Directors’
Remuneration Report for FY21;

Reviewed Executive Directors' ond senior
executives’ pay (including actions taken
in respense to the impact of the Covid-19
pandernic);

Considered shareholder feedback regarding
remuneration policy and implementotion;

Censidered and opproved the cppointment
of independent remuneration consultants;

Agreed the introduction of the Fearless
1,000 scheme;
Reviewed gender pay gop reporting; and

Monitored developments in governonce
and reporting requirements, relating to
remuneration.

Printed on Steinbeis 100°%% Recycled and Catbon Caplurad throw b the Wooad

Company’s objective of delivering long term sustainable growth in Total Sharehalder Returns given
bonuses are discretionary,
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i Trist, h

targets.

Alignment to culture: Increases to pay

and bonuses are only awarded where the
Executive Director demonstrates high level
behaviours and performance consistent
with Company purpase, values and strateqgy.

A0S LR

The Remuneration Committee meets several
times a year, with 3 formal meetings and o
number of ad hoc meetings held in FY21.
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Sharcholder Voting DIRECTORS' zmvow._.

The following table sets out actual voting in respect of the resolution to approve the Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year ended 26 April 2020 at the 2020 AGM and the resolution to

The Directors of Fi G | t thei Results For The Period And Dividend
approve the Directors' Remuneration Policy at the 2018 AGM. e eI AP PE Present el andtator eriof Andlividends

Prnted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled

Annual Report and Accounts for the period
ended 25 April 2021. The Group's Corporate
Governance Statement forms part of the

Revenue for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 |
was £3,625.3m and profit before tax was £8.5m
compared with £3,957.4m revenue and £143.5m

Vatesfor W fer Directars' Report. ) . g - !
Durectors' Rermunerabien Repost lar the yaar anded 36 Apri 24020 463,415,430 95 B1 profit before tax in the prior period. The trading
- — Principal Activities And Business Review results for the period and the Group's financial
Aﬂmﬁ“ H._H._,_n_a 442547085 8.4 1 ) o . position as at the end of the year are shown
Directars' Remuneration Policy 464243587 9999 j._m.nr_m‘ﬁ mwmn:ﬁEm s _u.mvo_.n n_,._n_ Business in the attached financial statements and
[vote to armend at 2020 AGM In respect of Fenrtess 1000} 243, Review provides a detaited review of the discussed further in the Chief Executive's Report
Group's current activities ,.u_._n_ uo_“m_._ﬁ_n._ future and Business Review and in the Financial
David Brayshaw developments together with matters likely to Review on pages 19 to 21,
affect future development, performance and -
Chair of the R ation € ittee on Behalf of the Board conditiens. Principal risks and uncertainties The Beard has decided not to propose a final
5 August 2021 ] likely to affect the Group are set aut within the dividend in relation to FY21 [FY20: nil). The
Principal Risks and Uncertainties section. The Board remains of the opinion that it is in the
financial position of the Group, its cash flow, best interests of the Group and its shareholders
licuidlity position and borrowing facilities are to preserve financial flexibility, facilitating future
described in the Financicl Review. The Strategic investments and other growth opportunities, *
. Report covers environmental matters, including The current situation in refotion to the Covid-19
the impact of the Group's businesses on the pandemic has resulted in a number of retailers
environment, the Group's werkforce, customers, finding themselves in extreme financial
suppliers and on community engagement. difficulties. We therefore currently feel that
. aying a final dividend at this uncertain time
,;m. principal activities of the Group during the ﬂoﬂ.h_amvm inappropriate when facing such an
period were: . unknown future. The payment of dividends
+  retailing of sperts and leisure clothing, remains under review.
footwear and equipment, lifestyle and Share Capital And Control
luxury apparel;
+ retailing through department stores, shops As ﬂ 5 August 2021, n:..w:w are mno‘mcm‘umw,
and aniine: ordinary shares of 10p in issue and fully paid,
' of which 127,380,137 were held in treasury. As at
+ wholesale distribution and sale of sports the period end there were 121,260,175 ordinary
and leisure clothing, feotwear and shares held in treasury.
equipment, lifestyle and luxury apparel
under Group-owned or licensed brands; cnd Further information regarding the Group's
. i issued share capital con be found in note 24, °
« licensing of Group brands. Details of our share schemes are also set out in
Frasers Group ple, through various subsidiaries, note 24,
has established branches in @ number of . _ .
different countries in which the business There are no specific restrictions on the transfer
of shares, which are governed both by the
operates. L ‘ .
generol provisions of the Articles of Association
Further information on the Group's principal and prevailing legislation. The Directors are
activities is set out at the front of this document not aware of any agreements between holders
and in the Chief Executive’s Report and of the Company's shares that may result in
Business Review. restrictions on the transfer of securities or on
voting rights.
61
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to maintain 900d Covid-tg Practices ot g
warehouge, offices ang steres gng has glse

There gre Vorioys incentives ovoiloble 1o gy,
retait colleagyes, These | Neentivas incluge our §
Star 00335»3: mnrm..:m. Turnover Borys, PBT
Bonus, Stockiqke Bonus gng other COMmissinn
schemes, These schemes Vary between fascigs,
Retgil colfeagyes | including Casual workers) ore
also eligible to paiticingte i the Fearlass 1060
benys scheme,

\

Diversity gng Equal Opportunities
The Group's recruitmeny Palicy is to match the .in=stgre,

The Group endeavours tg mMeet jtg
responsibifities towards the training ang
employment of disabled People, oy te,
ensure thot training, coragy development ond
Ptemation OPPorturities are avuilable tg qif,

The Group designs some m.oﬂr_.:m ond footwegr
for ayr n-house brangs for sate in stores,
Externat brands qre Purchased frapm, »?.E_.Uan

suppliers Cithough we dg WOrk with ther, to
Ugree on the specific pieces whlich wea salt

Charitable And Politica) Ponatign,

U_.:._.sm_ the yeor, the Groug made choritoble
donations of £3k {2020: ¢ 13k} in the UK, Mo
political donationg Were made {2020: nif}.
Further information ©n our chewjtgh)e donations
and Soemmuynity initiatives con be found i the
£5G Report,

Details of Current _u.Swnmoa. dates of
Oppointment, their roles, responsibilitigs ond
significant externg) CoOmmitments are setout an

Pages 37 tq 39, The membership of the Boarg
of Directory has remaingy the same throughoyus

Although the Company's Articies of Assotiation

of each AGM all of the Directors will retjre and
stand for reappointment,

Information on service Contracts ang details of
the interests of the Directars and thejp Persons
closely as5ocigted {PCAs) in the share capital
of the ﬁo..:.aag at 25 Aprjf 2027, and ot the
date of thig Report, is shown in the Directors’
nmicamﬂaqo: Repart,

Copies of the Service contraets of Execitive
Directpre and of the abpointment letters of the
Chair ang Zo:-mxmncrem Directors grg Gvailghla
for Inspection at the 003bo:<_m registereg
office during norma! businass hours and o the

Further inforrnatiar, on our GPRroach to AGM,
VeTsity can be found in the Qur Peopie repart No Director has o n_:mnno..m:_v N common or
Busingss x!_nagn_...n- other significant links witp, any other Disectoy

The Directeys <onfirm thay

* so'forps &ach Director js ware, there j5
no rejevant Qudfit _J_qou:o:.o: of which the

ﬂoz.ﬁ_u..;.. s auditors gre Unaware: ang

Printod on Stembes 1009, Reeyclen anel Carban Capturag through te Woodlang Trust, Relping 1o Bleate Now FGyg), Waodiang ACross e (o

T..a.»mmzm GROoyP

e S e TP

*  the Directors hove token off steps thoe they
ought to have taken to make themseivas
dware of any relevant audit information and
o establish that the ouditors gre aware of
that informatijon,

Diroctory’ Conflicts o Intorest

The Board hay formal procedures to deat with
Directory: conflicts of interest. Thy ppointment

During the Period neither the Chair or the
no_.:vo:< memS? WEre aware of any

Farthas APpintments or potentia) confiicts of
interest, The _ﬁ,:amnmnn__m:nm of zas,mxmnnzqm
Directors g reviewed by the Baard anny, Al
Directors Complete gn annuaf Questionnaire

to recorg Gny potentig) conflicts of interest .
The Questionnaire for FY21 did not discloge any
“onflicts of interest
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Directors’ Indemnities

The Group has qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the Directors within the meaning given
to the term.by 5234 and 5235 of the Companies Act 2006. This is in respect of any potential exposure
of lichility in their capacity as a Director of the Company and of any Compony within the Group.
Such indernnities were in force throughout the financial period and will remain in force.

Sponts Direct Employee Benefit Trust

We note that the Trustees of the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust have waived their right te
recejve dividends on the ordinary shares comprised in the trust fund, No dividends were paid by the
Company for the period ended 25 April 2021 (FY20: Enil}.

Disclosures Required Under Uk Listing Rule 9.8.4
The information required by listing Rule 9.8.4 is set out in the table befow:

APPLICABLE $UH-PARANGRAPH WITHIN LR 304 DISCLOSURE PROVIDED

{1} nterest capitabsed by the Group N

12} Publication of unaudrted finongial mtormotian N/A

(31 Requirernent deleted from the Listng Rufes

1] Detanls of Yong-tern incanbive schames anly Nk
imvalving o Director

(51 Waiver of emolumants by a Ciractor A
{8) Waiver of future smoluments by a Bwector N/A
[7} Mon pra-t6td allotments for cash Yitsuar] N
(8} Non pro-rota afiatments for cash IMajor N/A
subsichanesh

(8) Pawrant parkicipation n @ placing by o listed NA
subsidioey

"0l Contracts of significonce N/A
(1) Provision af services by a contralling poge 56
sharaolder

112) Shorehelder wonvers of dividands pogs &1

(13) Shareholder warvers of huture dvdands /A

1

)] ts with Hing nnge 62

Green House Gas Emmissons And Energy Consumption -
See The Environment report
Annual General Meeting

Further details on the date, time ond format of proceedings will follow shertly after the finglisation
of these Annual Repart and Accounts, taking into account Gavernment guidance surrounding the
Covid-19 pandemic.
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Going Concern

The Group's business activities, together

with the factors likely to affect its future
development, performance and pasition are set
out in the Chief Executive's Report and Business
Review,

The financial position of the Group, its cosh
flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities
are described in the Financigl Review. In
addition, the financial statements include the
Group's objectives, policies and pro

FRASERS GROUP

operational existence for the at least 12 months
from the date of these financial statements.
Trading would need to fall significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions or a relaxation of covenants.
On this basis, the Directors centinue to adopt
the going concern basis for the preparation of
the Annuat Report and Financial Statements
which is & period of at laast twelve months
from the date of approval of these financial
statements.

for managing its capital, its financial risk
management objectives, details of its financial
instruments and hedging activities, and its
exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative onhd has considerable finoncial
rescurces. The Group is able to operate within
its banking facilities and covenants, which

runs until November 2022, and is well placed

to take advantage of strategic opportunities

as they arise. As o consequence, the Directors
believe that the Group is able to manage its
business risks successfully despite the continued
uncertain economic outlook,

Management has assessed the level of trading
to date since the impacts of the Covid-19
pandamic and has forecast and projected o
conservative base case and also @ number

of even more conservative scenarios taking
into cccount a potential further wave and
associated lockdowns over winter, Government
support, foreign exchange exposure and

cost saving initiotives. These forecasts and
projections show that the Group will be able

to aperate within the level of the cument
facility and its covenant requirements [being
interest cover and net debt to EBITDA ratios).
Mancgement also has @ number of mitigating
actions which could be taken if required such as
putting on hold discretionory spend, liquidating
certain assets on the balance sheet and paying
down the Revolving Credit Facility. See the
Viability Statement for further detaifs.

Having thoroughly reviewed the Group's
performance and having made suitoble
enquiries, the Directors are confident that the
Group has adequote rescurces to remain in

Heromss the UK

A bility And Audit

A statement by the External Auditor can
be found on page 66 deta

respansibilities, and these ore set out in the
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement.

Auditor

RSM UK Audit LLP will be proposed for
reappointment at the AGM, In accerdance with
s489{4) of the Companies Act 2006, resolutions

to determine remuneration are to be agreed at
the AGM.

Post Balance Sheet Events

See note 36 of the b::e._u_ Accounts.

Future Developments

Future developments are discussed throughout
the Strategic Report.

Fii ial Risk May t

Financigl risk menogement is discussed in note
3 of the financial statements.

By Order of the Board.

Tom Piper
Compuny Secretary
5 August 2021



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2029

FRASERS GROUP

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for prepar ng the
Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report, the separate
Corporate Governance Statement and the
financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to grepare
group and company financial statements for
each finarcic! year, The directors have elected
under company law to prepare group financial
statements'in accordance with international
accourting standards in conformity witi the
raquirements of the Companies Act 2004 and
are additionally required under the Listing Rules
of the Financial Conduct Authority to przpare
the group financial statements in occorcance
with international financial reporting standards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC} No
1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.
The directors have elected under compeny law
to prepare the company financial statements

in accordance with United Kingdom Gererally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United K ngdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law).

The group financial statements are required
by low and international accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of tre
Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting standards adopted pursuant
to Regulation {EC} No 1606/2002 as it applies
in the European Union to present fairly the
financial position and parformance of th2
group; the Companies Act 2006 provides in
relation to such financiak stotements that
references in the relevant part of that Ac: te
financial statements giving o true and far
view qre references to their achieving a fair
presentation.

Under compony law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fai- view
of the state of affairs of the group and the
company and of the profit or loss of the group
for that period.

65

In preparing each of the group and company
financial statements, the directors are required
to ’

. select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

b. make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent;

<. for the group financial statements, state
whether they have been prepared in
accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and international financiai reporting

*standards adopted pursuant to Regulations

{EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
European Union;

d. for the company financial stotements,
state whether applicable UK accounting
standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the company financial
statements, -

e. prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the group
and the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the group's and the
company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the group and the company and
endble them to ensure that the financial
staternents and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report comply with the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are alse
responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the group and the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Directors’ Stat t P t To The Discl

and Transparency Rules

Each of the directors, whose names and
functions are listed on pages 37 to 39 confirm
that, to the best of each person's knowledge:

a, the financicl statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit of the company ond the
undertakings included in the consalidation
taken as o whole; and

b. the Strategic Report contained in the
Annual Report includes a fair review of
the development and performance of the .
business and the position of the company
and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.

The directors are responsible for the
maintenonce and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the
Campany's website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preporation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Chris Wootton
Chief Financial Officer
5 Aygust 2021
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included in calculating the net realisuble volue
of inventory.

Due to the factors explained above, we have
identified the valuation of inventory os a key
qudit motter,

How the matter wos addrassed it the audit

ot ofi o voludti

In resp Y wee;

. Assessed the appropriateness of
management’s inventory provisian
caleulations, including testing the aecuracy
and completeness of the data used and the
mathematical accuracy of the provisioning
modet

. Critically challenged the assumptions made
i the inventory provision mode) in raspect
of the expected level of discounting and the
expected costs of sale, including:

- The hasis on which expected discounts
were colculated and whether calzulated
discounts were realistic based or
historical experience and the cur-ent
trading environment

—  The assumptions regarding the
expected volume and allocated costs of
redistributing (tunnel ng) and repricing
product

- Whether different assumptions a1d
estimates should be applied for cifferant
{ascias given the differentiated product
mix

«  Considered management’s strotegic options
for addressing demand in the uncertain
retal economic environment present asa
result of the Covid 19 panderaic, incl ading
discounting levels ond further develcpmerit
of on-tine retail channels.

As a result of our findings from challeng ng
management’s model, we ws%_um:ammzm
developad an altemnative model that apalied
historic inventary loss experience to calculate
a provision against current out of season and
¢learance inventary and inventory that would
be expected to ramain unsold and fall irte
those cotegories in future petiods. n oddirion,
we recalculnted the expected future tunaelling

- &7

ted n Steinbes 100% Rocycled and £ whon Gaplurell fhroudh e Woadkand Trust. hie

and repricing costs to take account of our

. assessment of the likely future costs of these
activities in relation to products that would
have a net realisable value which wos below
cost.

We then formed an assessment, based on
discussions with management and available
orket dato, to reflect the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic. This included consideration
of forecast future sales perfarmance, expected
margin decline, the increased risk of inventary
becoming out of season and adjustments
considered relevant for specific fascios,
-where the risk of inventory obselesence was
considered to be higher. Our glternative madel
allowed us to develop an estimate of the level
of provision we considered appropriote and
supportable against which we were uble {©
assess Mmanagement's estimates.

Key observations

Our audit work on inventory valuation, and
in pasticular the development of our own
glternctive provision model, did not identify
any raterial rmisstatemnent in the inventory
provisions.

-
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Impairment of property related azsets
Kay audit matter description

As a resutt of the Covid 19 pandemic and
changing patterns of retail consumer behaviour,
particularly in relation to physical stores, the
Group identified that there were indications

of impairment in relation to freehold property
imterests, right of use assets and related PPE
{*property related assets’). As required by

1AS 36 [Impairment of Assets) the Group has
performed an impairment review of ali such
assets.

As o result of this review, jmpairments in
relation ta freehald and long leasehold property
{£88.4m), right of use assets (£168.2m) and
related PPE 1£63.8m) fhove been made in these
financial statements.

s deseribed in nate 2 1© the financial
statemnents, the impairment review involves
management judgements and estimates in
relation to the value in use of the property
reloted assets (being the net present vatue

of the forecast related cashflows] and, in the
case of freehold property, cornparisorn of
calculated value in use to internal and external
property valuations. The values derived are
then compared to the book value of the related
assets to determine whether impairment

is required. In making this assessment
management determined each property of
store to De a cash generating unit [CBU).

The vaiue in use calculations irvolve significont
assumptions regarding future cashflows, the
fong term growth rate In jike for like sales, an
assessment of the propensity for customers

to switch to online purchases, pressure on
margins and determination of an appropriate
discount rate as wellas cansidering the
possibility of future lockdowns. in the case of
jreehold property, valuations are dependent
on assumptions regarding the ability to

relet property, the length of void and rent

free pariods and future rentals achievable.
Accordingly we Jetermined that the valuation
of property selated assets hod o high degree of
estimation uncertainty and this is illustrated by
the sensitivity analysis set out in note 2.

Due to the factors exploined obove, we hove

14 Ty Gre Al few Bpteh woodland aomoss the LK

\dentified completeness, valuation, presentation
and disclosure of property reloted assets as @
key audit motter.

How the motter was addrassed in the audit

We obtained an understanding of how
manageraent perfarmed their impairment
testing of prapetty reloted assets and theit
oppreach to vohation.

We critically assessed the methodology

applied by management with reference to

the requirements of JAS 36 and tested the

integrity of the value in use calculations and the .
calculated impairments by CGU. )

In the case of freehold property, in addition

to assessing the value in use caleulations,

we evcluoted the gpproach to the woluotion
of freehold interests with input from an
independent axternal retail propery valuatien
expert and critically chailenged the underlying
assumptions.

In particular we challenged the significant
assurnptions within monagement's models
through:-

«  Fvcluating management’s assumptions
thraugh consideration of historical and
current trading performance and external
doto points

+  Sensitised the assumptions in
management’s impairment models and
reviewed the financial statement disclosures
documenting assumptions and the innpakts
of apptlied sensitivities

. Tested the reconciliotion batween
the cashflows used in the yalue inuse
calculations with those wsed to assess going
concern and viability to ensure they were
consistent

. Criticolly chollenging whether it wos
appropriote to exclude properties from the
impairment model and assessing whether
the reasons for exclusion were supportable -
for examgle where specific properties weare
under redevelopment

. Comparing the discount sate used with that
independently calculated by our internal
valuation expert



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ARNUAL REPORT - 2011

FRASERS GROUP

We assessed whether the disclosures within the
financial statements are consistent with 145 36

How the matter was addressed in the qudit

Our audit work included the following: -

Key obsarvations

Our audit work in respect of the impairment
of property related ossets conciuded that the
related halonces were not materially misstated
and the disclosures management have made
are appropriate.

Property, Legal and Other Provisions
Key oudit maotter description

The Group makes provision for lial
it identifies there is o present obligation as a
result of o past event ond where it is proboble
that there will be a resultant outflow of
resources thot can be reliably measured.

The Group has a significant provision in relation

to legal and regulatery matters and property

refated provisions. As detailed in note 28 to

the financial statements, the Consolidated

Balance Sheet includes provisions of £215.8m

{2020: £225.4m) relating to legal and regulatory
matters and £144.1m, (2020: 107.9m) relating to .
property provisions which principally comprises
provisions for dilapidations on lepsehold

properties.

The ditapidation provision requires sig
judgements to be made as to future amounts

payabie based on historical experience,

external advice and evolving conditions within -
the property sector.

Additionaily, the Group faces o number of
legal, tax and other commercial claims and
significant judgement is required in determining
whether a provision should be recorded and for
what amount.

Due ta the amounts invalved and the
significant judgements required in quantifying
and assessing provisions we have identified
existence, accuracy, completeness, presentation
and disclosure of property, legal and other
provisions as a key audit matter.

68

Considering monagement’s assessment
in respect of provisions and assessing
whether the recognition criteria of I1AS

37 - Provisiens, Centingent Liabilities and
Contingent assets had been met.

Chollenging the assumptions made in the
ditapidation provisian model in respect
of the expected level of dilapidations on
o store by store basis. As a result of our
findings from challenging managernent's
model, we independently developed an
alternative model that applied historic
dilapidation costs and refevant factors
such as geography ond property type as
well as considering the impacts of likely
future changes in the property market. Our
alternative model allowed us to develop
an estimate of the jevel of provision we
considered appropriate and supportable
against which we were able to assess
management's estimates.

Challenging provisions and related
assumptions with key management outside
the finance function, including members of
the property and legal teams and cbtaining
corroborative evidence from third parties in
relation to material ongoing legal and tax
matters

Auditing the movement in provisions and
checking for campleteness through the
review of ongoing claims for dilapidations
and through circularisation of legal advisors
in refation to other claims,

Key observations

Our gudit work in respect of Property, legal and
other provisions concluded that the related
balances were not materially misstated and
the disclosures management have made are
appropriate.

Classification of investments
Key oudit matter description

The Group has a number of investments in
which it holds more thon 20% but less than
50% of the voting share capitcl of the investee,

1AS 28 - Investments in asseciotes and Joint
Ventures - requires that where an investment
falls within this range it should be accounted
for as an associate, unless management can
rebut the presumption that significant influence
exists and coan clearly demonstrate that this is
the case.

The Group sold its investment in'French
Cannection plc during the year but ot the year
and has strategic investments in Studio Retail
Group pic (36.9%) and Mulberry Group plc
(26.1%) and has rebutted the presumption that
significant influence exists, These investments
have been accounted for at fair value through
other comprehensive income as explained in
note 2 to the financial statements.

Since the judgements thot the Group has made,
that it does not hove significant influence over
Studio Retail Group plc and Mulberry Group
ple, have o significant impact over the financial
statements we have identified the classification
and disclosure of investments as a key audit
matter.

How the matter was addressed in the audit
Qur audit work included: -

- Assessing the accounting for the above
investments under JAS 28 — Investments in
Associates and Jaint Ventures and IFRS 9 -
Financial Instruments.

+  Obtaining and criticatly challenging
management's papers addressing the
accounting for the above investments
against the requirement of the accounting
standards and the judgements made in
addressing the questions of significant
influence

+ Discussing management's strategy for
holding the investments and challenging
whether this was consistent with the

acecounting treotment

*  Assessing the five criteria set out in |AS 28
os suggesting whether significant influence
moy exist by examining both confirming
and disconfirming evidence.

In particular we: -

+  Obtained and examined certain
agreements and correspondence
between the Group and the investees to
correborate managements assertion that
nio significont influence exjsts

- Reviewed investee financial statements,
press announcements, articles of
association, shareholder agreements and
media reports to assess whether there
was evidence of significant influence

* Made enquiries of the Group's Head of
Strategic Investments to understand
the Group's interoction with those
investments, including in particutar, the
nature and purpose of the observer role
on the board of Studio Retail Group plc

+ Considered whether transactions
between the Group ond the investees
were indicative of significant influence

v Criticolly challenging whether the
judgements made are clearly disclosed in
the financial statements.

Key observations

Our audit work in respect of the classification
of investments concluded that management's
judgemants that they did not have significant
influence over Studio Retait Group plc and
Mulberry Group plc to be suppertable and the
related classification and disclosures made in
the financial statements to be oppropriate.

._ I 1 dE

Pratted on Stenbeis 100% Reovehed ond Carbon Capsiad thraunh 8 4




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

Impact of the Covid 19 pandemic und going
tehcemn

Key audit matter description

The Covid 19 pandemic and the mandated
temporary closure of retail stores at various
times during the year, has had a significant
impact en the group's revenue ¢nd result
before tax. In addition to heightened audit
risks relating to the carrying value of property
related assets and inventory set out in the

key audit matters above, the pandemic has
implications for;-

+  The Group's considerations in relation to
going concern and viability

«  Accounting for monies received uncer the
UK Government’s Job Retention Scheme
[CJRS)

Significant judgements are always required
arcund the assumptions underpinning future
cashflow projections. These judgements are
heightened in the current retail environment
given the uncertqinties surrounding the longer
term impact of the pandemic and structural
changes to the UK retail sector. Whilst retail
stores have opened post year end, and web
salés have performed well, the longer term
impacts on shopping habits and the ris<s of
o glabal recession are difficult to accurately
predict.

Taking account of these sensitivities, the
Directors have acknowledged there will be
potentiglly material variations in forecast
financial performance, but concluded that

the Group has sufficient resources available

to meet its liabilities as cnd when they fall

due and that therefore there are no material
uncertainties that cast significant doubs on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern,

In undertaking their assessment of going
coencern, the Directors have reviewed forecast
fubure pedormonce ond erficpoted coshfiows
for the Group. These forecasts have also bean
applied in determining the need to impair
property related assets as set out in the key
audit matter above. Their assessment has
considered cashflow forecosts and finascing
and covenants in place for the period to
Navember 2022, which is the date at wkich the

69
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current Revolving Credit Facility expires.

As part of the assessment ond as disclosed in
the viability statement on page 36, the Directors
hove determined appropriate sens ies to the
forecasts, including a reverse stress test of the
Group's ability to meet its covenants.

We hove identified a key oudit matter related
to going concern as a result of the judgement
required in undertaking o going concern
assessment in the current uncertain trading
environment, the adequacy and accuracy of
disclesuras and the conclusion that there is not
a material uncertainty related to going concern.

The Group has received furlough (CJRS) income
of approximately £80m in the year and has
recognised this os a reduction in payroll costs in
the income statement, The rules that apglied to
furlough claims in the year were complex and
subject to variation and there are significant
penalties for non-compliance. Consequently

we identified a potential risk of misstatement
reloting to the processing and management of
claims. :

How the mutter was addressed in the audit

Our audit work in relation to going concern
included:

+  Obtaining an understanding of
management's going concern models,
discussing key assumptions with
management and assessing whether those
assumptions were consistent with those
applied elsewhere, such as in relation to
inventory valuation and the assessment of
property related provisions

» Checking the mathematical accuracy
of management's cashflow models, and
agreeing opening balances to 25 April 2021
actual figures

+  Checking management's covenant
compliance calculations te determine -
whether there is a risk of breach and
assessed whether the assumptions in
management’s base model appeared
realistic, achievable and consistent with
other internal and external evidence

= Comparing forecast sales with recent
historical information to consider the

e Woodtand Trust, belp
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accuracy of forecasting

» Considering post year end sales patterns to_
assess whether they were consistent with
those assumed in the base medel

« Testing management's sensitivity analysis
cnd reverse stress test and performing our
own analysis based on further sensitising of
the models to take occount of reasonably
possible scenarios that could arise from the
risks identified

» Challenging management regarding their
identification of discretionary spend that
could be reduced should mitigating actions
become necessary

» Reviewing agreements and correspondence
relating to the availability of financing
arrangements

= Evalucting the Group's disclosures on going
concern against the requirements of IAS 1

In relation to the furlough income received
by the Group under the UK Government's
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) we:

= Obtained an understanding of how
monagement communicated and operated
the scheme and the process by which
management calculated and submitted
their claims

* Reviewed correspondence between the
Group and HMRC

*  Agreed cash received for claims made
during the year to bank statements

+ Reperformed the calculation of a sample of
claims including agreeing details to payroll
records

* Reviewed the internal audit work performed
over CJRS claim procedures

the UK

Key observations

QOur audit work in respect of the Covid 19
pandemic and going concern concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate and we did not
identify ony material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on

the group’s or the parent company’s ability

to continue as a going concern and that the
assaciated disclosures are in accordance with
accounting stendards,

However, the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic
on future performance is difficult to predict with
any certainty and no audit can be relied upon
to identify all possible scenarios that may have
future implications for the Group.

Qur work in respect of CIRS claims did not
identify any material misstatement.
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There are no key audit matters relating to the parent company.

Qur application of materiality

When establishing our overoll gudit strategy, we set certgin thresholds which help us to determine

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our audit opproach was kbased on a thorough
understanding of the Group's business and is
risk based, and in particular included:

the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. When evaluating whether the effects of

misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole, could reasonably .
influence the economic decisions of the users we take into account the qualitstive nature and the

size of the misstatements. Bosed on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the

financial statements os follows:

- Group Parspt Campany
ENImillian (2030 £11.9¢ £ Omnillion (2020 £11 9 n|
BASIS FOR DETRRMINING OVERALL MATERIALITY 2.8% of Underiying EBITDA 1% of totak assats [Copped ot overal!
Group matenialityl .
RATIONALE FOR BENCHMARK AFPLIED In datermining owersll mateniality The Farent Caimpany does not trade
we gavé congderation to underlying and thersfore totel assats rs considered
EBITDA, revenue ond the averge Fesalt 1o be the mast appiopnote benchmark
Bubard tax FoF the previous three yeors
Since the Groyp uses undeslying EBITDA
s cotnihwnications with shorehelders
appropnate materlslity banchinatk
Wa ¢pplied o lower level of materabty
to the audit of companents and, n
occordonce with 15A 320, 1n rel i be
certan elossaes of fransactions, account
balunces and disclosuras.
Underlyng EBITDA i d
4 and in the glassory te
statamants.
PERFORMANCE MATERIALITY 7 2mulion EZimillion

‘Wa set performance motarolity ot

a level lawer than overall matenaity
far the inoneal statemants as a

whole t& ruduce to on appropnately

low level the probabitty that, in
nggregate, uncorrected and undstected
musstaterments exceed overall
matenolity

The facters we considered in
detenmiming performance matenally
Included, pur knawledge of the group,
the pressures wathin the retal sactor
und the level of misstatements in anar
periode

Wa set parfrmance mal
Q leve! lower than ove
far the hnancal siotements as o
whole to reduce ta an appropriately
low lavel the probot
nggregate, uncorrected ond undetected
misstatements excend gvernll
mutensliy

BASIS FOR DETERMINING PERFORMANCE MATERIALITY

65% of overall matenohty
12020: 75% of overail maty

5% of averall atenatity
12030 75% af tveralh rmatecaty|

REPORTING OF MISSTATEMENTS TO THE AUHAT COMMITTER

Misstatemants in excess of £0 6.
and isstataments below thot teshold
that, in our vigw, warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds

Misstaotements mn extess of £06rlion
and misstatenments below that threshiold
that, n our view, warranted reacring an
quchtative grounds
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Evaluation of identified components to
assess the significance of each component
and to determine the planned audit
response based on a measure of materiality.
This included significance as a percentage
of the Group's revenue, total assets and
resylt before tax;

For those components that were evaluated
as significant, or likely to include significant
risks, either a full-scope or targeted
approach was taken based on their

relative materiality to the Group, ond our
assessment of the audit risk. For significant
components requiring a full-scope
approach, we evaluated controls aver the
financial reporting systems identified as
part of our risk ossessment and addressed
critical accounting matters. Substantive
testing was performed on significant closses
of transactiens and balances, and other
matenal balances, determined during the
Group scoping exercise;

Full scope audit procedures have been
performed on the financial statements of
Frasers Group plc, and on the financial
information of the main trading companies
within the UX Retail component;
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited, Wareshop 2
Limited, Sports Birect international Holdings
Limited, House of Fraser Limited, The
Flannels Group Limited, Jack Wills Retail
Limited, Evans Cycles Limited and GAME
Retail Limited;

In relation to overseas components we
engaged RSM member firms in Austria,
Irefand and Spain, to perform full scope
component qudits and RSM in the United
States and Belgium to perform targeted
audit procedures. Additionally, RSM
member firms attended inventory counts in
a number of locations;

+  The group engagement team reviewed the
work performed by the component ouditors.
We determined the level of involvement
we needed to have in their oudit work
at those reporting units to be able to
conclude whether sufficient, appropriate
audit evidence had been obtained as @
basis for our opinion on the Group financial
statements as a whole.

+  Further specific audit proc¢edures over the
Group consolidation and areas of significant
judgement in¢luding impairment of property
related assets, leases, taxation and treasury
were performed by the group engagement
team.

The aperations thot were subject to fuli-scope
audit pracedures made up 80% of consolidated
revenues, 82% of total assets and 72% of
absolute profit before tax.

The operations that were subject to targeted
audit procedures, including spedific significant
judgement areas noted above, made up 8% of
consolidated revenues, 6% of total assets and
6% of profit befare tax; and

The remaining operations of the Group were
subject to analytical pracedures over the
balance sheet and income statements of the
relevant entities with a focus on applicable
risks identified above, This made up 12% of
consolidated revenues, 12% of net assets and
22% of profit before tax.
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The coverage achieved by our audit procedures was:

! Full Scope ..._.nﬂn”nn_ oudit . Analytical procedures

Full scope audits were performed for 5 compoenents {some of which included a number of legal
entities which were combined for group reporting purposes), targeted audit procedures for 4
components and anclytical procedures at group level for the remaining components.

Rﬂ_"f_ﬂr_..ou_n Revanue  Tabel cusets r&-ﬂ-h.”
FULL $COPEAUDIT 5 0% 8% %
TARGETED AUDIT PROCEDURRS . 4 B% &% %
ToTAL 9 85% 8% 8%

The Greup team had planned to visit component locations in Austria, Spain and the USA. However,
these visits were prevented by travel restrictions imposed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
instead the group team held video conference calls and performed remote file reviews to ossess the
audit risk and the work planned ond performed in response.

The parent company was subject te a full scope audit for the purposes of the Group and Parent
Company financicl statements.

Other information .

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other informatien comprises the
infoermation included in the annual repart on pages 1to 65 other than the financial statements

and cur auditor's report thereon. Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information ond, except to the extent othetwise explicitly stated in cur report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infermation is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. )

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a material misstaternent in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other infermation. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

"
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Opinions on other motters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinien, the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in
the course of the audit;

« the information given in the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financicl
statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements and those reports
have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements;

= the information about internal control and
risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2,6 in the Disclosure
Rules and Tronsparency Rules scurcebook
made by the Financial Conduct Authority
{the FCA Rules), is consistent with the
financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal
requirements; and

+ information about the company's corporate
governance code and practices and about
its administrative, monagement and
supervisory bodies and their committees
complies with rules 7.2.2, 72.3 and 7.2.7 of
the' FCA Rules

woodland across the UK

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

In the light of the knowledge and
understanding of the group and the parent
company and their environment cbtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified
material misstatements in:

+  the Strategic Report ar the Directors’ Report;
or ,

+ the information about internal control and
risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the FCA Rules

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in aur opinicn:

* adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the parent company, or returns
adeqguate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial staternents
and the part of the directors’ remuneration
report to be qudited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made; or

* we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our nudit.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the
directors’ statement in relation to going
concern, longer-term viability and that port of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the parert compony’s compliance with the
provisions of the UK Carporate Governance
Statement specified for our review.
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Based onthe work undertaken as port of

our audit, we have conciuded that each of

e foliowing elernents of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materially consistent
with the financial staterments or aur knowledge
obtained during the oudit:

. Directors' statement with regards the
appropriaieness of adopting the qoing
concern basis of accounting and any
moterial uncertointies identified (set out on
poge 4%

» Directors’ explanction as ko its assessment
of the group's prospects, the pariod this
assessment COvVers anda why this period is
appropriote {set out on page k1Y

. Directors' stotement on fair, balanced and
understandable (set out an page 44k

. Board's confirmation that it has carvied out
a rebuyst assessment of the emerging ond
principal risks {set out o page k11

«  The section of the annuat repart that '
describes the review of effectiveness of risk
monogement and internal control systems
{set out on page 44), and,

+  The section describing the work of the audit
committee {set cuk on Puge a4y

As explained mare fully in the directors’
responsibilities statement (set out on Page
651, the directors are respensiole for the
preparation of the firancial statements and
for being sotisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are
frae from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud ar eat

[n preparing the financial statements, the
directors ore responsiple for assessing the
group’s and the parent company’s ability

to continue a5 A going concern disciosing,

as applicable, matters reiated to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
socounting unless the disectors either intend
1o liguidate the group or the parent cornpany
or to cease operations, Of have no realistic
citernative but to de o

72

tod on Steinbeis 10309 Fecycied and Carbon Caplared thiouatil

>.==.3...u rasponsibilities for the audit of the
financial staternents

Our objectives oré to cbtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as awhale are free from material
igstaterment, whether due 1@ fraud of ermor,
and to issue on ouditor's report that includes
our epinion. Regsenable gssurance s @ high
evel of assurance but is not @ guarentee thot
an audit conducted in accordance with 15As
(UK will always-detect @ material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
§raud or error and are considered material if,
individually orin the cggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
aconomic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

The extent t¢ which the oudit wos considered
capable of datecting irregularities, including
froud

Irragularities are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations- The objectives of
our oudit are to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding compliance with
Jaws and regulations that have a direct effect
an the deterrmination of matericl amounts
ant disclosures in the financial statements,

to perform audit pracedures 1@ help identify
instances of non-cornpliance with other lows
and reguiations thot may have @ material affect
on the financia} statements, and to respond
on?o_u:nnmz_ to identified or suspected
nan-compliance with. laws and requlations
identified during the audit.

\n refation t© Fraud, the objectives of aur audit
are to identify and assess the fisk of materia?
rmisstatement of the financiol staternerts

due to fraud, o obtain sufficient appropriat?
audit evidence regarding the assessed rigks of
matericl rmisstaternent due to froud through
designing and implementing appropriate
Fesponses and to respend ovﬁavzoﬁmz to
froud of suspecked froud identified during the
audit.

"t

However, it is the prienary responsibulity of
management, with the oversight of those
¢harged with governance, to ensure that
the entity’s operations aré conducted in
gecordance with the provisions of laws
and regulations and ot the preventian and
detection of fraud.

nidentifying and assessing riske of metenal
isstatement in respect of irregularities,
including froud, the group oudit engogement
team:

+ obtoired an understanding of the nature
of the industry and sector, including the
legal and regulatory frameworks that the
gioup and parent company operates in and
how the group and parent company are
complying with the tegot and regulatory
frarneworks,

. inquired of managernent, ond those
charged with govermance, ahout their own
identification and assessment of the Fisks of

regularities, ineluding any known actual,
suspected or alleged instances of fraud:

« applied analytical review proceduses to
identify unusual of unexpected relationships;

. discussed motters obout nen-carpliance
with laws and regulations and how froud
might accur including assessment of how

- and where the financial statements may be
susceptible to fraud

As the group is regulated, our assessment of
risks involved gaining an understanding of
the effectiveness of the control anvironment
including the controls established to mitigate
the nisks of fraud and the procedures far
comphying with regulatory requirements.

All relevant jaws and regulations identified at @
Group leve ond oreas susceptible to froud that
could have @ material effect on the financial
statements were no..::E:._naSn_ to cormponent
auditars. Any instances of non-cempliance

with faws and requlations identified and
cornmuricated by component quditors were
considered in ouf audit approach. We remained
alert to any indicotions of froud throughout the
audit.

FRASERS GRrROUP
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As a result of these procedures, we cansidered
{he opportunities and incentives that may

exist within the Group far fraud and idertified
the greatest potential for fraud in those areas
inwhich management is required to exercise "
significant ?mmm%m:ﬁ. 1n common with ol
audits under 1508 (UK we also um_.mo::m&
specific pracedures to respond to the risk of
management override ond the risk of fraudutent
reverne recognikion. These pracedures

included:

«  testing the appropricteness of journal
entries and other adjustments hased on risk
criterio and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentation

«  gssessing whether the judgements mode
in making gccounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias

. evalydting the business rationote of ony
significant yransactions thot are unusuol eF
outside the normal course of business

. testing the opercting gifectiveness of
the manuol contrels in relation to the
completeness, accuracy, and existence of
cash sales

- investigoting yransactions posted to norninal
ledger codes outside of the normal revenue
cycle identified through the use of data -
analytics tooks.

The Group is subject to laws ¢nd regulations
wihvich directly affect the material amounts

and disclasures in the financial statements.

The most significant \ows ond regulations were
detertmined to be o5 follows.-IFRS and FRS

102, the UK Companies Act, Financial Conduct
Authority requlations, including the Listing Rules
and tax legislation.

In addition, the Group s subjeck to other

laws and regulations which do not have a
direct effect on the financial statements but
comphance with which may be fupdamental
to the Group's ahility to operate or to avoid
moterigl penalties. \We identified the following
areas ag those most likely to have such an
affect, cormpetition and anti-bribery laws, data
protection, employment, arvironmental and
hacith ond safety reguictions.
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In response to the above, audit procedures
performed by the audit engagement team
included:

* reviewing financial statement disclosures
and testing to supporting documentation
to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations descrized
as having a direct effect on the financial
statements

» enguiring of management, the Audit
Committee and in-house legal counsel
concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims

+ reading minutes of meetings of those
charged with governance, reviewing intesnal
audit reports and correspondence w th
HMRC

A further description of our responsibitities for
the audit of the financial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
http:/fwww frcorg.uk/uditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor's
report,

Other matters which we are required to address

Following the recommendation of the adit
committee, we were appointed by the Audit
Committee and the Board on 18 Novernker
2019 to cudit the financial statements for the
year ending 26 April 2020 and subsequent
financial periods. .

The period of total uninterrupted consecutive
appointments is 2 years covering the years
ending 26 April 2020 te 25 April 2021,

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's
Ethical Standard were not provided to tha
Yitrap oF e porent tompary ond we TeTicin
independent of the group and the parent
company in conducting our audit.

Qur audit opinion is consistent with the
additional report to the audit committee.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's
members, as ¢ body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required 1o state to them
in an auditor's report and for ne other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assurme responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company's members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Mark Harwood
{Senicr Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP,
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
25 Farringdon Street
London

EC4A 4AB

5 August 2021

1 waodli

ACross the UK
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 ' nozvzm:mzm—<m _znozm

32 wueks ended 52 weshs apded

Note 15 ApHl 2021 26 April 2010 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
{em) fem) et L3 wenks andud 32 wants snded
REVENOE 4 36253 39574 . 3 Apnl 2031 26 April 2020
Cost of sals (2,094 5) 23948 ami «m
GRO$S PROFIT 13400 14625 {Lossl/prol i for the prnod 4 178 04 010
Salling, distnbution ong odminst ative 2epenses nawn) 11441 7}
Other opergting mcome 5 W us OTHIR C INCOME
Froperty relotad ynpairmants * 16,47 : {31791 127 6] ITEMS THAT WILL NGT BE RECL ORLOSY
Exceptional rems [ ast 31 Four wuitue movemnent ort langter Leonniel pisels 2 23 SR
FProtiLon salg of properties 7 57 547
ITEMS THAT 'WILL BE RECLASSIFARE: TO FROFIT OR LOSS
QPIRATING ROES/FROFIT 48 (80.Y ms
Eachonge affarences an kranslotion of fareion operation 19 98
Investivent income 1 1037 152
Four walug movament on hadged contracts - recagnsed m the penod 2529 04 164
Hrwestment costs bl 7 149.8)
Foir volue muvement on hedged contracts - inaftectvensss 529
Finance inc e 7 80 310
Fenr vl Movermar o lredged contruels - reciasobed and reportad in sales 25.29 a8
Finanea cost ] 136,21 12931
For volue movement on hedged contrmets - reclossiied fnd reparted w cost ot sales 2529 Al
Share of loss of assaciated undertakings 19 - ns %)
Far volue movement on hedgad Contcts « taxateh taken (o rasaives 75,20 L 30
Fuir value gain on step acguisttion 9 - 204
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION s s OTHER ¢! INCOME/{LOSS) FOIR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX nr 12844
1 6 :
foxation 4 okl £25) TOTAL COl OME FOR THEPERIOD . 1683} 14
{LOSSUPROFIT FOR THLPERIOD 4 8.9} 1919
- ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
IBUTABLE TO:
ATTRIGUTABLE Eauty hokders of the group na 652
h,
Bquity holders of the Group 830 biL] Non-corrrolling wnterast 50 77
Non-contishng interests 50 73
164.5) T14
(LOSFPRORT FOR THEPERIOL 4 74.0) 101.0
EARNIHGS PER SHANE ATTRIBUTABLE TG THE EQUATY SHAREHOLDERS
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
Panes per chara Panca par thare
Basic gormings per shore 1 1165) D)
Diluted earnings per share 15 16 5| 85
(o Paparty reloted impoirments of £3170m hove been séporately presented for the year andsd 25 Aprit 2021 The paor yeor compurative of £177 6m

which was praviously inclwded within Sef
ta be comparable

1, diskribution and administrative expenses in the FY20 Annuol Repart has be,

The Consolidated Income Stetemeant hos been prepared on the basis that all operations are
continuing. The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these
financial statements. .
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AL 25 April 2024 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
Nete 15 April 2071 16 Apit 2030 ke [rm— 52 veesks endud
IEml () 25 Apeil 2021 26 April 2010
ASSETS - NON CURRENT IEm em
Praparty. plant end equipment 16 11645 13476 CALHINFLOWS FAOM OPERATNG ACTIVITIES 32 5733 413.2
Irvestmant propertiss 17 141 8% Income taxes pad 159 31 48 51
Intangible assets 18 1208 134 NET CAS! ™ e e
Long-tarm finencial ossets 20 831 Big
Delerred tax assets 27 668 oS Proreeds on disposal ot property, plant «nd equipment and investment property 06 1526
[ a8 Proceeds on disposal of intangiblas assats 78 -
ASSETS - CUNRENT Proceeds on disposol of Lsted investments and darvalives 551 49
bnwentories n 1.096 6 ALLE Purchase of assocutes [5 6}
Trode end other receivablas 2 5465 442 Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash ocquired 31 13 4 73
Denvative financial assete 23 554 81 Purchose of proparty, plont and eguipinent 16 e ) |323 5)
Cash and cath n&r:td_n:nm 23 45711 5340 Purchose of Intangible assats 18 n o ~
L1585 23144 Purehase of hsted investments . e 1248)
TOTAL ASSETS 17181 30602
rauTY Investment Incoime recaivad a8 05
Share capital u 841 61 Finunce ineame recewed $0 58
Share promium a4 1 wras HET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM ACTIITIES 2404 1924
Treasory sharas reserva (79571 f2us JPM—— — ey
Parmanent contnibutron ta capitul 2 91 ) R — s e
Capial redemption reserva 25 80 ap
Forenn currsncy transiabion reserve 288 - s Borrowingt drown down % 1128, 5109
Revesse combnohon reserve 5 (98731 1987 3 Borrowings rapod 2% . 123.6) (436 5]
Dwn thote raserve 1687 70l Dividends puid ta non-controfling nterasrs 109) B
Hedging reserve 25 ns 6D Purchase of own shores 143} 1439)
Shor bosed paymeant reserves R 13 . NET CASH DUTFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES me.3) o2
Retginad earnings . 1,554 5 15649 - <
ISSUED CAPIT. ATTRIBUTARLE TO OWMNERS OF THE PARENT 1128 1,261.3 NET IN CASH AND CATH EUIVALENTS INCL LL] maj no
Nom-contral P o Exchange movament on cash bolances 1531 S0
ToTALHQUITY 12118 12003 - CASHAND CATH EQUIYALENTS INCLUDING OVERDRAETS AT OF PERIOD 40 e
LIARILITIES - NOM CURRENT €ASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCLUDING OVEADRASTS AT THE MIRIOD END 23 10 540
Luse liabht 26 5142 4062
JJLNH_‘.NH_..:” berat cbigaomn = EMM SJM The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these-financial statements.
Defarred tou iabiiities 2 270 356
Provisions 28 3612 2380
14302 T

LIABILITIES - CURRENT

Trerivative financial linbilty 29 w2
Trode and other payables 0 [ILF)
Leuse holplity % ACLE) .
Currgnt tox 1ok 899
[TE]
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,541
TOTAL RGANTY AND LIABILITIES PELEA]

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these Financial Stateraents. The
Financiol Stotements ware appraved by the Board an § August 2021 and were cigned oo, ks bebalf by,

Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer
Company number; 06035106
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN EQUITY

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

Faraign eurrancy Total attribustable to Hen-contrelling

* tham capital Share premium® Trasury share  Shars schame rasrva amiation  CWnshurereierve  Autained eormings Othern wveneet of parant Intaruits Tobal
@) tm) |Em) {tm} L] Hm) fm {Em) oml lem)

AT 28 APRIL 2079 } [7X] ¥ [EN] - 8.1 (] (sa15) 12983 33 17
Purchesse of gwn shares - - 1440 - a2 - . (a38] - (43 8]
Reverso) o FY18 faur vuluation of shore buyback contenctual obligatien - - 00 - . - - 00 - ELD]
TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNIRS IN THEIR CABACITY AS OWNERS - - 9] - - 0.2 - . (13.4) - [
Fratit far the imancicl pencd - - - : - $18 91 72 tg10
OTH INCOME B
Cash flow hedges - recagnissd m the periad - - . - 164 164
Coash Row hedges - meffectivenass - - - - -

' Cash Hlow hadgss - reclussified und repa-tad in salas - - -
Coth flow hedges - teclassitied and reported in cost of sales - - - - 137 a1
Cash llow hedges - kaxation - - 18 ay
Foir valug oojustment in respuct of lang term lasncrol assers « racogsad - - - - - e - Nan
Truns)ation ciiferances - Graug . . - 98 - - - 98 C- 48
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCGME FOR THE PERIOD ) - - - - LX) - A L] 5.2 12 i
AT 24 APRIL 2070 i 83 {295.7) - m (&%) 15648 [LE] 13673 e 12t0.3
Acquisitiont {note 31} . j N - - - - - 10 10
Shara scheme - - 13 0.3 W 3y
Dividends pend ko nen-cortrelling intarasts - - - - - o9 031
TR Al ERS IN ¥ AS OWNERS - - . 13 . n3 {47 - a1 .0}
fLossiprofit fer the hnongial percd - - - 1830| 50 7801
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Coshilow edges - tacognised m the hanod - - - - - - a4 4 - a4
Coshflow hadges - reclassified and reporred i soles - - - - - 28l 124 - 1281
Casttiow hedgus - raclasaitied und reparted i cast of sales - - - - - - 17y . 71
Cashfiow hedges - taxation - - - - i - 10
Fa volue adustment in resprct of iong-term tmancral assefs - racogmises - - - - #3 3 173
Translation tifterences - Group - - - 185 - 1491)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE O3S} FOR THE PERIOD - - - [L2] [LaB]] 5.0 [C X1
AT 15 APRKL 201 [ 11957 13 8 1657 15548 11919 w1 a0

] The shore premium occount 1s used to record the axcess procaeds over nomingl value on the rssue of shares
m Other reserves camprrses parmonent contribution to capitol. capital redemptien rese ve, reversa combmnalion resurve ond the hesging ressrvs Al

movernents i the heriod related t the nedging reserve (note 25)

The accompanying accounting policies and netes form port of these financial statements,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Frasers Group plc {Company number: 06G35106)
is a company incorporated and domiciled in

the United Kingdom, its shares are listed on the
London Stock Exchange. The registered office

is Unit A, Brook Park East, Shirebrook, NG20
8RY. The principal activities and structure of the
Group can be found in the Directors' Report and
the 'Cur Business' section.

Basis Of Preparation

The consolidated Financial Statements have
been prepared in accordance with International
Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and in
accordance with internationat finonciol reporting
standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
Ne 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union. The consolidated Financia! Statements
have been preparad under the historical cost
convention, as medified to include fair valuation
of certain financiat assets and derivative
financial instruments,

The accounting policies set out below have
been applied consistently to all periods in these
Finencial Statements and have been apolied
consistently by all Group entities. Certain
subsidiaries have been consclidated based on a
calendar year-end date of 30 April 2021.

The numbers presented in the Financial
Statements have been rounded to the nearest
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Going concern

The Group's business activities, togethar with the
factors likely to affect its future development,
perfoarmance and position are set out in the Chief
Executive's Report and Business Review,

The financial position of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity positien and borrowing facilities are
described in the Financial Review. In addition,
the Financial Statements include the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing
its capital, its financial risk manogement
objectives, details of its financicl instruments and
hedging activities, and its exposures to credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and has considerable financial
resources. The Group is able to operate within
its banking facilities and cavenants, which run
until November 2022, and is well placed to take
advantage of strategic opportunities as they
arise. As a consequence, the Directors believe

‘that the Group is able to maonage its business

risks successfully despite the continued uncertain
ecanomic outlook.

Management have ossessed the level of trading
to date since the impacts of Covid-19 and has
forecast and projected a conservative base cose
and alse a number of even more conservative
scenarios taking into account a potential further
wave and associated lockdowns over winter,
Gavernment support, foreign exchange exposure
and cost saving initiatives. These forecasts and
projections show that the Group will be able to
operate within the level of the current facility and
its covenant requirements {being interest cover
and net debt to EBITDA ratios). Management
also have a number of mitigating actions which
could be taken if required such as putting on
hold discretionary spend, realising certain

ossets on the Balonce Sheet and paying down
the Revolving Credit Facility. See the Viability
Statermnent for further detaits.

Having theroughly reviewed the Group's
performance and having made suitable
enquiries, the Directors are confident that the
Group has adequate resources to remain in

Frinted on Stanbers 100° Recycled and Carbon Captured throuah the Woodiand Trust, helpma to create asw Bot

operational existence for ot least 12 months

from the date of these Financial Statements.
Trading would need to fall significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions or a relaxation of covenants.
On this basis, the Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis for the preparation of the
Annual Report and Financial $Statements which is
a period of at least twelve months from the date
of approval of these Financial Statements.

Basis Of Consolidation

The censolidated Financial Statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidicries) each year. Control is
achieved when the Compary:

= has the power over the investee;

+ is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvernent with the investee; and

+ hasthe g
returns,

y to use its power to affect its

The Company reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are choanges to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Whan the Company hos less than a majority of
the voting rights of an investee, it considers that
it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical df
to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant
facts ond circumstances in assessing whether or
not the Company's voting rights in an investee
are sufficient te give it power, including:

* the size of the Company's holding of voting
nghts relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

+  potential veting rights held by the Company,
other vote holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

+ any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Company has, or dees not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
octivities at the time that decisions need
to be made, including voting patterns at
previcus shareholders’ meetings.

waadiang acress the VK

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in prefit or loss from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
the accounting policies used into line with the
Group's accounting policies,

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between the members of the Grou,
are efiminated on consolidation. .

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
identified separately from the Group's equity
therein. Those interests of non-controlling
shareholders that are present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share

of net assets upon liquidation may injtially be
measured at fair value or at the non-controlling
intesests’ proportionate share of the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement is made on an acquisiti
by-acquisition basis. Other nen-controlling
interests are initially measured ot fair value,
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests is the amount of
those interests at initicl recognition pius the
non-controlling interests' share of subsequent
changes in‘equity.

Profit ar loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to

the owners of the Company and to the
nan-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of the subsidiaries is attributed

to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiories
that do not result in a lass of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amount of the Group's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries, Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity ond attributed to the owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit
or loss is calculated as the difference between
{i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and [ii) the previous carrying
arnount of the assets {including goodwill},

less liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary

i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred .
to anather category of equity as required/
permitted by applicable IFRS Standards). The
fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control

lost is regarded as the fair volue on initial
recoghnition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 when appilicable, or the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture,

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calcufated
as the sum of the acqg n-date fair values
of assets transferred to the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interest issued
by the Group in exchonge for control of

the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the licbilities assumed are
recognised at their fair vaiue at the acquisition
date, except that:

+ deferred tax assets or liobilities and assets
or lia es related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and meagsured
in occordance with IAS 12 and 1AS 19
respectively;

+ liobilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-bosed payment
arrangements of the acquire are measured
in accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition
date (see below); and

+ assets {or disposal groups) that ore
classified as held for sale in accordance
with IFRS 5 are measured in accordance
with that Standard.

Gaodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amouht of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the foir value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree {If any) over
‘the net of the acquisition-dote amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the
assumed. i, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and lial es assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amournt of any non-controlling interests in the
ocauiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain

For business combinations achieved in stages,
the Group remeasures its previously held equity
interest in the acquiree at its acquisition dote
fair value and recognises the resulting gain

or loss, if any, in the Income Statement as
appropriate.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither

@ subsidiary nor an interest in g jeint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or jeint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with FRS 5.

Under the equity method, an investment

in an associate is recognised initiclly in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or
a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that asseciate (which includes any leng-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in on associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investment in on associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Groug's share of the net fair value of

the identifiable assets and lia es of the
investee is recognised as goedwill, which is

included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share
of the net foir value of the identifiable assets

_ of the related assets or liab

in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is ocquired.

The requirements of IAS 36 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investrment in an associate. When necessory,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
{including goodwill} is tested for impairment

in occordance with |AS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount {higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal}
with its carrying amount. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with I1AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
ameunt of the investment subsequently
increases,

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an ossociate. When the Group
retains an interest in the fermer associcte

ond the retoined interest is o financial asset,
the Group meosures the retained interest

at foir value at that date and the fair

value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in occordance with IFRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
associate ot the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of

a part interest in the associote is included

in the determinotion of the gain or ioss on
disposal of the associote, in addition, the Group
accounts for ali amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed
ies. Therefore, if
a gain or oss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that assaciate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss [as & reciassification adjustment) when
the associate is disposed of.
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When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate but the Group cantinues to

use the equity methed, the Group reclassifies
to profit or loss the proportion of the gan

or loss that had previously been recognised

in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit

or loss on the disposal of the related asszts

o liabilities, When o group entity transazts
with an gssociate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue with customers is measured based on
the five-step model under IFRS 15; ‘Reverue
from Centracts with Customers”:

1. identify the contract with the customer;

2. identify the performance obligations .n the
controct;

3. determine the transaction price;

4. allocate the transaction price to sepa-ate
performance obligations in the contrect;
and

5. recognise revenues when (or as) each
performance cbligation is satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. Customners have a right of
return within a specified period and this g ves
rise to variable consideration under IFRS 15.
The right of return asset is recognised within
inventory, with the refund liobility due to
customers on return of their goads recogn’sed
within trade and other payables.

In the case of goods sold through retail stores,
revenue is recognised when we have satisfed
the performance obligation of transferring the
goods to the customer at the point of sale, less
provision for returns. Accumulated experiece is
used to estimate and provide for such retuns at
the time of the sate. Retail sales are usually in
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cash, by debit card or by credit cord,

In the case of goods sold on the internet

where the customer has opted for delivery,
revenue is recognised when we have satisfied
the perfoermance obligation of transferring

the goods to the customer, which is the point
of delivery to the customer. Transactions

are settled by credit card or payment card,
Frovisions are made for internet credit notes
based on the expected level of returns using the
expected value method, which in turn is based
upon the histericel rate of returns. In the case
of internet click and collect orders which are
collected in store, the performance obligation is
deemed to have been satisfied when the goods
are dispatched from the warehouse.

In the case of goods sold to other businesses
via wholesale channels, revenue is recognised
when we have satisfied the performance
obligation of transferring the goods to the
customer upon delivery. Payment terms are
generally 30-60 days with no right of return.

In the case of income generated from
trademarks and licences, revenue is recognised
bosed either on o fixed fee basis or based

on sales with specified minimum guarantee
amaunts in accordance with the relevant
agreements, If the sates-based royalty is not
expected to clearly exceed the minimum
guarantee threshold, revenue is recognised over
the rights period measured on the basis of the
fixed guaranteed consideration. Revenue above
the minimum guarantee threshold is recognised
as earned based on the contractual royalty rate
applied to the sales.

Revenue from Gym membership fees is
recognised on the accruals basis over the
related membership period. .

In the case of revenue from third party
commission on concession sales within the
House of Fraser department stores this

is recognised when goods are sold to the
customer. As we act s the agent this is
stated at the value of the commission that
the Group receives on the transaction rather
than the gross revenue from the sale of the
concessionaires’ goods.
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The Group operotes loyalty programmes
which allow members to accumulate points
on purchases and receive exclusive offers and
benefits. The fair value of the points awarded
to customers is determined relative to the
total transaction price and accounted for as
a separate identifiable component of a sales
transaction. Revenue is deferred to match

the estimate value of earned loyalty points.
Deferred revenue is adjusted for the volue of
points that are not expected to be redeemed
by customers based on historical redemption
rates. When the points are redeemed and the
Group fulfiis its obligations pursuant to the
progranimes, the revenue that was deferred is
recognised. In the UK points awarded expire
following a period of 12 months of inacti
in Spain they are volid until the end of the
following calendar year.

Revenue from gift cards and vouchers is
recognised when the cards or vouchers are
redeemed by the customer, breckage is
recognised when the likelihood of the card
or voucher being redeemed is remote or
has expired. For gift cards monies received
represent deferred revenue prior to the
redemption.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised uni
there is reasenable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
thermn and that the grants will be received.
Grants that are receivable as compensation_ for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpase of giving immediate financial suppert
to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in the Income Statement in the
period in which they become receivable.

The Greoup has received Government support
in the period relating to business rates relief
and the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
{CJRS) as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.
The amount received by the Group lincluding
the UK) in the period in regord to the CJRS [or
equivalent where received in non-UX territories)
was approx. £80m. The amount of business
rates relief received by the Group in the period
{or equivalent where received in non-UK

wlacross e UK

territories) was approx. £97.5m. Government
grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised in profit or less as a
deduction against the reloted expense over

the periods necessary to match them with

the related costs. The amounts quoted have
been recegnised in Selling, distributicn and
administrative expenses in the period.

Exceptional ltems

The Group presents exceptional items on

the face of the Income Statement. These are
significant items of income and expense which,
because of their size, nature and infrequency
of the events giving rise to them, merit
separate presentation to allow shareholders
to better understand the elements of financial
performance in the year, so as to facilitate
comparison with prior periods and ossess
trends in financial performance more readily.

Interest Income

Interest income is reported on an accruals basis
using the effective interest method.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the Income Statement,
except to the extent it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. The income tax expense or
credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current periods taxable income, based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction,
adjusted by changes in deferred tox assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused losses.

Deferred taxation is calculated using the
liability method, on temporary differences

g between the tax bases of assets and
ies and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated Financial Statements. However,
if the deferred tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or i | recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted
for. Deferred tax on temporary differences
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associated with shares in subsidiaries is

not provided if reversal of these temporary
differences can be controlled by the Group
and it is probable that reversal will not occur in
the foreseeable future. In addition, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
income tax credits to the Group are assessed
for regognition as deferred tax assets. Deferred
tax is determined using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted (or substantively enacted)
by the balance sheet date und are expected
to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax ligbilities are provided in full,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available cgainst which the temporary
differences can be wtilised. Deferred tax assets
are offset where there is a legaily enforcecble
right to offset current tox ossets and ligbilities
and where the deferred ftax balances relate to
the same tax authority.

Changes in current and deferred tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense in the Income Statement, except
where they relate to items that are recorded
in other comprehensive income or charged or
credited directly to equity in which case the
related deferred tax is also charged te other
comprehensive income or credited directly to -
equity. Deferred tax assets and liakilities are
not discounted.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation is recagnised
as an asset and reviewed for impairment

at least annualiy or when a change in
circumstances or situation indicates that the
goodwill has suffered ah impairment loss. The
need for impairment is tested by comparing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
{CGU), which is the higher of fair value less costs
1o seil and value in use, to the catrying value,
Any impairment is recognised immediately in
the Income Statement. Impoirment Josses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and fosses on
the disposal of a business include the amourt
of goodwill relating to that business.
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When the non-controlling interest of an existing
subsidiary Is acquired the carrying value of the
naen-contrelling interests in the Balance Sheet is
elimincted. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-contralling interest is adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid is
recognised directly in equity.

Other Intangible Assets

Brands, trademarks and licences that are
internaily generated are not recorded on the
Balance Sheet. Acquired brands, tradararks
and licences are initially carried on the
Balonce Sheet ot cost. The fair value of brands,
trademarks and licences that are acquired by
virtue of a business combination is determined
at the date of acqu n and is subsequently
assessed os being the deemed cost to the
Group.

Expenditure on advertising and promotional
activities is recognised as ¢n expense as
incurred,

Amortisation is provided on brands, trademarks
and licences with a definite life on o straight
line basis over their useful econemic lives

of between 5 to 15 years end is accounted

for within the selling, distribution and
administrotive expenses category within the
Income Statement.

Property, Plant And Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated

at historical cost less depreciation less any
recognised impairment losses. Cost inciudes
expenditure that isdirectly attributable to

the acquisition or construction of these items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associoted with the
item will flow to the Group and the costs can be
measured reliably.

All other costs, including repairs and
maintenance ¢osts and labour costs are
charged to the Income Statement in the peried
irr which they ore incurred.

1ihe
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Depreciation is provided on all property,

plant and equipment other than freehold

land and is calculcted on a stroight-line basis,
whichever is deemed by the divectors to be
more appropricte, to allocate cost less assessed
residual value, other thon assets in the course
of construction, over the estimated useful lives,
as follows:

- Freehold buildings - between 10 to 15 years
- straight (ine

+ Leasehald improvements - 5 years or over
the term of the lease, whichever is shortest
- straight line

+  Plant and equipment - between 3 to 5 years
- straight line

During the period the freehold buildings
depreciation estimate was changed from
between 10 to 25 years to between 10 to 15
years. This has resulted in approx. £30m of
additional depreciation being recegnised in
the period. This wos based on o review of the
frechold property portfolio by management
ond it was deemed appropriate to reduce the
range to better align with the estimate of the
remaining useful lives of the freehold buildings.
This chonge in accounting estimote is expected
to impact the depreciation charge in future
periods but an estimate of the impact has not
been disclosed due to it being impracticable to
do so given the leve! of additions and disposals
that coutd be anticipated based on historical
trends.

The assets’ useful lives and residual values are
reviewed and, if appropriate, adjusted ot each
balance sheet date. The gain or loss arising on
disposcl or scrapping of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds,
net of selling costs, and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the Income
Staternent.

Property, plant and eguipment where the
carrying amourt is recovered principally
through @ sales trensaction and where a sale is
considered to be highly probable are stated at
the lower of carrying value and fair vaiue less
costs to sell.

acrods the LK

Investment Properties

Investment properties, which are defined as
property held for rental income or capital
appreciation, are initiolly measured at cost
being purchase price and directly attributable
expenditure, Where the intention is to hold
property as owner occupied, this is recognised
as property, plont and equipment.

Subsequently investment properties are held
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impoirment losses. Investment properties are
depreciated between 10 te 15 years straight
tine, other than the land element which is not
depreciated.

Fair values of the investment properties are
disclosed.

Impairment Of Assets Othet Than Goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Directors
review the carrying amounts of the Group's
tangible ¢nd intangible assets, other than
goodwill, to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered

an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset in
its current candition is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assets,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. With
respect to property, plant and equipment,
each store is considered to be a CGU end
reviewed for impaoirment whereby changes in
circumstances indicate that the recoverable
amount is lower than the carrying vaiue.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In
ossessing the value in use, the estimated future
cash fiows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate thot reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an assat (or

CGU} is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
{CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
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impairment loss is recognised ds an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a re-valued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revakuation
decrease to the original historic cost and then
as an expense.

Impairment losses recognised for CGU's to
which goodwill has been allocated are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwitl. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pra rata
to the other assets in the CGU.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the osset
{CGU) excluding goodwill, is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (CGU) in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income Statement immediately.

Assets Held For Sale

Non-current assets clossified as held for sale
are presented separately and measured at the
lower of their carrying amounts immediately
prior to their classification as held for sale and
their fair value less costs to sell. Once classified
as held for sale, the assets are not subject to
depreciation or amortisation.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net reatisable value. Cost includes the purchase
price of the manufactured products, materials,
direct labour and transport costs. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost
method, Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling price less al! estimated seliing
costs,

The Group receives trade discounts and rebates
from suppliers based upon the volume of
orders placed in a given time window. Typical
discounts and rebates received by the Group
include early settlement discounts, volume
rebates on inventory purchases, supplier
rebates based on faulty goods, and marketing
support. Yhere there is sufficient certainty
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that a discount or rebate will be received in
the future that relates to historic purchases this
is reflected in the cost of inventories. Where
the receipt of rebates is uncertain, the cost of
inventories is held at fuli cost price until the
rebate is received. Recognised rebates are
relecsed to the Income Stotement to the extent
that the stock has been sold.

Cash And Cosh Equivolents

Cash and cash equivaients include cash in
hand and depesits held on call, together with

" other short term highly liquid investments that

are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to on insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the Group's Bulance Sheet when
the Group becomes g party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial lic
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
finencial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as apprepriate, on initial recognition,
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
ion of financial assets or financial

s at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss,

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financiol asset expire, or when the financial
asset ond substantially all the risks and
rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished;
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial Assets

Classification and initial measurement of
financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not
contain o significant financing component

and are measured ot the transaction price in
accordance with IFRS 15, afl financial assets
are initially measured at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs (where applicabie).

Financial assets, other than those designated
and effective as hedging instruments, are
classified into the following categories:

= amortised cost
+  fair value through profit or loss [FYTPL)

- fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVDCI)

All income and expenses relating to financial
assets that cre recognised in profit or loss

are presented within finance costs or finance
income, except for impairment of trade -
receivables and amounts due from related
parties which are presented within selling
distribution and administrative expenses.

Suhb +

ement of fi ial assets

Financial assets at omortised cost

Finoncial ossets are meosured at amortised
cost if the assets meet the following conditions
{and are not designated as FVYTPL):

* they are held within a business model whose
abjective is to hold the financial assets and
collect its contractual cash flows

= the contractual terms of the financial
assets give rise to cash flows thot are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principel omount outstanding

After initial recognition, these are measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, Discounting is emitted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial, The Group's
cash and cash equivalents, trade and most
other receivables fall inte this categary of
financial instruments,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different
business model other than ‘hold to collect’

or 'held to collect and sell’ are categorised

at fair vatue through profit and loss. Further,
irrespective of business madel financial
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assets whose contractual cosh flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
accounted for at FYTPL. All derivative finoncial
instruments fall into this category, except for
those designated and effective as hedging
instruments, for which the hedge accounting
requirements apply {see below).

Assets in this category are measured at fair
value with gains or losses recognised in profit
or less. The fair values of financial assets in
this category are determined by reference to
active market transactions or using a valuation
technique where no active market exists.

Financial assets at foir value through other
comprehensive income (FVOL!)

On initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made
the irrevocable election to cecount for long
term financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income {FYOCI) given these are
net held for trading purposes. The election has
been made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, only’qualifying dividend income is
recognised in profit and loss, changes in fair °
value are recagnised within OCI and never
reclassified to profit and loss, even if the asset is
~simpaired, sold or otherwise derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9s impairment requirements use more
forward-looking information to recognise
expected credit losses — the 'expected credit
loss [(ECL) model’. Instruments within the
scope of the requirements include loans and
cther debt-type financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVYOC, trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, contract assets recognised and
measured under IFRS 15 and loan commitments
and some financial guarantee contracts [for
the issuer) that are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Other receivables and amounts due from
reiated parties

Recognition of credit losses is no longer
dependent on the Group first identifying a
credit loss event. instead the Group considers
a broader range of information when assessing
credit risk and measuring expected credit
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losses, including past events, current conditions,
reasonable and supportoble forecasts that
affect the expected collectability of the future
cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-locking approack, o
distinction is made between:

- financial instruments that have not
deteriorated significantly in credit quality
since initial recognition or thot have low
credit risk {"Stage 1} and

+ financial instruments that have deteriarated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
("Stage 2°).

« “Stage 3" would cover financial assets where
the credit risk has increased to a point at
which it is considerad credit impaired

"12-month expected credit losses’ are
recognised for the first category while ‘lifetime
expected credit losses’ are recognised for the
second category.

Measurement of the expected credit josses is
determined by o probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

Trade receivables

The Group makes use of a simplified approach
in oecounting for trade receivables and records
the loss allowance as lifetime expected credit
losses. These are the expected shortfalls

in contractual cash flows, considering the
potential for defgult at any point during the life
of the financial instrument. In colculating, the
Group uses its historical experience, external
indicators and forward-~looking infermation to
calculate the expected credit lasses using a
provision matrix

Financial Liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include

borrowings and lease liakilities, trade and cther
poyables ond derivative financiat instruments.
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Finoncial liabilities are initially measured ot
fair value, and, where applicoble, adjusted for
transaction costs unless the Group designated
a financiat liability ot fair value through profit
or loss. Subsequently, financial licbilities are
measured at omortised cost using the effective
interest method except for derivatives and
Enancial liabilities designated ot FYTRL, which
are carried subsequently at fair value with
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
{other than derivative financial instruments
that are designated and effective as hedging
instruments). :

All interest-related charges and, if applicable,
fair value changes in currency derivative
instruments that are reperted in profit or loss
are included within finance costs or finance
income, Fair value changes in equity derivative
financial instruments ore recognised in
investment income or investrnent costs,

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivative financial instruments are accounted
for at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL}
except for detivatives designated os hedging
instruments in cash fiow hedge relationships,
which require a spetific accounting treatment.
To qualify for hedge accounting, the hadging
relationship must meet all of the following
reguirements:

*  there is an economic retationship between
the hedged item and the hedging
instrument

*  the effect of credit risk does not dominate
the value changes that result from that
economic relationship

* the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship
is the same as that resulting from the
guantity of the hedged item that the entity
actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the entity actually

uses ta hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Written option contracts do not qualify for
hedge accounting and fair value movements
are recognised directly in the Income
Statement,

For the reporting periods under review, the
Group has designated certain forward currency
contracts as hedging instruments in cash fiow
hedge refationships. These arrangements kave
been entered into to mitigate foreign currency
exchange risk orising from certain highly
probable sales and purchases transactions
denomindated in foreign currencies.

All derivative financial instruments used for
hedge accounting are recognised initially at foir
value and reported subsequently at fair vaiue in
the Balance Sheet.

To the extent that the hedge is effective,
changes in the fair value of derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and included within the cash flow
hedge reserve in equity. Any ineffectiveness

in the hedge relationship is recognised
immediately in profit or Joss.

At the time the hedged item affects profit or
less, any gain or loss previously recegnised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and presented
as a reclassification adjustment within

other comprehensive income. However, if a
non-financial asset or liability is recognised as
a resylt of the hedged transaction, the gains
and losses previously recagnised in other ~
comprehensive income are included in the
imtial measurement of the hedged item.

If a forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, any related gain or loss recognised

in other comprehensive income is tronsferred
immediately to profit of loss, If the hedging
relationship ceases to meet the effectiveness
conditions, hedge accounting is discontinued
and the related gain or loss is held in the equity
reserve until the forecast transaction occurs,

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group hos
a present legal or constructive obligation os
a result of o past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

FRASERS GROUP

The Group provides for its legal responsibility
for dilapidation costs fellowing odvice from
chartered surveyors and pravious experience
of exit costs. The estimated cost of fulfilling
the leasehold dilapidations obligations is
discounted to present value and analysed
between nonscapital and capital components,
The capital element is deprecioted over the
life of the asset. The non-caopital elerent is
taken to the Income Statement in the first year
of the lease where the cost it represents is of
ng lasting benefit to the Group or its landlord,
‘Wear and tear costs are expensed to the
Ihcome Statement. Provisions for anerous iease
contracts are recognised when the Group
believes the unaveoidable casts of meeting the
lease obligations exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under the lease. Legal
provisions (including settlements and court
fees) are recognised based on advice from the
Group's lawyers when it is probable that there
will be an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate con be made,

Other provisions include management's best
estimate of restructuring, employment related
costs and other claims. .

Any reimbursement that the Group is virtually
certain to collect from a third porty with respect
to the obligation is recognised as a separate
asset. However, this asset may not exceed the
amount of the reloted provision.

Ne liability s recegnised if an outflaw of
economic resources as a result of present
obligations is not probable. Such situations are
disclosed os contingent liabilities unless the
outflow of resources is remote.

Leases

The Group nssesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease, at inception of the contract.
Lease libilities are measured at the present
value of the contractual payments due to the
lessor over the lease term, with the discount
rate determined by reference to the rate
implicit in the leose unless {as is typically

the case) this is not readily determinable, in
which case the Group's incremental borrowing
rate on commencement of the lease is used.

!
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Variable lease payments are only included in
the measurement of the lease liability if they
depend on an index or rate. In such cases,
the initial measurement of the lease liability
assumes the variable element will remain
unchangad throughout the lease term. Other
variable lease payments such s revenue linked
property leases are expensed in the period to
which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the
lease liability also includes:

* amounts expected to be payable under any
residual value guarantee;

*  the exercise price of any purchase option
granted in favour of the Group if it is
reasonably certain that the option will be
exercised;

* any penalties payable for terminatir g the
lease, if the term of the lease has been
estimated on the basis of the termination
option being exercised.

The lease liability is presented as a separate
line in the consolidated Balance Sheet.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease
liabilities increase as a result of interest charged
at the effective rate on the balance outstanding
and are reduced for lease payments made.

Right of use assets are initially measured at

the amount of the lease liakility, reduced for
any lease incentives [payments made by o
jessor to a lessee associated with a lease, or
the reimbursement or assumption by a lessor of
costs of a lessee) received or impairment, and
increased for:

*  lease payments made at or before
commencement of the lease;

* initial direct costs incurred; and

*  the amount of any provision recognised
where the Group is contractually required
to dismantle, remove or restore the
leased asset, providing it meets the
Groups property, plant and equipment
capftalisaticn policy,
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When an indication of impairment is identified,
right of use assets are tested for impcirment

in accordance with IAS 36 by comparing the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value tess costs of disposal) with its carrying
arnount. The right of use assets are presented
within property, plant and equipment in the
consclidated Balance Sheet.

Subsequent to initial measurement, right-of-use
assets ore omortised on a straight-line basis
over the remaining term of the lease or over the
remaining economic life of the asset if this is
judged to be shorter than the lease term.

When the Group revises its estimate of the

term of any lease (because, for example, it
re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension
or termination option being exercised), it adjusts
the carrying amount of the lease liability to
reflect the payments to make over the revised
term, which are discounted ct o revised
discount rate. The carrying vclue of lease
ligbilities is revised using the original discount
rate when the variable element of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is
revised. In both cases an equivalent adjustrment
is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying amount being
amortised over the remaining (revised} lease
term.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting
depends on the nature of the modification:

+ if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standclone
price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for
as a separate lease in accordance with the
above policy

+ in all other cases where the renegotiation
increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extensicn to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased),
the lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the madification
date, with the right-of use asset being
adjusted by the same amount

+ if the renegotiation results in a decrease in
the scope of the lease, both the carrying

amount of the lease liability and right-
of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease with any difference -
recognised in profit or loss. The lease
linbility is then further adjusted to ensure

its carrying amount reflects the amount

of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicoble
on the madification date. The right-of-use
asset is adjusted by the same amount.

Sale and leaseback

On entering into a sale and leaseback
transaction the Group determines whether
the transfer of the assets qualifies as a sale
{satisfying a performance obligation in IFRS
15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers'),
Where the transfer is a sale and providing
the transaction is on market terms then the
previous carrying omount of the underlying
asset is split between:

»  aright-of-use asset arising from the
leaseback (being the proportion of the
previous carrying ameount of the asset that
relates to the rights retained), and

= the rights in the underlying asset retained
by the buyer-lessor at the end of the
leaseback.

The Group recegnises a portion of the total
gain of loss on the sale. The amount recognised
is calculoted by splitting the total gain or loss
into:

« anunrecognised amount relating to the
rights retained by the seller-lessee, and

* arecognised amount relating to the buyer-
lessor's rights in the underlying asset ot the
end of the leaseback.

The leaseback itself is then accounted for under
IFRS 14.

Rental income from operating leases where
the Group acts as a lessor is recognised en a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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Treosury Shares

The purchase price of the Group's own shares
that.it acquires is recognised as ‘Treasury
shares’ within equity. When shares are
transferred out of treasury the difference
between the market value and the average
purchase price of shares sold out of treasury is
transferred to retained earnings.

Employee Benefit Trust

An Employee Benefit Trust has been established
for the purposes of satisfying certain
share-based awards. The Group has ‘de-facto’
control over the special purpose entity.

This Trust is fully consofidated within the
accounts, The cost of shares acquired by

the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust is
recognised within-'"Own Share reserve’ in equity.

Share-Based Payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
poymenits to certain Directors and employees.
These are measured at fair value at the date of
grant, which is expensed to the consolidated
Income Statement on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with the corresponding
credit going to equity.

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken
into account in determining grant date fair
value. Instead, they are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
vest. At the end of each reporting period the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
aptions that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting and service conditions. Any
revisions, if any, are recognised in profit and
toss with an adjustment to equity.
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Fair value is caléulated using an adjusted form
of the Black-Scholes model which includes a
Meonte Carlo simulation model that takes into
account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impoct of dilution (where material),
the share price at grant dote and the expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield, and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scheme. The
expected staff numbers used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management's best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions, and behavioural
considerations.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Group measures the services
received and the liability incurred at the fair
value of the liability. Until the liability is settied,
the Group remeasures the foir value of the
ligbility at the end of each reporting period and
at the dote of settlement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Statement
for the period.

The credit for the share based payment charge
does not equal the charge per the income
Statement os it excludes amounts recognised
in the Balance Sheet in relation to the expected
national insurance contributions for the shares.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of any direct issue
costs,

Foreign Currenties

The presentational currency of the Group

is sterling. The functional currency of the
Cormpany is also sterling. Foreign ¢uzrency
transactions are translated into sterling using
the exchange rates prevaifing on the dates
of the transactions. Exchange differences of
_the Company arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are included in the Income
Statement for the period.
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Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary itemns carried

at fair value are included in the Income
Statement for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslaticn of non-monetary
items in respect of which goins and losses are
recognised in other cornprehensive income.
For such non-monetary items, any exchange
component of that gain or foss is also
recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling ot
the bolance sheet date. Non-monetary iterns
thot are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Non-monetary items that are held at valuation
are transioted ot the fareign exchange rate at
the date of the valuation.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations which have a functional

. currency other than sterling are translated

into sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The revenues and

. expenses of these subsidiary undertakings are

translated at average rates applicable in the
period. All resulting exchange differences are
recegnised in other comprehensive income
and documented in a separate component of
equity,

When o foreign eperation is soid, the
cumulative exchange differences that have
been recognised as o separate component
of equity are reclassified from equity to the
Income Statement when the dispesal is
recognised.

In order ta mitigate its exposure to certain
foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into
forward contracts {see Chief Executive's Report
and Business Review and the cash flow hedging
actounting policy).

Dividends International Finuncial Reporting Standards
{"Standards”) In Issue But Not Yet Effective

Dividends are recognised as g liability in
At the date of autharisation of these

the Group's Financial Statements and as a ‘
deduction from equity in the period in which consclidated Financial Statements,

the dividends ore declared. Where such there are no standards in issue from the
dividends are proposed subject to the appraval International Accounting Standards Board
of shareholders, the dividends are regarded {"ASB") or International Financial Reperting
as declared once shareholder approval has Interpretations Committee {*tFRIC") which

been obtained end they are no longer at the are effective for annual accounting periods
discretion of the Compony. beginning on or after 26 Aprit 2021 that will

have o significant impact on these Financial
Materiality Statements.  ~

In preparing the Financial Statements, the
Beard considers both quantitative and
qualitative factors in forming its judgements,
and reloted disclosures, and are mindful of
the need to best serve the interests of its
stakeholders and to evoid unnecessary clutter
borne of the disclosure of immaterial items.

In making this assessment the Board considers
the nature of each item, as well as its size, in
assessing whether any disclosure omissions or
misstaternents could influence the decisions of
users of the Financial Stoterments.

New A ing Stundards, Interp ions And
Amendments Adepted By The Group

The Group has not early adopted any other
standard, interpretation o amendment that
has been issued but is not effective. The Group
apphes for the first time the following new
standards:

+  Definition of Material ~ Amendments to 1AS
Tand IAS 8

+ Definition of a Business - Amendments to
iFRS 3

« interest Rate Benchmark Reform -

Amendments to IFRS 9, |AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS
4 and IFRS 16

« Covid-19 Related Rent Caoncessions -
Amendments to IFR5 16

«  Amendments to References to the !
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Stardards

By adopting the above, there has been no
material impagt on the Financial Statements,
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2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting estimates and
judgements made by the Group regarding

the future or other key sources of estimction,
uncertainty and judgement that may have

a significant risk of giving rise to a mate-ial
adjustment to the carrying vclues of asszts and
liabilities within the next financial perioc are:

Key Judgements
Determining Related Party Relationships

Managerment determines whether a relazed
party relationship exists by ossessing the
nature of the relationship by reference tc

the requirements of IAS 24, Related Party
Disclosures. This is in order to determine
whether significant influence exists as a
result of control, shared directors or parent
companies, or close family relationships. The
ievel at which one porty may be expected

to influence the other is also considered for
transactions involving close family relaticnships.

Control And Significant Influence Over Certain
Entities

Under |AS 28 Investments in Associates ad
Joint Ventures if an entity holds 20% or more of
the voting power of the investee, it is presamed
that the entity has significant influence, unless
it can clearly demonstrate that this is not the
case. During the period the Group has held
greater than 20% of the voting rights of Studio
Retail Group Plc, French Connection Group Plc
(sold during the period} and Mulberry Groap
Plc, whereby management consider that the
Group does not have significant influence over
these entities for combinations of the follcwing
reqsons: :

» The Group does not have any
representation on the board of directos
of the investee other than a Frasers Group
representative having an observer role
on the board of Studio Retail Group Ple.
Management have reviewed the terms
of the observer arrangement and have
concluded that this does not give therr
the right to participote in or influence te
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financial or operating decisions of Studio
Retail Group Plc. Studio Retail Group Ple
can termincte this arrangement at any
time, and can determine which parts of

the Board meetings the representative can
be present at and what information they
are given access to, It should be noted the
Frasers Group representative did not attend
any board meetings in full or part during the
reporting period;

= Thereis no participation in decision
making and strategic processes, including
participation in decisions about dividends
or other distributions;

*  There have been no material transactions
between the entity and these investee
compenies;

+ There has been no interchange of
mancgerial personnel;

= No non-public essential technicat
management information is provided to the
investee.

In assessing the level of control that
maonagement have over certain entities,
management will consider the various aspects
that allow management to influence decision
mcking. This inciudes the level of share
ownership, board membership, the level of
investment and funding and the ability of the
Graup ta influence operational and strotegic
decisions and effect its returns through the
exercise of such influence. If management
were to cansider that the Group does have

“significant influence over these entities then the

equity method of accounting would be used
and the percentage shareholding {disclosed in
note 20) multiplied by the results of the investee
in the period (as disclosed in note 34} would be
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group holds 49% of the share capital of
Four {Holdings) Limited which is accounted
for using the equity method. The Group does
not have any representation on the board

of directors and no participation in decision
about relevant activities such as establishing
operating and copital decisions, including
budgets, appointing or remunerating key
management personnel or service providers

and terminating their services or employment.
However, in prior periods the Group has
provided Four {Holdings) Limited with a
significant loan. At the reporting date, the
amount owed by Four [Holdings) Limited for this
loan totalled £60.0m (E21.6m net of amounts
recognised in respect of {oss allowance). The
Group is satisfied that the existence of these
transactions provides evidence that the entity
has significant influence over the investee but in
the absence of any other rights, in isolation it is
insufficient to meet the control criteria of RS
10, as the Group does not have power over Four
{Holdings) Limited and therefore Four {Holdings)
Lirmited is not equity accounted.

Cash Flow Hedging

The Group uses a range of forward and option
contracts that are entered into at the same
tirne, they are in contemplation with one
another and have the same counterparty.

A judgement is made in determining

whether there is an economic need or
substantive business purpose for structuring
the transactions separately that could not
also have been cccomplished in a single
transaction. Management are of the view that
there is a substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the options and a strategy for
managing the options independently of the
forward contracts. The forward and options
cantracts are therefore not viewed as one
instrument and hedge accounting for the
forwards is permitted.

Under IFRS 2 in erder to achieve cash flow
hedge accounting, forecast transactions
{primarily Euro denominated scles and USD
denominated purchases) must be censidered
to be highly probable, The hedge must be
expected te be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in cash flows attributable
to the hedged-risk. The forecast transaction
that is the subject of the hedge must be highly
probable and must present an exposure to
variations in cash flows that could ultimotely
affect profit or loss. Management have
reviewed the detailed forecasts and growth
assumptions within them, and are satisfied
thot forecasts in which the cash flow hedge
accounting has been based meet the criteria
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per IFRS 9 as being highly probable forecast
transactions. Should the forecast levels not pass
the highly probable test, any cumulative fair
value gains and losses in relation to either the
entire or the ineffective portion of the hedged
instrument would be taken to the Income
Statermnent.

Management considers various factors when
determining whether a forecast transaction is
highly probable. These factors include detailed
sales forecasts by channel, geographical area
ond seasonality, conditions in target markets
and the impact of expansion in new areas.
Management alse consider any change in
alternative customer sales channels that could
impact on the hedged transaction.

If the forecast transactions were determined
to be nat highly probable and all hedge
accounting was discontinued, the Hedging
reserve of £11.5m would be shown in Finance
Income.

Key Estimates

Provivion For Obsolete, Slow Moving Or
Defective Inventories

The Directars have applied their knowledge and
experience of the retail industry in determining
the level and rates of provisioning required in
calculating the appropriate inventory carrying
values. Specific estimates and judgements
applied in relation to assessing the level of
inventory provisions required are considered in
relation to the following areas:

a. Continuity inventory

b. Seascnal inventory lines - specifically
seasons that have now finished

Third party versus own brand inventory
Ageing of inventory

Sports Retail or Premium Lifestyle

m e oa o

Lacal economic conditions

Divisional specific factors

A

Increased cost of inventory and lower
margins with the devaluation of the Pound

i. Owver-stock and out of seasen inventory as a
result of Covid-19
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Provision estimates are forward looking and
are formed using o combination of factors
including historical experience, management's
knowledge of the industry, group discaunting,
soles pricing protocols and the overall
assessment made by management of the

risks in relation to inventory. Management use
a number of internally generated reports to
monitor and continually re-assess the adequacy
and accuracy of the inventory provision. The
additional cost of repricing inventory and
handling charges in relation to refocating
inventery [tunnetling} are considered in arriving
at the appropriate percentage provisian. The
assessment involvessignificant estimation
uncertainty, therefore in order to check

that the assumptions applied remain valid,
management produces a range of outcomes
and the provision is set within this range.

Key assumptions used to create the estimates
are:

+ Discounting - Based on historical
experience and management's anticipoted
future discounting including the impact of
Covid-19 .

+ Tunnelling — Cost of handling stock for
reworking, repacking ond repricing

* Repricing - Labour cost associated with
repricing units of stock

= Shrinkage - Stock lest through domage and
theft

Total Group inventory provision at 25 April 2021
is 16.6% (F¥20: 15.7%). A 1% change in the total
provision would impact underlying EBITDA by
approx. £13.2m {FY20: £14.2m). Manogement
do not consider it appropriate to disclose

s for key assumptions in isolation as
in practice changes in one assumption woulg
lead to an offset in another,

Property Related Provisions

Property related estimates and judgements

are continually eveluated and are based on
histarical experience, externof odvice and other
factars, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.,

86

- .
v

whon Canued thranah e Woodhnd 1

Dilapidations

The Group provides for its legal responsibility
for dikapidation costs following advice from
chartered surveyors and previous experience
of exit costs {including strip out costs and
professional fees). Management use a reference
estimate of £100,000 (F¥20: £100,000) for large
leasehold stores, £50,000 (FY20: £50,000) for
sraller leasehold stores {£25,000 per store

for Game UK and Game Spain stores) and
$/€50,000 (FY20: $/€50,000) for non-UK stores,
Management do not consider these costs to be
capital in nature and therefore dilapidations
are not capitalised, except for in refation to

the sale and leaseback of Shirebrook in the
ptior period in which a material dilapidations
pravision was capitalised.

A 10% increase in dilapidation cost per store
would result in on approx. £8.0m reduction in
underlying EBITDA.

Other Provisions

Provisions are made for items where the Group
has identified a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of @ past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the cbligotion and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Legol and requlatary provisions relate to
management’s best estimates of provisions
required for legal and regulotory claims and
ongoing nen-UK tox enquiries, Other provisions
relate to management's best estimates

of provisions required for restructuring,
employment and commercial. Where
applicable these are inclusive of any estimated
penalties, interest and legal costs. See note 28.

In relation to the non-UK tax enquiries
managerment hove made o judgement to
consider all cloims collectively, applying the
following key estimates to the gross amounts
{exciuding re-imbursement assets):

«  10% penalty [FY20: 10%). A 5% increase to
15% would result in approx £6.5m increase
in the provision (FY20: approx. £7.0m}.

s 3% interest on the liability (FY20: 3%). A
1% increase to 4% would result in approx.
£11.5m increase in the provision (FY20:
approx. £10.0mj.

Manoagement tre satisfied that the judgement
to consider all ¢laims collectively is the only
reasonable approach because they cre all
dependant on the outcome of a court ruling on
the interpretation of the non-UK tax enquirles.
Management are satisfied that with regord to
timing a reasonable range of cutcomes are alt
greater than one year ond so are satisfied with
including the provisians as pon-current,

Other Receivables And Amounts Owed By
Related Porties

Other receivobles and amounts owed by
related parties are stated net of provision for
any impairment. Management have applied
estimotes in assessing the recoverability of
working c¢apital and loan advances made to

investee companies. Mattars considered include
the relevant financial strength of the underlying

investee company to repay the loans, the
repayment period and underlying terms of the
mohies advanced, forecast performance of the
underlying borrower, and where relevant, the
Group's intentians for the companies to which
monies have been advanced.

FRASERS GROUP

IFRS 16

The key areas of judgement in relation to
property leases recognised under IFRS 16
ore below: .

= IFRS 16 defines the lease term as the non-
cancellabte period of @ lease together
with the options to extend or terminate o
lease, if the lessee were reasonably certain
to exercise that option. The Group will
assess the likelihood of extending lease
contracts beyond the break date by taking
inte account current economic and market
conditions, current trading performance,
forecast profitability ond the level of capital
investment in the property.

= [FRS 16 states that the lease payments shall
be discounted using the lessee's incremental
barrowing rate where the rate implicit in
the lease cannot be readily determined.
Accordingly, all lease payments have been
discounted using the incrementa! borrowing
rate (IBR). The IBR has been determined
by using a synthetic credit rating for the
Group which is used to obtain market data
on debt instruments for companies with the
same credit rating, this is split by currency
to represent each of the geographical areas
the Group operates within and adjusted for
the jease term,



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

The weighted averdage discount rates based on incrementaf borrowing rates used throughout the
period across the Group's lease portfolic are shown below. The discount rate for each lease is
dependent on lease start date, term anc location,

Ladss Tarm uK Rureps Rast of Warld
Upta S yaars 14% - 1 8% 03% - 0 5% 15% - 3 3%
Greater thon § years anc up to 10 years 20% -2 2% 05% - 12% 35% - 35%
Grealer than 10 yeors ond ug ta J0 years 4% -3 5% 0% -14% 9% 3%
Greater thon 20 years 25% - 2 8% 115 - 1 7% 35%-318%

*  The right of use asset will be reviewed for impairment at each reporting period in line with IAS
36 impairment to review whether the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable omount. For
impairment testing purposes the Group has determined that each store is o separate CGU. The

. recoverable amount is calculated based on the Group's lotest forecast cash flows which are
then extrapolated to cover the period to the break date of the lease taking inte account historic
performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group's views on future
profitability of each CGU. The key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates,
gross margin rates, changes in the operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived
from the Group's weighted average cost of capitel using the capital asset-pricing model, the
inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity risk premium ond a risk adjustment (Beta). Given
the number of assumptions used the assessment involves significant estimation uncertainty.
The assumptions used are consistent with those disclosed in the Freehold Land and Buildings
and Long-term leasehold section below. Impairments in the period have been recognised for
the amount of £174.9m, being £168.2m against the right-of-use asset (£114.1m UK Sports Retail
segment, £20.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £31.0m European Retail segment, and £2.6m Rest
of the World Retail segment] and £6.7m against plant and equipment {£2.6m UK Sports Retail
segment, £0.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £3.6m European Retail segment). The impairments
were due to the ongeing impact of Covid-19 and the chellenges in the retail sector on the
forecast cash flows of the CGU.

The key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGU, in the cosh flow prejections used to
support the carrying amount of the right of use asset are consistent with the cashflow projections for
the Freehold land and Buildings impoirment assessment.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of soles and margin as these are considered to
be the mast sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed a sensitivity for both o ockdown inyear 1 ond o lockdown which lasts four months
compared to two months:

Freshold Land and Buildings and Long-term leazehold

Freehold land and buildings and long-term leasehold assets are assessed at each reperting pericd
for whether there is any indication of impairment in line with 1AS 36 impoirment.

An asset is impaired when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. JAS 36 defines
recoverable amount as the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair vaiue less costs

of disposal and its value in use, the Group has determined that each store is g separate CGLU.
Impairments in the period have been recognised in the amount of £1177.9m (FY20: £nil] due to the
ongoing impact of Covid-12 and the challenges in the retail sector on the forecast cash flows of

the CGU. This is split £84.4m against freehold land and buildings (£68.7m UK Sports Retail segment
and £15.7m European Retail segment), £3.9m against long-term leasehold (£2.9m UK Sports Retail
segment and £1.0m European Retail segment}, £29.0m plant & equiprment (E15.7m UK Sports Retail
segment, £8.8m Premium Lifestyle segment, £5.1m European Retail segment), and £0.6m investment
property {all UK Sports Retail segment).

Value In Use {ViU}

The value in use is calculated based on five year cash flow projections, These are formulated by
using the Group's forecast cash flows of each individuat CGU excluding any Covid-19 impact, taking
into account historic performance of the CGU, and then adjusting for the Group's current views on
future profitability of each CGU s a result of Covid-19 and knowledge of the current market. The
key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates, gross margin rates, changes in the
operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived from the Group's weighted average cost
of capital using the capital asset pricing maodel, the inputs of which include o risk-free rate, equity
risk premium and a risk adjustment (Beta). Given the number of assumptions used the assessment
invalves significant estimation uncertainty.

The key assumptions, which are equally applicoble to each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to
support the carrying amount of the freehotd land and buildings were as follows:

Key ausumphions Yoar1 Yaur2 Yuat 1 Yaer & Yaar§
Sales decline 15%, 5% 4% -a% 2%
Exsstng grass margin » 40% “100bps Msbps 1500ps 125bps A00bps
Operating costs increase per onnum % 1% 1% % 3%
Discount 1ate 5% % 6% % &%

Foracast: Impact of change in Impoirment inereae /

atsumption: {dwerannal Em
Sales year 1 - No lockdown 15% - improvement (239
Sales year | — 4 months lockdown 1596 - reduction A1%
Lx08ting Gross Margin year 1 »40% 1006ps - nprovement 14 61
£wishing Gross Margin year | =40% 100bps - raduction 53

Tesmural oformth ke of 2%

A sensitivity anodysis hos been performed in respect of sales and margin s these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in year 1 and o lockdown which lasts four months
compared to two months:
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Forecant: Impart ok _.._on_...._-._..n.-__...-.o--u.u. h
Sales yaor 1 - No lackdawn 15% - impravement 1533
Sales yeor t « & months lockdown 15% - raduction 576
£ xishing Grass Margin yeur 1 >40% 100bp3s - 1mi 74
Exsting Gross Margm year 1>40% 1DOLps - reducton 93
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Fer those CGUs where the value in use is less than the carrying vaiue of the asset, the fair volue less
casts of disposal has been determined using both external and internal market vatuations. This Fair
value is deemed to foil in to Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as per IFRS 13. The property portfolio
consists of vacant, Frasers Group occupied and third party tenanted units, one property can include
all three types. The following valuation methodology has been adopted for each:

S¢enaria Yoluatien mathedelegy

Koy

Vacant wries

Estumared Rentol Yolue [ERV) and switable reversonary yreld

Vord pariga ond rent Iree band « two bands apphied depending

apphed to rellect \he wiarket to genarate u nat copatal valug & on CircumStances

deduction to the copitol value gunarated s then mace bosed
voud penod with applicable rates poyable for the unit

o th
ond sent hiee inceritve

= 1yearvoud, 2 yeors rent hree, ar
= 2yearsvod, 3 yeors rent lree
Vigld bands - ranging lrem 7o, - 5%

Frosers Group eccupred

reversonory yeld.
4 that Four wolua lss costs ta sell wil e higher
P n tiws vary

Will be assumed the unit is vacant given thers 1s no agolly
binding Inker-company agresment i place. Eharefore a void
and rent free incentive perios assumed, the cost amaunt then
deducted from the capital vatue generated by the ERV and
augh we consider the commercict reahly *

Void pancd and rent ez band - two kands apphed depenting
A CIICUrnstanees

+ Vyearvoud, 2 yeors ren! free, or

2 years void, 3 years e -
Yietd bancls - ranging from 7% - 15%

hoth technical occcunting rules and that of eur manugement

EeXDETY

Third party tenanted An ERY 5 upplied ysing @ percemiage band an the passing fent
An aproprate reversionary yield v opplied reflacting the risk
of tanant and renewal Lo ganerate o capital valug This wilt also

prowide o net il yisld based off the urrent passing e

€8V baps npphed 1o possng rent - runging frem 0% ta -50%
Yl bonds - ranging fram & 58 - 15%

A 10% increase in the market valuation amounts used in the impairment calculations would result in

a decreose in impairment of £7.5m.

The total recoverable amount of the assets that were impaired at the period end was £170.0m, with
£87.0m of this being based on their Fair vatue less costs of dispesal and £83.0m being based on their

value in use.

Key Estimates In Relation To Alternative
Parformance Measures

The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA,
underlying Profit before tax and underlying
basic EPS provide further useful information for
sharehelders on the underlying performance

of the Business in addition to the reported
numbers and are cansistent with how business
performance is measured internally, They are
not recognised profit measures under IFRS and
may not be directly comparable with "adjusted”
profit measures used by other companies.
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EBITDA is earnings hefore investment income,
finance income and finance costs, tax,
depreciction, amortisation and impairment.

it includes the Group's share of losses from
associated undertakings ond joint ventures.
Underlying EBITDA excludes the impact of IFRS
16, foreign exchonge goins/losses in selling and
administration costs, exceptional costs, and the
profit / loss on disposal of subsidicries, strotegic
investments and properties. Underlying EBITDA
also excludes fair value adjustments on step
acquisitians,

Management will from FY22 change our main
reporting KP! from Underlying EBITDA to
Adjusted PBT, Thus from FY22 the Group will no
longer report Underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT
is Reported Profit Before Tox |less the effects of
unhedged FX, exceptional items, and gains apd
losses on strateqgic investments. Management
have taken this decision for the following
reasons;

«  With the continued significant investment
in and roll out of our elevation strategy
an both the physital and digital fronts,
the importance of depreciation and
amortisation to both the Board and
our stakeholders in terms of assessing
performonce has grown.

+  Our understanding from a number of
financial sectors including the banking
secter is thot IFR516 is becoming an
increasingly impartont consideration,
including on covenants in many new
financing arrongements.

*  With this new measure being introduced
we are trying to align with the Financial
Reparting Council's thematic standpoint
with regard to ‘clternative performance
measures' as far as possible whilst retaining
a degree of interpratation given factors
outside of our control, such as FX and
strategic investments maovements which
are exceptionally difficult to forecast,

* particularly months in advance.The
following are further key estimates used
with regard to the alternative performance
measures used by the group.

Onerous lease provision

Pravisions for onerous lease contracts are
recognised when the unavoidable costs of
meeting lease obligations exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received over the terrm
of the lease. Where an onerous lease has been
identified, the property, plant and equipment
assacioted to that store are also reviewed for
impairment.

Management use store EBITDA in order to
determine whether an onerous lease exists.
Specific assumptions, which involve the use of
estimates and involve significant estimation
uncertointy, that are used to determine the
appropriate level of provision are consistent
with the cashflow projections for the Freehoid
lond and Buildings assessment except for the
following:

* Discount rate 2% (FY20: 2% across the
Group

*  Operating costs increose 3% [FY20: 3%)
across the Group

*  Store profitability includes 100%
contribution towards central overheods

*  Assumed get out cap of 10 years {FY20: 10
years), being the maximum period for total
unavoidable costs

*  Planned stere closures, relocations and re-
brandings

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to

be the most sen

ve of the key assumptions. With regord to the sales assumption below we have

performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in year 1 ¢nd a lockdown which lasts four months

compared to twe months:

Pravisien ineesuss /

Foracask: Impat of: (dacruans) Lm
S et ] - N ot krigwn 15% - suproyerment vt 4
Sales yeiir | - 4 manths loukdown 15% 1510
[ Grass Margn yeor 1 >40% 1005 provarment 112 6}
Exsting Griss Margin year 1 >40% 100bps - neduction 5

Further information on the basis of the estimation of provisioning for dilapidations and onerous lease
contracts is detailed in the provisions accaunting policy and note 28.

Impairments of plant and equipment and short-term leasehold improvements of £24.2m have also
been recognised as a result of identified onerous lease contracts (£6.4m UK Sports Retail segment,
£2.7rn Premium Lifestyle segment, £151m European Retail-segment).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's current activities result in the
following financial risks and set out below are
management’s responses to those risks in order
to minimise any resulting adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Foreign Exchonge Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
principally via;

a, Transactional exposure from the cost of
future purchases of goods for resale, wheye
those purchases are denominated ina
currency other than the functional currency
of the purchasing company. Transactionc
exposures that could significantly impact
the income statement are hedged. These
exposures are hedged via forward foreign
currency contracts which are designated
as cash flow hedges. The notional and fair
value of these contracts is shown in note 29;

b. Transactional exposure from the sale of
goods, where those sales are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the selling company.
Transoctional exposures that could
significantly impact the income statement
are hedged. These expasures are hedged
via forward foreign currency contracts
which are designated as cash flow hedges.
The notional and fair value of these
contracts is shown in note 29;

c. Loons to non-UK subsidiaries. These are
hedged via foreign currency transactions
and borrowings in matching currencies,
which are not formally designoted as
hedges, as gains and losses on hedges and
hedged leans will naturaily offset; and

d. The Groupuses currency options, sSwaps
and spots for more flexibility against cash
flows that are less than highly probable
and therefore do not qualify for hedge
accounting under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. Exposures in respect of
written options to seli Euros or buy USD are
explained in the Financial Review. These
are not hedged cnd movements in fair
value could significantly impoct the ncome
Statement in future periods. See note 29.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group has net borrowings, which are
principally at floating interest rates linked to
bank base rates or LIBOR. The Group uses
interest rate financiat instruments to hedge

its exposure to interest rate movements using
interest rate swaps although hedge accounting
is not applied. The Group regularly monitors
and reacts accordingly to any exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates and the impact on
its monetary assets and liabilities.

Cradit Risk

The Directors have a ¢redit policy in ploce
and the exposure to credit risk is monitored
on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are
perfermed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. The Group deoes not
require collateral in respect of financial ossets.

At each balance sheet date, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk. The
muaximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the balance sheet.

Investments of cash surpluses, borrowings and
derivative instruments are made through banks
and companies which must fuifil credit rating
and investment criteria approved by the Board.

Liquidity Risk

The Group has sufficient liquid resources to
manage the operating requirements of the
business and it does this through utilisation
of its revolving credit facilities together with
equity and retained profits thereby achieving

continuity of funding and short-term flexibility,
while keaping interast to a minimum.

Management regularly review forecasts to
ensure there is adequate headrocm on the
facilities and to ensure the Group is operating
within its financial covenants.

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect
of its long term financial ossets (in refation to
listed company shares).

The price risk relates to volatility in the market,
and how other comprehensive income and
equity would have been offected by changes
in market risk that were recsonably possible at
the reporting date. If the quoted stock price for
these securities increased or decreased, other
comprehensive income and equity would have
changed. The listed securities are classified as
Long term investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income so there would be
no effect on profit or ioss.

The investments in listed equity securities
{long-term financial assets) are considered
medium to long-term strategic investments,
In accordance with the Group's policies, no
specific hedging activities are undertaken in
relation to these investments.

Capital Management

A description of the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for monaging capital are
included in note 29.
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4. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

In accordance with paragraph 12 of iIFRS 8

Segmental informetion for the 52 weeks ended

FRASERS GROUP

M hos g ined the Group's eperating segments have been 25 April 2021:

Management has detemined ta present aggregated into the following reportable ) .
its segmental disclosures consistently with SROMEents: I Prmiem UKRatalt  Zurapeon Totel | Whelniole g Greap
the presentation in the 2020 Annual Report. g - tports  Lifmtyle Total Rutall Werld Rutail Retoll & Licaming netien Tate)
Management considers operationally that 1. UK Retuil: PR a—— G_M,.“ MH nmn ”...h.._ .”aw :_M.” ,“._w Ll .HH

- X Ll s {0 eate rat custamenrs } . 2 157 AT LS 1 823
the C._A mm»,u__ divisions {UK Sports mm.:.u:_ and i. UK Sports Retail - includes core sports Sules 1o cther sagrants - - - - 954 195 4) -
Prermium Lifestyle) are run os one business h N R UK,

Nt in terms of allocating reseurces. invento retad store operations in the UK, plus oil REVENUE 13605 T34 27044 o5 w2y 1410 a7 34y 38253

m. t Y the Group's sports retail online business Gruss protit 8293 3303 1596 1397 40 14813 675 15304
management and assessing performance. . . - :

j - lexcluding Bob's Stores, Eastern OFLHATING FROFIT

Under IFRS 8 we hove not at this reporting Mountain Sports, Malaysia and Baltics), (LOII)REFCRE FORTION
date met the required criteria with m:ocmr the ayms, the 0m0c s Shirebrook d ﬂﬂﬂ_ﬁu.n-mhm)n”ﬂnzbr %7 20 sy {sk.e] "e E 20.1 2.8
nm;aiﬁﬂ_ nﬂummﬂ@onm&nrmwn o_.ﬂum:un‘._ﬂm 4 campus operations, GAME UK stores PROPERTIES AND IFRS 16
wmmmwcmﬂwwccmm.“:%w:-%“ﬂmﬂmanﬂmm_ﬂ_mz er and anline operaticns, ond retail store m,rmu,_oa:s.._” ﬁ 14y i fo.) e o1 - »y

’ " ’ " i ’ operations in Northern lreland. e 75 - % . - i . - s
continue to monitor the impacts of Covid-19, P Ll G53eh
Brexit, and the continued uncertainties this i Premium Lifestyle - includes the Broft an sot of prepertis - - - s pd - 22
has brought relating to the politicat and tesults of the premium retail businesses ?Eﬂ axchange realsed 53” ©2) (2041 on 4] :..“ 153} - “.-.._

. ﬂ & - N N .\ IFRS 18 udljustment (79l 17 @a.zl ar 135 85 - - 5.0}
ecenomic m:<_.q.o:_.\.._m3nm, and B,n_ﬁrmn and lannels, Cruise, Von Mildert, Jack Wilks, OPERATING (LOSS}/PROFIT LX) P (36.4) 5.4 U .y us - 180.3)
cursency volatility in the countries we operate House of Fraser and Sofa.com atong
in. European countries have been identified as with related websites. Investment incume m7
operoting segments and have been aggregated 3 Eyrapean Retail - includes ali the Group’s P — L
into a single eperating segment as permitted sports retail stores, management and - e
- " Finaare costs
under IFRS 8. The decision to aggregate these operations in Europe including the Group's P ————
segments was based on the fact that they each Eurapean Distribution Centres in Belgium "
have si _nq economic ¢haracteristics, similar and Austric, as well as GAME Spain stores 0S5 FOR TREPERIOD
3:@.613. m_.zna,na, performance mx_.umhwazozm. and Baltics anfine. - i
and are similar in each of the following ) Other segment items included in the income
respects: 3. Rest of World Retail - includes the results of Statement for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021:
US based retail activities, Asia based retai N
+  The nature of the products; activities, along with their e-commerce UK Pramium  UKRatall  Eurspaan o Whelerals Group
. offerings. Sports Lidustyle Totul Retall Werld Retall & Licaming Tetal
The type or class of custamer for the 95 A s ) it m tm) el el
praducts; and 4, Wholesale & Licensing — inclucles the results & equipment deprecionan 1538 204 i 353 5t 12 144
«  The methods used to distribute the of the ﬁ.a.ﬂoch_m portiolia of internationolly nt & equiprment impoirment 956 26 w074 s - wz
products. recognised brands such as Everlast, B 61 5T 7y 23 az1

) Karsimor, Lonsdale and Siazenger. 157 05 ™4 M 2 502

it is management's current intention to run the neinuent proverly Tepeel on i 12 12
DE:U o faur eperating segments being UK HM.M“:E__ u.J.!J av“‘..ima - 0g - L - [ - [
Retoil {including UK Sports Retail and Premium e 1700; 56l =2 o o7 1227} 2]
Lifestyle), European Retail, Rest of World Retail ngible amorksation - - - 05 - [N 66 71
and Wholesale & Licensing. Management is mogirment 37 I 5.0 31 K 21 g .
satisfied that the UK Sports Retail and Premium
Lifestyle will meet the criteria perritted under
IFRS 8 to aggregate as one segment in due
caurse.

g0
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information regarding segment assets end liabilities as at 25 April 2021 and capital expenditure for

Infermation regarding segment assets and liabil

ies as at 26 April 2020 and capital expenditure for

the 52 weeks then ended: the 52 weeks then ended:
UK Femium  UKHetoll  European  Restof Totol  Wholesals [ UK Prambyn  UKRstoll - Burpeom  RestOf Total  Whalsels
Sperts  Litesiyle Total Ratall Wosrld Rutall Ratail & Uceming atient fparte  Litwstyhe Tetal Retail Werld Retait Ratoll & Licansing T o
tEm) tm) tom) tm () {Emj e} (tmy tem) im {Em) {Em) itm Iem tem) fem
‘Total assets 3,535 2 4387 19719 68 158 R 48022 447 11362 % Totol nssets 33249 4747 LS 4559 128 A 43349 3a413 [BH0 2]
Total labilites 12,357 8) 455 &) 124574) 18570/ 1531] (3,00%.3) {1215} 1367 % Total hobiktes 11986 8] 556 t] 11.542.9) 162200 1951) {1,384.0) {83 1) BAO 2
Tongibie osset oddit 1746 n9 6.5 174 10 8.y 75 M4 langibie asser additians 23668 254 a3 487 125 Ms - - 313.5
Right of usa asset additions 775 N 141 e 243 2a ma 13 - ma Right of use assat addtions 506 729 s 355 i 101.2 - - 1012
kl assats ocquited 27 &) 1né 11 - LT - - 147
Intangibsle assels acquired 37 23 60 - - 4.0 10 e
Geographic Information
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020: .
Segmentat information for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021;
UK Pramium  UKReteH  Eurcpean Total  Whal, Uiminations Greup
Sporti Litust] Total Retall Retail &L Totol
porte i caming uK Kurops A Asin Eliminations Tokah
{ (£ E £
femi fomd (Cm em! {em fm L fem) em) tEm) m) tm ) tem)
Soles o external customers 23033 7720 29253 5977 42 L] 16a2 - 1984 Segmental revenus from external Lustomers Pl Bds 217 237 . 34283
Sales to other segments : - - - W e higt ‘ Totol copitel sxpenditure 156 5 a7 23 . 1194
REVINUL 12032 210 19183 477 1.2 L2 o (7.0 29514 Non-current seqrent astets* 0822 148 a7 16 ‘ PR
Gruss prolit 5032 3ed6 1,818 7679 L] LA L] 53 16026 Total segrencal assats 22647 3892 562 we  pams) 1Sy
RATING PROFIY /
(LOSS| BEFORE FOREIGH i *tacludes delerrad tax and financial instrumants
EXCHANGE, EXCEPTHINAL uss (5.0) e s {in.s) 120.5 n4 s
ITEMS AND IFRE 1S - c . - o
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020;
Excaptionsl tems 27 159) 14 P (1.9 - -
Profit an sale at properbes 3332 112 N0 - 542 uk LAl us Asia Ellminatiens Total
Forengn exchonge raclised s 14 08 a1 0a 34 105 fm) UL L] e (L] ftm)
IERS 16 oudfustiments 23 ©n a4} (46 5¢ 79 48.0) . ~ Segroental revenue from external customers 25510 223 2352 489 - 19574
OPERATING PROFIT / {LOSS) 018 {92.2) ™y o4} 1%1] W 109 . Tctal copital expenditure 615 568 19 1% - 1313
\nvestmant 1ncome Non-current segmental nssets® 11726 n31 104 18 - 13098
Investment costs Total seqrrental aisats 34611 4133 3545 395 Be0 2} 32582
finance ncome *Excludes deferred tax and financsal instrumants
Finance cast
share of loss af associated ’ 5 Material non-current segmental assets - by anon-UK country:
ungertakngs 3
HNENEH_W._,__ on step 204 USA  Batghm Antria Estemia Iraland Spain
£ E)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION s fem ) fomd {tm ol o
Frn 1277 468 314 - 179 1349
Toxabon 423
FY20 1738 412 03 4] 529 6T
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD H G
. Material segmentcl revenue from external customers ~ by o non-UK country:
Sales to other segments are priced at cost plus a 10% mark-up. 9 . Y i
Other segment items inciuded in the Income Statement for the 52 waeks ended 26 April 2020: UIA - Belghm Autla Besla e Secin
) ttm tEm o [l [t tm
UK Feemium  UKRetall  Eurspean Rest OF Total  Wholasale Greup. i - nv 931 21 w67 1954 2081
Sperts  Litestyls Tokoh Wetail World Retoil Ratoil & Licanaing Totak 1o 182 455 557 021 i [
ftm) L] 1wt L] {Em) fmd teml Jem Note me Geaup hus no wdwiduat customes which nccounts for more than 10% of rewenue i the current or pror penad
Deprecation 985 207 hLEY 354 - AH 1614 - 14 e
IFRS 15 ROU daprecuabionling: 131 161 129.2 10 133 125 - s
IFRS 16 disposal of lease liabilibes 27 02| [:1 1Y 16 41 04 - 133
Excaptianal lmpoirment e 59 .8 35 - na RER ]
Amornsationfimpantment 21 20 41 39 - a0 124 204

Ell
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The following table reconciles the reported operating profit ta the underlying EBITDA as it has heen
one of the main measures used by the Chief Operating Decision Maker when reviewing performance
during the period:

Reconciliotion of operating {loss)/profit to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week period
ended 25 April 2021:

e T erdinty ot S Gy
tem) {Em) {Em) {em) Em) ) 1Em) IEm)
OPERATING (LOSEI / PROFIT 1383} £k {364) 153 4} ue 3.2) w3 ey
o rd fiom 156 (2580 E] ary . @
IFRS 16 ROU deprat otian 55 64 579 ne 23 e - 21
IFRS. 16 ROU wnparmant 1141 05 s so is ras.7
”H,mvm.wﬂm:u.a_. cuting ;nvestmant 1557 104 76 3853 57 ] 1
”ﬂmuﬁ_ﬂm.ag. nehuding ivestment %32 120 1082 s - a4 urs
Intangible amortisation - - - 03 - 0% (1] ba
REFORTER ERTTOA nez 78 ana s ws s 217 265
Proflllocs on sate of properties no - ha) (6 8} 01 Ir3) (LX)
Exceptions] lems 16 (18) Ell - 14 - 18
IFKS 16 odjustments: 1761} (235) 99.4) 1633 104) (L) 1813}
Reched FX lass / lgawt 202 02 w4 (0.8) 14 e 53 3
UNDERLYING EBITDA, Moz 519 334 41 e 3828 20 19018

Relates to tha reversul of IFRS 16 rent

Recenciliation of cperating profit te underlying EBITDA for the 52 week pericd ended 26 April 2020:

1d anerous lease provisions.

" UK Rt

ux Pramium Europaan Rust OF Total  Whetssals Group
Sports  Litestyle Total Rotail Werld Rutail Ratoll & Licamsing Tot:

lem) iEm} lem) [Em] £m) {Em) (Em) temi

OPERATIHG PROFIT / [LOSS) Ty 33 T . (Hrdy {33} 1810 109 Rl
IERS ¥ Oesposal of lease liokility 1271 03 2.0} 16 ) 10 1) 9.3
IFRS 16 ROU depreciotlanf impairment 131 9.3 7o 133 9.3
IFRS 16 PPE impowment 32 - L X 60 - L] 91
Depreeuhion 05 3 206 nsy N 18 L% ‘4 1556
Amartisatian/impoirment 21 0 LE] 33 . 20 175 105
Shara of loss ¢f dssocioted undertakings s . sy - - Hss; - (159}
HEPORTED EBITDA 403.0 52 [LI%] 016 4.4 $20.2 248 5.0
Prafit on sole of oroperties 332 - 33.2) [Fallsl] - i54.2) (s4.21
Exceptianal tems 27 a9 ‘ae a5 - LX) - 1.
IFRS 16 adpsiments s g 16 (az.0) 1301 126 8) 79 (m29)
Realised £X [goin] / loss {2921 51 ey 1421 104 7331 a4 {34.9)
UNDERLYING EBITOA 2174 It ms a1 18) b 5.2 3021

Relates to the reversol al

RS 16 rent and onerois lease provisions
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5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

52 waeks ended S1wasks ended

25 Apeil 2021 28 Aprl 030

om) . {em

et tecaivobw 161
Other 0! %2
% 128

ier aperating rmcome ralites 1o chniges bor aecralt, leose sutender prermiums, ad hog incorme ond sundry chorges Lo thied partles

6. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

SZweaksa 32 wasks endad

2% April 2021 26 April 2020

1em) tm)

Imeirengnts [tER)
Proht on dispesal o assets -
[\ 1310

The impoirmient in both the corrent and priar yeai felates to goodwll, whtleby the distounted present vaftue of futuns carsh Hows 46 tat support the full
vallug of the assats The probt on ditposal of & uskets relotes to the sale of corton IP rex & BELOING Liusinass.

7. PROFIT ON SALE OF PROPERTIES

52 wasks onded 52 weaks andud
25 April 2021 18 Apiil 3020
tem} 1&m)
Prolit oy sals of propartias ¥7 543
The prohit on the sote af propertias in th current perad meludes gains on tha sole of Europaan propamies The prior penod lorgely 1 the gain an
the sqle nnd laaseback of the Shirsbraok distriution centrs lunds A, B C, 0and F Braok Park Fast, Slyrebraok NGO 8HY)

8. OPERATING (LOSS}/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
Operating (loss)/profit for the period is stuted after charging/{crediting):

52 wenks ehded 31 washt snind
25 April 2024 8 April 2020
R 1Em)
Foneign exchnnge loss / iy 263 134 9]
DEPREGIATION AND AMORTISATICHN OF NON-CURRENT ASIETS:
~Depreaytion of property, pnt & sausinent lincl, nght-af-use asset) ES 584
“itmpontment of property, plant £ squipment fincl nght-of-usa asssr| 364 016
-Nepreriation of nvestrmet propedfies 19 33
<tmpuwment at investment progerty G6
Arnortisution of ifbang n [EH
Impairment of tongilie assers Ell 190
IFRS 18 LEASES:
Praft on cieposol and madiicatien/emeasarement of lrase babiities 127 [Eail
vunohle lanse poymants ° 755 %8
Shart berm and low value leose expenses 316 560
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SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP'S AUDITOR

The remuneration of the auditors, RSM UK Audit LLP, and associated firms, was as detailed below:

. 52 wasks snded 51 wenhs ended
5 Apri 2031 16 April 2020
iEm) {Em}

AUDIT SERYICES
Aucht of the Group und compahy - recurnng 15 16
Aucht of the Group and compeny * nan-recurring 01 v4
hudit of supsdiory companies - . L] 0l
Audit 1&/ated ossuronce services . o1
T4 29

There were no non-audit services provided in either the current or prior period.

9. PAYROLL COSTS

The average monthly number of empioyees, including Executive Directors, employed by the Group
during the period was:

53 waehs ended 32 wanks snded

25 April 2021 24 April 2020

Retoll staras 22022 25,505
Distribution, admmistration und ather 4324 4,675
24,496 201

The decrease in employees is mainly due to natural attrition, including in part, the integration of new
acquisitions.

The aggregate poyroll costs of the emplayees, including Executive Directors, net of amounts received
from Government grants, were as follows:

52 wanks snded 91 weahs sndad

15 Apri 202 16 Apeil 2020

‘Wages and sglories 3421 456 4
Sacigl securlly costs 93 305
Pension costs - i 56 59
- bisA] 4918

Aggregate emaluments of the Directors of the Company are summarised below:

53 weaks endad 52 wewks anded

25 Apell 2021 26 Aprd 2020

{emy [£m]

Aggregate emaoments o5 04

Further details of Directors’ remuneration are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report. Details of
key management remuneration are given in note 34,
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10. INVESTMENT INCOME

52 wueks wnded 52 wasknended

5 April 203t 26 Apri 2020

Hml - [m}

Proft on disposal of inoncial asssts and equity dervubive financial mnstryrients 274 74
Premium recerved on dervative financiol instruments WE R
Fair volue gam on equity denvitive financigl instruments 552 71
Dividend income as a5
1017 5.4

The profit én disposel of financial assets mainly relates to Hugo Boss contracts for difference. The
fair value gain on equity derivative financial instruments mainly relates to Hugo Boss options and
contracts for difference. The premium received on derivative financial instruments mainly relates to
Hugo Boss options.

M. INVESTMENT COSTS

52 washs snided 52 weahs snded

- 25 Al 2021 26 April 2020

(£m) {Em}

Lots on Hisposal of finanriol ossets and equity denvative b - 1]
Faur value loss on aquity dervotive [inoncial instrumeants T ECL]
7 438

The fair value loss on equity derivatives in the current period mainly relotes to movements in
cantracts for difference.

The loss on dispesal recognised in the prior pericd mainly relates to the sale of equity derivatives,
The fair value loss on equity derivatives in the prior pericd mainly retates to Hugo Boss options and
cormmodities.

12. © FINANCE INCOME

52 wanks snded ‘32 wenks ended

35 Aprit 2921 8 Aprii 2020

i 1Em)

Bonk est raceivable 35 16
Other hnance incoime 55 a1
Fair value adjustment to dervatve finaneial matruments - n3
b A no

The fair value adjustment to derivative financial instruments relates to differences between the fair
value of forword fereign currency contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge
accounting from ene period end to the next. Other finance income largely relates to premiums
received on option contracts,

v woodiand aoress e UK
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13. FINANCE COSTS ' 15. EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS
S R ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
25 April 3021 k] we - - . N .
" e " i Basic sarnings per share is calculated by dividing the eornings attributoble to ordinary shareholders
Iterast om bonk loams ard verdrafts ™ s of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
' Other interest B¢ 24 For diluted earnings per share, the weighted averoge number of shares, 501,955,281 (FY20:
VMME_E. retwement benejt ligatons u £l 505,826,890}, is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares under the
interest 09 - . - N
.m : a_ - - — — ” “M Group's share schemes, being 88,605 [FY20: 1,239,075). to give the diluted weighted average number
N vl Taneie meuments - o1 e of shares of 502,043,886 {FY20: 507,065,965). However, as there is a loss for the period ended 25 April
. - 2021, the effect of potentially dilutive ordinury shares is anti-dilutive, and therefore the weighted
The fair value adjustment to derivative financial instruments relates to differences between the fair average number of shares for the Diluted EPS caleulation has been kept the same as for the Basic
value of forward foreign currency contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge EPS calculation for the current period.
accounting from one period end to the next. i . N
Basic And Diluted Earnings Per Share
14. TAXATION 52 mesktanded
15 April 18 april 28 April 24 Apsil
52 wuwke anded 32 waaks snded | »n nn 2020
15 April 2011 26 April 3020 Nayic Ditvted Baskc Dikuted
temj et tEm) i, ] 1Em)
Cyrrent tox . 812 572 [Lossl/profit for the perisd 183 0] {830} 918 LEL]
Adjustrment in respect to prior penads 1 39 Humber ln th & Serinth
TOTAL CUNRENT TAX %3 411 Wuighted average number of shares 501955 501955 505827 507.066
Dfarred tax noal 158 Pance porsbors Pawce pot shitee
Adystrnent In raspect of prior penods 1021 17 Eprmings per shore t8:5) fe sl Ll s
TOTALE TAX {SER NOTE 77) Ho.y) LX)
363 A5
Profit befars taxatian 65 1415
Taxotion ot the standard rate of tok in the UK of 19% {2020 195) 113 73
Non-taxable ingeme e w18
Expenses nat deductible for tox purposes 0 190
Othar tux adjustrents el 96
Adustments in resgect of priar panads - currant tox 136 . 29
in raspect of pror penads - deterred tox 1032 72
Changes in deferred tox rete 124
865 s

Non-taxable income iargely relates to profits on property disposal due to diffarences between capital
allowances and depreciation. Expenses not deductible for tax purposes relate to non-gualifying
depreciatien, impairments, and fair valuation of investments.
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Underlying Earnings Per Share 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The underlying eamings per share reflects the underlying performance of the business compared N . mighter TRl hedtam L
" Y . . g 3 . . . Lond and Cewsnhold Total
with the prior period and is calculated by dividing underlying earnings by the weighted average : ) urosat O Lemeheld | ety Sulpmant i
number of shares ?.: the period. C:um_._«._:m earnings is used by management as a measure : . e i) el ‘e (emi £m)
of profitability within the Group. Underlying earnings is defined a3 (loss)/profit for the period cosy ; . -
attributable to equity holders of the parent for each financial period but excluding the post-tax AT 28 APAIL 2018 . - - ML " sk .7 e11a 13728
effect of certain non-trading items. Tax has been calculated with reference to the effective rate of tax Recognised o adeption of IFRS 16 w25 . Tl B o s
for the Group. . Acquistions o . 18.8 254 05 - 61 50N
The Birectors believe that the underlying eamings before exceptional items and underlying earnings Additiors - - oz 2 22 152 ey -4l
per share measures provide additional useful information for sharehefders on the underlying Eliminatad on disposals 1209 13351 103) 67 12181 192.2)
performance of the business and are consistent with how business performance is measured Reclassifications / Remeasuraments ™ - 28 . - - 330 . e
internally. Underlying eamings is not a recognised profit meagsure under IFRS and may not be directly Exchongs difforancas : - 75 0z o8t 26 ar
T " . ) ) k
comparable with “adjusted” profit measiires used by other companies. ‘AT 26 APRIL 2020 s244 s 108 e T2 2ans
. , €2 weaks endd S weeks snded Arquisitions [see nate 31} ' 21 os . - 290~ e
25 Apeil 5 Aguil 16 April 26 April Additions i Y] 643 - 43 - 20 1288 b2
-u.w.ﬂ u__...w-»h -pu.ﬂ Eﬂﬂ " Elminotd on disposals ) 1487 118 5 [k (6.0] 1524 20
{Em) (Em) [T [r - Raclassifications / Remensuraments ! . | 4 {794 793, o1 BT . 880
(LOSS/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD (03.8) wy.0) 1 " Exchonge differences o4 01 o k. (0.2
Post tox adjusiment to (loss)/profit for tha persd for the follow 1g tems. AY 25 APRIL 2011 5 2054 1523 1 (L) 2,10
Reahzed loss/figain] or forward foreign eschonag contracts 157 157 1361 261
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
Fair valus to forward forrign exchanga contracts a4 34 116 OF {160| , = =
Folr yaluz gam on step acquisition ; 204 AT 20 APRIL 1019 . - nyzat fiez rn sl pes)
Fonr valus ad, © al (275 175 759 Racogrised on udoption of IFKS 16 - - C- L - ICE] 162)
Dwldend income and profit on deposal of hnaneial assets and e quily dervotive we s was " . Charge for the period® mast el (25 20 . poan )
Imancial matrumenks - - - -
Eliminatad on dispasals - 118 o1 LT 27
Prafit an disposal gf properties 9h X 542t |54 2]
\mparent of goodwd = ) 1 Y Exchange difisrences . 09 08 o1 08, 26 a7
Profit on disposal of intungise dssets (5 &) % 6t . . AT 26 APRIL 2020 . (2103} 1158.3} (18.3 11394 56?9 © (10703)
IFRS 16 adjustments . L] 1648 564 569 ,Charge for the ,v.iun ' 82.1] {745 1.8} ms) 1e.m {2985},
UNDEALYING {LOSS/PRGFIT FOR THE PERIOD JCE) (LX) nr E] = 6821 (84 9 o1 598 sy
Humbsas in thousonts Nambr In theuvands - — - -
inated on dispasals - a5 1z 03 &7 544 1201
Shares 10 issue at tha petiod end 501,985 501955 504,827 S07.066 T
[— punte pur share Reclossicatians / Remensuraments - ;1 78] - BE e
Earmings per share - T8} |17.0] %2 161 Exchonge diffarences Fal 0z o1 01 23 i3
AT 25 AFRIL 2011 T Wnal - fzeaa) AtE] g 0.8 (136%1)
| NETROOK VALUE . : ..
ATISAPRILZOZ .7 pri%] &131 038 [} ®e2 11618
AT 26 APRIL 3020 - 107 a58 533 7 047 1uTs
AT I8 AFRIL 2079 ) - (1'% ] 13 16.0 ey [r:B 4
&l The £33.0m wos r ied dus to Shi I plant and equipment not ferming port of the final sale ond leoseback camplated during
;  the prior year, ' - R - .
[ inthe prior period there is 1 seporota diselasure of impdinmant from d \in mspect of the property, plant and equipment. Tatal
' impairment In FY20 was F177 6m of wh £37 8m reloted ta the x.mw—:.a_.:mm assels '
13) In the current penoa @ number of properties were identified thot ware previously clossitied within Freehald Lond ond Buwidings but managenmnt
Believe it ta ba more appropnata to classify within Long-term L easehald. These heve therelare been cdjusted m the penod os reclassificah
Note 2 provides further detail on the property related impairments {refating to ROU assets, fraehold
tand and buildings and onerous lease provisions),
. 95
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Leuses

The Group adopted IFRS 16 on 29 Aprit 2019. The Group only has property leases within the scope of
IFRS 16, including retail stores, offices and warehouses. Leases are largely for a period between 1 - 15
years typically with break clauses. It is management's intention to continue to enter into turnover
linked leases in the future. )

The Group presents right-of-use gssets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘property, plant ond equipment’, the some line item as it presents underlying assets of the same
natyre thot it owns. The carrving amount and movements in the period can be seen in the table
above. '

Lease licbilities are presented separately within the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The maturity
analysis of lease liabilities is show in note 29e. interest expense on the lease liability is presented as a
corponent of finance costs as per note 13. Cash payments far the principal portion and the interest
portion of the jease Tiability are presented in the Consolidated Cash Flow Staterent with further
detaqils given in note 26,

The Group is party to a number of leases that are classed as shart term leases and with variable
lease payments. These are typically property leases on turnover based rents. Note 8 discioses
varigble lease poyments and short term and low volue legse expenses incurred in the peried, Cash
flows in the period relating to varioble lease payments, short term lease payments, and leases for low
value assets were approx. £24m [FY20: approx. £72m|. It is expected that future cash fiows will not be
materially different to the FY20 cosh flows. Lecses to which the Group is committed but have not yet
commenced at period end are net considered to be material.

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Frasheld lund and

Buildings.
ftm)

cost
AT 25 APHIL 2019 AND 26 APRIL 1030 458
Eliminated on disposals (ra
AT 25 APRIL 2021 ) 363
ARCIMUL i
AT I8 APRIL 2019

Charge for tha period

AT 18 APRIL 2020

Charge far the period

impawmant

Ehminated an disposols ' 53
AT 25 APRIL 2021 1244
NET BOOX VALUE

AT 22 APRIL OV 161
AT 25 APRIL 2020 s
AT 21 APRIL D19 - 12

The fair values of the Group's investment properties os ot 25 April 2021 were estimated as baing
raaterially in line with carrying values, The voluations were calculoted by the Group's internal
property team who are appropriately qualified chartered surveyors and follow the applicable
valuation methodology of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. Note 2 provides Further detail
on the property related impairments.
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Guodwr Treteod Erands Total
it tml 1wl ey

CcOST
AT 28 APRIL 2019 1384 "a [ [F] prTRY
Acquisitions . n7 70 uy
Drsposals e [
Esrhange odjustme s a6 o6 10 LX)
AT 3¢ APRIL 2010 74 e LF) ELid )
Acgquaitions (see note 37 60 - - LX)
Additions - 10 1.0
Disposals - 33 - (L% 1)
Exchangs arjustments B nay 198 tes)
AT 25 APRIL 2021 o7 "y L& 20

AMORTISATION AMG IMPAIRMENT

AT 28 APRIL 201% 9.8} 3.3 e
Amortiscron charge 113) 172 (60 (13}
Impairment 190 - - ".0)
Drsposal 04 - 04
Exchange adustrmerts wa 02 - -
AT 6 APRIL 3420 tuen [CLE] 150! (1u4)
Amartisotion charge 3 na ] Yy
Impement 191 - . LX)
Dispasal . - 33 - 23
Fxchange adustmants 47 o4 ot (X
AT 28 APRIL 2021 124.0] 1187} @)
AT 25 ARRIL 2021 487 4o 0 1208
AT 26 APRIL 2020 ETE] .9 M4 e
AT 20 APRIL 2018 523 L) A4 o

Amortisation is charged to selling, distribution ond administrative expenses in the consolidated
Income Statement.

The majority of the net book value of intangible assets relates to the £86.5m purchase of Everlast in
2007,
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The carrying value of goodwill and brards that are cansidered to have an indeafinite life are allocated
to the Group's operating segments before aggregation. With the exception of Everlast, none of

the individual cash-generating units (CGWs) are considered material to goodwill or indefinite life
intangibles. The corrying value of goodwill and brands allocated to the Group’s CGUs [as oggregated

excapt in the case of Everlost) is shown below:

15 Aprtl 2021 24 April 2020
Gendwitl Brands Gondwill Srands
{Em [ () Tl
European Retad 36
whalesala & Licensing [excl Everlast} 143 - 14,3
Everlast 174 698 362 B44
463 L) A i

The Group tests the carrying amount of
goodwill and assets with an indefinite [ife
annually for impairment or more frequently if
there are indications that their carrying value
might be impaired. The carrying amounts

of other intangible assets are reviewed

for impairment if there is an indication of
impairment.

Impairment is calculated by comparing the
carrying amounts to the value in use derived
from discounted cash flow projections fer
each CGU to which the intangible assets are
allocated. A CGU is deemed to be an individual
fascia or brand and these have been grouped
together into similar classes for the purpose of
formulating operating segments as reported
in note 4. The total recoverable amount of

all CGUs in relation to the above intangiole
assets was £262.3m of which £136.8m related
to Everlast, Due to the ongoing impact of
Covid-19, the European Retail goodwill was
impaired to £nil with an impairment charge of
E3.1m (FY20: £ril} being recognised wherz the
discounted present value of future cash flows
did not support the full value of the asset.

Value in use calculations are based on five-year
management forecasts with a terminat

growth rote applied thereofter, representing
management’s estimate of the long-term
growth rate of the sector served by the CGUs.

Total impairments of £9.1m (FY20; £19.0m)
have been recognised in relation to good
on loss making companies and are individuglly
immaterial to each CGU that has been

written down. These impairments inclfude the
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European Retail goodwill arid the goodwill from
acquisitions in the period.

The Everlast brand is amortised over a 15
year period within the selling, distribution and
administrative expenses category within the
income statement. The acmount charged ta
the income statement in the period is £5.5m
{FY20: £6.0m), the future amertisation charge
is expected to be approximately £6.0m per
annum for the remaining 13 year amortisation
period (FY20: 14 year).

FRASERS GROUP

The key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to

support the carrying amount of goodwill were as follows:

As @t 25 April 2021 Eurepean Rmtall isL.J_--nﬂ_:-ﬂ“HLrai_ Everiant
Terminal sales grawth 20% 20% 20%
5 yoor forerost growth ! 13 5%} 15 3] 6%}
Gross margin A0%-40% - -
Orscount rata 6% . 6% 1%
Av ot 26 Aprit 2030 Kurepece Retail WMokt - h.rmﬂ....a!...-_ Everbast
Terminol soles growth 20% 20% 20%
5 year forecost grawth ' 20% 20% 9%
Gross margin 30%h-40%

Discaunt rote B % 6 1% 12.99%:

(1 The 5 yuot grawth rotes tre based on Lie average growth oyer 5 years

The same pre-tax discount rate is used in European Retail ond Wholesale & Licensing {excl. Everlast)
as these CGLU's are considered to have similar risk profiles. A specific discount rate is used for Everlast

as this business operates in a different market and has different characteristics.

The key assumptions are based on market data and management's historical experience and future .

plans for each CGU.
Sensitivity Analysis

A reasonably possible change in any key assumption would not cause the carrying value of the
Everlast or Whaolesale & Licensing (excluding Everlust) CGU to exceed its recoverable amount,

the table below shows the amount of headrcom and the revised assumption required in order to

eliminate the headreom in full.

The European Retail goodwill has been impuaired in the period as a result of the ongoing impact of

Covid-19.
E..._...M_-.u”_._.n_u“.q__.-r._,-_ Evardat
Recoverable omount of CGU {fm} 1255 BEH
Currant headroom (Em| m2 a6
Revised 5-yeor forecast yrowth rate % 17 7%) 12 5%)]
Revised tarmine] growth ate % = {1000%) 05%
Rewvisad discount rata % 52 6% 14 0%

sh woodland across the UK
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FRASERS GROUP

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for associates and joint ventures in accordance
with IAS 28, The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's investment in
associates and joint ventures:

Atsaciates

el

AT 38 APRIL 2013 "0
Additions B 46
Share of [0ss for the peaad (15.9)
Fair value adjustment 02
Drsposals 2

AT 28 APRIL 2020 AND 1 APRIL 201y -

The share of loss in the prior period relotes to Game Digital pic prior to ebtaining a controlling
interest in July 2019.

The fair value adjustment in the prior year relates to the increase in the fair vatue of the previously
held 38.1% equity interest in Game Digital plc at the acausition date on & July 2015,

The disposals in the prior period mainly relates to the de-recognition of Game Digital ple as an
associate due to obtuining o contrelling interest.

The Group currently holds o 49.0% share of Four {Holdings} Limited (FY20: 49.0%), the carrying
ameunt of this investment is £nil. Detailed disclosures have not been presented as the results are
immaterial. The Group is owed £64.9m from the group of companies headed by Four (Holdings)
Limited {£26.5m net of amounts recognised in respect of loss allowence} (FY20: £67.5m, £33.8m net
of loss allowance), see note 22 for further details, The group of companies headed by Four [Holdings)
Limited made o profit of £8.1m in the period [FY20: ioss of £19.8m).
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20. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group is not looking to make gains through increases in market prices of-its long-term financiaj
assets, therefore on initinl application of IFRS 9 the Group mode the irrevacable election to account
for long term financicl assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The
election hos been made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, only qualifying dividend income is
recognised in profit and loss, changes in fair value are recegnised within OC| and never reclassified
to profit and loss, even if the asset is impaired, sold or otherwise derecognised. The majority of

long-term finan

The fair value of the long-term financial assets

[ assets are recognised in the UK Sports segiment.

based on bid quoted market prices at the balance

sheet date or where market prices are not available, at management's estimate of fair value.

The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's financial assets during the perjod:

25 Agril 2021 26 April 7020

1w tLm)

At begwming af penod B3f 846

Adgitions 133 344

Lnsposois T rot e
Amounts recogaised through sther comprehensive income

Exchange differen: es

773 ng |

"

Included within long-term financial assets at the period ended 25 April 2021 are the following direct

interests held by the group:
+ 36.8% (FY20:12.5%) interest in Mulberry
Group plc

«  356% (FY20: 36.9%] interest in Studio Retail
Group plc

+ 51% (FY20: 0.2%) interest in Hugo 8oss AG

- Various other interests, none of which
represent more than 5.0% of the voting
power of the investee

During the period the Group sold its 26.1% interest in French Connection Group plc due to it no
langer being considered part of the Group's long-term strategy. The fair value ot the dote of
derecognition was £2,6m with the £1.7m gain on dispesal being recegnised in investment income.

The following table shows the fair value, of each of the Group's long-term financial assets (all tisted):

26 April 2020

25 April 2021

m} JEm)

stylzermy Graup plc s20 46
Stut.o Retol Growp plc 897 8172
Hugo Boss AG AT 24

French Cannection Group pfc

16

Other

40

ATEND OF PERIOD

These holdings hove been assessed under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and categorised
as long-term financial assets, as the Group
does not consider them to be associates and
therefore, they are not accounted for on an
equity basis, see note 2,

Qur strategic investments are intended to allow
us to develop relationships and commercial
partnerships with the relevant retaiiers and

[N A1

assist in building relationships with key suppliers
and brands.
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21, INVENTORIES

25 Aprl 2071 16 Apti 2030
wm iEm)
Goods for resale 10966 11983

As at 25 April 2021, goods for resale include a right of return asset totalling £4.5m {FY20 £2.4m).
Amounts written off in the period relating to stock was £24.3m (FY20 £39.0m),

The following inventory costs have been -ecognised in cost of sales;

18 Apdl 191 26 Apell 2020
£m] &m
Cost of mventones recogrised as an expernse 2094% 22948

The Directors have reviewed the opening and closing provisions against inventory and have
concluded that these are fairly stated. The Group has reviewed its estimates and assumptions for
calculating inventory provisions at 25 Apiil 2021, Overall provisions have decreased from £223.0m in
FY20 to EX19.8m as at 25 April 2021, changes in the provision are recognised in cost of sales.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25 Apeli 2011 26 April 2020

i&m) (L]

Trode recervablas 572 575
Deposits In respect of danvative iinone: 1mo 3
Amounts owed by reloted parties lsee nate 34] 208 343
Othier recurvables 2469 196 7
Prapuyments a4é 545
5de.3 uz

The Directors consider that the carrying cmount of trade and other receivables approximates to
their fair value. The maximurm exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of asset abeve, plus any cash balances. Other receivables also include unremitted sales
receipts.

Deposits in respect of derivative financial instruments are collateral to cover margin requirements for
derivative transactions held with counterparties. The colloteral requirement changes with the market
(which is dependent on share price, interest rates and volatility} and further purchases / sales of
undeylying investments held.

Included within other receivables is the reimbursement asset totalling £118.3m [FY20: £118.3m) in
relation to the Group's ongeing non-UK tax enquiries, for further information see note 28.

The majority of the Group's trade receivables are held within the Wholesale & Licensing businesses,
each customer's ¢reditworthiness is assessed before payment terms are agreed.

Under IFRS 9, the Group has applied the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses
for trade receivables, using the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivab es have been grouped based on a very low credit risi
characteristic, representing management's view of the risk, and the days past due. The credit quality
of assets neither past due nor impaired is considered to be good. The Group considers o debt to be
defoulted at the point when no further cmounts are expected to be recavered. Financial assets are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. If recoveries are subsequently made
after receivables hove been written off, thay are recognised in profit or loss.
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The amounts owed by related parties mostly relates to the group headed by Four {Holdings) Limited,
for Further details see note 34.

Exposure to credit risk of trade receivables;

13 April 2021 26 April 1020

{Em) I€m)

Current E) o
U-30 days post dug 120 o
30-60 days past due an 4z
60-90 toys past due - 24 20
Qrver 90 doys post tue 7.0 74
512 575

The credit quatity of assets neither past due nor impoired is considered to be good.

The movement in loss allowance relating to trade receivables end amounts owed to related parties
can be analysed as follows: ’

52 waekn anded 52 waoks andad

25 April 2021 26 Aprd 1020

(£m] wm|

Opening positian 52 338
Amounts charged [0 the Incame statemant 13 186
Atnounts written off as uncallectoble t66)
Amounts recavered during the panod 66|
CLOSING FOSITION 453

Included in the kelow table is the foss allowance movement in amounts due from related parties as
follows:

52 waaks endad 52 weaks anded

15 Aprll 2021 26 April 2024

Em) {Em)

kx]:] 0.8

Amcunts charged to the income stalemant 46 130
CLOSING POSITION 14 N 330

The gross carrying ameunt of the bolance due is £65.2m [FY20: £67.5m). The charge in the period has
been recorded in Selling, distribution and administrative expenses. E12.4m of the gross amounts due
from related porties balance is due in less than one year with the remaeining being due in more than
a one year (FY20: £7.9m due less than one year).

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large rumber
of customers. The loss allowance / charges have been determined by reference to past default
experience, current / forecasted trading performonce and future economic conditions.

Depesits in respect of derivative financial instruments and prepeyments are not considered to be
impaired. .

woodland across the UK
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

15 Apri 2021 6 ApHl 2020
Eml {Len}
Coshan bonk and iy hand - Sterlng 1441 4524
Cash m bark ond m hand - US Dolfors. 97 & 7%
Cash n burk sed in hand - Euros. W25 S8 7
Cosh in benk and in hand - Other 230 bs
N 4570 SH.0
25 April 2011 26 Apiil 2020
1) IEm)
$9%,500.010 rdinory shares of 10p each 100 & 1300
ALLOTTED, CALLED WP AND FULLY PAID
640,502,363 [2020 640,602,369] ordingry shores of 10p each 641 B41
SHARE CAPITAL
A 75 Apri 2021 and 28 April 2020 41 B4
The Group holds 121,260,175 shares in Treqsury as Contingent Shure Awards

at peried end {FY20: 121,260,175).

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per ordinary share
at general meetings of the Company.

We are aware of unsponsored American
Depository Receipt [ADR) programmes
established from time to time in respect of our
shares. We have not sponsored or authorised
their creation and any questions should be
directed to the relevant depositary.

Frasers has not and dees not intend to offer or
sell its Ordinary Shares ar other securities (in
the form of ADR or otherwise) to the general
public in the United States nor has it listed

or intends to list its Qrdinary Shares or other
securities on any national securities exchange
in the United States or to encourage the trading
of its Ordinory Shares on any aver the counter
market located in the United States. Frasers does
not make arrangements to permit the vating of
Ordinary Shares held in the form of ADRs and
its publication of pericdic financial and other
information is not intended to focilitate the
operation of ony unsponsored ADR programme
under Rule 12g3-2(b) of U.S. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended or otherwise.

1co

The Executive Shore Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Share Scheme,
which was approved by Shareholders on 10
September 2010 and is a HMRC approved
schemne, the Board may make share awards in
respect of the ordinary shares in the Company
Awards may be made to Executives and Persons
Discharging Managerial Responsikilities over a
fixed number of shares subject to performance
ns. Further details are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report.

An award of 8,073,036 shares was granted on
10 Septernber 2010 ot a shore price of 125.5
pence. Between 27 April 2020 and 25 Aprid 2021,
1,000,000 shares sold by porticipants following
exercise of awards were acquired by Estera
Trust (Jersey) Limited, as Trustee of the Sports
Direct Employee Benefit Trust [Trustee), with
the acquisition funded by a laarn advanced

by the Company. The shares were acquired at
374.8 pence per share, At the period end 6m
of the shares in the scheme have since vested
{FY20: 5m) and 2m have since tapsed meaning
ol shores granted by the scheme have now
exercised or lapsed.

Share Schemes

The 2011 Share Scheme was a four year scheme
based upon achieving underlying EBITDA
(kefore the costs of the scheme) of £215m

in FY12, £250m in FY13, £26Cm in FY14 and
£300m in FY15 coupled with the individual
participating employee's sctisfactory persona)
perforrmance and continued employment.

All of the above targets have now been met
meaning that approx. 11.6m shares vested in
September 2017 and approx. 4m shares vested
in September 2015.

Between 27 April 2020 and 25 April 2021,
150,470 shares sold by participonts following
exercise of awards under the Group 2011
Share Scheme were acquired by Estera Trust
{Jersey] Limited, as Trustee of the Sports Direct
Employee Benefit Trust {Trustee}, with the
acquisition being funded by a ioan advanced
by the Company. The shares were acquired at
prices of between 251.8 and 460.8 pence per
share in off-market transactions, The weighted
average purchase price was 365 pence per
share {FY20: 257 pence per share).

A share-based payment charge of £nil (FY20:
nil) was recognised in respect of this equity
settled award for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021, based on the Director’s best estimate of
the number of awards thot will be made. The
charge is calculated based on the foir value on
the grant date, which is deemed to be the date
an which the entity and counterparty reached o
shared understanding of the scheme.

The Group helds 17,386,913 shates in the
Own Share Reserve as at period end {(FY20:
17.386,913).

Fearless 1000 Bonus Scheme

At the annual general meeting in October
2020, our sharehelders gave approval for

the Fearless 1000 bonus scheme. Under this
scheme shares may be issued by the Group to
employees for no cash consideration. All Group
empioyees {excluding executive directors, their
family associates, and the Chief Commercial
Officer) are eligible to participate in the
scheme. Under the scheme, 10 million shares
are awarded to eligible employees if certain
market conditions are achieved. This would
equate ta £100m warth of fully paid ordinary
shares in Frasers Group plc that could be paid
to eligible employees if our share price reaches
£10 any time over the next four years. The share
price must stay above £10 for 30 consecutive
treding days to trigger the vesting of shares at
the end of the four year vesting period, 50%

of the shares are granted after 4 yecrs and the
remaining 50% after 5 years. One thousand
eligible employees will receive the shares with
a potential volue ranging from £50k to £1m if
the share price is at £10 at the vesting dates. In
all other respects the shares rank equally with
other fully poid ardinary shares on issue.

The share element of the scheme is deemed

to be an equity-settled scheme as defined by
IFRS 2 Share-based payment. In line with the
accounting policy in note 1, the fair value at the
date of grant is expensed to the Consolidated
Income Statement on « straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with the corresponding
credit going to equity.

The assessed fair value at grant date of the
shares granted during the period ended 25

April 2023 was 165.69p per share for the 4 year
vesting period and 165.95p per share for the 5
yeor vesting period. The fair value at grant date
is independently determined using an adjusted
form of the Black-Scholes model which includes
a Mente Carlo simulation model thot takes

into account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of dilution (where material),
the shere price at gront date and expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend vield, and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scheme,
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The model inputs for shares granted during the pericd ended 25 April 2021 included:
- exercise ptice: £nl

- grant date: 3G February 2021, being the date the Deed of Grant was executed

- expiry date: 7 October 2024 and 7 Q:tober 2025

- share price at grant date: 450p

- expected price volatility of the company's shares: 38.8%

- expected dividend yield: 0%

- risk-free interest rate: 0.1%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the

scheme), adjusted for any expected chaonges to future volatility due to publicly available infarmation,

A charge in the Consolidated Income Statement of £0.8m has been recognised in the period in
relation to the equity-settled element of the scheme resulting in £0.8m now being held in equity.

The scheme alsc has o cash-settled bonus for all ather eligible employees who do not qualify for
the Fearless 1000 share scheme. The cash bonus at the end of the 4 year period is based on the
employee tenure and has been accounted as an other long-term employee benefit as defined by
IAS 19 Employee Benefits. A charge in tha Consolidation Income Statement of £0.5m has been
recognised in the period along with a corresponding liability.
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25. OTHER RESERVES

Purmanent Capital Revenn e
o sapital reserve rererve nasni
(&} my {Em) {Em) {Em)
0.4 1.0 (3a1.3) 463 (#412.5)
Cash How hadges
- recogmsad n the penod - - - %4 64
- recogmised n the penod - ineffectiveness - - - 07 02
- eclassified in the penod ond reported o the sales - - - 07 na
- ceclossihed ond reported in cost of snles - - - 13741 137.41
- rauation - - - 38 18
AT 26 APRIL 2020 a1 0 vary) .0 (951.2)
Cash How hadges
- recognised i the penod - . 04 7]
- enclassifiad n the pennd ond reported i sales - . 128 (28]
- ruelossified and reported i cast of soles - - 071 17y
- ranatioh - - - 30 o
AT 15 APRIL 201 o 1.0 (M) ns (26771

The permanent contribution to capital relates te a cash payment of £50,000 to the Company on 8
February 2007 under a deed of capital contribution.

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of the Company's redeemable preference
shares of 10p each at par on 2 March 2007,

The reverse acquisition reserve exists as a result of the adoption of the principles of reverse .
acquisition accounting in accounting for the Group restructuring which occurred on 2 March

2007 and 29 March 2007 between the Company and Sports World international Limited, Brands
Holdings Limited, International Brand Management Limited and CDS Holdings SA with Sports World
International Limited as the acquirer,

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of gains and losses on hedging instruments
deemed effective in cosh flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or Joss on the hedging
instrument is recognised in the income statement only when the hedged transaction impacts the
income statement. .
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Other Balance Sheet Reserves 26. BORROWINGS

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences ansing from the 25 April 1031 6 April 2020

translation of the Financial Statements of foreign subsidiaries and associates. ] iem)
CURRENT

The own shares and treasury shares reserve represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group plc [ [ e

purchased in the market and held by Frasers Group Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under

the Group's share options scheme. HOK-C URRENT:
Bk rindd nther laans s 900 0
The Group holds 17,386,913 shares in the Empioyee Bepefit Trust as at period end (FY20: 17,388,755). Lense abilies 5347 4762
TOTAL 14184 15249

The non-controlling interests of the Group mostly relates te Sportland International Group AS and
its subsidiaries. This company is incerporated in Estonia with the principal places of business being a
number of Baltic countries in Ewrope. The non-controlling interests hoid 40% of the share capital of

An analysis of the Group's total barrowings cther than bank overdrafts is os follows:

. . . 5 April o1 & Aprif 2020
Sportland International Group AS. During the period £3.0m profit (FY20: £2.8m) hos been allocated e !
to the non-contrqlling interests of Sportland Internctional Group AS, resulting in an accumulated Bomamer - b P P,

non-controlling interests at the end of the peried of £12.4m (FY20: £%.4m}. A dividend of £0.9m was -
paid to the non-controlling interest in the period (FY20: £nil). The group of companies headed by As ot period end, loans are ot o rate of interest of 1.3% (FY20' 1.3%) over the interbank rate of the

Sportland Internationat Group AS has tetol ossets of £67.8m ond totol liabilities of £14.6m. country within which the borrowing entity resides.

Reconciliotion Of Lia

es Arising From Financing Activities

The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities con be classified as follows:

Men-surrant Curmnt  Sharsluy

borrowings  borrewings backs Total

itm) lem} IEm] {tm)

AT 18 APRIL 201% s - ne 543
CASH-FLOWS:

- Bowrownngs drawn W0 - sa0
- Borrowings repowd 1436 5] - {436.5)
- Sharu buy buck - (23%9) {439)
LEASE UABILITY:

- IFRS 16 Lense Liabihties 4598 1363 - LA
- IFRS 16 Lease Linhdities - Acquisitions. 164 ne - 0
HON-CASH MOVEMENTS:

- Share buy back - - 19 s
AT 26 APRIL 2010 1178.2 "Ly - 1524
CASH-FLOWS:

Barrgwings drawn down 1381 - 112

- Bownwings repaid 14221 - 33131
LEASE LABILITY:

- IFRS % Lense « 1o BQ) - el
ot oru ehonge won w1 . o

FRS 16 Leose Liabihves - new leases 983 705 - (]
AT 25 APRILZO21 12401 HLE - 14208

The acquired borrowings (note 3 of £1.4m were repaid in full during the period.

The Group's Working Caopital Facility is at £913.5m (FY20: £913.5m) available until November 2021
ond is not secured against any of the Group's assets. During FY19 the Group enatted an extension
option for a further year to November 2022 for £847 5m
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The Group continues to operate comfortably within its banking facilities and covenants. The carrying
ameunts and fair value of the borrowings are not materially different.

28. PROVISIONS

Lagel and Propasty

+ Dthar Tetal
Reconciliation of Net Debt: raulatery - ealated
{Em) tm 1 tEmi
28 April 1011 26 Apl 2020 AT I3 APRIL 30 /4.0 23 1] TR
1£m] Am) Amounts provided 30 58 - EHE
Borrowings A28 61 ns2en Armounts utilised / reversed 216) 1708 153) 1977)
Acquisitions . 06 - 1046
7227 6241
Cosh and cosh equivalents 4570 5340 AT 26 APRIL 3270 154 wry 1y ELIY
NET DEBT [240.9) {ass.0} Amounts provided 73 415 - 4B 8
Arnounts utilised / reversed 1169 153 {236|
27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT 26 APRIL 2021 114 Ha1 12 w12
Aeeountc et ! i : H
wesys  depmciton  Taxlowss bonusshare _“.:a“._ Frol oH! l _,mmn_ o._._n. _.mw:_n_»oé provisions ._.m_onm to management m.Umm» estimate of _,._._m.mo_,.m::o_ _._._.__.unn» of
wxcendingtox resovarnble scheme urreney Beandy Ty claims including legal, commesciai, regulatory ond ongoing non-UK tax enquiries. The timing of
ooy o centrach ditferences g leg ) 1eg Y going q 9
pree the outcome of non-UK tax inquiries and legal claims made against the Group is dependent on
(&m} {Em) (Em} Em] [Em] {Em) {Em) o) P P
factors outside the Group's control and therefore the timing of settlement is uncertain. After taking
AT I8 APRIL 2010 - e 1.8 1.3 {20.9) 11.0) 3.3) . . . N . .
appropriate legal advice, the outcomes of these claims are not expected to give rise to material loss
Credited/{charged) to the income stotement 3 10 (38l na 13e 24 28 ma in excess Om the amounts ﬁﬂOS.an_
Charged to rasarves 7i . . - - - - 72 ’
Credited to hadaing reserva - - - - 39 . e A reimbursement asset of £118.3m (FY20: £118.3m} has been recognised separately within debtors
AT 76 APRR. 2030 s e B B .0 : u1 relating to ongoing non-UK tax enquiries.
Credited/ichorged) ta the mcame stotement Lk A - ) 20 10 1741 10 Included within property related provisions are provisions for dilapidations in respect of the Group's
Charged to reserves : : : w3l : 78 : 22 retail stores and warehouses. Further details of managements estimates are included in note 2.
Credited to hedging resarvas - - - 20 - - 0 . - X
Other provisiens relate to provisions for restructuring and employment [non-retirement related).
AT 15 APRIL 2021 a1 nr - 3 ol ) {5.0) )
During the period, onerous lease provisions (pre-IFRS 16) were recognised due to an ongoing
8 Apsil 1021 26 April 2020 management review of the Group's store profile and strategy including current and anticipated
lew) fm) freehold acquisitions, resulting in overall increased provisions of £71.9m [FY20: £26.9m), with reference
Defarred tox assets : 568 5 to the Group's alternative performance measures. See Glossary for more details.
Deferrad tax habilits 4270 125 6)
WET DEFERHED TAX BALANCE wa ua

The tex rates used to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities was 19%, on the basis that this
was the tax rate that was substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable
on the basis of the Group's current expectations of future taxable profits. The Graup has approx.
£134m of taxable losses not recognised as a deferred tax asset (approx, £25m deferred tax asset).

Included within other temporary differences is a deferred tax asset in relation to the Share Scheme
and a deferred tax liability recognised or other intangible assets upon acquisition.

The deferred tax effects of the acquisitions made in the year were considered and it was determined
that there was no material impoct on the Group, or the fair value of net assets acquired.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Financial Assets And Liabilities By Category And Fuir Value Hierarchy

The fair vatue hierarchy of
Sterling or US Dollars, were as follows:

ancial assets and licb

s, which are principally denominated in

FINANCIAL ASSETS - 13 APRIL 201¢ Level Laval2 Leesly Sthar Total
) ) Rm} Em} A0m}
AMDRTISED COST:
Trade ond ather recewoblest - . . 4341 4351
Cash ond cush squivalents 4570 AR0
Amaums owed by related parties - - - - kR 68
FVoCh
Long Term Financial Assets [Equty Instruments] - designated 2633 - - - 1.3
OERIVATIVEFINANCIAL ASSETS (FY):
Foregn forward purchose and sules contracte - 353 153
Denvative financiol sssets - contracts tor differance & sauity oplicns 201 - - 201
- 554 - - LYY
FINARCIAL LIABIUTIES - 25 APRIL 2024
AMORTISED COST;
Nor-wutrsnt hosewings 17059 {0551
Trads ond other poyables™ - - - (620 1) {s209)
IFRS 1 Leuse liobilitses 17222 ritn
FINANCIAL LIANILITIES (Fy):
Foreign forward and written oprons puechase and sales contmets - Unhedged to- 11751 - ins
Bervative hnancial habslibies - contracts lar difference & squity aptions - )] - iE))
N3 L]

rPrapaymients of (84 6m are not included as o inoneiol asset,

“*Other tnxes includiig 107 1l secunily costs of [26.2m are not included os a finareiol ko
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FINANCIAL ABSETS - 26 APRIL 2020 Level 1 Leval2 Levl 8 Othar Yobal
feemy Jem) tmj (€m) (Lm}

AMORTISED COST:

Tisae and ciher recevanles® - - s 3253

Cosh ang Cusn sQueients - - - 5340 5340

Arneunt owet Ly related portres h - ke M3

FWOCH

Pwrrg Tewn Frmancia! Byyels [EQuety Instrumentst  desgnoted H3B - - 238

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASIETS IFV:

Faresgn orward purthose and satés rantearts 04 - 104

Davivative binenool assets - controcts for difference 77 R 21

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - 26 AFRK 1020

cost:
Nan-CUrient burrowings - (AT {900.0)
Trode und other payables™ - - {50d 1
IFRS W Laase Rabilives - - - 24| 1634.1)

IVE FINANCIAL LIARILITES FV):

Forngn lorward and wntten option purchase ond salas contruct « Unhedged . 19.8)
Dansatove ingacal babrities - conteats for ifierence § squiby optians 134 41 - MA4)
- a3y . way

*Prepuyiments of 54 Smoare nof ineluded 05 g Sinancial osset

= Other banes ineiuding sor il secunty costs of F17.8m are not wluded o3 o Ll

b. Financial Assets And Linbilitias Sen

ivities By Currency

The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are to US Dollars and Euros. The table below
strates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Groug's reported profit and equity to a 5% increose

and decrease in the US Dollar / Sterling and Eurc / Sterling exchange rates at the yeor-end dote,
assuming ail other variables remain unchanged. The figures have been calculated by comporing the
fair values of outstanding foreign currency contracts, assets and liabilities at the current exchange
rate to those if exchange rates moved as ilfustrated. The income stetement figures include the profit
effect of any relevant derivatives which are not in a designated cash flow hedge. The impact on US
Dollar and Euro related hedging instruments is included in equity.

The analysis hus been prepared using the following assumptions:

1. Existing assets and liabilities are held as ot the period end;

2. Ne additional hedge contracts are taken out.
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SENSITIVITY
usp R

anpk

Othes usp R Tetol 5% +5% 5% &%
Fras
Trade and Other Receivables 3701 252 198 433 n3y 12 (2.0) 20
Cash and cash uquivalents 3534 494 542 451.0 X] 3 @1) 27
Trade ond Gthar Payablas (489 6] 1245) {106 5] wanq) 12 nay 53 (3.3}
FYin:
Teade and Other Recavablas 2507 266 a2 prits ny 14 (2.8} EY
Cash and cosh equivalents 4613 75 552 4.0 {0.9) LX) 16 Y]
Trade and Gther Payables [451 6] [25%) [102.2] {5340 12 (t4) 1 5.5)

There is no difference between fair value and carrying value of the above financial instruments

(FY20: Enil).
Fair Yalue Hierarchy

The Oac_m uses the following hierarchy “or
determining and disclosing the fair valu2 of
financial instruments by valuation technique:

«  Level 1: quoted [unadjusted) prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabi

+  Level 2: other techniques for which cl
inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly; and

= Level 3: techniques which use inputs which
have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable
market data.

Contracts for difference are classified as Level
2 as the fair value is calculated using quoted
prices for listed shares and commodities at
contract inception and the period end,

Fereign forward purchase and sales con:rocts
and options are classified as Level 2, the

Group enters into these derivative financial
instruments with various counterparties,
principally financial institutions with investment
grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange

forward contracts and options are valued

using valuation technigues, which emplcy the
use of market observable inputs, The most
frequently cpplied valuation techniques include
forward pricing and swap models using present
value calculations. The models incorporate
various inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
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forward rates, and yield curves of the respective
currencies.

Leng-term financial assets such as equity
instruments cre classified as Level 1 as the fair
value is calculated using quoted prices.

The faiir value of equity derivative agreements
are included within the derivative financial
assets balance of £20.1m and derivative
financicl liabilities balance of £1.7m, The
derivative financial assets and derivative
financial liobilities as at 25 April 2021 relate to
strategic investments held of between 0.04%
and 8.41% of investee share capital.

Soid options are classified as Level 2 as the
fair value is calculated using other techniques,
where inputs are observable,

Trade receivables / payables, amounts owed
from related parties, other receivables /
payables, cash and cash equivalents, current /
non-current borrowings, and lease lia
held at amortised cost.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 25
April 20217 is the carrying value of each class of
asset in the Balance Sheet, except for amounts
owed from related parties which is the gross
carrying ameunt of £65.2m,

¢. Derivatives: Foreign Currency Forward
Contracts

{i) HEDGING .

The most significant exposure to foreign

.exchange fluctuations relates to purchases

made in fereign currencies, principaily the US
Dollar and enline sales in Euros. The Group's
policy is to reduce substantially the risk
ossociated with foreign currency spot rates

by using forward fixed rate currency purchase
contracts, taking into acceunt any foreign
currency cash fiows. The Group does not

hald or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes, however if derivatives,
including both forwards and written options,
do net qualify for hedge accounting they are |
accounted for as such and accordingly any gain
of loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement. Management are of the view that
there is o substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the options and « strategy for
managing the options independently of the
forward contracts. The forward and options
contracts are therefore not viewed as cne
controct and hedge accounting for the forwards
is permitted.

Hedge effectiveness is determined at inception
of the hedge relationship and at every reporting
period end through the assessment of the
hedged items and hedging instrument to
determine whether there is still an economic
relationship between the two.

The critical terms of the foreign currency
forwards entered into exactly match the terms
of the hedged item. As such the economic
relationship and hedge effectiveness are based
on the qualitative factors and the use of a
hypothetical derivative where appropriate,
Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the
critical terms of the forecast transaction no
longer meet those of the hedging instrument, for
exumple if there was a change in the timing of
the forecast sales transactions from what was
inltially estimated or if the volume of currency

in the hedged item was below expectations .
feading to over-hedging. Differences can arise
when the initial value on the Hedging instrument
is not zero.

Prinled on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured thiouah the Woadland Trust. helping to create new Brtsh woodiand across the UK

The hedged items and the hedging instrument
ore denominated in the same currency and as ¢
result the hedging ratio is always one to one.

All derivative financial instruments used for
hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair
value and reported subsequently at fair value

in the statement of finencial position. To the
extent thot the hedge is effective, changes in the
fair value of derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges are recognised
in other comprehensive income and included
within the cash flow hedge reserve in equity.
Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

At the time the hedged item affects profit or
lass, any gain or loss previously recagnised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified

from equity to profit or loss and presented

as a reclassification adjustmnent within other
comprehensive income. If a forecast transaction
is o longer expected to occur, any related

gain or loss recagnised in other comprehensive
income is transferred immediately to profit

or loss, If the hedging relationship ceases to
meet the effectiveness conditions then hedge
occounting is discontinued and the refated gain
or loss is held in the equity reserve until the
forecast transaction occurs. .
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The foir value of hedged contracts os of 25 April 2021 wos:

1 Aprit 201 16 Apri 2010
[Em} (Em}

ASSETS
S Dallar purchases - GBP 18
US Doltar purchases - EUR 23 i
Euro sales 307 a5
TOTAL 284 54
LIABILITIES
US Doflor purchases - GAP 5]
US Dollar purchases - EUR as B
TOTAL 74 -

The details of hedged forward foreign currency purchase contracts and contracted forward rates
were as follows:

25 Apr) 2021 26 April 2020

{em) (K}

Currency cap Curreney sBp

US Dollar purchases 700 5231 - -
Contracted rates USD / GAP 136141

U5 Dofiar purchases 1200 839 1200 909

Contracted rates USD / EUR 12113 132

Euro salas . ) [2400] (2424 (5400 15198]

Contiacted vates EUR / GBP . 09y 095 - 104

The timing of the contracts is as fellows:

Cuttmncy Hedging agobnst Currency rolue Timing
Usb/GHP US> invantory purchases USD 7200m Y - Fyal
LUSIVELR USD inventory purchases USD 200m FYn, FYad
EUR/GRP Eurc sales ELIR 240 Qm . FY23

Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the critical terms of the ferecast transaction no longer meet
those of the hedging instrument, for example if there was a change in the timing of the forecast sales
transactions from what wos initially estimated or if the volume of currency in the hedged item wos
below expectations leading to over-hedging.

15 April 2011 6 April 2020
G i
Change n discounted spok value of sutstanding hedging mebruments since incegtion of the hedge nas {3561
£hange i valve of hedged item wied o detertine hadge walactiveness 128 1583)
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i 3031
1im}
Chihge  Changs Change
n tha fitie thetay ShoMmeinthe o

fair valus &f

the surrency ?ﬁ“aﬂ.
Tsrward Py

am

US Dallars purchoses - GRP .
US Oollurs purchases - EUR 7 71 67 67
Euro sales ER] n 9B 95

At 25 April 2021 £242.4m of forward sales contracts and £607.0m of purchase contracts qualified
for hedge accounting and the gain on fair valuation of these contracts of £0.4m has therefore been
recognised tn other comprehensiva incorne.

At 25 Aprij 2021, £210.5m hedged purchase contracts hed o maturity of greater than 12 menths {FY20:
£nil of purchase contracts) and £242.4m of hedged sales had a maturity of greater than 12 manths
(FY20: £242.4m of sales contracts).

The movements through the Hedging reserve are:

Ust/omr  EURGRF  AUD/SRP  usbaum TetlHeder  Dakred

movenent Tax
A% AT 28 APRIL 2018 s a3 1 $6.3 )
Recogmisec 98 - xS 168 - "
Ineffecuvanass o7 - 02 a2
Reclossihed i sales - na 0al - 4]
Reelussihed n imventory # cost of sales 1249 - - {25) - 4
Deferred Tox - - 38 18
A5 AT 26 APRIL 3030 - e - w2 s o
Recagniser 1491 31 - FA ne - V)
Recipssilied in sales - 128 . - 28} - {2a]
Rerlossified in mvantery / cost of sales - B arm 171 (23]
Deferred Tox - - - - in 30
AS AT 25 APRIL 2021 ) e - 11 wy (z8) 15
i} The sterling principal amounts of unhedged forward contracts and written currency option
contracts and contracted rates were as follows:
25 gl 2011 26 april 010
tm}
US Dollor purchases 403
Contracied rates USD # EUR 131
- Eura sales {383 8| 16300}
Contracied rates FUR / GBP o9 QU 10y
- Eure purchoses 720
Contrartecl rates EUR £ GBP - ! 116

The loss on fair value of the written options and swaps of £4.6m has been included within finance

income {FY20: gain £21.3m).

showoudland across the UK
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At 25 April 2021, £nil of unhedged purchase contracts had a maturity at inception of greater than 12
menths {(FY20: £nil purchase contracts) and £335.4m of unhedged sales had a maturity at inception
of greater than 12 months (FY20: £240.Cm of sales contracts).

These contracts form part of the Treasury management activities, which incorporates the risk
management strategy for areas that are not reliable encugh in timing and amount to qualify for
hedge accounting. This includes acquisitions, disposals of overseas subsidiaries, related working
capital requirements, dividends and loan repayments from overseas subsidiaries ond purchase and
sale of overseas property. Written options carry additional risk as the exercise of the option lies with
the purchaser. The opticns invoive the Group receiving a premium on inception in exchange for
accepting thet risk and the outcome is that the bank may require the Group to sell Euros, However,
the Group fs satisfied that the use of options as a Treasury management tool is appropriate.

in FY21 there are nil short term swaps at period end. FY20 value excludes short term swaps of USDY/
GBP of USD 190.0m and EUR/GBP of EUR 75.0 and EUR/USD of EUR 80.0m which were required for
cash management purposes only. .

d. Sensitivity Analysis

The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are to US Dollars and Euros, The table below
ustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to @ 10% increase
and decrease in the US Dollar / Sterling and Euro / Sterling exchange rates at the year-end date,

assuming all other variables remain unchanged, The figures have been coiculated by comparing
the fair values of outstanding foreign currency contracts at the current exchange rate to those if

Pasitive figures represent an increase in profit or equity:

Incama Stwtament Equhty
Wapd Al BApil 2 apal
o0 00 om 2020
) {tm) (L] £m
Interest rate incracse of 0 5% {30} 141 120t 147
Interest rale ducrease of 0 5% 10 41 10 41

Long-term Investments Sensitivity Analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of price risk in relation to long tarm investments held by
the Group:

25 April 101

Equity

mi

Share price incrense of 0% 258

Share prica decrease of 10% {25 8}
e. Liquidity Risk

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of
the Group's non derivative liabilities and foreign currency derivative financial instruments:

exchange rates moved as illustrated, The income statement figures include the profit effect of any Lassthan Tysar  Wtolysors  to3yearn OvarSyson Tetal
relevant derivotives which are not in @ designated cash flow hedge. The impact on US Dollar and peve Iem (Emi {Emi e tem)
Euro related hedging instruments is included in equity. pr——— T
Positive figures represent an increqse in profit or equity: Bonk loans and overdrafts - . 59
Bank laans and overdralts interast - 99 - - ”»
Income Stotement Equity Trade and cther payables 6463 € € B S48
28 Aperlk 2 Aol 35 Apeil 28 Apeid
2081 ey W W10 IFRS 16 Laase babilities 1966 27 1568 0% 1ma
(m} {£m) (eml £m) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS :
Sterbng strengthans by 10% Cash inficws {396 5 1766 9) 180.6) . (L2449
US Dollar a1 146 {74 134 Cash cutflaws 3891 7989 BS - 12695
Eurg 734 151 w0y arn 23158 2605 Wy oy 32,5648
Sterling wedkens by 10% 010
US Ballar 155 1326 ni 116 43 NOM DERIVATIVE FINANGIAL LIABILITIES
o sk i) i) 3 Annk.lnans and avardrals - annn . was
Bank loans ond overdra 132 - - 1.2
Interest Rote Sensitivity Anclysis Trade and other poyables 6025 - - - L%
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to o 0.5% IFRS 16 Leoss hobitins 467 w21 a2 2571 041
increase or anmmn_mm in interest rates, assuming all other variables were unchanged. SERIVATIVE FINANGIAL INFTRGHENTY,
. . i i Cosh inflows 11186 5 (462 8} - - 16493
The analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions: P v P - - vor
= For floating rate assets and fiabilities, the amount of asset or liability cutstanding at the balance L 10308 1982 ma 12404

sheet date is assumed to have been outstanding for the whole year.

+ Fixed rate financial instruments that are carried at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate
risk for the purpose of this analysis.
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Copital Management

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity attributable to the equity holders of the
pareat comgpany, comprising issued share capital
{less treasury shares), share premium, retained
earnings and cash and borrowings.

It is the Group's policy to maintain a strong
capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and te sustain the
development of the business.

In respect of equity, the Board has decided that,
in arder to maximise flexibility in the near term
with regards to a number of inorganic grawth
opportunities under review, nat to return any
cash by woy of a final dividend at this time.

The Board is committed to keeping this policy
under review and to looking to evaluate )
methods of returning cash to sharehelders when

encourage employee share ownership and to link
employee’s remuneration to the performance of
the Company. It is not designed as a means of
managing copital.

In respect of cash and borrowings, the Board
reqularly monitors the ratio of net debt to
Reported ERITDA {Pre-IFRS 16), the working
capital requirements and forecasted cash flows,
however no minimum or maximum ratios are set.
The tatio for net debt to Reported EBITDA (pre
1FRS16) is 0.5 (FY20: 0.7). The objective is to keep
this figure below 3.0 {FY20: 3.0}

Based on this analysis, the Boord dgtermines
the appropriate return to equity holders whilst
ensuring sufficient copital is retcined within the
Group to meet its strategic objectives, including
but not limited to, acquisition opportunities,

These capital management policies have
remained unchanged from the prior year.

FRASERS GROUP

31.  ACQUISITIONS -

1. On 22 Auqust 2020, the Group acquired
the trade and assets of DW Sports for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deemed -
to be the fair value of the consideration.
The acquisition complements the Group's
axisting gym and fitness club portfolio and is
consistent with the Group's elevation strategy.
Goodwill represents the premium associated
with advantageous site locations, potential
growth opportunities offered by economies
of scale, and the assembled workfarce. The
tair value adjustment to property, plant
and equipment relates te management's
assessment of the price that would be
paid for the acquired assets in an orderly

transaction between market participants
at the acquisition date. The leases were
acquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease
liability has been recognised on acquisition.

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Holdings Limited, the
entire share capital of GRMNT Limited, ond
the trade and assets of 18 Montrose {51%
owned) for consideration of £2.7m. These
acquisitions will provide increased product
offerings in the ‘Premjum Lifestyle’ division.
The foir value adjustment to property, plont
and equipment relates to the recognition of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

The asset and liability values at acquisition are detoiled helow. We have reviewed the fair volue of

the assets and liab
consideration paig

ies acquired. The following toble suramarises the fair values of

appropriate. DW Sperts Cthar
- : (m) lem)
The objective of the Share Scheme is to P — P 27
30. TYRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES ow ypents Othar
. Fair Ve,
52 wasks anded 2 waeks snded FuleVeluo  BoskVoh Ll Felrvelue
15 Apeit 202Y 16 April 1020
14
ol e tem) ) {Emi
Trady payables 733 026 Property. plunt and equipment 7 1421t pi A n 15 218
Amounts ewed to refoted undertakings 26 44 Intangile vssats 1% @9 - - . .
Other toxey nchuding $acial secornty gosts 282 17y " nventones 31 09 40 52 0y 5
Qhe peryables 530 Lok Cash ond cish aquvalents - L] - [X]
Acerygls 244 < 724
- (1.4) - 14
sds3 6028
Wedony coprtal CE 03 la g} (i
Included within other poyables are amaunts vutstanding in respect of gift cards and vouchers of [p—— . . 71 @
£28.8m (FY20: £40.6m). S 17 1 f 23 12
The Directors consider that the carrying omount of trade and other payables approximates to their Borguw purchase - - - 13 LAl
fair valye. Nap-conbmling intereste - nm .01
Net asgels acquirad. T4 (£ 2 e a4 17 ar
The borgain purchase of £3.1m from the Other acquisitions has been recognised within cost of sales
within the pericd. The Goodwill arising on alt acquisitions of £6.0m has been impaired to Enil as at
period end with the impairment being recognised in Exceptional lkems, see note 6.
108
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Since the date of control, the following amounts have been included within the Group's Financial
Statements for the period:

Acquisitions DW Sparts Other Total

] 1€m) iLm)
Ravanue 129 35 164
Operutwig (Lossbprolit 15 2t 3 149
(LOSS/PROFIT WEFORE TAX 18.3) a3 (14.9)

Had the aceuisitions been included from the start of the period the following amounts would have
been included within the Group's Finarcial Statements for the period:

33. ,nbu_.;_. COMMITMENTS

The Group had capital commitments of £87.1m as at 25 April 2021 (26 April 2020: £31.8m) relating to
warehouse development.

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has taken advantage of the exemptions contained within IAS 24 - "Related Party
Disclosures” from the requirement to disclose transactions between Group companies as these have
been eliminated on conselidation.

The Group entered into the following material transactions with related parties:

Stenbeis 100 Recycled and Carbon Captuied through the Wood

Acquisitiens DW Sperts Other Totul .
lim) tm et 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021:
Ruavanue 160 K] 241
Operating loss 4 102 1149 Trade Trade
Relatienship Solet  Purchoses ond sther
LOBE SEFORK TAX ) (04 (48 recuivablss
. T . . £m] emy m)
There were no contingent liabilities acquired as a result of the above transaction.
RELATED PARTY
n : —znro “:O: O‘mzbq—zm >nq—<—q_mm - 7 Four {Holdinys] Limited & subisidiaries Associate 7 411 %5 o1
- Mosh Holdings Limited Parent - - a2 -
rompany
52 weoks ended 52 weaks snded
25 Apeli 2021 26 Apsid 2020 Mika Ashley © Pl Direttor 13 - - -
{a
femd e N M Design London Lmited Connacted R o1 R R
Praht before taxation ] 85 w15 persons
Nat finance cost/tiucomel 72 17 MM Prop Constancy Limited Connected 3 . . -
Nat invastmant fincormalicost ) 960 6 persons
Stany of losses of assocted nderidngs . 159 Neweostle United Faotbull Clubs Limted & §t James Holdings Limited{3] Connacted 02 ] a
Frur value gamm on step acquisiticn. - (20 41 ;
OPERATING [LOSSY/PROFIT . 403} mae Rongers Retail Limited Assaciate - - Al
Depretiation of property, plant and equipment 2985 3810
Depraciutan on wvestment propertis 19 31 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:
Gain an dispasal and medificotionfremeasurement of fease lobibtivs . 1227 152] !
Amorlisation al intangible ossets ' Al 145 Trade Trads
- - Relstienship Sulua Puchones  ondether  andother
Impamnent of tangible and ossets and prop 2261 190 recsivables  payakie
Prafit an disposal of proparty, plont and equipinent 97 1542 {Em) (£my [Lm} Zm}
Proft an diposal of intongible assets 75 - MELATED PARTY
Gain on bargam purchase 31 - Fout (Holdings) Limited & subsidsqes Assaciae 2 azs 318 24
QPERATING CATH INFLOW BEFORE IN APITAL 535.) g1l ] o
fent
lincrease] / decracse in recevables 1136 6 138 Mash Holdings Lurited compons - ‘ 02 B
Decrease / [increasel in inventaries 933 1308 Wik Aubiey - Bie Crector 20 N N i
Increase in payobles 649 AHH
- . Connacted
Increase / idecranse) in provs 254 may MNewcastla Unitad Foolbull Cluh Lirmitec & St James Holdings Limitad . persans o7 0 o1 i0
CASH INFLOWS FROM ITIES - 1 4215.2 .
Rangers Retonl Lirnited Associote - - - 01
n The cutstunding bainnc.e with Four [Hotdingst Lunited ratlacts the lunding related to Agent Fravacnteur Management consider that the underlyng

109

nd Trust, he

resubts of Four [Holdwngs) Limited supports the racovarability af the receivablas balance The results of Fout (Holdings] Limitud are nat matarlal an
the bowis of net essats und prohit betore tax. subsequently detailed thsclasures huve not been presantad undar IFRS 12

1Z) Use of the Campany jet ond helicopter are charged at commercial rates

13) The sules relate to inventory and purchases include the revarsal of the FY20 advertising tharge
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An agreement has been entered into with
Double Take Limited, a company owned by
Mash Holdings Limited in which Matilda Ashley,
Mike Ashley's doughter, is a director. Under

the agreement, Double Toke Limited licenses
the Group the exclusive rights to the cosmetic
brand SPORT £X. During the period a review
has een undertaken ond no royalties or other
fees ore expected tc be payable to Double Take
Limited for these rights until ot least September
2021, the fee arrangement will continue to be
reviewed on on ongeing basis, ne provision I8
required in the financial statements. It should
be noted that the Group irather than Double
Take Limited} owns the rights ta SPORT FX for
clothing, footwear and sports equipment.

N M Design London Limited a company in
which Nicala Murray, Michael Murray's mother,
is & director, perform design work for the Group
in relotion to some of the Grougp's sites.

A provisich was made in FY20 for £2.0m
payable to Newcastle United Football Club, this
was reversed in FY21.

The trade and other receivables balance with
Four {Holdings] Limited includes on unsecured
loan balance of £60.0m (gross of amounts

recognised in respect of loss allowance)

which attracts interest at a rate of 3% within
current assets. This has been accounted for

at omortised cost in accordance with IFRS 9.
The carrying value has been determined by
assessing the recoverability of the receivable
balance, discounted at an appropriate market
rate af interest, £4.7m was recognised in the
year in respect of doubtful debts, Further
disclosure can be found in note 22,

The sales amount in relation ta Four (Huldings]
Limited relates to the interest charge on the
loan and the purchases relate to the purchase
of clothing products.

At the period end the Group does not have
significant influence aver but holds greater than
20% of the voting rights of 5tudio Retail Group
plc and Mulberry Group plc. Studio Retail Group
plc have disclosed transactions with the Group
as a related party within their most recent
Financial Statements. Trangactions between
Studio Retail Group plc and the Group related
to normal commercial trading arrangements
and are not considered matericl to the results
of the Group. The latest equity amounts and
results are shown below:

Mutharry Sroupple _ $tudic Retoll Group ple

Poried snded 7 March  Pariad endnd 26 March

. 2021 031

share Copital a0 447
Share Premiuem ik

Other Reservas 22 ay

Retained enrings 70 153

Total quity 214 343

PROFIT FQR THE PRRIGD 46 78

The Group does not consider it has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the entities and so management do not consider the Group to be abie to exert
significant influence over these entities os per [AS 28 investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

and IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

e

condingd 1

FRASERS GROUP

Key Management, Executive And Non stive Director Comp .
T% April 1021 % April 1010

1 (km)

15

Share-schaine paymerts "
Other poyments =
TOTAL 13 58

Key management personnel are considered to
be the directors and members of monagement
who play a key part in the long term strategy
and operations of the Group.

MM Prop Censultancy Limited, o company
owned and controlled by Michael Murray, who
is a member of key management personnel

as per IAS 24, continues to provide property
consultancy services to the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is primarily tasked with
finding and negotiating the acquisition of new
sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the World for
both our farger format stores and our cornbined
retail ond gym units but it also provides advice
to the Company's in-house property team in
relation to existing sites in the UK, Europe and
Rest of the World.

In the year all properties are assessed and
those that are considered by the Group's
independent non-executive directors to have
completed development and be eligible for
review at the year-end are assessed and if
required valued by an independent valuer
who confirms the value created by MM Prop
Consultoncy Limited. The Group's independent
non-executive directors then review and agree
the value created and have full discretion to
approve o payment to MM Frop Consultancy
Limited of up to 25% of the value created,
There is a current pipeline of properties that
may be eligible to be ossessed both positively

and negatively by the Group's Non-executive
directors in future years.

In the current year £2.5m has been accrued
based on 25% of the value created on two
properties where the gain has crystailised
through contract exchange or completian

of sale {FY20 - £nil provided and Enil paid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited was last paid
in relation to FY19). This is payoble to MM
Prop Censultancy Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the period the Group entered inta an
agreement with M.PM Elevation Limited, o
company owned and controlled by Michael
Murray in relation to elevation strategy services.
M.PM Elevation Limited will be paid an anaual
fee of £0.1m in relation to the provision of the
elevation strotegy services {(FY20: Enil).
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35. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The Group is controlled by Mike Ashley <hrough
his 100% sharehelding in Mash Bete Limited and
Mash Holdings Limited, which own 303,507,460
{58.44% of the issued ordinary share cabsital

of the Company) ond 26,492,540 {5.10% of the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company)
ordinary shares respectively at the periad

end. MASH Holdings Limited is the sma lest

and largest company to consolidate these
accounts. MASH Heldings Limited is registered in
England and Wales and a copy of their financial
statements can be obtained from Companies
House, Crown Way, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ.

36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 4 May 2021 the Group commenced a share
buyback programme with the aggregat=
purchase price of all shares acquired under the
programme te be no greater than £60m and the
maximum number of shares to be purchased
of 10m ordinary shares with a nominal value of
10p each. The purpose of the programme was
to reduce the share capital of the Comgany.
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £22,429,985 were acquired
through this programme. |

On 21 June 2021 the Group commenced an
irrevocable non-discretionary share buyback
programme to purchase the Group's shares
during the closed period which commenced 21
Jure 2021 ond ends on the day of reporing full
year FY21 results, The aggregate purchase price
of all shares acquired under the programme
were no greater than £60m ond the ma<imum
number of shares to be purchased were 10m
ordinary shares with a nominal value of 10p
each. The purpose of the programme was to
reduce the share capital of the Compary. in total
to date 2,024,127 ordinary shares of 10p 2ach for
consideration of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this programme. '

nd Carbon Captured through the Woodlund Trust. b

The Board is now in discussions with regards

to transitioning the CEO role from Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22,

It is currently proposed that Michael Murray

will assume the role of CEQ on 1 May 2022,

A reward and remuneration package is now
under consideration on the assumption Michael
Murray will assume the CEO role. Any reword
und remuneration package will be subject to any
requisite shareholder approval.

The Group's elevation strategy is transforming
the business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers and our brand partners,
especially on projects such as the new Gxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021.

The Board censider it appropriate that Michael
leads us forward on this increasingly successful
elevation journey.

Should Michael Murray assume the CEQ role,
Mike Ashiey would step down from the CEO role
at the same time but would remain on the Board
as an executive director.
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37. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

MAWE REGISTERED OFFICE COMPANY  PERCENTAGE OF ISSUED SHARE
ADDRESS NUMBER CAPITAL HELD
18 Montrose Retonl Limited Shirebrook’ 1577626 b2
Fourth Fioor Toronto Squors
§ Pomtz Lirted fin lqudation] Taranto Stieet Leeds L51 2HJ on 950714 100
23 Aprd 2020
Activator Brands Limited Shirebrook 5344558 0a
Achivator Products Limitad Shirebraok 420461 00
Cogancy Globol inc, B50 New
Actwe Apporel New Corp Burton Rood Surte 201 Dover 3270168 0
Dalaware 15904; USA
Atpha Developments Stockport Lid Shuebragi 12662564 o
12th Floor, Menora Synphany
No 5, Jolan Semongot (Jalan
Prolassor Khae Kay Kiml,
£921- 00
AP Brands Holdings Ltd seksyan 13, 46300 46200 921-A
Petaling Joyo, Selangar Darul
N Ehsoun, Malogsia
Chneh's House, Lord Street,
tnx Associates Limred Bougtas, Isle of Man, IM991RZ, 1Ha7IC 00
Isle of Mon
Chinchs House, Loed Strest,
trix Qv rsent Limited Doughas, lsle of Man, | M5 1RZ, 12B827C 00
- e of Man
€hinchis House, Lord Street,
Bellatri Unlimited Dauglas, Isle of Man, M99 1R, mezoc W
isle of Man
Blue Squoare Sales Limited Shirebrook 1602692 00
b Tha Corparabion Trust Company, .
Carporation Trust Centar, 1209
Hob's Stores USALLC Orange Street, Wimington, New 639085 00
Castle County BE 19801,
- United Stetes
Brands & Foshion NV Lecaoldstraat, . 7%, 2800 0477-995-412 99
Mechelan, Belgum
Bronds 001 Linutad Shirebron 5347560 e
Bronds Alrico Limited Sturebrook H8I6705 nn
Brands Holdings Limted” Shirgbrock ' 4082435 o
Brands Haldings Sponsorship Limited Shirebrack 10375418 06
Brands lnc Lrmited Shirabrack" 3585719 100
Brasher Lessure Lirmted Shrebeook " 999421 00
BSL Internotionat Limited Shiretinok " 2800425 00
Vits Centrol de Miheiros no 121,
4475-334, Frguesia de Miherios,
- 5
Caohco - Comercio de Artigas de Desportos § A Camceiho do Mars. Ports, 03751804 0o
Paitugal
Compn Linited Sturebrogk 5388677 00
£ C Puerto Venecia, locol B2,
Corgingl Investments S | Trov Jurdines Reales, 7, 50021 888542766 e
Zaragazo, Span
Corlton Shuttlercks Limited Siirebrock 480582 L]
Carlten Sperts Campany Lenitad Shirebrocl A6TRER 0o
£.C Pusrto Venecia, loral B4,
Cotrinano Investments 5 L Trov Jordines Renles, 7, 50021 BE8542683 we

Zaragale, Spain

112

ted on Stenbels 100 Reeycled and Carbon Capluied throuah the V

YIS
VUH

ok Trust hes

Pore Industriel, Averue Friwst,

CDS P SA Solvay 29 1480 Sartes, Balgi 06461077 oa
Cito Citteno Brands Limited Sturebraok 1630676 100
Cammunity Bug Lirmited Strebrogle! 5260240 100
Crrmival Clathing Liavted Sturebrook® 4184150 100
. . Mortin House, 184 Ingram Street
Cruss Clothing Limited Chanmon: Stotionet, 1IN SC382491 100
& Puerta Venerio. locol B4,
Curing Investmants § | Trav Iordines Realas, . 50071 BEBAISI6Y 100
Zaragaza, Span
Drvid Geaffrey & Assotiates (UK) Limitad Shirebrook! 670530 100
Design Source Supply Limited Sivrebrook 9636568 100
thnk Digital Holdings Limited $lurebrook 143016 100
Dink Digital Limiced Shirebrook! V10/2685 50
Direct Fishing Limited Shirebrook 8103465 100
Direct Goil IF Limited Sivrebrook’ 9911086 100 .
Direct Galf Retenl Limites © Shirehrook 9875689 100
onaay Intarmationsl NV Leopoldstraat v 79, 2800 235392220 00
Mechelen, Belgium
Unet 15038 & 1505, Exchange
Tower, 33 wang Chiu Roat, P
Eastchonce Lirited Kewtoon Bay. Kowloon, 74348 100
N Hong Kang
First Floo La Chasse Chambers
Epoch Propers Limned S Heliar JE2 11E ervey 74753 100
£t Services Limited Shirehiook! 3146997 100
Evans Cycles Brands Linted Shiretiaon” 11634915 100
Evans Cycles Limited . Shirenrack 1577650 100
Evans Cyeles Peoperty Lunited Shirebraol” NA34939 100
Everlast Australia Limnited Shirebrool! 81032 00
Everlost 42 West 39th S¢ 3rd
Everldst SpoOs ternotona Inc Corp Floor New ark. New York, 1601, 11-2811280 100
Uniteed States
Carnoration Servica Cempany
80 State Street, Albany,
last Sports Mg Corp o ok 133309 304 131864173 100
Urlmed Sralus. N
Coepruation Service Comprny
Euerlust Werkd Baxing Headquorters Corporation 60 State Steeat, Atbany, Naw 134804773 )
York, 1222072543, Undtad States
’ The Carperation Trust Company,
Corporation Trust Center, 1209
Everlost Worldwide Inc Ortange Street, Wilmmngtsn, New 13-3672716 w00
- Castla County DE 19801,
United States.
Exsponts Lirmitedd . Shirabrook 2779040 00
Feniger Andd Blockbure Linded Shirghrook 639594 00
$G LAk Hoidiags) Limited Sthirebirook 13281963 00
£ USA Tende Graup Lomited Shirabrook, 13716350 08
€/ Dutf & Phelps Lid
Jthe Chancery 38 Spring
Frald & Trek (LK] Ltdt {in igudatron] Gatdens, Monchaster, Greatat 5672577 w0
Monchestar, M2 IEW.
Unded Kingdom
Frretrap Limited Shirehraow 6826684 W0

dactons thee TR
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Foravar Madhe Linuted Shirebraok 4249185 100

Farever Spans Limited Shirabrook: S4B5EM 1G4

Frasars Group {European Heldings] Lwmted Shirabrook! 12903845 100

Frasers Graup Financiol Services Liritad Shirelrock 1RFI69 100

Frasers Graup Loyolty Services Lirmted Shirebrook’ 13340817 00

Fraeshield Lirited Shirabroch £3I07H6 o

Game AR Limitert Basingsloke 10142652 106

Garme Balong Lumitad Shirebrock 12794477 0o

Gorne Bigital Haldings Limited Baswugsioke' 7833832 100

Game Cugitel Lmited Basingstoke 040213 0o

Gama Digitol Solutrons Limited Basingsicks 5476709 00

Game Esparts and Events Lumited Bosingsioke'™ 5454730 100

Game Retall Limted Bosusystoke - 837246 00

Gume Spain Holdings Limited Basigstoke 0846702 100

Game Spoin Investmants Limited Basingstoke | 10563881 00
C/virgibe 7 - 9, Parcelos 12+ 13,

Gome Stores Ibena ScU Pazcelo de Alarcan, Madnd, 881209751 100
Spam

Gelert IP Limited Shirabrook 8576185 00

Gelart Limited Sirebrook” 8576204 100
Unit K038 £ 1505, Cachange
Townr, 13 Wong Chiu Rood,

Global Apparel {HK] Lirmitad <onwlonn Hay, Kowloon, 1330163 0o
Hang Komng

Galtlhggo Beands Limited Shurebrook’ €536171 100
CC.Puerto Vaneria, local A,

Gotay mvestmants 5L Trawe Jardines Reatas, 7, 50021 BBY542709 100
Zaragoza, Span

Groduate Clothing Limitad Shirgbrook 2511038 51

GRMNT Lid Shirehroak:’ Ma4039 100
Bert Hz anstrokade 2, 070N,

GT-Lines BY Amsterdam, Nethertonds 1717820 100

Gul 1P Limited Shirabrook™ BE17470 100

Gul Watersports Limited Shirgbrogk! X 7589716 100
PO Box BMSEX, 5th Flogr Lesley

Heatons [N 1] Lirted Buldfings 61-6% Fountan Strest, NID35599 100
t-lfost, Northern Ireland
Heaton Housa, IDA Business

Heutans Stores Limited Park Whitestown, Tailagnt, 509575 0o
Dublin, Ireland, DZ4EY3Z,
Hecton House, 124 Business

Heatons Unlimited Campony Park Whitestown, Tailaght, n2% 100
Do blin, Ireland, D24E932,

Heaven er Hell Limited Shirebiraok 5899282 100

Esluo storpsvogen 7, 269 96, y

HK Sparts & Goll Aktisbolag Boctad, Swadon 556510-8189 100
Heutcn House, IDA Business

HOF Ireland Stores Linited Park Whiestown, Tallaght, 626364 100
Uubhn, Irelond, D24E932

Het Tuna 1P Limited Shirebrook! BRIBIYZ 100

House of Fruses Brands Limuted Sharebrook 10BA2467 100

House of Frozer Limited . Slurebrook 10686681 0o
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International Brond Management Limited® Shrebronk ' 5142123 100
invasting Business Limiter Shirebrook 1769314 100
Juck Wills (1P| Limited Shirebronk /75495 100
Jack Wills Property Lerited Shirebrook ' 1177564 100
Heatan Hause, DA Business.
Juck Wills Retoil firgland | Limited Park, Whitestown, Tallaght, 556708 w0e
Dublin, ketand, DZ4ES32,
Jarck Wills Retad Limited Shirebrock” 11634810 100
Jumes Lillywhites Limited Shirebrook: 1esan 100
Kongol Holdings Linituy Shiabrock: 2317738 00
Kangol Limited Shirabrook! 3343793 100
Kongol Trustees Lirmitad Shirabreack " 3508512 100
Arminako Kudan Builking #/F,
Karnmar international Lin 1147 Kudankita, Chiyodo-ku, 00-1-N128 95
Takyo, 102-01073, Jopan
Korrmor Limited Shirabrack 5215934 100
Kensingran Heolth Clubs Limitad - Shirebrgak' 6021489 10t
KoaGa IP Limited Shitabrook" 17402007 100
Lo Jolla {UK| Lirmited Shirabrook' - 5737550 1060
Laneshilt Limited Shirehroci £146743 100
Lillywhites Limited . Shirebirask” 790539 100
Latesore Spostswadr Limted Sherebrock* 867 100
Lonsdala Australia Limited Shusabrock” TBESi 100
Lonsdule Brang Limited Shirabrock” 2912303 160
Lonsdals Sports Limited Shirebrack: 4430781 0o
Levell Sports Holdings| Limeted Shirehrgok” GHOBIGS 00
Loveli Sporfs Limited Shirebrack” 184358 100
Lovells SP Limited ' Shirabrock ' 8907508 00
Musters Holders Lumired Shirebrook ' BBINe w00
altawn Lid Shirabrook ! UATEIT 00
The Corporation Irust Company,
Coporation Trust Certer, 1209
Mrssrssippr Manutactuting LLC {range Streel, Wilmington, New 3470413 100
X Custle County DE 19801,
United States
The Corparation Trust Campany,
Corporation Trust Center, 1209
#ountain Sports LLC Crange Street, Wilmington, New 6106224 w00
Custle County [E 19807,
Uritad Steitas
The Carporgtion Trust Company,
Corparation Trust Center, 1704
#ountam Sparts USA LLC Orange Street, Wilmington, New 7124259 100
Castle County DE 15801,
Unstad Srsas
Muddyfow (P Limited Shiabrook - 10246764 100
Muddyfox Lumtad Shirebrook 4187350 100
Nevica 1P Limited Shiebrook' 6836778 100
Na Fear Brund Limited Shiebrook' * 5568043 100
No Feur International Lirmved Shirebrook! 5532487 100
Mo Fear USA Linuted Shirebrook' THIA 100
RME-NI Lirmitedd Shirebrook * LLELISET] 100

Printed on Stembers 100% Recycled and Carbon Captuied through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Brhsh woodiand across the UK
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Olympus Ventures Linkted shirehrook 1945752 100 Sth Flaar, Lasley Buldings,
nengh Limitud 61-85 Fountain Street, Bellas, NB5382Y w0a
P W P Spoitbass Lmited Shirebrock! THIIEIT 23 Narthern relard, BT1 55X
Paddle Sport Limited Shirabrack 5835690 00 SOl |Bongar Limnted Shurebrook 570708 100
Acaderny Hause: 36 Poland T3 (Bugeraane i Furmusst Limitad Sturebrook 7851574 100
POD Collection Services Limied Stiwer, London, WIF 7LU, 9918435
United Kingdom S0 Bultast; Lemted Shwebroci’ 9872071 100
Propeller (UK ) Limiteds Shirebraok 2170307 50 Berwick) Limnted Stirabrook 2729957 w00
Psyche Holdings Limited Shirebroak' 03438645 e 01 Em?»{‘ncna, Limed Shirebrook ABIGATY 100
#syche Limited Shuebrock oaBa40N 100 501 [Bukenhead Limited Shurebrook #rav19n 100
Puffa 1 Lemited Shirshrook: 10910128 w0 SO (Bishow Auckland] Limitad Shirebrack! 3004245 100
Quaensberry Boung 1P Limited Shirebraok 1979363 oo SDI8rands 1 Linvted Shirebrook! 1795958 100
Gueensberry Rules Lmited Shirsbrogk” 723660 100 61 [Brands 2} Limited Shirebronk 12299584 w0
€ C Puerto Venacin, lacal 84, SDI Bronds 3) Limited Sthurehrook 12299567 100
Guentin Investments § | Trav Jurdines Reales, 7, 50021 BB8542731 00
Zorogarn Spoin SO {Brands 4t Shiralsrook 122595 100
Gurchresly Umnited Strsbroak” . “on 501{Bridgwater Limited ’ Shabroog 7852061 100
Repubke [P Limitad Stirebrock’ 5635 100 501 {Boghtomd | mited Shursbrook 12574780 o
Republic.com Retoil Limuted Shirabraok 6148997 00 501 [Broston Limied Sturabrock H127300 oo
. vapsots imesmants o 8 Cote zrm.“ e srow.,ww s e 513 (Rrock £U) Lrnted Shirabrook” 4126830 100
ST (Braok ROW Lunitad Shirebrock 9336806 0o
Robinsans Country Lersura Limited Shirebrack” 1204722 W 01 {Bro0k UK) Lemred P - o
588 Brands Limted Shrebrack” 3633585 1o 501 1Burton) Linuted Shirebrook ! B49563 100
’ € Spodts {SG) PIE LTD nmvcﬂwﬁmﬁwnﬂmmﬁw‘m . 198203008N 00 501 (Caradt Flanneis) Limiterd Shirebrank’ 10AT7sE 190
otdeld 0% (Cardilf Q5] Lmted Shwcebioon 12578045 00
5D [Retail Ca 101 Limited Sturabrool eaoN9 oy SO (Carlrele) Lited] - Shwbrok p— 00
S (Reten] Co 1 Lirwtad Shirabrook” 12290854 106 DI [Chotham] Limitad Shurebrook aH16679 o0
SO {Retarl Ce 12) Limited Stretrook 12298797 no D1 [Cheshun 2} Urmited Srebroh - [E— e
SDiRetod Co 13} Limited Shurebiraok 12298767 00 D1 (Chashuntl Limited Shurebroon” EE— 100
S0 Retail Co 4) Limited Shirghrank! 11635011 04 SOU{Chinn| Gohne Linvtad Shuatraok 10246763 100
50 [Rewoi] Co ) Limited Stirsbrook™ N687276 e SO {Clacton) Lutted shirebrook /52078 100
©  SD{Relod Caf) Liritea Shrebrook! MEETITE no Sth Floar, Lasley Buildings,
S {Retail Co 9] Limitad Shrebrook 11689077 100 $01 Clanmel) et .._DN””_:‘H_%..,._AM””MM—”:MMP 68355 oo
5D Equestean Limited Shirabraak 8692780 00 O o hregret Limtadt R srarran 0
5D Dutdoar IP Limuted Shurabruok” 8360257 100 ot Lot PR PP o
5 Outdane banuted Shebrook 8540260 Ll S0 Cakd L om et Stirbronk 1715763 0
SDB2S4A wu_wﬂ‘.“ %%ﬁmﬁ,mh“ﬂhwmﬂﬂﬂ 0548 944 386 0o SDI Coventeyl Linhitedd Shirebronk 9680128 100
S04 [{Propes 135] Limited Shirabrogk: 11227937 wo SDI [Darkagian Limded Sturebeook 10915193 100
SO1 (5P Heldings) Limited Shwabroak 0683050 00 SOt Derbyl Lirited Slvrabraok’ oo 108
SDI (Aberdean 2] Lumed Shirebrock” 1257937 10 SO Dyl Lamest EMM_._MM“N_AN__M%NHW_M%” 652340 o
501 tAberdesn) Limited Shirebrock 8512592 e Northern Ireland, BT15F%
SOl{Aberwystwyth) Limited shrehrock 279956 00 SD1IPancaster) Lemted Shirehrook SBHBE IO 100
5011Acqea 3 Laniced Shwehrooh” 10142504 160 S0 (Dundex] Limaad Sturebrook ST07004 100
5D {Ainee! Limtad Shirebrook 3357462 0y ~SD [Dunfermine] Limtet rebrook! R481679 100
SO | Ashlard) Lamited Shirebraok TB4BABD 0o SDEECSE Hamy Limiten abroo wHFO37H 100
501 Ashingtan] Linuted Shirebrook” Bas2n 100 SO {East Kilordle] Urmitec Shueetnonk 850360 w0
SDI{Ay) Limited Shrrebrack 5528267 W0 SOI [Ecdmburgh} Lirted Shirebrook WR0uIH 10
5D Enfieid] Lumited Shirebronk 1008670% wp
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51 [Fulbam} Linited. Slursbrook 1352037 00 501 [Nesgtan Abbet] Lirmited Shirebrook” £836665 100
50 [Goinsborough) Limited Shirebrook 636907 00 SOIINFSK} L, mifed Shirabraok” WII0T 100
SDI {Golashiels] Lirmted Shirebrosk ’ 7632091 00 501 [Northumpton] Limited Shwreliraok” PASLIiY 100
SDI {Glusgow Fert] Limitad Shirebrook! L6504 100 501 [Northwsch) Limited Shiretrook” 5456295 100
SDI {Glasgow Frasers Limited Shirebrook™ 1531596 100 51 [Nsthingham| Lumited Shirebraok” UHOOKOR 100
5DI {Glasgow Ingram Straer] Lumitad Shirghrook™ 9925519 100 501 [Nuneatan) Limiterd Shurebraok” 7851243 100
SOI (Gloucester] Limitad Shirebrook' TBSINEY 0o 5DI [Oswestey} Lemted Shiretiraok 7852363 100
01 {Great Yormouth} Lunited Shirghrook™ 731687 00 501 [Oxlord-Street HOF] Limited wretsrook 7970784 100
$0I {Harley) Limitad Shirebraok 11726017 100 SOI [Oclord Strent} Limitad Shirebraok ' 0046080 , 100
SOl {Hastings] Lunited Shirebrook H625H91 00 S0 [Penzancet Luvted Shirebrook ' TH52297 100
* SOl Heratord] Luwited Shirebrogk 9888442 00 50| [Peterles| Limuted Sinrabrook” Tasz401 100
SDI {Hofeol Limited Shirebrook * 8319960 100 501 [Plymauth Flannels) Lumited Shirabrook” 9127387 100
SO [HeH Holdings) Limited Shirebrook 01592 100 SOl |Phymeuth] Lirmited Shirebrook ! BATOALE 100
SDI [Hounslow} Limited Shirebrook 10086218 100 Sl {Pertsmouth| Limited Sherubrack' 12579294 100
S Hull Lanted Shirebrack' 9638564 100 S0 [Preston) Limited Shirehraok " 10915199 100
SDI fipswich 2 Limited Shirebrook 12578948 100 501 {Propca 100/ Lrnitad Shirsbrook: 11732700 100
SP{igswich| Umied Shirebrook” vrBeaT 100 SDI{Propco 107} Lrmited . Shirbraok' 773466 100
SO {iste of Man) | Imited Shuebrook G901745 100 SPI {Propes 102] Lirted Shirgbraokt N4715625 100
%01 {Jersey Holding) Limited Shuebrack' 10177028 100 S01{Propco 105} Limited Shirebrogk' N7TSS9F 100
SDI{K Lyrn) Limited Shurebtoak 10073076 100 SDH {Propeo 107 Limited Shirebrosk® 1775706 e
SDI {Keighley) Limited Shebraok 6360239 . 09 SD1{Propco 111} Linited Shirebrack™® U572 00
$DI {Kendatl Limited Shirehiook: 6338918 00 SDI {Propco 112] Limited Shirebraak™ G0 100
5B {Kentish Town) Lirmted Shirebrock: 9501702 100 S01{Propro 144} Limited Shurebrook” 12298208 0o
$DI {Kidderminstary Limited - Shirehraak 203731 00 SDI {Propco 115} Limited Shirghrogk! ! 12300052 a0
SDI {Kimarnock} Limited Shirelirank 7853433 100 SDI {Propco 116} Limuted Shirgbraok 12332460 100
SDI {Kingston) Limitad Shurebrack” 10915209 00 501 {Propco 117} Linuted Shirebrook't 12332456 00
SOl {Kirkcaldy) Limited Shirebrook: 7852097 100 SD1 |Propco 18] Limited Shirebrook ' 12332859 0o
SO {Leads] Linitad Shirebirank ' 9793515 100 S04 {Propco 19) Limited Shirehroak' 12337862 106
S01 {Laicester) Limited Shirebroal' EIPLED] 100 SD1{Propco125] Linited Shirghroak ! 12577378 100
SO [Livarpool] Linuted Shrebrock: 9BaaTIa 100 SDI{Propto 131] Limited Shirsbrook * H127204 ]
501 {Lowastolt) Limited Sherebrockt TB53265 100 S01{Propco 133) Limted Shirebrook™ H911499 100
S [L5L Hoidings| Limited Shirebrock: 1061824 100 SD1 {Propco 134} Limitad Shirebroak ! 9625631 100
SDI [Manchester Chaatham Hill} Limited Shirshraak: 10100969 00 . SDH{Propc o 137 Limited Shirehrook 2N 100
5DI [Manchester Denton) Lirmited Shirebrock 9137395 100 S04 {Propco 35 Limited Shirebraok” 11500282 w00
501 {Markat Road] Lumtad Shirabrock 0799747 100 SDI {Propco 36| Limuted Shirebroak' 11523336 00
SOt Middlesbroughy Lirmited Shirabrook 10081909 00 SDI {Propco 37] Limitad Shirebroak! 11523343 100
. SDI {Massau Street] Limited Shirebrack 1227964 100 SO {Propco 381 Lmited Shirebroak'* 11523424 100
S {Medth) Limited Shirabiroak: 7853540 100 SDI {Propcn 39) Limited Shirebrook! 11523440 100
501 {Newark) Lnted Shirebrock 7853470 100 304 (Propea 40) Limited Shiebraak' 1157 3484 0o
S84 (Newcastle] Limited Shirabrock: G127286 100 S0 {Propco 41 Limited Shirebroak ' 523621 00
SO1 {Newport IOW] Lid Shirabrook 12578544 100 SDH {Propeo 42) Limited shiebraak” NSNYST 100
SDI {Newport) Limited Shirebrook B6ISNA 106 SO {Propeo 43 Limited Shirebiraak’ 1523609 100
501 (Newgquay) Limited Shirebrogk 10085800 100 5D (Propco 44] Lented Shirabirook"” 1523608 100
5th “loor, Lesley Butdngs, . SDi(Propco 48] Limited Shirebrook' 11523654 100

S0t [Newry) Lirited 63-65 Fountain Street, Bellast, NIE5335H WG
Noshern Ireland, 871 5E% SD4 {Propco 46} Lumtec Shirebraak ' 1523748 180
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5D [Propco 47] Limmigard Shirebrook” 11530370 100 301 [Rumsgate) Limited Shirgheank 452250 100
Ath Floor Torento Square, DI {Reending] Lirutedt Shirabrook 10422164 00

501 (Prapeo 48) Limited |in hqudation] Toronto Stoet, Lauds. L9 1) . 1523154 00
SOI{Rectror! Limited Shirebrook 2771452 100

DI (Priigea 45) Limited Shiehrook TBIRN5 100
5 fellz 8l Larited Shirehrook” 853649 100

SDI [Propes 5] Lintad Shiebrogk nsze08y 100
SO TRtLrd| Lmted Shvrelraok” 71547 100

S0 [Propco 51 Limited Shirebrock” 1824337 Wi
DI tSolsbury Lt Shirebrock W102577 100

D4 (Prapca 52 Litited Shrrabrook™ 11526972 e
SD1 {Sconbiorough] Linviter Shiehraok” AIZRLT w00

SO {Prapco 54) Lumited Shrreniook” 11527149 100
71 [Stunthorpa Parishes Centre) Limitad Shirebrook 11730447 100

SDI ¥ropce 55) Limited Shrahiook’ 1527333 00
- DI [Scunthorpe Limited Shirebrook 853055 100

S0 [Propeo 56) Limited Shirgbrouk 1577182 100
D+ (SDI (Propce 1361 Limuted Shratrock Y8BBIS. 100

: SDI (Prapen 57) Lunted Skirebrook” 11527500 00
SO (Soutnamuion 2} Gmited " Shieshraok PEELEAY R

i D! {Propco 561 Linvited Shirebroak” n827596 100 .
SO {Sgulkampton} Limded Shirebraak au2480 100
4th Floor foronton Square,

SOI4Propco 59) Limited Tarants Steast, Leads rm.m{ 1527584 100 T p— Sturehrook [— 100
SOl iPrap 60} Limitod Shrabrook 11531386 00 SDI 15t Austelll Lmated Shirebrook 7H52204 100
S0 IPropes 613 Limited Stirebrook 531382 0o SDI (5t Helens} Limvted Shirghiauk’ JE5EBT 100
S0 [Prapcn 62) Lirnited Shirabrock N531444 100 500 (Srofford) Limitad Shirabrgok’ 8568681 100
SD1{Prameo 63) Limitod Shirebrask nams0 - w0 S Istomest Lenicad Srebroak “1ataa 106
$D1{Propco 64] Limited Shirebroak 1531506 00 SDI IStockport) Limited Shirebreak 4372181 100
SDI [Prapco A5} Limited Shyrebrook e a0 SO+ (stoke Longlont Limited Shirebrauk 153877 00
SU1 (Prapca 7] Lirited Shiretook 572676 160 401 {5toke Newington; Limied . Siurebrank 7852207 100
SDI tPrapen 8] Limied . Shiebrook 1572831 100 DI [Strabans) Limitec Slurebrook 4B9G743 100
DI [Propco 691 iitad Shirabrook” 1572830 i 100 I [Steeathurmt Linited Shirehrook 10066335 100
5D [Prapeo 0] Limited , Shirslsrook” 11572933 00 SO0 (Strood] Lem ted Shwehraok 7852251 won
| SO (Prapca 71} Limited Shebioak 11574687 00 SOt Swnedsrhar; Lottt Shiebroak 8755247 o
b1 {Propca 73 Limited [EA— 11575050 100 SOI [Sutton] Limited Shirabroak 122801 100
SDI IPropeo ) Lirited Shirebrook 1575091 100 SDI [Swindan] Lunted Shuebragk 98aa651 100
5D Prepeo 5] Limuted Shirghrook™ J— 100 SDI (alloght) Limitad Shiratraon 10915201 - 100
<01 (Prapco 74} Limuted Shrebrosk JP— 100 SOt {Tavtan) Litee Shiehiook ras2wt . owa
SO {Prepea 77} Lanited Shrebiook : 11876164 0o SO1{Thane) Limited Shirebrook’ 125790714 w0
$DI [Prapes AO) Lirnited Shuehrook NSITHI0 00 5011The House Yarmj Limited Shirghrook! 1233281 W00
SO1 (Prapea 81 Limited Shyrabrook P o 5Dl [The bion Hoteh Limited Shrebrook * 836860 100
SDI Propco 83) Limited Shirabrock 1646302 100 SDHThurrock! Limited Shirebracx 10085743 100
5D IPrapco 851 Limied Shyetwook” 1649632 100 S0 Trowbndgel Limited Shurebrook 12335681 1wy
SO (Prapo 86 Limted Shehrook 14649215 100 SOI [Uxbridge 3 Limited Shiretronk 197316 100
SDI{Propca 87) Limited Shirebrook 849336 o) S0 (kbrcigel Limited Shrebrook: 177276 00
SOl Propco 881 Linvted Shirebrock” - o SO [Wakatield] Limitad Shisebiank BaBIT 100
SD! Propco 891 Laiked Shirebrook 11645347 100 SO {Walsal] Limited Shisehrank * 7852789 100
0¥ Sragco 96) Limited Shyrabiaok * 11649431 100 SOIWntters] Limited Shirebrook’ £326505 100
5DB1{Prapeo 99 Lmited Shirebroak N6BI01 160 SO twr-dnes) Lumited Sluretwook” H576472 100
SB [Propeo 52) Limited Shirebrook 1730204 100 SOI [Wignn] IP Limted Shirebrook #835407 160
SO [Prapeo 97 Lirnited Shirebraok! 11720253 100 SOI waganl Lirited Shirebrook * 12579287 100
DI (Propeo 94) Limited Shirgbrook’ 730440 e SO (Wistawd Lertad Shuabrogk ' A56365 00
SGI{Progra 96| Limiled Shirebrook * 1720503 00 SO0 (Wrexnam) Limited Shiretrnok 10415200 100
SOHPropco 98] 1 mited Shirebrack ' NIICHEE 05O 501 {Wyihenshowe] Limited Shrebronk w6586 1wy
SO (Propea 99] Limited Shirebrock: "R 00 SO [Yeoul] Limited Shurebrook 12571947 00

r
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501 Fiiness (Northheld] Limited Shirebrook 9039412 100
SOI Fitaess (Rugbyl Limited Sturebronk 9039408 00
$DI Fitness {Salef Lunited Shurebrook'! 039405 100
SDI Fitness {Salisbury) Limited Shirabrook™ 5039429 100
SO Fitnass 1 Lunitad Shirsbrook™ 12311523 00

Shirsbroak 12172368 00

Shirebronk™ 12820382 100
SDI Fitness 12 Limited Shirebrook™ " uenose 100
SDI Fitness 3 Linited Shirebrook ! 12820585 100
SDI Fitness 14 | united Shirebroak' 12530516 100
5DI Fithuss 15 Lontad Shieabrook ' 17832245 . 00
SDI Fitness 16 Limitad Shirebrook! 17822564 100
SO Fitness 17 Limited Shirebrook! 12821692 i 100
5D Frtness 16 Limitad Shirebrool 12822794 00
DI Fitnass 19 Lunited Shirebiraak!* 128226856 100
SDI Frenvass 2 Limited Shirabrook™ 12372165 . 100
501 Frtness 20 Limitad Shirehroak - 12823728 w0
DI Frtnass 21 Limited Shirabrook * 12821572 100
SDI Fitness 77 Limited Shirabroak * 12673510 100
SDI Frtness 23 Linuted Shirebirool 17623786 100
SDi Fitness 34 Limited Shirebrack’ 12633586 100
5DI Fitness 25 Linited Shirtirook' 12823936 100
SDI Fitness 26 Lumited Shirebicgok’ 12625248 100
50 Firess 37 Limuted Shirabrook ' 1283041 00
5DI Fienass 38 Lunited Shirebrook” 12625356 - 100

SO [Yark] Limited Shirebrook: 13313 hlii)
Tha Corperation Trust Campeny, B
Corporction Trust Center, 1268
5D 2300 Collins LLE CrangeS rust, Wilmington, New 6876031 100
Costle County DE 19801, Urited
Stotes
The Carpetaten Trust Compuny,
Corporction Trust Center, 1209
501735 Collins LLC Qrange Sraet, Wilmington, New 68700126 100
Castla County DE 19801, Unitud
. States
SD! Aviatian Limited* Shirebroak' 9633152 100
SDi Fitness [Birmingtam] Limited Shebragk: 3038982 100
501 Fitness [Bury St Edmunds) Limited Shirebrock” 4036949 160
501 Fitness [Chaltenharn] Linnted Shirebrock! 9039840 o
SDI Fitness (Colchestar Limitad Shirebrook 903901 00
SPI Fitness (Croydon] Limted Shirebrock: 9035243 00
SO Fitness (DWI Limitad Shirebrock: 12298794 100
5D Fitness [Epsom] bimited Shiretfrock 9039043 100
Fourth Flaor Torento Square,

1 F) . +
SDI Fitness [Fareham) Limted b Toremtn Steost, Loeds, Lot 21 $025057 00
DI Fitness [Farmbxy} Limi Shrebrack’ 903968985 100
S0 Fitness [Glasgowl Limited Shirebrook’ 503861Y 100
5D Fitniess [Guidford) Limited Slurabroch” 5019269 00
30! Fitness (Hove] Limited Shirebrock 9033030 100
DI Fitness [Huntmgdan) Limited Shirebrack’ 9039881 00
S0 Fitness [K Haathl Limited i Shirsbrack! 9039117 100
5D Fitness [K Lynn] Lrnuted Shirebrock 5039887 100
SDI Fitness [Kettenng) Limited Shirebrack 90396852 100
501 Fitnass [Lincoln City) Limited Shirabrook $039331 100
SR Fitnass [Lincoln South West] Limited Shirabroak® 039319 100
DI Fitness {Liverpool) Limitad . Shirabrook* 9035347 100
501 Fitness (Manchestar) Lumtad Shirebronk” 3029339 100
5D Fitness [Milngawia) Limited Shirebroak” 5039510 100
SDI Fitness (Newark) Limited Shirabroak: 9039640 100

c/t Kennedys, 10th Flaor, River
Hou: e, 48-80 High Streat,
SDIFitness [N 1 Limited Beflast, Vorthen ielond, BT1 NiBI2034
IBE, United Kingdom ;
cfa Kennedys, 10th Ficor, River
Hause, 48-60 High Straet,
SDAFitness (N1 21 Limted Belfast, Northem freiand, 511 NIR/2033 100
1BE. United Kingdom
cfa Kennedys, 10th Floor, Kiver
House, 48-60 High Strael,
S04 Fitnass N1 3] Limited Beltost, dortherm relond, B11 NI672035 100
TBE, United Kingdom .
/o Kannagdys, 10th Floor, River
. Housa, 48-60 High Strect,
59 Fitness [NI 4} Limited Belfast. Jarthern Ireland, B11 NI&72885 100
ZBE, Unitad Kingdom
/o Keanedys, 10th Floor, River
SDI Fitnss (NI 5] Limited Housz, 46-60 High Strest, 100

Balfast, Horthern Irelond, BT
2BE, United Xingrdarn

"W

Stenbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust, helping to create new Briish woodland across the UK

501 Fievass 25 Limited Shirgbrook 12825569 1o
501 Fitnass 3 Linmtad Shirebrool 23765 900
501 Fitrvass 30 Limited Shirebrool 12823tn wo
30| Finess 31 Lirnited Stinebircok” 2935743 00
SO Fitrvess 32 Lomited Shirebrool!' 12930838 100
501 Fibness 33 Limited . Shirabrook'" 13930826 100
5D Fikness 34 Limited Shirebrook' 12930829 100
504 Fitness 35 Lunited Shirabrook' ' 12430938 100
Di Fitness 36 Limited Shirebrook'" 12930954 .

SDi Frtness 37 Lirnited) Shirebraok! 17930544

501 Fitness 38 Limitad Shirghrook™ 05018724 0
SOI Fdness 39 Limitad Shirebroak ' 09038768 100
SDI Fitnegs 4 Limited Shirabrook! 1231174 100
SDI Fitness 40 Lunited Shirebroof 05018881 DO
SOI Fibress 41 L inited Shirabraok Q5038839 100
S Fitness 42 Lirmted Shirgbraak' 09038943 100
SDI Fithess 43 Larmited Shirabraok' 05039023 100
S0 Fiiness 44 Limited Shirabroak! 09035343 00
SD1 Fitness 45 Lrated Shiebrook! 09032481 100
SDI Fitness 46 Limted Shirabrook” 13030435 100
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S0 Fitneys 47 Limited Sturabrook™ 13030364 no Tha Carporation Trust Cormpeny,
. Corporation Trust Center, 1209
SDI Fitress 46 Leritad Shire roak " IOIMET 00 SO Ventures LLE Gronge Street, Wilmington, New 6870023 jield]
Castle County BE 19801,
SOI Fitness 49 Linited Shuebrack 13030773 <00 U Stotes
SDI Fatness 5 Limited Shirebrook 12372199 100 S8 Property (Biburg] BV Netherlands 2495807 06
SDt Fitness 50 Lumted Shurebrook 13030178 100 <t Fitnass Porent Lemreg- [ P ..
50! Fitness 6 Limitad Shrrabrook 123tina 100 WBLSA Parc Inclustriel, Avknur Ervet, a0 198 636 W00
SDI Fitnass 7 Lnted Shiebrnak 1237378 100 Soluay 29 1480 Sumtes. Belgum
S01 Fitness B Limterd Shirebrooke 12372308 100 van Sleang Limited Shrebeeok 7756306 199
<O) Fitmess 9 Limited Shiratrock - 12372303 0o Shelkco A2 Limiced Shirabrook 10587208 100
S Four Limited Shirebrock anems 10 Soh SIG Lagistics A Deglova str 50 1 uw”,,mw 4020011076 60
Tha Corporation Trust Company, g -
Gurperabion Trust Centar, 1209 S14 Sportiand A Deglav st 56 Lv-1 hw a,ﬁc 40003530961 #0
Cord LLE Orange Street, Whmington, New S673735 o atvia
Castle County Ot 19801 "
United States $id Spostsairect cam A Daglava st S0 1v1 uwh_ﬁ” 4107932813 60
501 Goll Lumited Shabrook! 3083512 1o Sk and Otldeer Warehouse Limiled Stvrelrook’ 9173 100
The Corporatian Trust Compny, Stans 11 Lanced Shwrebrook! 12168568 100
Carparanon Trust Certer, 1209
SO Hofdings US inc Orangs Streat, Wimngion, New +631201 me Skazengar Cevltan tHoldings) mited Shirebr ook’ 10463051 0o
Castle Caunty DF 19801,
United States Slozengers Austialia Limeted Shiabrook s217218 a0
DI Lifestyle Limited Shirebrook 8203514 100 Slozengers Lunted Shurebrook’ M600a 100
Corporation Service Comgany, Srmith & Brooks Lmuted Sheratraok ™ 207370 160
SDI Propecies {USAT Inc. 2 Olfice Park Court, Sute 103 535872 00
ot Senith And Brosks Group Lmited Shicebraok 4079331 100
Van Konynenburgwag 45, Semitn And Brooks Heldings Limited Shursbrook 983873 100
SDI Property [Eurape} BY 4672FL Bergen 8p Zoom 9042398 00
Netherlands SNO Sport Vertriebs G Flugpintratrafie 30, 4600, we's NN 100
D1 Peoperty {Evans Cycles) Lirmited Shirebrook " n6as219 100 -
Sufa Monufacture frefand Lmitad o ?u%_mﬂ Chr ...,»w_ Morss 69922 Wi
SDI Property Lanited” Shurebrook 1752493 00 jace, Qubln DO7 paAX melan
The Corporotion Trust Company, Sofa.com Bideo Limited Sturabrookl1l 5301953 100
Carparatien Trust Center, 1209
. floas 4 V 6, Den Dungen,
SDI Praperty LS Inc Orange Street, Wirington, New ARTOD01A 100 Sofacom BY E_Memxx ﬂ.:_hwﬂ_;w 17198166 100
Castle Caurty DF 19801
United States Sofa com Ltd Shirebraok 5222498 180
5D Property US Limited Shirabraalc 1323420 00 wandeo 1P Limied Shurehrank 6546171 100
SDI Retaul Sennces Limited Shitabroak B30z w0 Spomart umited Shurebrouk an7va88 160
D1 Sport Londen Limilad Shurgbraok sBenes 00 r ;
Sport Eybl & Sworts Exverts Logrtikbetnebs Gmbh lugplot £t rofbe 30, Snm_ H_u N TN 95024 160
SDI Sports {SC 2016] Ltd Shurabrook™ 479150 e -
5DI Sports [Stake) Limitad Shirebrgak " 0183727 00 Sport Eybi Holding GmbH Flugplotzstrafie 3. ._Swrﬁw_,_.“ 180095 % w00
The Corparatien Trust Company. | :
e o Ean oy 253 o, A5E AN Bl
SDI Spons Graup Amencas LLC Orange m:m_u_ﬁ. M..__a,n:mmc_fﬂwd 047332 20 Spordirect com Ching Pre Limited Community, Minzin Street, S1440005I$9E8 /5030 06
astle County P8 oot Langhaa Distnct, Shenzhan,
nited States China
The Corporotion Tewst Company, !
Carporation Trust Center, 1209 Sportland Eeste A S Farm mnt Mﬂm_”ﬂ,” e 10677713 &0
SOH Stares LLC Grange Sirest, Wiimington, Wuw 020302 o0
Castie Caunty GE 19607 * Pamu mnt 13% Keskinna,
: United States spoftiand Internatianal Graus A S Talhnn Cstonia 1317 10993198 i
The Carparabion “rust Company, & Eu Tong Sen Street, #1109,
Corpomstion Trust Canter, 1209 Sports Direct [Singopore| PreLtd The Contren 039817 Sroqeprone 2020045422 5
SpIuSALLD Oronge Streat, Wilmingtan, New 6385155 100
Coathe County OF 19801, Laved 15-2, Bangunan Fubies
Unnted States Impenal Count, Jgion Sultan
Sperts Direct Atia Retail Sdn Bhel oo S50 Kot 0040821 Bl
Malaysiea
Sporl s Direct Holdings Limvtad® Shiretsrook ey 0o
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Sparts Direct intarnational Haldings Lim Shirabrack® 02N 100 Sporladirect com Vinna Narth GmbiH Wals, Flugplatzatrabe 30 FNI044B6G 100
X o
Sports Direct Internatlanal Limited Shirehrook' 1]I5757 100 §5G Sport GrmbH (SSD) Varnholzsir, 48, , w.cun.w””.ﬁ” HRB 7134 100
Laval 15-2. Bangunan Fabar
Impaniot Court Jalan Sultan . Sterling Resouwrces [Holdings) Limitud Shirebiook! AR5T700 100
Sports Diract MST Sdn Bad Vil 57200 Kisalg Lutrgoor 925Mb-M 5
Malaysio Statling Rasources Limited Shipebrook!' 1413254 100
orts Woald Intarnational Limited Shirmbrool* 6531266 100 i Mortin Houss, 164 Ingram Strest,
sp onal Lim Stilings [Argylo Strast] Limiad g Sr ot G1 10N SC088106 100
: Van Kanijanbig, as\z Bl
Sp0ns World The Rathanands BY. araon %sﬂﬂmz“ﬁ...aae 14056291 100 Stroub Carparation Limited Shirgbrook 3003584 ‘o0
Strike Succass Lid - Shirabrook™ 11820829 100
sportrdirect (lcolanc) et - Skogarfind 2, 201, xnuﬂﬁw__,.u 630121760 100 -
C.C.Pusttc Vanecio, local 84,
Linit 19038 & 1905, Exchange Suplay hwvustrments S Trov. Jardinet Reniss, 7, 500 B8ESA7691 100
) fawar, 33 Wang Cluu Rood, Zatagoin, Sp!
‘Sportsditact com {Asio) Lid Kowlaon Hay, Kowlaan, Hong M, 100 rore Incheral pretmae et
l, Avatiuu Ernest,
i Reng Swlen Eupen SPRL Solvny 79 1480 Saintus, Belghum 078473906 10
Room 315, Jrd Flaur Building 7, o o~
Sportadinuct.com (Sharighe We 23 Gang'o Road, Chino FUTIONSMAKAEIRAE v Tohde Torcta Prg Rurem Sirshrosh’ o =
5honglal Pt Frs 2one, . 3773 Howard Mugus Phway, STE .
Shongha, China Tha Antiguo Group Inc 5005 Los vagas, Nevadd, USA 0734579-4 100
6F.+BE-8, No. 213, Choalu Rl, il _
Spontsdiract.com (Tulwan} Limiitad Aitun Dist., Taichung n_ﬂ_.w_ _n”ﬂ 8770819 95 The Flonnels Group Limitad R [A— 100
Tha Tradarmork Licening Company Li brook® 4411829 100
Flugplatrstralie 30, 4600, Wels a
Sportsdirsct.com Austria GmbH Austria Josraay 00 Totol Extotes Limited Shirabrook® 495a2N 100
Sporttdirect.com Belgium S.A. i wﬁq”wm.whﬂnwmwuﬁ 636841 100 Tri Yacwil UK Limited Shiretyrosle” 16680570 100
‘ Samynisklu g. 3, Vilnks, .
; 115039836 5
Mijtkades Stylianou 348, Shap 2, Ll
Sportdiact.com Cyprus Linitet! T T . o . HE 230340 100 Uthwavie
Sairtiynithiu g. 3, Yilnlua,
UAB Sporttond LT 135039836 5
Prpgue 1- Nove Masto, Ng Porte) Lithunnia
Spottsdiract com Crech Republic v.ro, 1079/30, 100 0Q. Crach Repubslc 24368933 0] _
Seimyniskiu . 3, Viinius,
Sportadiruct.com Fitnese Limited Shirebraok® 9028577 w00 UAE Sportsdirect com Lithweria Joa1E5613 s
mu.n_.w.-u_inwho:_ Fronca a Nenh_u._owm.ﬁn.::-. znm-““ FR27379067613 100 Universal Cyclus Limitad Shirabroak* 1339647 00
USA Pra IP Limitad Shirehrook! 6497914 106
H-1053 Budapest, Kurohyl Mihaly
Spartsdiect.com Hungary Kit wca 12, Hungary 01-09-985824 100 USC IF Limited Shirehrook! £aI6E0R 100
Used N
Spontsdhect.com Immabillan GmbH Flugnlatzstiaiie 30, ..oaw.:ﬁm__“ 1048t B 100 sed Tockla Limited ehrook! T9B9154 100
Van Mildart [Lifastyla) Limhed braok! * B319953 100
Brawary Streut, Zone 1 Cantrul
Sportsdiract.com Molta Limitact Busifmis District Blrkirkaro CED case 100 YVinecomb Investmants Holdings Limites ook logms ‘oo
3040 Moo Uited . Shirabrook™ 2206022 100
Sportsdiruct.com OU Vo _i_uw,ﬂ_nu.w..m”ﬁﬁw 1265837 100 Vooroo Dolls Brand Linutad Shirabraok” 523306 100
N 5 Skiadowa Streel, 61-688 ‘Worethap? Limitad Shirghrook™ YAT0AL 106
Sparsdirct.com Poland 3.2.Z.00 Pogniad,, Polond , 00-872. 457650 100 Haaton Hawe , IBA Business
‘Warsow Wartnambool © Purk, Whitastown, Tallaght, 387014 100
! .
v/d Nartan Rose Fulbright, L1, Dublin 24, elond
Sportsdiract.coin Pty Ltd 485 Bourke Strwet, Malhowrne &0T 187 319 100 Walarline Angling Products Linwted Shirebrook™ 2896374 00
- VIC 3000, Austiolia
15 Athall Creseent, Edintrergh,
N ‘e Coost Gopitch IMOFCO) Limitert sCa3781 100
] Part indusizie), Avanue Ernest, EHI8HA
Sportedirect.com Retoll (Eurapa) S.A, Sabomy 75 1450 Satnrss. Belgiu, 450883046 100
- 2Offica Park Count , Sulte 103,
+ §partediract.com Ratall Limiced” 4 Shirabrook 1206347 100 Wastminster Manuloctuing LLC Caurbin SC 29229 USA 44358 100
. v n\_‘”.—r-n- n_um_.h.lu—n_n_ 1-_3-“.“_ Wildlaw Livnited Shirabrook™ | 4511679 100
e &) OCal , Trovestin de
Sportsdiract.com S.LU. Spain i os Jordlies Reales n® 7, 50071, 8-80567460 oo Wilbam Sykes Limked Shiratirack™ unK 100
Zaragora , Spoin
World of Service International Limited Shiralook™ 1702465 100
e il a
Spertscirectcom Slovokla 5o, Vitoka /8, 81108 Bradsiavs, 4720 458 10 World of Sarvrce Lim Sturabicck” smara w
Sportsdituct.com SLYN dao, Planjavo 4, 1236 Te2in, Slovenin NIESIO00 100 Yeormon: Quldaors Limited . Shirelirook?! soseNd 100
p com Swi 26 27, 3011 B, Py ul. 2amnicka 22, Robukowe,
CHE- Switzerland Inagass 100 Zoporoh SPtoo 62-023 Gk, poland KA GU00459435 100
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*Diract thureholdings held by Frasers Groub ple.
119 . 2} Unity Houss, Tellord Road, Bosingstaka, Bampshire, RG12 6Y)
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Frasers Group ple intends to provide o parental guarantee for the following United Kingdom
incorporoted subsidiaries thus entitling them to exemption from stotutory audit under section 479A

of tha Companies Act 2006.

COMBANY NAME COMPANT NUMBER COMPANY NAME COMPANY NUMBER
Ditect Fishing Limited 08203469 * S0 (Mritkat Rood} Limited 10799247
Hot Tuna IP Uimited 06836797 S0 {Migdiashrough} Limitad 0081909
5D Equestpon Limited 0B&92760 SDI (Nassau Street) Limited 1227964
'SD Gutdoor Limited 08560260 SOI fMeath) Lumted 07853548
5D (Abardeen) Limitad 08512552 SO {Naw Cevendish Streel} Lirted 05306517 .
5D {Aberwystwyth) Limtited 02789996 SDI [NewcIK) Limitad 07853470
SDI {Aintree) Limited 03352462 ST Neweastlel Lonted 09127288
501 {Ashiord) Limited Q7246460 SDi{Newport] Lindted 08679118
S0 (Ashington] imited 07845271 DI (Newquay) Limiterd 10089500
S0 |ayr) Limited 05528267 _ 5D iNewton Abbat} Lunited U6B8I6666
5Dl {Bangor) Limited 05529705 SDI{Narthamyton) Lirited 07852272
S8 {Bartaw In Furness) Limited 07851574 SDI (Northwieh) Limited 05656295
S0 {Beddgelert) Limited DB577551 50! (Nottingtim) Limitac 10100609
50! {Bellust) Limited Q9872471 501 {Nurieaton) Limited 07852249
SD1 (Barwick) Linita, 02739957 3D {Dywesity) Limited 07852363
SDI {Betws-¥-Coah) Limited 06836673 SO {Oedord Street) Limited 10046080
5D {Baxleyheath) Limited 09788372 5D {Palsley} Limited 02933408
5 {Birkenhand) ed 01849198 501 {Perzance) Limitad © U785225¢
SDI iBishop Auckland) Limtad 0I004246 SDI {Peteriae] Limited 0785240
SOI {Bridgwatat) Limited . 07852061 SE {Plymouth Flennels) Limited 09127387
SD! [Brixten) Limited 09127300 501 {Plymouth) Lunited 03470468
S0 (Burton) Lunted Ca495632 * SDI {Preslon) Limited 10915199
5D jCardilf Flonnels) Limited 10177359 S0 (Romsgate) Limited 07852250
5Dl {Carliste) Liwited 07851959 SDI {Reading) Lirmitad 10427164
5B (Chatham) Limited 06836675 SD1 [Redcor} Limitec 02734457
SO (Cheshunt 2} Limined niEm 5D {Rolle 5t) Limitad 07852669
50! (Cheshunt) Limited 75599 S0 {Romford) Limited HOTs4?
5D (Clacton) Limied OTB5 2070 5D {sohsbury) Limtad 0107572
50t aﬁ:—,ﬁ?mﬁmi Limited 05633790 SBt [Scarborough) Limited 06378463
SDU{Cork) Limiteq NH5263 5D {Scuntharpe) Limited 07852055
SO+ [Duarlington) Limited 10915193 SO [Slough} Limied 07852417 |
5D {Darby) Limired 09310031 ) A0 (Salttull] Limitadt DREIEAT
SDI {Derry) Limited NIASI340 SDt (Southampton 2) Limited 096A58AY
.wU_ {Dencaster) Limited 03888670 5Dt (Sauthampten) Limited 08512460
S0I {Dundee} Limitac 09702004 501 [Southpart) ed 0I8BBA0E
501 {Dunfermlinel Limitad 08483679 SO (5t Austell) Limitad 07851284
5D {East Ham) Lmitad 09830378 S0 (St Hehens) Limited ©7852281
SDI [East Kiforide) Limited 06654363 501 (stafford) Lunited OA568581
ASD!{Edinburgh) Limited 10100930 5D [Stoka Longton) Limited 41853877
SO (el “:3.?& ) 100BEI09 5D (Stoke Newington} Limited 07652207
SO (Futhom) Limited 07852037 SD [Strabane] Limiteci 19890243

120
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501 [Gainsborough) Limited 06338507 S0 (Strentham) Lunited - » 10066335
SDI {Galoshiels) Limited \-Wimwuuﬁ 5D {Strood) Lumlted 052291
SD# {Glasgow Fort) Limited 09881504 5D {Sundarland High Straet Limited 10107775
5DI tGlosgow Frosers) Limited 1531596 SD| [Sunderland) Limited 0n755347
SDI {Glasgow Ingram Street} Limited 09925519 501 {Sutian) Limtecl 1122800
<4 (Gloucester) Lunited 01852067 SDI {Swindont Lhnited 09988662
SD1{Greol Yarmauthy Lirted 1737687 SO {Talloghth Limuted 10915203
SO {Hanley! Limited 122807 D Taunton] Limited * 07852191
SDL (Hastngy) Limitad Dhe25893 st {Thurraek) Limnitecl 10089743
SDI [Hereford} Limited D9BEE6AT 5D1 (Uxbriclge 2} Limiited 09136
SDI {Hofcol Limited ORIIPPEE 5DV fUxbeidge) Limited 1017727
SD fHoh Haldings} Limited 10161592 SDI {Wokelield) Limfted 0845271
5Dl {Houns|ow) Limbed 10086218 SDI (Walsaflf Linted 07852289
SO (Hull) Limlted 09638564 SOI (Watford] Limitad 6228505
SO {Ipswichl Limited 0978841 SDI {Weytmouth] Limited 05716652
S0 {isle OF Man} Limitad 09901745 SO (Widines) Limited 0BS76472
501 K Lynn) Lumited 10073076 SO (wigan] Limited 12579281
SD {Keighiey) Limited 06260239 SOU {Wisheaw) Limirecl 08856365
S0 (Kandu) Limited 06338518 SDI (Walverhtimpton) Limitad 09788373
S (Kentish Town) Lumited 09901702 S0l (Wythenshowe Limited 09659136
SOt (KIddderninsier) Litmitecl 0%203731 Sbi [York) Limited 103H
St31 (Kiimarnock) Limited 0753433 SD! Four Limitad 09719779
SD1 {Kangston) Limited 10915209 S0 Golf Uirmited 09083512
SDI {Kitkcoldy) Limited 01852097 SDI Proparties (Wigar} Limsted 0#B36522
K01t seds) Linuted 09793515 SDI Property Litited 02767493
SOI (Lercesten) Lunuted 090 SDI Sport Londan Lumited 09848767
5D (Liverpoo)) Linuted 09BBE734 5D Sports {East Haral Limtest 0259403
501 (Lewestofty Lumited GFBSR265 S0 Sports {Stoke) Limitad IMB3I27
SO {Lsl Haldings) Limted 10141824 Sthlings (Argyle Street) Lunited SCOBBI0A
SDI {Luton) Limited 0968065 Yineeamb Investmants Heldings Limited 10161816
SDI {Manchesier Cheatham Hill} Lirmited TN00T69 Wareshop! Limited UIATRLT
501 {Manchaster Denton) Limied 09127295 waorashop] Limited, 09870808
Alpho Developinents Stockport Limued . 12662564 5DI {Propeo 75§ Lunited X 1577256
S0t {Stockport) Linvited 06372181 SDI (Propca Trg] Limited 12332867
S0 {The Houte Yarm} Limited . T 1n3en
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FRASERS GROUP PLC COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET IN EQUITY

at 25 April 2021 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
ot Ebl_-upﬂ H:!_._ﬂn.c. Share
temd itm) Wi !uﬂ_ﬁn.._ T e ot Cunthars  baad o
" rodamption &Lou Tatal
[ — © coptol  account  reserve  eapltal  pmemrya Y -n.h.-lh Acceunt
Investmants 7 14949 12158 {tm} (Em] {Em) 1Em) L] m} rm) Em} Ieml
CURRENT ASSETS AS AT 28 APRIL 101 L) 543 ann o1 (X {872} - 2412 aa
Drabitars 4 1829 be8 {Loss] tor the hnancial percd - . - - - - - 1477 o
Cosh ot bunk andin hand %1 1116 H:f ...m_‘,,_“_ﬂ nu__ﬂm il NHH_M M_ long- ‘ . i i ) . 20 \an
e 404 Share purchase - - (440) - - a7 - - 7R 1]
Creditors' amourits faling dlug within gne year 5 1609 01 190154 Rewersal ol prior year foir valuobion of 00 ] ] i i w00
MEY CURRENT LIARILITIES o) shure buybock conbractunl obligation 8
MET ASSETS 10648 7543 AS AT 26 ARRIL 2020 -1 M3 (8.7} L2} (L] is2.0) - e 547
- Prafe far the hnonced period - - - - - - a by
CAMTAL AND RESERVES Font value adyustment n respect of long- j . i . s .
Culled up share copital 7 Bd Y &4l term finuneal assets - recogrised - &
Share presmum 8743 a3 Shore schame - - - - . 03 08 - "
Treasury shora rasarve 129571 (2957 AS AT 25 APRIL 2021 &1 3 wn 0.1 [X] (3] (1] 0.0 10649
Pormanant contribution go guptal ki a The share premium account is used to record the excess proceeds over nominal volue on the issue of
Copital redamption ruserve 80 LA shares. The permanent contribution to capital relates te a cash payment of £50,000 to the Company
Qwn share resacva s 670l on B February 2007 under a deed of capital contribution. The capital redemption reserve arose on
Share based payment resarve oA the redemption of the Company’s redeemable preference shares of 10p each at par on 2 March 2007.
Profit and Loss account 00 w09 The own shares and treasury reserves represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group plc purchased in
SHAREHOLOERS: FUNDS 084 547 the market ond held by Frasers Group plc Employee Benefit Trust to sotisfy options under the Group's

Share Scheme. For further information see note 25 in the Group Notes to the financial statements.
Frasers Group plc reported a profit after taxation for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2027 of £231.8m P

{FY20: a loss of £47.7m).
The accompanying occounting policies and notes form part of these Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements were approved oy the Board on 5 August 2021 ond were signed on its
behalf by:

Chris Wootton
Chief Financial Officer
Company murmber 06038106

ﬁ
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An Employes genefit Trust hos been mmnccﬁmfm&

m—qrdmzmz-—-m Elections 2 made onan .5%53%7.2. for the puiposes of satishy S certalnl shave

. instrurment pasis 1@ account for 30<m3m2w pased awords The Grouw nas 'de focts control
For the 52 waeks ended 25 aprit 2021 As nmg_zmn wy FRS 402 the Cornpany has n wm__mva”n, B »«.mq,:o.pm,.f otbet N aver e speciol purpes® entity
com 14 O_Jw_cm .3ﬁ0_:m. e Q| e as
taken advantaa® of the disclos™ exemphian® o mﬂﬂwu Japss < Ctor moverme ﬂ_w :<ﬂ jisted The cost of shoves acquired &Y the SpoLts pirect
1 PﬂnOCZA—ZG 10-.—0—m.m oudilable under that m.nuzmna i retotion o account 19 pesinits ! Emplore? mw:mwaa_,_._mﬂ.w ecognise o within
N fnenciol instry ments. v-mmmgﬁoso: of o cosh 5<mm~3m2m theoudt othet nn:.ﬁ:w:mﬁ_mZm o P <.7 i v " g g
Accounting policies flow stakernents m:oa.uewma payrents: the N L B e Tk et wen ShOTe reserve in e Y
. . aratiott of ey Easaomama to iﬁo_:jw:n and goins and losses qre not u-_o-!_ Tasution
Frasers Grov I ithe “Tompac Compat agoreadt? ref .
b D@DMME M._u e noawuus.\. #._.“...noq M_‘oa,hn_ P ? sonnet and eloted poctY trnsoction® with (ecycies © the _?‘.o?n andlass account on the -
ad d 3 Jad inth United x.:< M_o i _m v ather é:o....fni:g HETHRET® of e fea disposal of histed 5<mmn3mnﬁ Gz_mmzn ineome Osmm:ma Tk 1S Eo,:amm for 0N 9 Fult provisio?
a Telygtiel =1 e LN \l 11 - N
ond n, o_= ﬁf.m e _H_ Mﬁnf Mxﬂ:on:@mm m?m 5 \here i Py alent disclosures are giver is Bnoa:ﬂman inthe profit and 1053 account ‘nasts ow Sl aming %“Mm:nmy it ,..uﬁ
vedl o offi o Uit A B 1, Pk B : wn the GrouP aceourts of Frasers Grougt plc Thig treatm nt dof ot app! o RSt ot ansen at not raver ot e balonc® ° "
eqisters offics s Unit A ool Pak EEh S ent doS8 W pply 2 | ents date. A deferred 0¥ asset s 1ot cacoguised &
cavekaoch G20 R principal pepioeiy _:wwm noavwﬂe W Ecw_aazmw: nmm ommwn_nﬁww the evtent yhat the wranster af economic penefit
) . witrre tOVe otivs are ec? seds in the BT it i tne future \§ Mare urdivkery iy TR
These 4_=.u:n.c__ quﬂmamss Jaé peen E‘m_onaa The ﬁ«.:nia, activity of Froser® Group ple i and 1058 account and ..3.%55:3 are subject '
e with RS .,.DN A,:m. T:a:n_n__ that of a0 .§<mww3a:n noding cOmpaTTy: [ iﬁo._qam:ﬂ O&»:oc_ tox is noﬁncpnnmn_ ond ao:.&mno%ﬁu
ticaple N the UK . basts &t e ta% caites that ore mxvmn.nmn_. te
_inup:.-_.__.- Agsoctdted

renerse posed on tax rotes and laws soacted

ks in psidiories o A entity 18 treaked a5 40 associored )
ision fof c:%.ﬁf:m where the Company exerCises of mc.oﬂaanz% enacted grne palanc® sheet
m_m:_m_nna influence I° thot it hes the power 0 date-
_un?._n:ugnm inthe onm-nﬁpm and m_:a:nﬁ_. policy Foreigh Currencies
decision® ’
i cinl i .ﬁaamnnzo:m ia Forelg® currencies are initioly

ﬂmnb&mu in the ne:.._ua:x._m E_.,nn._o:n_ carrency
by appiying the spot exchong® cate rulind at
the dote of the ﬂosmanm_cs, Monetary gssets
and 1jabilities aw:oa..sunmm in foretd” currencies

terms oF gronicl costn @ foreigh T

These ::n:a._u__ mnnﬁm:.m:_"w for the umzom ended

- N N ) nc:wﬁam:* onno:ﬂﬂ:m no:ﬁ asthe Group n Qcﬂu:b-
peficies below: ’ ) termms of inpain™ent ot Frnancid! assets and e
(ecognition of mx_umn«na credit |os5eS. O,ﬁ%aam s the Ooq:ﬂa.é.m grdinary shores

qre amnam:._mma as® ALY the Company $

25 el 2071 €10 propared 11 mnno&o:nm with " cognised 051 j rnpc Financial Liobilities fFinaneial Sroterments P d s 0 dedueton from
FRS .MOH The T_...o:n_c_ Reporting mnnsaﬁn Josses ofe Enom:_mma in protit o ) ] - . ‘ e i th 8 e e A
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Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences o residual interest in the assets of the
Cormpany after deducting aoll of its licbilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Companwy,
with the exception of those occounted for via
merger relief available under Section 612 of

the Companies Act 2006, are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of any direct issue costs.

Income From Group Undeartakings

incoma from Group undertakings is recognised
when qualifying consideration is received from
the Group undertaking.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has taken odvantage of the
exemption contained in FRS 102 and has
therefore not disclosed transactions or balances
with wholly-owned subsidiaries which form part
of the Group, See note 34 of the Group Financial
Statements for further details of related party
transactions.

Share-Based Payments

The Company issues from time to time
aquity-settled share-based payments to certain
Directors and employees of the Compoany and
its subsidiaries. These are measured at fai- value
at the date of grant, which is expensed to profit
and loss on astraight-line basis over the vesting
period, with the corresponding credit going to
equity.

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken
into account in determining grant date fai-
vakue, instecd, they are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
vest. At the end of each reporting period t1e
Company revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting and service conditions. Any
revisions, if any, are recognised in profit ard loss
with an adjustment to equity.

Fair value is calculgted using on adjusted form of
the Black-5choles modet which includes o Monte
Carlo simulotion model that takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the
impact of dilution {where materiaj), the share
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price at grant date and the expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected
dividend yield, and the risk-free interest rote

for the term of the scherne. The expected staff
numbers used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management's best estimote, for the
eftects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions,
and behavioural considerations.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Company measures the services
received and the liability incurred at the fair
value of the liability. Until the ligkility is settled,
the Company remeasures the fair vafue of the
liability ot the end of each reporting peried and
at the date of settlement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Statement
for the period.

The credit for the share based payment charge
does not equal the charge per the profit and loss
as it excludes amounts recognised in the bolance
sheet in relation to the expected national
insurance contributions for the sheres.

Critical Accounting Estimotes And Judgements

In the applicction of the Company’s accounting
policies, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying armount of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions

are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions’

to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised, if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions which have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
are outlined below.

helping to create new B

Control and Significant Influence Over Cartain
Entities

The Company holds greater than 20% of the
voting rights of Studio Retail Group plc and
Mulberry Group ple. The Company exercises the
same juclgements as per Note 2 of the Group
financial statements on assessing whether it has
control and significant influence over associates
and joint ventures.

Impairment of Investments

At each period end management assess the
future performance of entities with which the
Company holds an investment in to ascertain
the future economic velue of its investments.
Judgement is involved in the assessment of
future performance and this involves an element
of estimation uncertainty. As at the period end
the directors have reviewed the carrying value
of its investments end has made impairments
as disclosed in Note 2 of the Compeny financial
statements. ,

1 across the UK
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2. INVESTMENTS

Iyvestmantin  Inysstmants

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial Assets And Liabilities By Category

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities, which are principally denominated in
Sterling or US Dollars, were as follows:

swbcldiarion  in arsecintes Total
fem) 1£m) I£m)
AE AT I8 APRIL 2019 [T E o 0 12161
Additions ED I 247 5.5
Franster 158 {158 -
Impairment charge 20 - (220}
Disposals - - Y 21
Amounts threugis other compr income - - taz ¥ {2n
AS AT 26 APRIL 2010 14555 - 2.3 vate
Additions 189 - LXR) "2
Impawrment charge 0 - 2}
Mspesals - i56) 155
Amounts recognised through other comprehenswe income - 73 7
Exchange difarences - - 127 B
A% AT 25 APRIL 2021 tana . 818 14549

The fair value of the long-term financial assets
is based on bid quoted market prices at the

balance sheet date or where market prices are
not available, ot monagement's best estimate.

Long-term finarcial assets include various
hoidings including a 35.6% stake in Studio
Retail Group ple and a 36 9% stake in Mulberry
Group ple for further details refer to Note 20 of
the Group Financial Statements.

For further disclosures in relation to investments
in asseciates and long term financial assets

see note 19, 20 and 34 of the Group Financial
Staternents.

The Directors assess the value of the
investments in subsidiaries at each period

end for indicators of impairment. For the

period ended'25 April 2021 an impairment

loss of £1.1m hos been recognised within the
income statement for loss making companies
where the recoverable amount is less than the
corrying value (FY20: £22.0m). The additicns to
investments in subsidiaries in the period are due
to a reorganisction of the US subsidiaries.
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The Company is the principal holding company
of the Grougp. The principal subsidiary
undertakings of the Cormpany are set out in
note 37 of the Group Financial Statements.

The Group's policies for financial risk
management are set out in Note 3 and Note 29
of the Group Finoncial Statements.

28 April 2021

itm} Em)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
AMORTISED COST:
Trate ond other receivables® . 1381 743
Fvock
Long Term Finoncal Assets [Equity Instrument st w6 851
DERIYATIVE ASSETS [PV)
Dunvative fmanciol ssers - contracts for difference 707 7

ma 1423
FINANCIAL UARILITIES
AMORTISED COST:
Trode ond other payobiss 6073 2611
DERIVATEVE FINANCIAL LIARILITIES (PYE
Derwatwe hranciol Liabiltes - contracts bor difsrence 17 344

0.0 $0L5 .

' Prapoyments of E37m FT20 £0 1M, corporabon tox of E1Gm IFY20 £10m| and delarred tox ntsets of £l [FY20 L3 7t ore ok included us o
Enonerl asset

4. DEBTORS .

% April 2071 26 Aprd 2020
[k} [km}

Amaunts owed by G drartakengs on
Drovative hnancil assets 0 77
Cther aehtors RELK] 71
Carparation tas 10 10
Prepuyments . a? 1
Defermd tax assets [nata 6} : ar
%19 ”"a

Other debtors in¢ludes E131.0m (FY20: £71.3m) of deposits in respect of derivative financial
instruments which are collateral te cover margin requirements for derfivative transactions held with
counterparties. The collateral requirement changes with the market (which is dependent on share
price, interest rates and voletility) and further purchases / sales of underlying investments held.

Further information on derivative financial assets can be found in the Group consolidated accounts
in the financial instruments note 2% and the financial risk managerment disclosure note 3.

with autoss the UK
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5. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

5 apri 2011 26 Apeil 7020

it} im

Trascde crudilars 13 Ccs
Ammounts owed to Graup undertakngs 6025 258
Darvotive inanciol hablbas 17 ELRY
Other creditars s [+]:]
sov.0 015

The amounted owed to Group undertakirgs mainly relates to an unsecured interest free loan with
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited which is repayable on demand.

Further information on derivative finangial lia es can be found in the Group consolidated
accounts in the financial instruments note 2% and the financial risk management disclosure note 3.

Other creditors at 25 April 2021 mostly relate to the accrual for costs payable to MM Prop
Consultancy Limited, see note 34 of the Group finencial statements,

6. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Othar temperary

difarsncas

AT 18 APRIL 1017 ", 3a
Credited to the profit and loss account g4
AT 36 APRIL 1020 7
Charged Lo the proht and foss ucrount 1n

AT IS APAIL 30H -

The tax rate used to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities was 19% (FY20: 19%) on the
basis that these were the tax rates that ware substantively enacted at the balance sheet date for the
pericds when the assets and liabilities are expected to reverse.

7.  CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

25 April 2021 26 AprH 2020
(] 1£m)
AUTHORIED
999,500,010 ordinary shares of 10p wuch 1004 000
499,990 redeamable preferance shares of 10p each - -
. 1000 100.0
CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
640,607,369 [FY20° 640,607,369] ordinury share ot 105 rach 641 41
SHANE CAPITAL LY 641

The company holds 121,260,175 ordinary shares in treasury as at the period end date
[FY20: 121,260,175).
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8. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS Should Michael Murray assume the CEC role,
Mike Ashley would step down from the CEO role
at the same time but would remain on the Board
s an executive director.

On 4 May 2021 the Group commenced a share
buyback programme with the aggregate
purchase price of all shares acquired under the
programme te be no greater than £60m and the
maximum number of shares to be purchased 9. PAYROLL COSTS

of 10m ordinary shares with a nominal value of Frasers Group plc has no direct employees, the
10p each. The purposes of the programme was Directors are remunercted through Sportsdirect.
to reduce the share capital of the Company. com Retail Limited. Details of the Directors’
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for remuneration can be found in the Directors’
consideration of £22,429985 were acquired Remuneration Repart,

through this pregramme.

n 21 June 2021 the Group commenced an 10. RELATED PARTY

irrevocable non-discretionary share buyback TRANSACTIONS

Ermg the <losed povod which commenced 21 Reoted party transactions with the Company
June 2021 and ends on the day of reporting full are a_mm_n.mmn_ vithin note 34 in the Group
year FY21 resuits. The aggregate purchase price Financial Statements.
of all shares acquired under the programme
were no greater thon £E60m and the maximum
number of shares to be purchased were 10m
ardinary shares with a nominal value of 10p
each. The purpose of the programme was to
reduce the share capital of the Company. In total
to date 2,024,127 ardinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this programme.

The Bdard is now in discussions with regards

to transitioning the CEQ role from Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.

It is currently proposed that Michael Murray

will assume the role of CEQ on 1 May 2022,

A reward and remuneration package is now
under consideration on the assumption Michael
Murray will assume the CEG role, Any reward
and remuneration package will be subject to any
requisite shareholder approval.

The Group's elevation strategy is tronsforming
the business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers and our brand partners,
especiolly on projects such as the new Oxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021.

The Board consider it appropriate that Michael
leads us forward on this increasingly successful
elevation journey.

woodlnnd across the UK




Pailed on Steinbeis 1000 Keoycd o

FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

GLOSSARY

CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR RECORD

Unaudited ncome statement

Siwesks  S2wesks Stwesks o eeks
wded 28 anded 26 d e wnded 30
Aprit2021  Aprid2020  april 201y {restated) . Apail 2017
&m) {Em} ] (Em] (&m)
N$:

REVENVE 16253 39574 e 33595 32453
Cost of sales. (2,094.5) {22948} 12.418 4 (2024 4] oM /|
GROSS PROFIT 1520.8 1567 6 15635 13381 13306
Sellng, distribution snd administrotive expenses {1,618.0) {15643 (1413 8) 0172 64 (1255 6}
Other oparating Income a4 25 234 245 s
Exceptional 114) wn 15101 [C-1) HEXH

Proft on dispasal of property 2 542 84 163
Proht on disposol of subsidiary - - ™9
OPERATING [LOS3}PROFIT {603 my 605 005 1601
Investment incorne/fcosts) o0 134 8) 67 1932) m3
Finance income 9.0 30 400 a4 BE
Finpnee cost {362 129 3 14 4| 14091 15 4)
Share of floss) / proft of assocrated undattakngs ond jant ventures. - 115 9] 188l L] o8

Fay value gan o0 step aoquesition . 204

PROFIT REFORE TAMATION [ 1435 1792 611 216
Taxation {06.5) [42 51 (632} (37491 14991
ILOSSI/PROHT FOR THE .0t 1050 new 232 7
£quity holders of the Group 183.04 338 nzo 201 2299
Non-controlling interests 50 73 40 31 H
{LOSSI/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 1010 1160 Fel 17

Notes to the consolidated Incorne Statement five year record:

1. All information is presented ynder IFRS.

2. The five year record has been prepared on the some basis as the Financial Statements for the 52
weeks ended 25 April 2021, as set out in note 1, basis of preparation, of the Consoligated Financial

Statements.
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Reconciliation of excluding acquisttions and currency neutral perfarmance measures:

UK Sperts  Bremivm  Qurspaan RatOf  Wheleiale
Reatal Lifastyls Ratall Werld Retail & Licensing 0" Tote
REVENUE
£Y21 Reponed 15685 1256 #152 1527 1833
Adjustmants 1o ocowstions and carrency neutral 120741 a3g 12025
FY21 EXCLUDIN AND NEUTRAL 18511 517 iy 1523 1522
FY20 Reparted 20031 220 a9F Y 1742 w2 39804
Adgustments far aoquisitadns did Lurraicy reutel @577 1793 a9 w2 173 i334.3)
PY20 EXELUDING NEUTRAL 19488 24 L 181.0 819 24281
% VARIANCE 114.8%) 14% |20.5%) 16.1%) 03% (Hdtk}
UNDERLYING EBITOA
FY21 Renorted 797 839 41 56 80 woa
Adjustrments tar acquisitions ond currency neutral 04 L) (a4 (108}
FY21 EXCLUDING ACQUISITIONS AND CURRENCY NEUTRAL 7. a0y (3.3 8 700
£Y20 Reported 274 45 518 5 8) 52 1021
Adjustiments for ocquesitions ond currency neutrat &1 39 50 02 L3 143
FY20 EXCLUDING ACQUISITIONS AND CURRENCY NEUTRAL 115 BA 564 {681 us 4
% VARIANCE 19.7% A% (105.4%) 1487.9%) U.I% 14.9%
Movement in provisiens pre-IFRS 16:
Lsgaland  Propanty
reglatery o other Total
m) fem) {Em)
AT 78 APRIL 2018 .0 195 4403
Amourts prervided 130 m3 - 1242
Amounts atilised / rever sed 1216) 708 15.3) i
Acquisiians w0 106
AT 24 APRIL 2010 154 s 17 4N
Amounts prowded T4 nez 125
Amaunts ubihsed / weverser 7o) 145 8] {14) (42}
AT 25 APRIL 2021 58 e 13 %0

During the period, onerous lease provisions (Pre-1FRS 16) were recognised due to an ongoing

management review of the Group's store profile and strategy including current and anti
ions, resulting in overall additional onerous provisions of E71.9m [FY20: £26.9m) in

freehold acqu

the period, with reference to the Groups alternative performance measures.
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Reconciliation of underlying performance measures (EBITDA and PBT):

32 wankt anded 52 weeks anded
) 25 Aprit 2021 26 Apnil 2030
ERITDA PBT EITDA Fa
1&m) itm) (Cm) iLm)
OPERATING (LO$S) / PROFIT (s0.3) - ™ -
wa_mﬂ,_nw”MM”.”WH“:%M“:- aivd gaqupmeat and investment Lroperties 783 . os .
Impaitment of praperty, plant and squipment and nvestment propartas
{excluding right-of-use asset} 1488 i 8 )
Bmartisation of intangible usssts n - 145
Impairment ot ntangible ossets [nan-exceptional - . - 5y
IFRS 16 nght-of-use ansat deprenation 821 - 28
IFRS 14 right-of-use assat impoirment 1682 - 1061
IFRS 16 disposal nnd modilicationrermaasurermnt of luaws liali bes - pn -
. [ .
Share of tloss] / prafit and nnpoiments of ussociates - 159) -
REPCATED nes as 1.0 ULy
Erceptional itemy 14 16 ARl 13t
1% 16 n1 wa
IERS 16 Heversai of rent sxpenss 273 7Y 4 0w 1375
JFRS 16 Reversal af cnerous lzase provision 13651 136 6 (355 (355
RS 16 nght-of-use assat dapreciation - a1 - 1224
RS 16 nght-of-use nyset iImpamment . - 1682 - W61
IFRS 16 disposal and modificatignfrermeasurement of lease liobik tis - 1277} - 127
interest Payatie - IFRS 16 - na - 0y
[{3E]] s (1.0} 569
Prokt on sale of properties
Praftt on sale of propertes - pre-IFAS 16 bsis 57 97 1169.3] 1093)
JERS % sale and leaseback - adjustment to post-IFRS 16 basis . - 551 551
(LX) (s4.7) 4.3
{Pro] / loss on disposal of hnaincial mstruments B 185l ; 7
Reahsed FX lass / [gain) %3 @3 134 8) (348
Fanr volue adjustrnent oo equity denvatives - - 69
Foir vuiug adjustiment an foraign « urrency contracts a6 - 753
Fonr value gow on step aeguisiion - - - oo
UNDERLYING 58 w21 ma
127 -
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Reconciliation of Adjusted Profit/[loss) before Tox performance measure:

52 weshs anded 32 weaks nndud

25 Agpril 2021 26 Apsil 2020

BT AT

Em) (Em)

REPORTED (2] urs

Exceptional itarms ) i 16 111

Fav value goin on step acgquisition - (20 4t

Feur valua odjustment Lo foreign curreney eantracts : a6 12131
Net investrmant fnromel / costs 196 0]
Rechsed FX loss / [gain] L)

Share scherme 13 N

AbJUSTID 150.7) 1u7y
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COMPANY DIRECTORY

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Cemputershare Investor Services plc
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS99 627

Telephone:;
Q370 707 4030

COMPANY SECRETARY AND
REGISTERED OFFICE

Frasers Group plc

Unit A, Broak Park Eas!

Shirebrock .

NG20C 8RY

Telephone:
0344 245 9200

_ Frasers Group plc is registerad in England and
Wales {No. 06035108}

SOLICITORS

Reynolds Porter Chamberiain LLP
Tower Bridge House

St Katharine's Way

London

E1W 1A

Dentons UK and Middle East LLP
One Fieet Place

London

ECAM TWS

BROKERS

Liberum Capital Limited
Ropemaker Place, Level 12
25 Ropemaker Street
Landon

EC2Y 51Y
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Borclays Bank plc

S The North Celonnade
Canoary Wharf

London

E14 4BB

HSBC Bank plc

8 Canada Square
London

E14 5HQ

AUDITORS

RSM UK Audit LLP
25 Farringdon Street
Londen

EC4A 4AB

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The date, time and format of the Annual
General Meeting to be announced in line with
Covid-19 guidance, Eoch shareholder is entitled
to attend (subject to Cowid-19 guidance) and
vote at the meeting, the arrangements for
which are described in a separate notice.

RESULTS
For the year to 24 April 2022

*  Half year results announced:
tbc December 2021

»  Preliminary announcement of full year
results: tbe

+ Annual Report circulated: the

SHAREHOLDER HELPLINE

The Frasers Group shareholder register is
maintained by Computershare who are
responsible for making dividend payments
and updating the register, including details

of changes to shareholders’ addresses. If you
have a query about your sharehelding in Sports
Direct, you should contact Computershare's
Frasers Group Shareholder Helgline on:

0370 707 4030. Calls are charged at standard
geographic rates, clthough network charges
may vary. ’

Address:

The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bnistol

BS99 627

Website:

warw.computershare.com

e otal

WEBSITE

The Group website at www frasers.group
provides news and details of the Company's
activities plus information for sharehelders and
contgins real time share price data as well as
the latest results and anncuncements,

UNSOLICITED MAIL

The Company is obliged by low to make its
share register publicly ovailable and as a
consequence some shareholders may receive
including from unauthorised
investrment firms.

For more information on unauthorised
investment firms targeting UK investors, visit the
website of the Financial Conduct Authority at
www.fra.org.uk

If you wish to limit the amount of unsolicited
mail you receive contact:

The Mailing Preference Service
DMA House

70 Margaoret Street

Londen

WIW 855
Telephone:
02072913310
Email:
3_um®m_3n_.06.cr

or register oniine at
www.mpsenline.org.uk

Frasers Group plc

Unit A, Brook Park East
Shirebrook

NG20 8RY

0344 245 9200

www frasers.group



